Public Document Pack
Please Contact: Ellen Walker
Extension: 43455
E-mail: ellen.walker@ryedale.gov.uk
Date of Publication: 10 February 2021

COUNCIL
IMPORTANT: The Council fully recognises and respects the role and importance of
democratic meetings and is committed to protecting the health and safety of Elected
Members and Officers who participate.
This meeting will be held virtually. The meeting will take place via Microsoft Teams and
details of how to join the meeting have been provided to Members of the Council. A telephone
dial-in facility will also be available.
For the purpose of public transparency and accountability, the meeting will be live streamed
online. The live stream can be accessed here:
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCZCvPUsJ0LwMJ9ukDsGf0Hw
The media will be able to report on proceedings from the live stream.

Council Summons and Agenda
You are hereby summoned to attend an Ordinary Meeting of Ryedale District Council to
be held as a virtual meeting on Thursday, 18 February 2021 at 6.30 pm in the evening for
the transaction of the following business:
Agenda

1

Meeting Etiquette
The Chairman to outline good practice guidance for virtual meetings.

2

Apologies for absence

3

Public Question Time

4

Minutes

a

Minutes of the Ordinary Meeting of Council held on 3 December 2020 (and
reconvened on 10 December 2020)
(Pages 9 - 36)
To approve as a correct record the minutes of the Ordinary Meeting of Council held on

Ryedale District Council, Ryedale House, Malton, North Yorkshire, YO17 7HH
Tel: 01653 600666
www.ryedale.gov.uk

continuing to do what matters for Ryedale

3 December 2020 (and reconvened on 10 December 2020).

b

Minutes of the Extra-Ordinary Meeting of Council held on 27 January 2021 (Pages
37 - 42)
To approve as a correct record the minutes of the Extra-Ordinary Meeting of Council
held on 27 January 2021.

5

Urgent Business
To receive notice of any urgent business which the Chairman considers should be dealt
with at the meeting as a matter of urgency by virtue of Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local
Government Act 1972.

6

Declarations of Interest
Members to indicate whether they will be declaring any interests under the Code of
Conduct.
Members making a declaration of interest at a meeting of a Committee or Council are
required to disclose the existence and nature of that interest. This requirement is not
discharged by merely declaring a personal interest without further explanation.

7

Announcements
To receive any announcements from the Chairman, the Leader and/or the Head of Paid
Service.

8

To Receive any Questions submitted by Members Pursuant to Council Procedure
Rule 10.2 (Questions on Notice at Full Council)

a

To Councillor Duncan, Leader of Council, from Councillor J Andrews
“In reference to Council support for people requiring to self isolate (£500)
i) How many people have applied to RDC?
ii) Of those applications, how many have been granted?”

b

To Councillor Raper, Chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee, from
Councillor Clark
“As a member of the committee that overviews and scrutinizes the LEP, could you
please update Council on the progress made?”

9

To Receive a Statement from the Leader of the Council and to Receive Questions
and Give Answers on that Statement
(Pages 43 - 44)

10

Revenue and Capital Budgets and Setting of Council Tax 2021/22 (Pages 45 - 148)
A number of changes have been made to the papers presented to Policy and
Resources Committee on 4 February 2021 to take account of the recommendation of
the Committee to freeze Council Tax in Ryedale in 2021/22
In the covering report:
 recommendation (iii) has been changed to reflect the proposal to freeze Council
tax
 the summary revenue budget positon in section 6.14 has been amended to



show increased use of reserves (by £109k) to offset the impact of a Council Tax
freeze
the s25 report has been updated in respect of the Council Tax freeze

A number of changes have been made to the Strategy document to reflect the
increased use of reserves by £109k to offset the impact of the Council Tax freeze, in
both the main text and the appendices (specifically appendices 2 and 5).
Annex A and Annex B are attached. Annex C is to follow.
With reference to Minute No. 36 (Financial Strategy 2021/2022) of the Policy and
Resources Committee held on 4 February 2021 (copy attached), Councillor Duncan,
Chair of the Policy and Resources Committee, will move:I

Budget 2021/2022
That the revenue estimates for 2021/2022, as submitted in the Council’s
Financial Strategy and Revenue Budget 2021/2022 Book be approved (copy
enclosed).

II

Council Tax Base
That it be noted that, in accordance with Minute No. 363(d)/2005 of the Policy
and Resources Committee held on 8 December 2005, which was subsequently
approved by Council at its meeting on 12 January 2006, Ryedale District Council
has (pursuant to Section 101 of the Local Government Act 1972) delegated
responsibility to adopt the Council Tax base to the Chief Executive and Chief
Finance Officer in consultation with the Chairman of the Policy and Resources
Committee. The Council calculated the amounts for the year 2021/22, in
accordance with regulations made under Section 31B of the Local Government
Finance Act 1992, as amended, as set out in Annex A.

III

District/Parish Council Tax Rates
That the following amounts be now calculated by the Council for the year
2021/22, in accordance with Sections 31A, 31B and 34 to 36 of the Local
Government Finance Act 1992, as amended (the Act):
(a)

District/Parish Gross Expenditure
£28,753,239.00 being the aggregate of the amounts, which the Council
estimates for the items, set out in Section 31A(2) of the Act.

(b)

Income (including Government Grants and Collection Fund
Surpluses)
£23,248,997.00 being the aggregate of the amounts, which the Council
estimates for the items, set out in Section 31A(3) of the Act.

(c)

District/Parish Council Tax Requirement
£5,504,242.00 being the amount by which the aggregate at Part III(a)
above exceeds the aggregate at Part III(b) above, calculated by the
Council, in accordance with Section 31A(4) of the Act, as its Council Tax
requirement for the year.

(d)

Basic Amount of Tax (including Parish Precepts)

£252.48 being the amount at Part III(c) above, all divided by the amount
at Part II above, calculated by the Council, in accordance with Section
31B of the Act, as the basic amount of its Council Tax for the year.
(e)

Parish Precept and Special Expenses
£1,128,101.00 being the aggregate amount of all special items referred
to in Section 34(1) of the Act.

(f)

Basic Amount of Tax (excluding Parish Precepts)
£200.73 being the amount at Part III(d) above less the results given by
dividing the amount at Part III(e) above by the amount given at Part II
above, calculated by the Council, in accordance with Section 34(2) of the
Act, as the basic amount of its Council Tax for the year for dwellings in
those parts of its area to which no special item relates.

(g)

Basic Amount of Tax in Parishes/Towns
The details for each Parish as shown in Annex B, column headed
“Aggregate amount at Band D”, being the amounts given by adding to
the amount at Part III(f) above the amounts of the special item or items
relating to dwellings in those parts of the Council’s area mentioned
above, divided in each case by the amount at Part II above, calculated
by the Council, in accordance with Section 34(3) of the Act, as the basic
amounts of its Council Tax for the year for dwellings in those parts of its
area to which one or more special items relate.

(h)

District/Parish Council Tax Rates
The details as shown in columns “A” to “H” of Annex B, being the
amounts given by multiplying the amounts at Part III(f) and Part III(g)
above by the number which, in the proportion set out in Section 5(1) of
the Act, is applicable to dwellings listed in a particular valuation band
divided by the number which in that proportion is applicable to dwellings
listed in Valuation Band D, calculated by the Council, in accordance with
Section 36(1) of the Act, as the amounts to be taken into account for the
year in respect of categories of dwellings listed in different valuation
bands.

IV

County Council, Police & Crime Commissioner and Fire & Rescue
Authority Tax Rates (Provisional)
That it be noted that for the year 2021/22 precepting Authorities have stated the
following amounts in precepts issued to the Council, in accordance with Section
40 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992, as amended, for each of the
categories of dwellings shown below:-

BAND

£
A

NORTH
YORKSHIRE
COUNTY
COUNCIL
£
Subject to

NYCC
ADULT
SOCIAL
CARE
£
Subject to

NORTH
YORKSHIRE
POLICE & CRIME
COMMISSIONER
£

NORTH
YORKSHIRE
FIRE & RESCUE
AUTHORITY
£

Subject to

Subject to

B
C
D
E
F
G
H
V

confirmation
on
17 February
2021.

confirmation
on
17 February
2021.

confirmation
on
5 February
2021.

confirmation
on
5 February
2021.

Total Council Tax Rates
That having calculated the aggregate in each case of the amounts at Part III(h)
and Part IV above, the Council, in accordance with Section 30(2) of the Local
Government Finance Act 1992, as amended, hereby sets the amounts set out in
Annex C as the amounts of Council Tax for 2021/22 for each of the categories
of dwellings shown.

11

Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Annual Investment Strategy
2021/22
(Pages 149 - 188)

12

Appointment of Independent Remuneration Panel Member

(Pages 189 - 192)

Presented directly to Full Council with the consent of the Chairman of the Policy and
Resources Committee.

13

To consider for Approval the Recommendations in respect of the following Part
'B' Committee Items:

Policy and Resources Committee - 4 February 2021

a

Minute 31 - HR Policy Revision - Leave and Flexible Working Policies(Pages 193 222)

b

Minute 32 - Milton Rooms Progress Report, and Grant Request

(Pages 223 - 242)

c

Minute 33 - Car Parking Strategy

(Pages 243 - 256)

d

Minute 34 - Revenue and Capital Budget Monitoring - Q3 2020/21 (Pages 257 - 270)

14

Motions on Notice Submitted Pursuant to Council Procedure Rule 11

a

Proposed by Councillor Keal and seconded by Councillor Mason
“Major flood defences in Malton, Norton and Old Malton protect hundreds of properties
adjacent to the River Derwent, but in January 2021 Norton on Derwent has yet again
been affected by serious and significant flooding
In 2000 this council agreed to abandon badly needed major improvements to
permanent flood protection for Norton when agreeing to NYCC plans to protect Malton
and Old Malton. Recent events illustrate that this was an unsound decision.
We call on council to commit up to £2.5 million of reserves to contribute to partnership
funding a permanent pumping solution for Norton to prevent surface water and sewer
flooding occurring when water levels in the River Derwent are high.
The ARUP report of 2015 identified and costed the work required to protect homes and

businesses in Norton and must now need to be acted on.
We further call on council to request that officers enter into immediate talks with
Yorkshire Water, the Environment Agency and NYCC to seek funding contributions
towards the scheme that will be required to build a permanent pumping solution.
Following recent events in Norton, when flood waters were only kept out of homes and
businesses by 24/7 pumping, and property was yet again surrounded by raw sewage –
this matter to be considered urgent and requiring immediate action.”

b

Proposed by Councillor P Andrews and seconded by Councillor Burr
“Pursuant to Council Procedure Rule 23.1, the Council hereby suspends Council
Procedure Rule 11.4 to allow the full debate of the following motions (items 14c & 14d)
at the meeting, without standing referred to committee.”

c

Proposed by Councillor P Andrews and seconded by Councillor Burr
“The Council is concerned to encourage true democracy at every level of local
administration and notes that charges made by Ryedale for carrying out by-elections
can be prohibitive and discouraging. This council therefore waives all charges for
carrying out by-elections for Parish and Town Councils, provided that the Parish or
Town Council shall reimburse the cost of hiring poll stations.”

d

Proposed by Councillor P Andrews and seconded by Councillor Burr
“The Council is concerned to ensure that there is full accountability and transparency in
the management of the Council. There is an urgent need to ensure member
involvement in staff welfare and working conditions in order to promote morale during
this difficult period. It is considered that the historic instances of bullying uncovered by
the Scrutiny Committee and the disastrous historic outcome of the IESE investigation
would not have arisen if there had been proper direct relations between members and
staff.
In order to remedy this weakness in the Council's administration, the Council hereby
recommends that the Head of Paid Service establishes a Joint Works Group (JWG), to
sit alongside other consultation bodies, with a responsibility to report to members but
no decision-making powers. The membership of the JWG shall be determined by the
Head of Paid Service. The JWG shall meet quarterly, and the first meeting of the JWG
shall be held within 28 days of this meeting. The JWG shall determine all matters of
internal procedure relating to its own operation and all meetings of JWG shall be
confidential and press and public shall be excluded. The purpose of the JWG will be to
ensure member involvement in staff welfare and working conditions in order to promote
morale during this difficult period. Once this difficult period (Covid-19 pandemic) ends,
the Head of Paid Service will review the continuance of the JWG.”

15

To receive notice of urgent business resolved at Committees
In accordance with the Constitution, decisions taken as a matter of urgency must be
reported to the next available meeting of the Council, together with the reasons for
urgency.

Policy and Resources Committee - 12 November 2020

a

Budget to bring full LGR proposals to completion

(Pages 271 - 276)

16

Exempt Information
To consider a resolution to exclude the press and public from the meeting during
consideration of the following item 17a (Minute 38 – Proposal for Light Industrial Starter
Units), as provided by paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of Section 100A of the Local
Government Act 1972, as it contains information relating to the financial or business
affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding that information).
The public interest test has been considered and, in all the circumstances of the case,
the public interest in maintaining the exemption is considered to outweigh the public
interest in disclosing the information

17

To consider for Approval the Recommendations in respect of the following
exempt Part 'B' Committee Items:

Policy and Resources Committee - 4 February 2021

a

Minute 38 - Proposal for Light Industrial Starter Units

18

Any other business that the Chairman decides is urgent

Stacey Burlet
Chief Executive

(Pages 277 - 310)

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 4a
Council
Minutes of Proceedings
At the Ordinary Meeting of the District Council of Ryedale held in the Virtual Meeting on
Thursday 3 December 2020 (and reconvened on 10 December 2020)
Present
Councillors

Paul Andrews, Arnold, Bailey, Brackstone, Burr MBE, Clark, Cleary (Chairman),
Cussons MBE, Delaney, Docwra, Duncan, Frank, Garbutt Moore (ViceChairman), Goodrick, Graham, Hope, Di Keal, King, MacKenzie, Mason,
Middleton, Oxley, Potter, Raine, Raper, Riby, Thackray, Wass and Windress

In Attendance
Will Baines (03.12.20), Stacey Burlet, Anton Hodge, Emma Lawer (03.12.20), Christine
Phillipson (10.12.20), Adrian Simmons (03.12.20), Phillip Spurr, Paul Taylor (10.12.20), Amy
Thomas, Ellen Walker, Louise Wood, Daniel Villa Garcia (03.12.20), Keeley Metcalfe (03.12.20)
and Mike Rowan

Minutes

20

Apologies for absence
There were no apologies for absence.

21

Public Question Time
There were no public questions.

22

Minutes of Previous Meetings
The minutes of the Ordinary Meeting of Council held on 10 September 2020, the ExtraOrdinary Meeting of Council held on 2 November 2020 and the Extra-Ordinary Meeting
of Council held on 5 November 2020 were presented.
Resolved
That the minutes of the Ordinary Meeting of Council held on 10 September
2020, the Extra-Ordinary Meeting of Council held on 2 November 2020 and the
Extra-Ordinary Meeting of Council held on 5 November 2020 be approved and
signed by the Chairman as a correct record.
The resolution was carried by general affirmation.

23

Urgent Business
There was one item of urgent business, to note the Policy and Resources Committee
decision in relation to the budget to bring full LGR proposals to completion.

24

Council

Declarations of Interest

1

Page 9

Thursday 3 December 2020

The Chairman advised that the declarations of all members of North Yorkshire County
Council would be taken as given.
Councillor King declared a personal non-pecuniary interest in item 13 (Appointment of
a Representative to the Milton Rooms Management Committee) as the Chair of the
Milton Rooms Trustees.
Councillor Burr declared a personal, pecuniary and prejudicial interest in item 11a
(Motion on Notice proposed by Councillor Duncan and seconded by Councillor Arnold)
as an owner of commercial properties in Ryedale.
Councillor Mason declared a personal pecuniary and prejudicial interest in item 11a
(Motion on Notice proposed by Councillor Duncan and seconded by Councillor Arnold)
as a shop owner in Malton.
Councillor Cleary declared a personal non-pecuniary interest in item 17 (Financial
Support for Continued Leisure Provision in Ryedale) as the Member Champion for
Sport and Physical Recreation.
Councillor Raine declared personal pecuniary and prejudicial interests in item 11a
(Motion on Notice proposed by Councillor Duncan and seconded by Councillor Arnold)
and item 17 (Financial Support for Continued Leisure Provision in Ryedale) as Principal
of Kirkham Henry Community Interest Company in Malton.
Councillor J Andrews declared a personal pecuniary and prejudicial interest in item 11a
(Motion on Notice proposed by Councillor Duncan and seconded by Councillor Arnold)
as the owner of a commercial premises in Pickering.

25

Announcements
On behalf of the Council, the Chairman offered condolences and sincere sympathy
following the recent passing of Ed Jowitt, who served on Ryedale District Council
between 2015 and 2019. A minute of silence was held in Mr Jowitt’s memory.

26

To Receive any Questions submitted by Members Pursuant to Council Procedure
Rule 10.2 (Questions on Notice at Full Council)
To Councillor Duncan, Leader of the Council, from Councillor Frank:
“Please can the Leader advise whether there has been any progress in respect of the
cattle market project?”
Councillor Duncan, Leader of the Council, replied:
“Thank you, Councillor Frank, for that question. As we know, the future of the livestock
market in Malton is of interest to many members of the council and also to the farming
economy in general. What I would say is that unfortunately, our officers have not been
able to undertake any proactive work in recent months towards the livestock market
project. As I hope Councillor Frank and other members will understand, clearly our
officers have been under tremendous pressure responding to the impacts of the
COVID-19 situation. I don't think I need to say too much more about that. I think in
terms of driving this project forward, there very much does need to be consensus

Council

2

Page 10

Thursday 3 December 2020

position from members so that officers can progress work on this project. I hope that
consensus can be achieved on this in some sort of direction.
Unfortunately, when we discussed this, which must have been almost a year now, it did
not seem to me as Leader of the Council there was significant consensus to the way
forward, with members having in some cases, very different views as to the way they
should be taken forward and the way we can achieve the retention of the livestock
market within the district. However, I hope that that can be achieved. I think it's
something which we do need to address as members. But I can confirm Councillor, that
in recent months, we have not been able to undertake, our officers have not been able
to undertake, proactive work on this project.”
Councillor Frank then asked the following supplementary question:
Yeah, is it right down Malton Road, it says that more units are available on the, for the
second phase, can I ask what those units will be? and will they be connected to
agriculture because we weren't going to have any non-agricultural stuff on that site. So,
these units that are available for the second phase, can I ask, what they are and what
they're going to be used for?
The Leader then replied:
“Thank you, Councillor Frank for that supplementary question. I can't comment on that,
and I suggest that perhaps you make contact with the developer. If there's anything I
can do from my side in terms of response from our council officers, I'll be able to get
that information to you. But I think I can't comment on that at this point in time.”

27

To Receive a Statement from the Leader of the Council and to Receive Questions
and Give Answers on that Statement
Councillor Duncan, Leader of the Council, presented the following statement:
LEADER’S STATEMENT
We’re in the midst of unprecedented times, with the ongoing effects of the Covid-19
pandemic being felt by Ryedale citizens, businesses and Council staff. The future is
uncertain, and while we are working hard to support Ryedale, local government
reorganisation will bring about even more change, whether we like or not.
There is lots to do and eyes are on us as Councillors to stay focussed on the key
priorities and to fulfil the duties expected of us. It remains my genuine hope that we can
put aside our political differences to work together to do what residents, businesses
and Council staff need. Petty squabbles, procrastination and political games risk
nothing over than damaging the reputation of this Council and undermining our
splendid work so far.
Covid-19
Our priority throughout this pandemic is to support the citizens of Ryedale, especially
those whose lives and livelihoods are most at risk as a result of Covid-19. We are, for
example, supporting homeowners and tenants who face financial difficulties and doing
what we can to prevent homelessness.

Council

3

Page 11

Thursday 3 December 2020

The second national lockdown has also dealt a cruel blow to the district’s businesses
who were already struggling to get back on their feet after the first. Our business team
has been advising on wider business support and are working around-the-clock to
process the latest government grants to help eligible businesses stay afloat and protect
jobs. It is expected that 1,200 applications will be made for the mandatory grants alone.
Community help
Once again, Ryedale communities are pulling together to help those who are
struggling. Our officers working with volunteers, partners, organisations and networks
across the district. There’s a tremendous amount of work going on to make sure that
our most vulnerable are supported, that our citizens are following the guidance to keep
one another safe and that things continue to run smoothly. It is partnership working at
its very best.
New projects
Whilst responding to the challenges of the Covid-19 pandemic remains a top priority,
the Council is not standing still. We continue to innovate and improve the way we do
business and improve the quality of life for citizens of Ryedale.
A refreshed website will make it easier for people to find the information they need, a
WiFi scheme in the market towns of Pickering, Malton and Helmsley will improve
connectivity, and two new Community Civil Enforcement Officers are now in post to
support communities and tackle antisocial behaviour to ensure that Ryedale remains a
beautiful, clean and safe place to live, work and visit.
Local Government Reorganisation
Following a series of extraordinary Council meetings, Craven, Harrogate,
Richmondshire, Scarborough, Selby - and, of course, Ryedale - submitted an outline
bid to Government on November 9, making the case for why an ‘East and West’ model
is the best way to reorganise local government in the region. Thank you to the 21
Ryedale Councillors who united together, across political lines, to support submission
of our bid. I know that for many this was a tough decision.
The model would see Craven, Harrogate, Richmondshire and Hambleton join together
to form a unitary Council in the west, and Selby, City of York, Ryedale and
Scarborough join together to form a unitary Council in the east.
Public support for this model is growing. New independent market research has
revealed that two thirds of residents prefer an ‘East and West’ model of local
government for the North Yorkshire and York region. What is more, Ryedale Unison
has confirmed there is overwhelming support from our staff.
We are still gathering evidence to support our model and will be submitting the full
proposal on December 9. The help, support and assistance of Councillors from all
groups is appreciated as we engage with the public on this matter. While there is lots
going on, it is important that we use our time, effort and resources to achieve the best
outcome we can.
Thank you

Council

4

Page 12

Thursday 3 December 2020

I wish to say a public thank you to each and every member of our workforce. Their hard
work, determination and resilience during what has been perhaps the toughest year in
the history of local government has been remarkable. It is worth remembering that we
are a small team at Ryedale, with less than 200 workers delivering everything we do.
It must be acknowledged that there are creaks in the system as the workload
increases. I continue to champion our staff throughout this difficult time, and I hope that
other Councillors can do so too. Wherever possible, it is vital that we relieve the burden
on them rather than add to it.
And finally, I would like to wish all Councillors and your families a very Merry Christmas
and a healthy, prosperous 2021.
The following questions were received on the Leader’s Statement:
1. From Councillor Raine:
“Reading the statement of our Leader again, even the last minute, I'm really quite
concerned with the second paragraph of putting aside our political differences to work
together to do what residents, business and Council staff need, petty squabbles etc.
and I really am concerned with this. Does Councillor Duncan, expect everybody of
different political stances and so on, expect everyone, to agree with everything that
he's saying. Because when anybody's trying to question, we are democratic and I
honestly think, if we're not allowed to question anything that goes on, and I know
everybody on this Council is trying their best for, you know, whoever they're working
for, I’m representing Malton.
May I also mention that today is the International day of people with disabilities. And
there's nothing in this statement at all regarding this international day, and I know North
Yorkshire County Council have done lots of things and I do know Ryedale do help. I
think the biggest thing at the moment is hidden disabilities, which is obviously mental
illness, chronic pain, sight and hearing loss, brain injuries, learning difficulties,
neurological disorders, to name but a few. And I think it would have been very, very
nice to mention just what Ryedale is doing, alongside other councils to help with
disabilities for people in our community on this International day of disability. So, thank
you very much. That's what I wanted to say.”

The Leader replied:
“Thank you Councillor Raine for your question. I think first of all, it's just worth saying
that the intention of my statement is to encourage where possible for us to work
together. Clearly that does not mean that we always agree with one another. We are
democratically elected. It's healthy for us to have debate, but that debate needs to be
for a productive purpose, which is to represent the views and concerns of our residents
and to deliver for them in the very best way that we possibly can. Unfortunately, I think
it is fair to say, that we have on occasions, not always been able to be perhaps as
productive as we possibly can be. I think generally there is broad agreement across the
Council where we want to be. I think our priorities are broadly aligned with each other.
But unfortunately, sometimes we seem to get bogged down in the detail rather than the
broader purpose, the really important things which the public want and expect us to
deliver on their behalf and I don't think anyone should really take offence, unless they
do believe that we haven't quite worked in the cross party way which I think the public
Council

5

Page 13

Thursday 3 December 2020

expects us to do. I think there's elements of that across political groups, not just in my
group, but across the Council where there are really good elements of where we have
been able to work together.
The second point about the day, which is taking place today, I think it's worth just
saying that Ryedale District Council plays a very full and proactive role in supporting
people with disabilities. You may have seen that we have promoted heavily on social
media just today, celebrating the International Day of People with Disabilities. And you
will also see on our website, a full guide that the District Council has produced for
helping people with hidden disabilities. You will also see that we are part of the
Sunflower Scheme. So, there is lots of work which is ongoing by this Council. And
while you may not be aware of that, I think it's wrong to suggest perhaps that we aren't
because we most certainly are.
One thing I would also say is that my latest statement cannot reference everything that
we do as a Council. It's an impossibility for me to do so. I try to keep the information to
the salient points, the most relevant points, and also point out that this statement is
written several weeks in advance of the meeting and publicised and shared with
members of the Council several weeks before as well.”
2. From Councillor Riby:
“I would like to make comments about the Leader's statement followed by questions. If
that is okay?
So, the local government reorganisation “whether we like it or not“. I don't like that
strong language and the results of him making that strong language. I'd suggest that
perhaps he doesn't have the mandate to say whether we like it or not because he is in
charge of a group that is in a minority rather than the majority, assuming Councillor
Middleton honour their statement in the Gazette and Herald, where she said she was
no longer enfranchised with the Conservative Party.
In paragraph two, the idea of followers, the majority of local people we represent do not
want to be merged with Scarborough and York, which would make the urban
population totally dominant by a ratio 3:1.
In paragraph six, this is a question, a refresh website... I noticed Pickering, Malton and
Helmsley are going to get an updated system. I represent Kirkbymoorside. Why is
Kirkbymoorside not benefiting from this situation?
I note that we got a letter via the Chief Executive yesterday, I think it was with all the
signatories to the letter to the Prime Minister. Strangely enough, this echoed some of
the things I've been pleading with our Leader a number of times, and it acknowledges
what I'm saying for example, the Government will not enforce the local government
reform against the will of the people and also it mentions ratio of rural to urban again.
In paragraph nine, he talks about public support is now growing, and you may have a
two to three majority in favour of the population in favour of an East-West split. Well, I
don't understand his figures because York is against it. And that's 50% of the EastWest split population, and my constituents almost amount to 100% against the merger
with York and Scarborough. If you do it, take notice of a poll. Yeah, if you ask the right
questions, you get the answers you want. Yeah, I don't think that's good.

Council

6

Page 14

Thursday 3 December 2020

Beth Evans clearly stated last night that the officers should be seen to be politically
impartial, yet here we have a claim that the opinion of the officers together with the
opinion of the Unison endorses the KPMG plan. Which is not I don't think is the correct
[phrase] to use. So my question is, do you agree with me that it would be detrimental to
the people we represent if they are totally dominated in the partnership with our urban
cousins at a ratio of three to one?”
The Leader replied:
“Thank you, Councillor Riby I was trying to keep a list of all the questions you're asking
there. I think I must have reached at least past 10. So, I will try and address some of
the points that you have raised. First and foremost, your formal question there about
the domination of the urban areas. It is worth pointing out that the City of York Council
area is less than 50% of the total area of what would be the eastern unitary. It's also
worth pointing out that the model, which is in preparation at the moment, and as you
may well know, from the member briefing, which took place, is for there to be area
committees based on the current boundaries of the district and city authorities. There
will be perhaps a devolved budget based on population, based on need for councils in
that area to spend on the issues that they see fit on the priorities for that area, which
will mean hopefully, that no one area will be able to dominate because there will be in
effect these semi-autonomous committees able to make decisions on behalf of local
people in their patches.
I think it's also worth just pointing out that you mentioned about the vote and the
support on this Council. It's worth pointing out there's 21 votes to 7. 21 members of this
Council voted for us to submit that document, including the Leader of your own group,
Councillor Riby and the Leaders of many members of groups which are not my own. I
could not have got that through the Council relying solely on the members of my group.
But it was 21 votes to 7.
I think it's also worth just pointing out as well in terms of our staff, that they are
members of the Unison union. They are entitled to form a view on issues that affect
their positions. It is right and proper in a democratic society for unions to exist and to
express views. That's what they have done and that view was being overwhelmingly in
favour of the East West proposal.
What I would say also is that in terms of stopping this process, there is really very little
that we can do other than form a constructive optimistic bid to put forward out there to
government. Because if not, and if we hadn't gone through this process and had the
foresight to have commissioned the piece of work, which we did, and to submit it to
government, there would be one option on the table, which would be the proposal from
the County Council, and the Government would have one option to take forward. I
sense Councillor Riby and I don’t want to put words in your mouth here that you do not
feel that the County Council, unitary, one Council serving all of North Yorkshire will be
the right solution. Given that, it was the right thing to do, the proper thing to do for us to
come up with alternative. We've done that, and it may not be perfect. I actually think it's
a really phenomenal proposal, a really fantastic proposal, which we've been able to pull
together in a very tight timeframe. Credit to our officers on that front, working across
councils, credit to the Leaders, myself included, for working cross party, genuinely
cross party on this where the independent and conservative Leaders coming together.
So, I think what will be best is, I need the support of all members of this Council. I hope
I can get support to take this course forward and make the strongest possible case that
we can to central government.”
Council

7

Page 15

Thursday 3 December 2020

3. From Councillor Burr:
“I’m just picking up on the Leader’s statement where he says ongoing effects of
COVID. And obviously this year, it's been extremely tough for everybody for our
residents, care homes, hospitals, and our businesses. And in March, we're in a threemonth lockdown. And in November, we've just been in another month’s lockdown.
Some businesses are really having to put up with an awful lot and people who work in
their businesses and I'm particularly worried about our hospitality sector, as I'm sure
you are, which does have its impact on tourism, etc., etc. So, would you agree that the
Government probably got it wrong when they put us in tier two along with London? And
would you agree that it might be worth writing on behalf as Leader from this Council to
urge the Prime Minister to put us into tier one? I know that our MP is urging that and I
just think that it would be really good if we could work together on this to try and get us
down as quickly as possible to tier one.”
The Leader replied:
“Thank you, Councilor Burr for that question, which I think is a really pertinent one and
a relevant one. What I would say first and foremost is that our Council officers have
done a phenomenal job in getting grant funding out the door to businesses which need
it. The most recent total that I've been given is that we managed to get out 25 million
pounds to businesses in need of assistance across Ryedale. A truly phenomenal effort
and they've done it in quick time as well, in many cases working around the clock to get
that support and assistance out there. Clearly, there are businesses that have applied
for funding and we're working to get through those as quickly as we possibly can.
There are some businesses which do not qualify for the strategy element of the
funding. But there is the offer of discretionary funding, which we've also made
available. So, I think all Councillors will agree that we've done a phenomenal job in
doing that and helping in terms of support. Clearly grant funding is one element.
Getting back to business is the other element, which we need businesses to be able to
do, and for many, tier two is a nightmare situation whereby legally they can reopen,
retail can reopen, but some businesses, trade is still down, significantly impacted. We
do need to get ourselves back up and running as quickly as we can. I was disappointed
by the tier two decision. But clearly, I don't think there's anything that I could do about
that or anything that even our Member of Parliament could do about it in terms of that.
He is advocating as you know, for a district-by-district approach, not a blanket
approach across the whole county, perhaps indicative and representative of the vast
area which North Yorkshire covers. And I think it's worth pointing out that the key thing
is we need to get our businesses back up and running, back on their feet because
grant funding can only go on for so long. We need to get people up and running again.”
Councillor Burr then asked the following supplementary question:
“Thank you, so to answer my question, are you going to write a letter for us?”
The Leader then replied:
“I mean, I'm happy to write a letter if that's the will of the Council, however, I'm not
confident Councillor Burr it’s going to have any material impact whatsoever on the
decision making but I'm happy to do that if members want to get in touch with me to
articulate their views, and I can formulate something together. I'll be very happy to do
that.”
Council

8

Page 16

Thursday 3 December 2020

4. From Councillor P Andrews:
“Again I come back to COVID-19 and businesses. This time, to the businesses that
have been able to open. Now I understand that a lot of them feel penalised by the fact
that the Government has recommended that all payments should be by machine and
by card, even for the very smallest items for that expenditure. And they feel that this
has put them to some disadvantage as they have to pay considerable fees out to the
banks, when debit cards are used. So, my question to the Leader is, would the Leader
be prepared to join with me in writing on behalf of Ryedale, a letter to the Prime
Minister, perhaps to be included in the other letters he's been asked to write to the
Prime Minister, asking to find some way of compensating businesses for the additional
bank charges they've had to incur as a result of taking card payments, credit card
payments, when they wouldn't otherwise normally have expected to? “
The Leader replied:
“Thank you, Councillor Andrews for your question, I have to say my understanding on
this is that this is a recommendation. It is guidance and guidelines for businesses to
follow are clearly a sensible thing and perhaps the modern way of working as well.
Obviously, I'm going to be very busy writing letters to the Prime Minister. You'll see the
response I got to my last letter from the Prime Minister, which took several weeks to
get a reply to. However, what I will say Councillor Andrews, I'm happy to discuss this
with you and see what we might be able to do as a Council. I think it's probably
something that's way beyond our remit, but I'm happy to discuss with you further on
this topic and see what we might be able to do.”
5. From Councillor J Andrews:
“Thank you for the Leader’s statement Councillor Duncan. It was nice to see the thank
you at the end for all that hard work that the staff have been doing to deliver everything
that we do for the residents of Ryedale. Would Councillor Duncan strive to ensure that
his Government does not freeze local government wages and condemn if the
Government did?”
The Leader replied:
“Thank you, Councillor Andrews for your question. I'm struggling really to understand it.
Given that our pay is set locally, collectively with the trade unions, and we do that every
single year, and also given that the wages for Ryedale employees has increased this
year as it did the year before. So, I'm struggling to actually see the comparison with the
pay freeze perhaps for public sector workers on a national level.”
6. From Councillor Potter:
“First, can I just endorse what Councillor Raine said because I represent the views of
Pickering residents, not the views of the Conservative Group. And to me these are
neither petty squabbles or procrastination, and I also take exception to this statement.
So moving on. Could the Leader please tell me why he would be answering questions
directed to the Chair of Planning regarding purely development control?”
The Leader replied:
Council

9

Page 17

Thursday 3 December 2020

“Thank you, Councillor Potter, I'm not quite sure exactly the question you are asking
me. However, if members do have questions about planning policy, and they've put
them in as questions on notice, then logically that would be something answered by
myself as Chairman of the Policy & Resources Committee, given that it is within that
Committee's remit to decide planning policy for this Council.”
Councillor Potter then asked the following supplementary question:
“So well, therefore, could the Leader and Chair of P&R explain how a decision on a
specific planning application relates to planning policy?”
The Leader then replied:
“Only to say again, I'm a little bit lost by Councillor Potter’s question if he has a direct
question which he wishes to ask me on planning policy for Ryedale that he's happy to
submit a question on notice or bring it to this forum in future. What I would say is that
we are Ryedale District Council, and as Leader of this Council, and as Chairman of
Policy and Resources Committee, I will answer all questions related to policy in the
fullest and best way that I possibly can.”
Councillor Potter then asked:
“Yeah, another supplementary there Chair, thank you. It's actually referring to pages
eight and nine of the agenda, which is going back a couple of meetings. So, could I just
asked the Leader without wishing to know the details of how the Conservative Group
works does it comply with the Constitution to how his Group decide how to handle
questions to the Chair of Planning?”
The Leader then replied
“Mr. Chairman, I think I answered Councillor Potter's original question, I've answered
his supplementary. Clearly, he isn't entitled to a second supplementary question. But
what I would say is that if he has any particular question, he wants to ask me as
Chairman of Policy and Resources I'm happy to do so at a future meeting.”
7. From Councillor Clark:
“I’m equally someone who's not encouraged when accusations of petty squabbles,
procrastination and political gains is made. So, if you're wanting to encourage people to
work together, Councillor Duncan, you thank the 21 people in the bottom of the first
side of your statement for supporting you. But how many of that 21 would have still
supported you, if they'd known that you were about to squander £49,000 on the bid?”
The Leader replied:
“Thank you, Councillor Clark for your question. And what I would say first of all, is that
clearly, that element of my statement about us trying to work together and some
elements of petty squabbling as it has been referred to, does not state who may or may
not be responsible for that behavior. We all have to look at how we all operate I think
as Councillors in this authority. All of us, in every single group, so I don't think anyone
should be taking offence to that statement unless perhaps it does fit any one individual
more than another.
Council

10

Page 18

Thursday 3 December 2020

What I would say on the vote on the local government reorganisation, clearly 21
members of this Council cross party did vote to submit it. What I would also say has
been told to you on several occasions now Councillor Clark in writing, and I believe
verbally, that while we did agree at Policy and Resources to allocate up to £49,000 to
support the production of our final submission to government, we have not spent
£49,000. We have no intention of spending that amount but there was a contingency
factored in. And as has been stated to you, on several occasions, I think we are likely
to spend up to £15,000 and we may not actually spend that amount of money.
But what I would also say is that it's a slight nonsense situation to support submission
of our outline bid and then not support the funding required to bring that outline bid to
completion. And the funding that's been allocated from Policy and Resources has been
extremely useful to our officers and the officers of the other councils who have worked
jointly to make our bid as strong as it possibly can be and to ensure that if our bid is
chosen by the government that we can demonstrate Children's Services, Adult Social
Care, Public Health and other areas of Council functions can be delivered safely and
more effectively than they are at the moment. And I think that is money very well spent
by this Council.”.
Councillor Clark then asked the following supplementary question:
“And I have a second question later. Bluntly, when the 21 people that you've
highlighted, nobody else has Councillor Duncan, the £49,000 was not known. The
£49,000 came up later. And if it was only going to be an expenditure of £15,000 why
have we put in a tolerance of 270%? i.e. £15,000 might not be enough so we'll tack on
another up to £34,000, in case. Can you please justify that?”
The Leader then replied:
“As I think I've explained Councillor Clark, thank you for your supplementary, that this
has been an extremely challenging process for everybody concerned. I think for us as
members, for our officers who are employees of this Council and for the public as well,
the uncertainty which exists. We have approached this in the very best way that we
possibly can. We had the foresight, our Chief Executive had the foresight to join with
other councils to commission a piece of work, if we hadn't have done that back in July,
then we would not be in a position where we could have presented anything to
Government. You look at the submissions that Cumbria has put together using the
same consultants which we have used. The piece of work which they were able to
submit in outline is significantly weaker than we've been able to submit in outline,
because we were ahead of the curve. We were able to work together and we have a
plan for submission, that's continued, and I believe that it's been the right thing to do
this process. Going back to the figure specifically, there is a contingency in there
because given the uncertainty, and we weren't quite sure exactly what we might need
to spend certain elements specifically the funding upon, but the decision was taken so
we didn't have to go back to Committee and ask for approval, yet again, for that
£49,000 to be released. And it was absolutely the right thing for this Council to do.”
8. From Councillor Clark:
“You say just in the two paragraphs below that, that two thirds of the people supported
the East-West model. How is it that two thirds of the public are so well informed, that

Council

11

Page 19

Thursday 3 December 2020

two thirds of them support the east west model, when the Council at the moment is not
able to do a comparison between the various bids?”
The Leader replied:
“Thank you, Councillor Clark, for your question, clearly referring there to the market
research which was conducted by an online panel. I think it's worth pointing out that
the question that people were asked was simply which of these two options do you
prefer, on the basis of the information that you have? They were presented with the
maps, and they were asked to pick. The choice which they made, two thirds across
York and NorthYorkshire was for the East-West proposal, a third for the County Council
proposal. And clearly I'm not going to stand here and tell you that you know, I mean, its
market research and we know that market research is a sample of the population. We'd
like to reach more people. I hope that we can reach more people and there is a portal
online for us to do that. But it is market research. Two thirds is a very strong preference
and I believe that some elements of the public have taken interest in this and do have
the information they need to form a view and that's been clearly expressed in the
market research.”
Councillor Clark then asked the following supplementary question:
“Councillor Duncan, you've ignored my statements in the question as to how it is that
the Council doesn't know. We requested a meeting of Council to look at a comparison
between the bids. That was turned down by the Chair of Council because we didn't
have the officer time to compare the bids. That's the North Yorkshire bid, the York bid
and the East-West bid. How is it that any research market or otherwise, can give
anything like an accurate picture, if a Council with all its resources, hasn't done a
comparison between the bids?”
The Leader then replied
“Thank you, Councillor Clark, for that question. I think it's worth pointing out that we
commissioned KPMG to do an appraisal of all of the options, a comparison of all of the
options, and they started with ten, they went down to three, and we ended up with one.
And they did that comparison on the basis of objective information, gained from all nine
local authorities in York and North Yorkshire and overwhelmingly on the basis of that
objective analysis, and their conclusion was that the East-West proposal was the
strongest proposal and that was against the comparison of the North Yorkshire and
York option. So, we have paid quite a lot of money to commission an options appraisal.
It's there, it's available, all 130 pages of it for you to read and for members of the public
to read. But we did commission that assessment of the options. Clearly, going forward,
there are elements of the bids, perhaps, the finer detail of those bids where there will
be opportunities to draw comparison. I think that will come at the consultation stage
where this Council will be consulted and asked to give a preference on the option
which it prefers. And I think at that point in time is the right time for the Council to take a
formal view. Clearly your request for a meeting was to the Chairman of Council. I can't
speak on behalf of the Chairman of the Council and clearly this is questions on the
Leader’s statement. Perhaps, if you wanted to ask the Chair of Council a question, you
should have done so on notice.”
9. From Councillor Wass:

Council

12

Page 20

Thursday 3 December 2020

“Just to mention to the Leader about the monies paid out which I would like to thank the
officers for their help in this and the Leader, who helped me with businesses in
Pickering and I know there were businesses in Malton that were struggling.
I don't think it was a complete success though in many ways, because there were
businesses that were still struggling in terms of the rateable value, and I was just
wondering, obviously, hopefully, we're not going to go on much longer with season
lockdowns. But if they are going to continue has the £51,000 rateable value being
readdressed for future purposes if we do need them? And the other question was, will
Castleview be making a bid in this second round of grants as well?”
The Leader replied:
“Thank you Councillor Wass for your question. I just wanted to say thank you to you
and to other members of your group and members of other groups who did approach
me as Leader of the Council requesting assistance on behalf of some of their
constituents who were facing difficulties in the first lockdown. We were able to get
some resolutions on those issues from those approaches which I got, we were able to
get cash out to most people although I do recognise that there are some who did
struggle and were unable to access cash. We did open up and broaden out the last of
the grant scheme to ensure that anybody in need of assistance was eligible to apply
with some much less restrictive criteria.
Every single pound of the money which we got from Government went out in that first
round, we have got this second round of funding now for the latest lockdown, which we
are discharging and hoping to get out, but that the indication we've got is that is the
funding pot that we've got. So, clearly if there are further lockdowns, that money may
not be enough to see us through that period of time. So, it's a sort of a watch and wait
situation.
Unfortunately, I can't talk about specific examples Councillor Wass because I don't
know the background detail. But if you want to contact me outside of this meeting I'm
happy to try and get that information.
I think it's also worth just pointing out again, that we were able to help people and as
members, I do appreciate the approaches that were to me directly as a Leader of the
Council, because that's where I think the role of Leader comes into play, where I'm able
to have access to the officers, get the answers that we need, so that if you're not
getting the answer you need that we can get that out there. So, I think I do thank you
again for getting in touch and I would encourage any member of the Council not just on
the funding, but on any issue in their ward where they feel they are not getting the
response that they need and they want to sort of have a second opinion on that, then
please do approach me. Hopefully, people will vouch for me that I will always
endeavour to help on case work issues so that we are getting the responses that we
need to members of the public.”
10. From Councillor Oxley:
“We're all aware of the issues and the Leader’s highlighted them. However, there's
some really good news in the Leader statement and would the Leader agree with me,
that in these times of difficulty they are that things like the better Wi-Fi systems for
Malton, Pickering and Norton, the engagement of two communities civil enforcement
officers who I know have already been out and help people to put things right, that they
Council

13

Page 21

Thursday 3 December 2020

are the sort of issues that we ought to be talking about as well. Not just worrying about
the bigger issues to do with the pandemic.”?
The Leader replied:
“Thank you Councillor Oxley for your question. You've asked me if I agree with you, I'm
happy to say I do agree with you. Thank you for your question. What I would say is
specifically on the issue of the community civil enforcement officers, which we have
now in post, are doing a phenomenal job already responding to queries that members
have passed on to them and queries that members of the public have raised with them
as well. I think this is going to be a massive advantage to us a Council in terms of
dealing with issues like dog fouling, antisocial behaviour, and others to try and keep the
streets of Ryedale a clean, safe, nice environment for our residents. So, I think is the
right thing to do and clearly we also do have those all-important dog warden functions
as well, which will allow us to respond to animal welfare and other complaints related to
animals.”
11. From Councillor Raine:
“It's basically Councillor Duncan has mentioned again, just in replying to other
Councillors regarding this petty squabbles, and you know, the second one was unless
it fits an individual more than anyone else. And again, I think we should be all working
together and this petty squabble should not be mentioned. And that's my question to
Councillor Duncan, saying unless it fits an individual, I don't really think at all is helping
us all work together. “
The Leader replied:
“Only to say Mr. Chairman, I don't think there was a specific question there. But what I
would point out is that we have so far now spent an hour and ten minutes and all that
we've been able to do is approve three sets of minutes so far and the substantial items
on the agenda of which are great importance to the public, we have not yet been able
to touch a single one of those. And I think that does perhaps put into perspective,
sometimes the public expects us to be here and delivering on their behalf. And that's
what I'm here to do, what I am trying to promote us to do, so that we don't get
ourselves in a bit of a tiz about things which in the grand scheme of things the public do
not care about. That is not to diminish the role of any member representing their
constituents. I want us to represent our constituents and that is why I want us to be
able to get into the items of substance where there are clear differences of opinion,
that's what I want to encourage is to have the proper and full debate as a Council but
unfortunately, sometimes we seem to get ourselves stuck in the mud a little bit with the
mundane items rather than cracking on with the things that the public truly care about.”

28

To consider for Approval the Recommendations in respect of the following
public Part 'B' Committee Items:

29

Update on Malton and Norton Infrastructure and Connectivity Workstream
It was moved by Councillor Duncan and seconded by Councillor Arnold that the
following recommendation be approved and adopted:
(i)

Council

Members note the contents of the update report, including the indicative
costs of the schemes in the table at 7.1 (a);
14

Page 22

Thursday 3 December 2020

(ii)

Up to £100k be allocated within the revenue budget and up to £350k be
allocated within the capital budget for contributions to development and
delivery of the identified schemes;

(iii)

Approval of expenditure of the above budgets be delegated to the Policy
and Resources Committee on a scheme-by-scheme basis.

The motion was carried by general affirmation.
Resolved

30

(i)

Members note the contents of the update report, including the indicative costs
of the schemes in the table at 7.1 (a);

(ii)

Up to £100k be allocated within the revenue budget and up to £350k be
allocated within the capital budget for contributions to development and delivery
of the identified schemes;

(iii)

Approval of expenditure of the above budgets be delegated to the Policy and
Resources Committee on a scheme-by-scheme basis.

Homelessness and Rough Sleeper Strategy Summary
It was moved by Councillor Duncan and seconded by Councillor Docwra that the
following recommendation be approved and adopted:
The Strategy is approved by Full Council.
The motion was carried by general affirmation.
Resolved
The Strategy is approved by Full Council.

31

HR Policy Revision - Officer Code of Conduct
It was moved by Councillor Raper and seconded by Councillor Oxley that the following
recommendation be approved and adopted:
That the revised policy is agreed for implementation.
Councillor Clark proposed and Councillor Potter seconded the following amendment:
Add:
With the exception of paragraph 3.10 where Full Council requests the
Officers to include the staff champion as a ‘release valve.’
Upon being put to the vote the amendment was lost.
Voting record
11 For

Council

15

Page 23

Thursday 3 December 2020

16 Against
3 Abstentions
Recorded vote
For
Councillors J Andrews, P Andrews, Brackstone, Burr, Clark, Frank, Potter,
Raine, Riby, Thackray and Wass
Against
Councillors Arnold, Bailey, Cleary, Cussons, Delaney, Docwra, Duncan, Garbutt
Moore, Goodrick, Graham, Hope, King, Mackenzie, Oxley, Raper and Windress
Abstain
Councillors Keal, Mason and Middleton
Upon being put to the vote, the substantive motion was carried.
Resolved
That the revised policy is agreed for implementation.
Voting record
20 For
10 Abstentions
Recorded vote
For
Councillors Arnold, Bailey, Cleary, Cussons, Delaney, Docwra, Duncan, Frank,
Garbutt Moore, Goodrick, Graham, Hope, Keal, King, Mackenzie, Mason,
Middleton, Oxley, Raper and Windress
Abstain
Councillors J Andrews, P Andrews, Brackstone, Burr, Clark, Potter, Raine,
Riby, Thackray and Wass

32

To Consider the Submission to Government of the York and North Yorkshire
Devolution Asks
It was moved by Councillor Duncan and seconded by Councillor Arnold that the
following recommendation be approved and adopted:
(i)

Agreement is given to submission of the York and North Yorkshire
devolution asks to Government, so that devolution negotiations can
commence.

Upon being put to the vote, the motion was carried.
Resolved
Agreement is given to submission of the York and North Yorkshire devolution asks to
Government, so that devolution negotiations can commence.
Voting record
21 For
9 Against

Council

16

Page 24

Thursday 3 December 2020

Recorded vote
For
Councillors Arnold, Bailey, Cleary, Cussons, Delaney, Docwra, Duncan, Frank,
Garbutt Moore, Goodrick, Graham, Hope, Keal, King, Mackenzie, Mason,
Middleton, Oxley, Raine, Raper and Windress
Against
Councillors J Andrews, P Andrews, Brackstone, Burr, Clark, Potter, Riby,
Thackray and Wass

33

Timetable of Meetings 2021-2022
It was moved by Councillor Duncan and seconded by Councillor Arnold that the
following recommendation be approved and adopted:
The timetable of meetings, as attached as Annex A to the report, is approved as
a basis for working in 2021-22.
The motion was carried by general affirmation.
Resolved
The timetable of meetings, as attached as Annex A to the report, is approved as a
basis for working in 2021-22.

34

HR Policy Revision - Recruitment Policy
It was moved by Councillor Duncan and seconded by Councillor Graham that the
following recommendation be approved and adopted:
The revised policy is agreed for implementation.
Upon being put to the vote, the motion was carried.
Resolved
The revised policy is agreed for implementation.
Voting record
28 For
2 Abstentions
Recorded vote
For
Councillors J Andrews, Arnold, Bailey, Burr, Clark, Cleary, Cussons, Delaney,
Docwra, Duncan, Frank, Garbutt Moore, Goodrick, Graham, Hope, Keal, King,
Mackenzie, Mason, Middleton, Oxley, Potter, Raine, Raper, Riby, Thackray,
Wass and Windress
Abstain
Councillors P Andrews and Brackstone

35

Council

HR Policy Revision - Pay Policy

17

Page 25

Thursday 3 December 2020

It was moved by Councillor Duncan and seconded by Councillor Clark that the
following recommendation be approved and adopted:
The revised policy is agreed for implementation.
The motion was carried by general affirmation.
Resolved
The revised policy is agreed for implementation.

36

Localisation of Council Tax Support 2021/2022 Scheme
It was moved by Councillor Duncan and seconded by Councillor Arnold that the
following recommendation be approved and adopted:
(i)
(ii)

a Local Council Tax Support Scheme for 2021/2022 which is unchanged
from 2020/2021; and
to authorise the Section 151 Officer in consultation with the Chairman of
Policy and Resources Committee to undertake the necessary
consultation work to design a scheme for 2022/2023, in light of the
experience in previous years, to be presented to Policy and Resources
Committee in November 2021.

Councillor Clark proposed and Councillor J Andrews seconded the following
amendment:
Add:
‘apart from increased discount for families with 3 or more children’ to
recommendation (i)
Upon being put to the vote, the amendment was lost.
Voting record
13 For
17 Against
Recorded vote
For
Councillors J Andrews, P Andrews, Brackstone, Burr, Clark, Keal, Mason,
Middleton, Potter, Raine, Riby, Thackray and Wass
Against
Councillors Arnold, Bailey, Cleary, Cussons, Delaney, Docwra, Duncan, Frank,
Garbutt Moore, Goodrick, Graham, Hope, King, Mackenzie, Oxley, Raper and
Windress
Upon being put to the vote, the substantive motion was carried.
Resolved
Council approves

Council

18

Page 26

Thursday 3 December 2020

(i)
(ii)

a Local Council Tax Support Scheme for 2021/2022 which is unchanged from
2020/2021; and
to authorise the Section 151 Officer in consultation with the Chairman of Policy
and Resources Committee to undertake the necessary consultation work to
design a scheme for 2022/2023, in light of the experience in previous years, to
be presented to Policy and Resources Committee in November 2021.

Voting record
21 For
9 Abstentions
Recorded vote
For
Councillors P Andrews, Arnold, Bailey, Burr, Cleary, Cussons, Delaney,
Docwra, Duncan, Frank, Garbutt Moore, Goodrick, Graham, Hope, King,
Mackenzie, Middleton, Oxley, Raper, Riby and Windress
Abstain
Councillors J Andrews, Brackstone, Clark, Keal, Mason, Potter, Raine,
Thackray and Wass

At 10:00pm it was proposed by Councillor Duncan and seconded by Councillor
Graham that standing orders be suspended to enable the meeting to continue.
Upon being put to the vote, the motion was carried.
Resolved
That standing orders be suspended to enable able meeting to continue.
Voting record
26 For
2 Against
2 Abstentions
Recorded vote
For
Councillors J Andrews, P Andrews, Arnold, Bailey, Brackstone, Burr, Cleary,
Cussons, Delaney, Docwra, Duncan, Frank, Garbutt Moore, Goodrick, Graham,
Hope, Keal, Mackenzie, Mason, Oxley, Potter, Raine, Raper, Riby, Wass and
Windress
Against
Councillors Middleton and Thackray
Abstain
Councillors Clark and King
Following the suspension of standing orders, item 11a (Motions on Notice – Proposed
by Councillor Duncan and seconded by Councillor Arnold) was considered. The
meeting was then adjourned at 11:35pm and resumed at 6:30pm on 10 December
2020 to consider the remaining outstanding business as per the order of the agenda.

37

Council

Treasury Management Annual Report 2019-20

19

Page 27

Thursday 3 December 2020

Items 10i (Treasury Management Annual Report 2019-20), 10j (Revenue and Capital
Budget Monitoring – Q2 2020/21) and 10k (Ryedale’s Financial Strategy 2021-25) were
taken en bloc.
It was moved by Councillor Duncan and seconded by Councillor Arnold that the
following recommendation be approved and adopted:
Council is recommended to:
(i)

Note the annual treasury management report for 2019/20, with thanks to
Officers; and

(ii)

Approve the actual 2019/20 prudential and treasury indicators in this
report.

Upon being put to the vote, the motion was carried.
Resolved
That Council:
(i)

Notes the annual treasury management report for 2019/20, with thanks
to Officers; and

(ii)

Approves the actual 2019/20 prudential and treasury indicators in the
report.

Voting record
Unanimous

38

Revenue and Capital Budget Monitoring - Q2 2020/21
Items 10i (Treasury Management Annual Report 2019-20), 10j (Revenue and Capital
Budget Monitoring – Q2 2020/21) and 10k (Ryedale’s Financial Strategy 2021-25) were
taken en bloc.
It was moved by Councillor Duncan and seconded by Councillor Arnold that the
following recommendation be approved and adopted:
That Council:
i)

Notes the contents of the report.

Upon being put the vote, the motion was carried.
Resolved
That Council:
i)

Notes the contents of the report.

Voting record
Unanimous
Council

20

Page 28

Thursday 3 December 2020

39

Ryedale's Financial Strategy 2021-25
Items 10i (Treasury Management Annual Report 2019-20), 10j (Revenue and Capital
Budget Monitoring – Q2 2020/21) and 10k (Ryedale’s Financial Strategy 2021-25) were
taken en bloc.
It was moved by Councillor Duncan and seconded by Councillor Arnold that the
following recommendation be approved and adopted:
The Council is asked to note the content of Appendix 1 of the report which form
the basis of the Council’s Financial Strategy. This paper builds on that
presented in September to Full Council.
Members are also asked to consider and approved the proposed areas for
consultation with the public, as set out in Appendix 2 of the report.
Councillor Clark proposed and Councillor J Andrews seconded the following
amendment:
Add:
‘Members request that the Officers include a report on a £500k
investment into a credit union.’
Upon being put to the vote, the amendment was carried.
Voting record
Unanimous
Upon being put to the vote, the substantive motion was carried.
Resolved
That Council notes the content of Appendix 1 of the report which form the basis of the
Council’s Financial Strategy. This builds upon the presented in September to Full
Council.
Members also approve the proposed areas for consultation with the public, as set out
in Appendix 2 of the report.
Members request that the Officers include a report on a £500k investment into a credit
union.
Voting record
Unanimous

40

Motions on Notice Submitted Pursuant to Council Procedure Rule 11

41

Proposed by Councillor Duncan and seconded by Councillor Arnold
[Councillors J Andrews, Burr, Mason, and Raine did not participate in the vote on this
item, following declarations made under item 6 (Declarations of Interest).]

Council

21

Page 29

Thursday 3 December 2020

“To provide much-needed support to businesses in Ryedale’s five market towns
following the second nationwide lockdown, this Council will provide free car parking in
all Ryedale District Council car parks during December 2020. Our officers will put this
into force as soon as practicable, giving consideration throughout to public feedback,
social distancing rules and public health advice.”
Councillor Keal proposed and Councillor Middleton seconded the following
amendment:
Add:
and January, February and March 2021.
Upon being put to the vote, the amendment was carried.
Voting record
22 For
4 Against
Recorded vote
For
Councillors P Andrews, Brackstone, Clark, Cleary, Delaney, Docwra, Duncan,
Garbutt Moore, Goodrick, Graham, Hope, Keal, King, Mackenzie, Middleton,
Oxley, Potter, Raper, Riby, Thackray, Wass and Windress
Against
Councillors Arnold, Bailey, Cussons and Frank
Councillor Clark proposed and Councillor Wass seconded the following amendment:
Add:
This policy will be reviewed by Policy and Resources or Full Council in
mid-January.
Upon being put to the vote, the amendment was lost.
Voting record
7 For
16 Against
1 Abstention
Recorded vote
For
Councillors Brackstone, Clark, Frank, Oxley, Potter, Riby and Wass
Against
Councillors P Andrews, Arnold, Bailey, Cleary, Delaney, Docwra, Duncan,
Garbutt Moore, Goodrick, Graham, Keal, King, Mackenzie, Middleton, Raper
and Windress
Abstain
Councillor Hope
Councillor Frank proposed and Councillor Clark seconded the following amendment:
Council

22

Page 30

Thursday 3 December 2020

Add:
Time restricted to three hours in Helmsley town square.
Upon being put to the vote, the amendment was lost.
Voting record
7 For
12 Against
1 Abstention
Recorded vote
For
Councillors P Andrews, Clark, Frank, Goodrick, Potter, Riby and Wass
Against
Councillors Arnold, Cleary, Docwra, Duncan, Garbutt Moore, Graham, Keal,
Mackenzie, Middleton, Oxley, Raper and Windress
Abstain
Councillor Brackstone
Upon being put to the vote the substantive motion was carried.
Resolved
To provide much-needed support to businesses in Ryedale’s five market towns
following the second nationwide lockdown, this council will provide free car parking in
all Ryedale District Council car parks during December 2020 and January, February
and March 2021. Our officers will put this into force as soon as practicable, giving
consideration throughout to public feedback, social distancing rules and public health
advice.
Voting record
19 For
1 Against
Recorded vote
For
Councillors P Andrews, Arnold, Brackstone, Clark, Cleary, Docwra, Duncan,
Garbutt Moore, Goodrick, Graham, Keal, Mackenzie, Middleton, Oxley, Potter,
Raper, Riby, Wass and Windress
Against
Councillor Frank

42

Proposed by Councillor Duncan and seconded by Councillor Arnold
“This Council tasks the Head of Paid Service to update and amend the constitution to
reflect the following:
Leader
 The Annual Council Meeting will elect a Councillor to be the Leader of the
Council for the Municipal Year, who shall:
 be the Chairman of the Policy & Resources Committee;

Council

23

Page 31

Thursday 3 December 2020








provide overall political leadership and strategic vision to the council;
work to ensure council priorities are delivered;
promote cross-party communication, collective decision-making and the
flow of information to members;
act externally as the council’s main political representative;
be the council’s main public spokesperson;
be answerable to council, presenting a written statement to each
meeting and taking questions on that statement

Deputy Leader
 The Annual Council Meeting will elect a Councillor to be the Deputy Leader of
the Council for the Municipal Year, who shall:
 be Vice Chairman of the Policy & Resources Committee;
 work closely with, and support the Leader, to provide overall political
leadership and strategic vision to the council;
 work closely with, and support the Leader, to ensure council priorities
are delivered;
 promote cross-party communication, collective decision-making and the
flow of information to members;
 deputise for the Leader when required to do so”
Upon being put to the vote, the motion was lost.
Voting record
14 For
16 Against
Recorded vote
For
Councillors Arnold, Bailey, Cleary, Delaney, Docwra, Duncan, Garbutt Moore,
Goodrick, Graham, King, Mackenzie, Oxley, Raper and Windress
Against
Councillors J Andrews, P Andrews, Brackstone, Burr, Clark, Cussons, Frank,
Hope, Keal, Mason, Middleton, Potter, Raine, Riby, Thackray and Wass

43

Revised Political Proportionality of Council
It was moved by Councillor Duncan and seconded by Councillor Clark that the
following recommendation be approved and adopted:
That Council:
(i)
approves the division of Committee seats between political groups in
accordance with the allocation shown at paragraph 6.8 of the report;
(ii) notes that the appointments made at Annual Council on 8 October 2020,
set out in Annex A of the report, comply with this allocation;
(iii) invites and approves nominations for substitutes from the Independent
for Ryedale Group for the Policy and Resources Committee and from
the Ryedale First Independent Group for the Planning Committee
In addition to those appointed at the Annual Council meeting on 8 October 2020, the
following substitutes were nominated to Committees:

Council

24

Page 32

Thursday 3 December 2020

Policy and Resources Committee
Independents for Ryedale
Councillor Hope
Councillor Cussons
Liberal Group
Councillor Wass
Planning Committee
Ryedale First Independents
Councillor Arnold
Councillor Raper
The recommendation and nominations were carried by general affirmation.
Resolved
That Council:
(i)
approves the division of Committee seats between political groups in
accordance with the allocation shown at paragraph 6.8 of the report;
(ii) notes that the appointments made at Annual Council on 8 October 2020,
set out in Annex A of the report, comply with this allocation;
(iii) approves nominations for substitutes from the Independent for Ryedale
Group and the Liberal Group for the Policy and Resources Committee
and from the Ryedale First Independent Group for the Planning
Committee

44

Appointment of a Representative to the Milton Rooms Management Committee
It was moved by Councillor Duncan and seconded by Councillor Clark that Councillor
Garbutt Moore be appointed to the Milton Rooms Management Committee.
The motion was carried by general affirmation.
Resolved
That Councillor Garbutt Moore be appointed to the Milton Rooms Management
Committee.

45

Appointment of a Representative to the Police, Fire and Crime Panel
It was moved by Councillor Duncan and seconded by Councillor Frank that Councillor
Hope be appointed to the Police, Fire and Crime Panel.
Upon being put to the vote, the motion was carried.
Resolved
That Councillor Hope be appointed to the Police, Fire and Crime Panel.
Voting record

Council

25

Page 33

Thursday 3 December 2020

20 For
10 Abstentions
Recorded vote
For
Councillors P Andrews, Bailey, Burr, Clark, Cleary, Cussons, Delaney, Docwra,
Duncan, Frank, Goodrick, Graham, Hope, King, Mackenzie, Oxley, Raper, Riby,
Thackray and Windress
Abstain
Councillors J Andrews, Arnold, Brackstone, Garbutt Moore, Keal, Mason,
Middleton, Potter, Raine and Wass

46

Exempt Information
Resolved
To exclude the press and public from the meeting during consideration of the following
items 16a (Shared Housing Initiative), 16b (Development Opportunities and Housing
Programme) and 17 (Financial Support for Continued Leisure Provision in Ryedale) as
provided by paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of Section 100A of the Local Government
Act 1972, as they contain information relating to the financial or business affairs of any
person (including the authority holding that information).
The public interest test has been considered and, in all the circumstances of the case,
the public interest in maintaining the exemption is considered to outweigh the public
interest in disclosing the information.
Voting record
29 For
1 Abstention

47

To consider for Approval the Recommendations in respect of the following
exempt Part 'B' Committee Items:

48

Shared Housing Initiative
Items 16a (Shared Housing Initiative) and 16b (Development Opportunities and
Housing Programme) were taken together.
It was moved by Councillor Duncan and seconded by Councillor Graham that the
following recommendation be approved and adopted:
That Council approve the recommendations detailed in the report.
Upon being put to the vote, the motion was carried.
Resolved
That Council approve the recommendations detailed in the report.
Voting record
29 For
1 Abstention

Council

26

Page 34

Thursday 3 December 2020

Recorded vote
For
Councillors J Andrews, P Andrews, Arnold, Bailey, Brackstone, Burr, Clark,
Cleary, Cussons, Delaney, Docwra, Duncan, Frank, Garbutt Moore, Goodrick,
Graham, Hope, Keal, King, Mackenzie, Mason, Middleton, Oxley, Potter, Raine,
Raper, Riby, Wass and Windress
Abstain
Councillor Thackray

49

Development Opportunities and Housing Programme
Items 16a (Shared Housing Initiative) and 16b (Development Opportunities and
Housing Programme) were taken together.
It was moved by Councillor Duncan and seconded by Councillor Graham that the
following recommendation be approved and adopted:
That Council approve the recommendations detailed in the report.
Upon being put to the vote, the motion was carried.
Resolved
That Council approves the recommendations detailed in the report.
Voting record
29 For
1 Abstention
Recorded vote
For
Councillors J Andrews, P Andrews, Arnold, Bailey, Brackstone, Burr, Clark,
Cleary, Cussons, Delaney, Docwra, Duncan, Frank, Garbutt Moore, Goodrick,
Graham, Hope, Keal, King, Mackenzie, Mason, Middleton, Oxley, Potter, Raine,
Raper, Riby, Wass and Windress
Abstain
Councillor Thackray

50

Financial Support for Continued Leisure Provision in Ryedale
It was moved by Councillor Duncan and seconded by Councillor Arnold that the
following recommendation be approved and adopted:
That the recommendations in the report are approved.
Upon being put to the vote, the motion was carried.
Resolved
That the recommendations in the report are approved.
Voting record
16 For

Council

27

Page 35

Thursday 3 December 2020

11 Against
3 Abstentions
Recorded vote
For
Councillors P Andrews, Arnold, Bailey, Clearly, Docwra, Duncan, Graham,
Keal, King, Mackenzie, Mason, Middleton, Oxley, Raper, Riby and Windress
Against
Councillors J Andrews, Brackstone, Burr, Clark, Cussons, Frank, Hope, Potter,
Raine, Thackray and Wass
Abstain
Councillors Delaney, Garbutt Moore and Goodrick

51

Any other business that the Chairman decides is urgent
There was one item of urgent business, to note the Policy and Resources Committee
decision in relation to the budget to bring full LGR proposals to completion. This item
was deferred to the next Ordinary Meeting of Council.
There being no further items of business, the meeting closed at 10:30pm on 10
December 2020.

Council

28

Page 36

Thursday 3 December 2020

Agenda Item 4b
Council
Minutes of Proceedings
At the Extra-Ordinary Meeting of the District Council of Ryedale held as a Virtual meeting
on Wednesday 27 January 2021
Present
Councillors

Joy Andrews, Paul Andrews, Arnold, Bailey, Brackstone, Burr MBE, Clark,
Cleary (Chairman), Cussons MBE, Delaney, Docwra, Duncan, Frank,
Garbutt Moore (Vice-Chairman), Goodrick, Graham, Di Keal, King, MacKenzie,
Mason, Middleton, Oxley, Potter, Raine, Raper, Riby, Thackray, Wass and
Windress

In Attendance
Stacey Burlet, Simon Copley, Anton Hodge, Lisa Hutchinson, Christine Phillipson, Phillip Spurr,
Paul Taylor, Ellen Walker and Margaret Wallace
Minutes

52

Announcements

On behalf of the Council, the Chairman offered condolences and sincere
sympathy following the passing of Honorary Alderman Daphne Stead, who
served on Ryedale District Council between 1976 and 1996.
The Chairman also acknowledged Holocaust Memorial Day and lives lost as a
result of the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic.
A minutes of silence was held in memory of Honorary Alderman Stead, victims
of the Holocaust and the lives lost to COVID-19.
The Chairman offered thanks to officers and partners of the Council for their
response to the recent floods in Ryedale.
53

Apologies for absence

Apologies were received from Councillor Hope.
Apologies were also received from Councillor Burr, who subsequently joined the
meeting at 6:50pm.
54

Declarations of Interest

The Chairman advised that declarations arising from email correspondence
received by all members from members of the public regarding item 5 (Motion in
respect of Continued Community Use of the RVS Centre, Pickering) would be
taken as given.

Council

1

Page 37

Wednesday 27 January 2021

The Chairman advised that declarations of all members of North Yorkshire
County Council would be taken as given.
Councillor J Andrews declared a personal pecuniary and prejudicial interest in
item 5 (Motion in respect of Continued Community Use of the RVS Centre,
Pickering) as an employee of the Pickering War Memorial Hall. Councillor J
Andrews then left the meeting and did not participate in the debate or the vote.
Councillor Oxley declared a personal non-pecuniary interest in item 5 (Motion in
respect of Continued Community Use of the RVS Centre, Pickering) as a
member of the Ryedale Lions club.
55

Exempt Information

Resolved
To exclude the press and public from the meeting during consideration of the
following item 5 (Motion in respect of Continued Community Use of the RVS
Centre, Pickering) as provided by paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of Section 100A
of the Local Government Act 1972, as they contain information relating to the
financial or businesses affairs of any person (including the authority holding that
information).
The public interest test has been considered and, in all the circumstances of the
case, the public interest in maintaining the exemption is considered to outweigh
the public interest in disclosing the information.
Voting record
15 For
13 Against
Recorded vote
For
Councillors Arnold, Bailey, Cleary, Delaney, Docwra, Duncan, GarbuttMoore, Goodrick, Graham, King, Mackenzie, Oxley, Raper, Riby and
Windress
Against
Councillors P Andrews, Brackstone, Burr, Clark, Cussons, Frank, Keal,
Mason, Middleton, Potter, Raine, Thackray and Wass
56

Motion in respect of Continued Community Use of the RVS Centre, Pickering

Councillor Clark proposed and Councillor Potter seconded the following motion:
“The RVS building in Pickering was built by the people of Pickering for use by
the people of Pickering. The finances were raised by donations and fund
raising. For technical reasons the building was given to the WRVS on the
understanding that it would be used by the people of Pickering.

Council

2

Page 38

Wednesday 27 January 2021

Early in 2020 the RVS closed the building for community use and announced
that they were going to sell. It is now on the open market at an asking price of
£155,000.
As a community asset



It has adequate car parking.
It is all on a single ground floor and therefore very useable in disability
terms.
It is on bus routes east/west and very close to north/south.

It is vital that this community asset is retained for use by the people of
Pickering.
This Council therefore resolves that:1)
2)

3)

It will purchase the RVS centre for community use.
OR
It will facilitate the purchase of the building by others to ensure
continued community use.
OR
With partners, achieve either 1) or 2) so as to ensure continued
community use.”

Councillor Duncan proposed and Councillor Arnold seconded the following
amendment:
Delete:
This Council therefore resolves that:1)
2)

3)

It will purchase the RVS centre for community use.
OR
It will facilitate the purchase of the building by others to ensure
continued community use.
OR
With partners, achieve either 1) or 2) so as to ensure continued
community use.

Add:
This Council, therefore:
(i)
(ii)

Council

joins with others in calling on the RVS, formally and in the
strongest terms possible, to halt the sale of the Hungate Centre;
calls on the RVS to work with relevant community groups to agree
a viable operating mechanism that allows the building to remain in
community use;

3

Page 39

Wednesday 27 January 2021

(iii)

asks Council Officers to be part of the above discussions, where
possible, and report back to Councillors on progress

Upon being put to the vote, the amendment was carried.
Voting record
16 For
12 Against
Recorded vote
For
Councillors Arnold, Bailey, Cleary, Cussons, Delaney, Docwra, Duncan,
Garbutt-Moore, Goodrick, Graham, King, Mackenzie, Oxley, Raper, Riby
and Windress
Against
Councillors P Andrews, Brackstone, Burr, Clark, Frank, Keal, Mason,
Middleton, Potter, Raine, Thackray and Wass
Councillor Clark proposed and Councillor Mason seconded the following
amendment:
Add:
If the above influence fails to stop the sale then this Council will purchase
the RVS centre for community use.
Upon being put to the vote, the amendment was lost.
Voting record
12 For
16 Against
Recorded vote
For
Councillors P Andrews, Brackstone, Burr, Clark, Frank, Keal, Mason,
Middleton, Potter, Raine, Thackray and Wass
Against
Councillors Arnold, Bailey, Cleary, Cussons, Delaney, Docwra, Duncan,
Garbutt-Moore, Goodrick, Graham, King, Mackenzie, Oxley, Raper, Riby
and Windress

Councillor Duncan moved and Councillor Raper seconded a motion that the
question be put.
Upon being put to the vote, the motion was carried.
Voting record
16 For
Council

4

Page 40

Wednesday 27 January 2021

12 Against
Recorded vote
For
Councillors Arnold, Bailey, Cleary, Cussons, Delaney, Docwra, Duncan,
Garbutt-Moore, Goodrick, Graham, King, Mackenzie, Oxley, Raper, Riby
and Windress
Against
Councillors P Andrews, Brackstone, Burr, Clark, Frank, Keal, Mason,
Middleton, Potter, Raine, Thackray and Wass
Upon being put to the vote, the substantive motion was carried.
Resolved
The RVS building in Pickering was built by the people of Pickering for use by
the people of Pickering. The finances were raised by donations and fund
raising. For technical reasons the building was given to the WRVS on the
understanding that it would be used by the people of Pickering.
Early in 2020 the RVS closed the building for community use and announced
that they were going to sell. It is now on the open market at an asking price of
£155,000.
As a community asset



It has adequate car parking.
It is all on a single ground floor and therefore very useable in disability
terms.
It is on bus routes east/west and very close to north/south.

It is vital that this community asset is retained for use by the people of
Pickering.
This Council, therefore:
(i)
(ii)

(iii)

joins with others in calling on the RVS, formally and in the
strongest terms possible, to halt the sale of the Hungate Centre;
calls on the RVS to work with relevant community groups to agree
a viable operating mechanism that allows the building to remain in
community use;
asks Council Officers to be part of the above discussions, where
possible, and report back to Councillors on progress

Voting record
20 For
7 Against
1 Abstention

Council

5

Page 41

Wednesday 27 January 2021

Recorded vote
For
Councillors P Andrews, Arnold, Bailey, Cleary, Cussons, Delaney,
Docwra, Duncan, Garbutt-Moore, Goodrick, Graham, Keal, King,
Mackenzie, Mason, Middleton, Oxley, Raper, Riby and Windress
Against
Councillors Brackstone, Burr, Clark, Frank, Potter, Thackray and Wass
Abstain
Councillor Raine
There being no further business, the meeting closed at 9:30pm.

Council

6

Page 42

Wednesday 27 January 2021

Agenda Item 9
Leader’s statement, February 18 2021
As if the Covid-19 pandemic and the prospect of reorganisation were not enough to
deal with, our district was confronted with a new problem last month: flooding. This
council rose yet again to the challenge however, going above and beyond, as we
always do, to help those affected.
Amidst these major challenges, I am proud of how we have continued to deliver day-today
services while also bringing forward a range of key and transformational projects to
benefit of our residents. The past few months have shown the very best of what our
council can do, and I know from the comments I have received it has been very much
appreciated by the community.
Flooding
Last month, Malton, Norton and Old Malton faced their biggest flooding challenge since
the defences were installed. Despite tense moments, the cross-agency effort on the
ground meant the worst-case scenario was averted. The majority - but sadly not all
properties in the towns were protected. We had 29 pumps deployed on the ground at the
height of the situation, with teams working round the clock. I salute their heroic efforts.
Flooding was not contained to just this area, however. Fryton, Slingsby, Low Marishes,
Buttercrambe, Pickering and others were also affected, with a number of properties
flooded or cut off by road closures. We were able to support residents here too.
Thank you to everyone involved in the effort, from Ryedale District Council, the
Environment Agency, Yorkshire Water, North Yorkshire Fire & Rescue and others. The task
now for this council is to use its influence to bring partners together and push for further
protection. We must identify relevant measures, and ensure they are delivered. While it is
right for us to contribute, we cannot do it alone, nor should we. Our officers have started
preliminary work with a view to reporting to members in due course.
Covid-19
Ryedale citizens and businesses continue, on the whole, to be exemplary in following the
national lockdown. I thank them wholeheartedly for this. Testing sites at Thornton Dale
and Malton are being used regularly. Meanwhile, GP surgeries in Malton and Pickering are
playing their part in the amazing nationwide vaccination effort. We are supporting this,
with our car parks commandeered to assist with the local programme.
We are working to get the latest business grants out to those who so desperately need
them. So far, we have sent out over £30m in total, including £8m for the six schemes
we currently have open. There is support too for citizens who are worried about paying
their rent or mortgage, and for the lowest paid who are self-isolating. We continue to
work with our partners, community organisations and amazing volunteers to support our
most vulnerable.
In addition to the above, we now have a dedicated Covid Marshall patrolling Ryedale daily
to help give advice and educate businesses about the current government guidance and
restrictions. The Marshall works across all departments of the council and reports back any
issues for the Environmental Health Department to follow up. His work is likely to only
increase as we reopen sectors of our economy in coming months.
North Yorkshire Police
Malton’s Neighbourhood Policing Team and front counter services moved into
Ryedale House on February 1. Our priority has been to ensure police officers remain
stationed locally in Malton, for the benefit of the town and the wider district. I’m

Page 43

delighted to confirm that’s what we’ve been able to achieve after years of
uncertainty. Going forward, the move should help our district be an even safer
place, with our communities team able to work in even closer cooperation with
police officers on issues such as speeding and antisocial behaviour.
Investing in Ryedale
We continue to make significant investment in our district. Already we have approved
£450k to improve infrastructure in Malton and Norton and around £3.5m, rising to £5.2m
with Homes England grant funding, to deliver the most ambitious housing programme since
the transfer of our council homes. We have also agreed, with eight other authorities, to
commence discussions with the Government about a devolution deal for York and North
Yorkshire worth more than £2bn.
Tonight we discuss a new car parking strategy for the district, a funding contribution to
the Milton Rooms and significant investment in Thornton Road Industrial Estate in
Pickering - one of the biggest economic investment projects this council has even been
involved with, stimulating growth and creating jobs at a time they are needed most. This
progress represents an immense amount of background work and significant cross-party
agreement, which should not be downplayed.
Hungate Centre
Efforts to save the Hungate Centre for community use continue. At the time of writing, I
am due to meet with RVS management directly to stress the strength of feeling amongst
councillors and the public we represent. It is my hope that a solution can be found in line
with the council’s wishes. I will update councillors in due course.
Climate change
Work to deliver our Climate Change Action Plan is gathering momentum. We have
supported an application for BEIS funding for a Geothermal Heat Project in collaboration
with Third Energy Ltd and the LEP. We are also supporting the Circular Malton and Norton
project team in investigating the feasibility of an Anaerobic Digester/ Biogas development
project. Progress with the Malton to Pickering Cycle Route continues, as does the
development of a Low Carbon Staff Travel Plan.
We are also putting in 10 additional electronic vehicle charging points across five of our
car parks: Cleveland Way in Helmsley, Town Farm in Kirkbymoorside, Vivis Lane and
Eastgate in Pickering and Wentworth Street in Malton. The streetlight replacement
scheme continues, with 262 of 277 conventional lights replaced with LEDs so far. Excellent
progress, but with more to do.
Local government reorganisation
At the time of writing, it is expected that government will soon consult on proposals for
local government reorganisation. On the current timeline, a final decision by the
Secretary of State on which option to implement - North Yorkshire and York, or East
and West - is expected this summer. Whatever the future may hold for local
Government in Ryedale, it is vital that we continue working to best meet the needs of
our residents, ensuring the next few months go down as amongst the most productive
in our 47-year history.

Page 44

Agenda Item 10
Annex A

RYEDALE DISTRICT COUNCIL
COUNCIL TAX BASE FOR THE YEAR 2021-2022
BAND 'D' EQUIVALENT TOTALS FOR TOWN AND PARISH AREAS
Parish / Town
ACKLAM
AISLABY MIDDLETON & WRELTON
ALLERSTON & WILTON
AMOTHERBY
AMPLEFORTH
APPLETON-LE-MOORS
APPLETON-LE-STREET
BARTON-LE-STREET
BARTON-LE-WILLOWS
BARUGHS AMBO
BEADLAM
BIRDSALL
BRANSDALE
BRAWBY
BROUGHTON
BULMER
BURYTHORPE
BUTTERCRAMBE
BYLAND WITH WASS & OLDSTEAD
CAWTON COULTON & GRIMSTONE
CLAXTON & SAND HUTTON
COLD KIRBY
CONEYSTHORPE
CROPTON
EBBERSTON & YEDINGHAM
EDSTONE
FADMOOR
FARNDALE EAST
FARNDALE WEST
FLAXTON
FOSTON & THORNTON-LE-CLAY
FOXHOLES with BUTTERWICK
GANTON with POTTER BROMPTON
GATE HELMSLEY & UPPER HELMSLEY
GILLAMOOR
GILLING EAST
HABTON
HAROME
HARTOFT
HARTON
HAWNBY
HELMSLEY
HENDERSKELFE
HESLERTON
HOVINGHAM & SCACKLETON
HOWSHAM
HUTTON-LE-HOLE
HUTTONS AMBO
KIRBYGRINDALYTHE

Band D
Equivalent
70.28
324.28
196.89
145.51
391.53
99.43
54.60
84.52
88.33
90.76
95.67
77.23
28.36
65.27
82.88
90.86
111.39
38.67
122.52
101.59
201.81
51.17
39.28
120.22
262.39
65.95
54.37
49.71
51.52
150.60
131.64
91.86
82.86
144.49
69.33
104.42
128.41
132.21
36.24
39.31
90.24
858.56
24.19
145.59
245.97
62.88
94.81
123.69
113.62

Page 45

Annex A
Parish / Town
KIRBY MISPERTON
KIRKBYMOORSIDE
LANGTON
LASTINGHAM
LEAVENING
LEVISHAM
LILLINGS AMBO
LOCKTON
LUTTONS
MALTON
MARISHES
MARTON
NAWTON
NEWTON-ON-RAWCLIFFE & STAPE
NORMANBY
NORTON
NUNNINGTON
OLD BYLAND & SCAWTON
OSWALDKIRK
PICKERING
POCKLEY
RIEVAULX
RILLINGTON
ROSEDALE EAST & WEST
SALTON
SCAGGLETHORPE
SCAMPSTON with E & W KNAPTON
SCRAYINGHAM with LEPPINGTON
SETTRINGTON
SHERBURN
SHERIFF HUTTON with CORNBOROUGH
SINNINGTON
SLINGSBY
SOUTHOLME & FRYTON
SPAUNTON
SPROXTON
STONEGRAVE
SWINTON
TERRINGTON
THIXENDALE
THORNTON-LE-DALE
THORPE BASSETT
WARTHILL
WEAVERTHORPE
WELBURN (KIRKBYMOORSIDE)
WELBURN (MALTON)
WESTOW
WHARRAM
WHITWELL-ON-THE-HILL & CRAMBE
WILLERBY & STAXTON
WINTRINGHAM
WOMBLETON
COUNCIL TAX BASE
(aggregate of band "D" equivalents)

Band D
Equivalent
112.83
1142.29
42.59
74.98
131.13
49.85
80.81
137.13
159.79
2233.57
61.26
102.93
269.94
135.49
65.65
2510.88
126.08
77.78
122.71
2831.08
49.76
36.06
429.45
185.57
37.45
93.71
122.39
93.74
138.36
280.43
473.73
141.34
252.43
37.75
34.32
57.40
48.84
204.53
243.54
81.06
856.65
47.74
110.41
122.22
32.26
218.52
155.63
44.06
106.95
230.87
84.29
152.99
21801.13

Page 46

Annex B

Parish / Town

Page 47

Acklam
Aislaby, Middleton & Wrelton
Allerston & Wilton
Amotherby
Ampleforth
Appleton le Moors
Appleton le Street
Barton le Street
Barton le Willows
Barughs Ambo
Beadlam
Birdsall
Bransdale
Brawby
Broughton
Bulmer
Burythorpe
Buttercrambe
Byland with Wass & Oldstead
Cawton, Coulton & Grimstone
Claxton & Sand Hutton
Cold Kirby
Coneysthorpe
Cropton
Ebberston and Yedingham
Edstone
Fadmoor
Farndale East
Farndale West
Flaxton
Foston & Thornton le Clay
Foxholes and Butterwick
Ganton and Potter Brompton
Gate Helmsley & Upper Helmsley
Gillamoor

Ryedale District Council
Council Tax 2021-2022
RDC
Parish Special Aggregate
Band D Band D Expenses of Band D
£
£
£
£
200.73
28.46
0.00
229.19
200.73
3.08
12.15
215.96
200.73
38.09
12.15
250.97
200.73
35.28
0.00
236.01
200.73
40.87
0.00
241.60
200.73
10.56
0.00
211.29
200.73
0.00
0.00
200.73
200.73
7.10
0.00
207.83
200.73
23.77
0.00
224.50
200.73
45.92
12.15
258.80
200.73
36.58
0.00
237.31
200.73
3.88
0.00
204.61
200.73
0.00
0.00
200.73
200.73
0.00
0.00
200.73
200.73
37.10
0.00
237.83
200.73
26.41
0.00
227.14
200.73
14.36
0.00
215.09
200.73
0.00
0.00
200.73
200.73
6.53
0.00
207.26
200.73
8.37
0.00
209.10
200.73
26.43
0.00
227.16
200.73
0.00
0.00
200.73
200.73
0.00
0.00
200.73
200.73
12.48
12.15
225.36
200.73
34.30
12.15
247.18
200.73
0.00
0.00
200.73
200.73
0.00
0.00
200.73
200.73
12.29
0.00
213.02
200.73
11.43
0.00
212.16
200.73
26.03
0.00
226.76
200.73
19.75
0.00
220.48
200.73
35.92
0.00
236.65
200.73
16.90
0.00
217.63
200.73
27.68
0.00
228.41
200.73
7.36
0.00
208.09

A
£
152.79
143.97
167.31
157.34
161.07
140.86
133.82
138.55
149.67
172.53
158.21
136.41
133.82
133.82
158.55
151.43
143.39
133.82
138.17
139.40
151.44
133.82
133.82
150.24
164.79
133.82
133.82
142.01
141.44
151.17
146.99
157.77
145.09
152.27
138.73

(District, Parish and Special Expenses only)

B
£
178.26
167.97
195.20
183.56
187.91
164.33
156.12
161.64
174.61
201.29
184.57
159.14
156.12
156.12
184.98
176.66
167.29
156.12
161.20
162.63
176.68
156.12
156.12
175.28
192.25
156.12
156.12
165.68
165.01
176.37
171.48
184.06
169.26
177.65
161.84

Council Tax at Band
C
D
E
£
£
£
203.73 229.19 280.12
191.97 215.96 263.95
223.09 250.97 306.74
209.79 236.01 288.46
214.76 241.60 295.29
187.82 211.29 258.25
178.43 200.73 245.34
184.74 207.83 254.02
199.56 224.50 274.39
230.05 258.80 316.31
210.95 237.31 290.05
181.88 204.61 250.08
178.43 200.73 245.34
178.43 200.73 245.34
211.41 237.83 290.68
201.91 227.14 277.62
191.19 215.09 262.89
178.43 200.73 245.34
184.23 207.26 253.32
185.87 209.10 255.57
201.92 227.16 277.64
178.43 200.73 245.34
178.43 200.73 245.34
200.32 225.36 275.44
219.72 247.18 302.11
178.43 200.73 245.34
178.43 200.73 245.34
189.35 213.02 260.36
188.59 212.16 259.31
201.57 226.76 277.15
195.99 220.48 269.48
210.36 236.65 289.24
193.45 217.63 266.00
203.03 228.41 279.17
184.97 208.09 254.34

F
£
331.05
311.94
362.51
340.90
348.97
305.19
289.94
300.20
324.27
373.82
342.78
295.54
289.94
289.94
343.53
328.09
310.68
289.94
299.37
302.03
328.12
289.94
289.94
325.52
357.03
289.94
289.94
307.69
306.45
327.54
318.47
341.82
314.35
329.92
300.57

G
£
381.98
359.93
418.28
393.35
402.67
352.15
334.55
346.38
374.17
431.33
395.52
341.02
334.55
334.55
396.38
378.57
358.48
334.55
345.43
348.50
378.60
334.55
334.55
375.60
411.97
334.55
334.55
355.03
353.60
377.93
367.47
394.42
362.72
380.68
346.82

H
£
458.38
431.92
501.94
472.02
483.20
422.58
401.46
415.66
449.00
517.60
474.62
409.22
401.46
401.46
475.66
454.28
430.18
401.46
414.52
418.20
454.32
401.46
401.46
450.72
494.36
401.46
401.46
426.04
424.32
453.52
440.96
473.30
435.26
456.82
416.18

Annex B

Parish / Town

Page 48

Gilling East
Habton
Harome
Hartoft
Harton
Hawnby
Helmsley
Henderskelfe
Heslerton
Hovingham & Scackleton
Howsham
Hutton le Hole
Huttons Ambo
Kirbygrindalythe
Kirbymisperton
Kirkbymoorside
Langton
Lastingham
Leavening
Levisham
Lillings Ambo
Lockton
Luttons
Malton
Marishes
Marton
Nawton
Newton on Rawcliffe & Stape
Normanby
Norton
Nunnington
Old Byland & Scawton
Oswaldkirk
Pickering
Pockley

Ryedale District Council
Council Tax 2021-2022
RDC
Parish Special Aggregate
Band D Band D Expenses of Band D
£
£
£
£
200.73
15.80
0.00
216.53
200.73
8.57
0.00
209.30
200.73
36.68
0.00
237.41
200.73
0.00
0.00
200.73
200.73
0.00
0.00
200.73
200.73
9.97
0.00
210.70
200.73 129.29
0.00
330.02
200.73
0.00
0.00
200.73
200.73
25.69
0.00
226.42
200.73
26.83
0.00
227.56
200.73
0.00
0.00
200.73
200.73
55.37
0.00
256.10
200.73
22.64
0.00
223.37
200.73
25.74
0.00
226.47
200.73
20.57
12.15
233.45
200.73
64.78
0.00
265.51
200.73
0.00
0.00
200.73
200.73
23.61
0.00
224.34
200.73
13.73
0.00
214.46
200.73
0.00
12.15
212.88
200.73
12.37
0.00
213.10
200.73
33.80
12.15
246.68
200.73
36.14
0.00
236.87
200.73 100.58
5.14
306.45
200.73
0.00
0.00
200.73
200.73
4.08
12.15
216.96
200.73
18.52
0.00
219.25
200.73
17.57
12.15
230.45
200.73
6.09
12.15
218.97
200.73
60.93
7.65
269.31
200.73
11.90
0.00
212.63
200.73
0.00
0.00
200.73
200.73
23.18
0.00
223.91
200.73
66.95
0.00
267.68
200.73
0.00
0.00
200.73

A
£
144.35
139.53
158.27
133.82
133.82
140.47
220.01
133.82
150.95
151.71
133.82
170.73
148.91
150.98
155.63
177.01
133.82
149.56
142.97
141.92
142.07
164.45
157.91
204.30
133.82
144.64
146.17
153.63
145.98
179.54
141.75
133.82
149.27
178.45
133.82

(District, Parish and Special Expenses only)

B
£
168.41
162.79
184.65
156.12
156.12
163.87
256.68
156.12
176.10
176.99
156.12
199.19
173.73
176.14
181.57
206.50
156.12
174.48
166.80
165.57
165.74
191.86
184.23
238.35
156.12
168.74
170.52
179.24
170.31
209.46
165.38
156.12
174.15
208.19
156.12

Council Tax at Band
C
D
E
£
£
£
192.47 216.53 264.65
186.05 209.30 255.81
211.03 237.41 290.17
178.43 200.73 245.34
178.43 200.73 245.34
187.29 210.70 257.53
293.35 330.02 403.36
178.43 200.73 245.34
201.27 226.42 276.74
202.28 227.56 278.13
178.43 200.73 245.34
227.65 256.10 313.01
198.55 223.37 273.01
201.31 226.47 276.80
207.51 233.45 285.33
236.01 265.51 324.52
178.43 200.73 245.34
199.42 224.34 274.20
190.63 214.46 262.12
189.23 212.88 260.19
189.43 213.10 260.46
219.27 246.68 301.50
210.55 236.87 289.51
272.40 306.45 374.55
178.43 200.73 245.34
192.86 216.96 265.18
194.89 219.25 267.98
204.85 230.45 281.66
194.64 218.97 267.63
239.39 269.31 329.16
189.01 212.63 259.88
178.43 200.73 245.34
199.03 223.91 273.67
237.94 267.68 327.17
178.43 200.73 245.34

F
£
312.76
302.32
342.92
289.94
289.94
304.34
476.69
289.94
327.05
328.69
289.94
369.92
322.64
327.12
337.20
383.51
289.94
324.04
309.77
307.49
307.81
356.31
342.14
442.64
289.94
313.38
316.69
332.87
316.29
389.00
307.13
289.94
323.42
386.65
289.94

G
£
360.88
348.83
395.68
334.55
334.55
351.17
550.03
334.55
377.37
379.27
334.55
426.83
372.28
377.45
389.08
442.52
334.55
373.90
357.43
354.80
355.17
411.13
394.78
510.75
334.55
361.60
365.42
384.08
364.95
448.85
354.38
334.55
373.18
446.13
334.55

H
£
433.06
418.60
474.82
401.46
401.46
421.40
660.04
401.46
452.84
455.12
401.46
512.20
446.74
452.94
466.90
531.02
401.46
448.68
428.92
425.76
426.20
493.36
473.74
612.90
401.46
433.92
438.50
460.90
437.94
538.62
425.26
401.46
447.82
535.36
401.46

Annex B

Ryedale District Council
Council Tax 2021-2022

Page 49

RDC
Parish Special Aggregate
Parish / Town
Band D Band D Expenses of Band D
£
£
£
£
Rievaulx
200.73
0.00
0.00
200.73
Rillington
200.73
37.96
0.00
238.69
Rosedale East & West
200.73
40.42
12.15
253.30
Salton
200.73
0.00
0.00
200.73
Scagglethorpe
200.73
32.01
0.00
232.74
Scampston & East and West Knaptons 200.73
18.38
0.00
219.11
Scrayingham and Leppington
200.73
13.87
0.00
214.60
Settrington
200.73
31.95
0.00
232.68
Sherburn
200.73 103.41
0.00
304.14
Sheriff Hutton with Cornborough
200.73
35.25
0.00
235.98
Sinnington
200.73
28.30
12.15
241.18
Slingsby
200.73
28.42
0.00
229.15
Southolme & Fryton
200.73
19.92
0.00
220.65
Spaunton
200.73
0.00
0.00
200.73
Sproxton
200.73
4.18
0.00
204.91
Stonegrave
200.73
0.00
0.00
200.73
Swinton
200.73
27.82
0.00
228.55
Terrington
200.73
13.06
0.00
213.79
Thixendale
200.73
18.50
0.00
219.23
Thornton le Dale
200.73
52.53
0.00
253.26
Thorpe Bassett
200.73
12.57
0.00
213.30
Warthill
200.73
16.30
0.00
217.03
Weaverthorpe
200.73
39.68
0.00
240.41
Welburn (Kirkbymoorside)
200.73
0.00
0.00
200.73
Welburn (Malton)
200.73
18.30
0.00
219.03
Westow
200.73
14.78
0.00
215.51
Wharram
200.73
0.00
0.00
200.73
Whitwell on the Hill & Crambe
200.73
8.56
0.00
209.29
Willerby and Staxton
200.73
34.65
0.00
235.38
Wintringham
200.73
26.69
0.00
227.42
Wombleton
200.73
30.07
0.00
230.80

A
£
133.82
159.13
168.87
133.82
155.16
146.07
143.07
155.12
202.76
157.32
160.79
152.77
147.10
133.82
136.61
133.82
152.37
142.53
146.15
168.84
142.20
144.69
160.27
133.82
146.02
143.67
133.82
139.53
156.92
151.61
153.87

(District, Parish and Special Expenses only)

B
£
156.12
185.64
197.01
156.12
181.02
170.42
166.91
180.97
236.55
183.54
187.58
178.22
171.61
156.12
159.37
156.12
177.76
166.28
170.51
196.98
165.90
168.80
186.98
156.12
170.35
167.62
156.12
162.78
183.07
176.88
179.51

Council Tax at Band
C
D
E
£
£
£
178.43 200.73 245.34
212.17 238.69 291.74
225.16 253.30 309.59
178.43 200.73 245.34
206.88 232.74 284.46
194.77 219.11 267.80
190.76 214.60 262.29
206.83 232.68 284.39
270.35 304.14 371.73
209.76 235.98 288.42
214.39 241.18 294.78
203.69 229.15 280.08
196.14 220.65 269.69
178.43 200.73 245.34
182.15 204.91 250.45
178.43 200.73 245.34
203.16 228.55 279.34
190.04 213.79 261.30
194.87 219.23 267.95
225.12 253.26 309.54
189.60 213.30 260.70
192.92 217.03 265.26
213.70 240.41 293.84
178.43 200.73 245.34
194.70 219.03 267.71
191.57 215.51 263.40
178.43 200.73 245.34
186.04 209.29 255.80
209.23 235.38 287.69
202.15 227.42 277.96
205.16 230.80 282.09

F
£
289.94
344.77
365.87
289.94
336.18
316.49
309.97
336.09
439.31
340.86
348.37
330.99
318.71
289.94
295.98
289.94
330.12
308.80
316.66
365.82
308.10
313.48
347.26
289.94
316.37
311.29
289.94
302.30
339.99
328.49
333.37

G
£
334.55
397.82
422.17
334.55
387.90
365.18
357.67
387.80
506.90
393.30
401.97
381.92
367.75
334.55
341.52
334.55
380.92
356.32
365.38
422.10
355.50
361.72
400.68
334.55
365.05
359.18
334.55
348.82
392.30
379.03
384.67

H
£
401.46
477.38
506.60
401.46
465.48
438.22
429.20
465.36
608.28
471.96
482.36
458.30
441.30
401.46
409.82
401.46
457.10
427.58
438.46
506.52
426.60
434.06
480.82
401.46
438.06
431.02
401.46
418.58
470.76
454.84
461.60

This page is intentionally left blank

REPORT TO:

FULL COUNCIL

DATE:

18 FEBRUARY 2021

SUBJECT:

PART ‘B’ REFERRALS FROM POLICY AND RESOURCES
COMMITTEE ON 4 FEBRUARY 2021

36

Ryedale’s Financial Strategy 2021-25

Considered – report of the Chief Finance Officer (s.151)
Councillor Duncan proposed and Councillor Docwra seconded the following amendment:
Replace recommendation (iii) with ‘To freeze Council Tax at the current level and therefore
approve a council tax charge of £200.73 for a Band D property (note that total Council Tax,
Including the County Council, Fire and Police is covered within the separate Council Tax
setting report to Full Council). This would mean a further call on reserves of £109k to balance
the budget’
Resolved
Upon being put to the vote, the amendment was carried.
Voting record
8 For
2 Against
Recorded vote
For
Councillors Arnold, Burr, Delaney, Docwra, Duncan, Frank, Graham and Riby
Against
Councillors J Andrews and Clark

Recommendation
That Council is recommended to agree the updated Financial Strategy and in particular:
(i)

To note the Section 25 assurance statement provided by the Chief Finance Officer
(s151) regarding the robustness of the estimates and the adequacy of the reserves
and the risk assessment detailed in Section 10 of the Strategy

(ii)

To approve a revenue budget of Revenue Budget for 2021/22 of £9,600k, after use of
Reserves which includes
a. Savings/additional income totalling £377k (Financial Strategy Appendix 3)
b. Growth Pressures totalling £971k (Financial Strategy Appendix 4)

Council

Page 51

18 February 2021

c. One-off contingency to support COVID costs amounting to £787k, funded from
reserves
d. One-off maintenance costs of £55k funded from reserves
(iii)

To freeze Council Tax at the current level and therefore approve a council tax charge
of £200.73 for a Band D property (note that total Council Tax, Including the County
Council, Fire and Police is covered within the separate Council Tax setting report to
Full Council). This would mean a further call on reserves of £109k to balance the
budget

(iv)

to approve the special expenses amounting to £54,090

(v)

to approve the revised Capital Programme (Appendix 6)

(vi)

to note the financial projection for 2020/21 – 2024/25

(vii)

to note that there may be a need to revisit the budget mid-year, in the light of
changing circumstances such as potential continuing costs relating to COVD or other
unquantifiable pressures, and that any future proposals will be brought forward on a
case-by-case basis

Voting record
8 For
2 Against
Recorded vote
For
Councillors Arnold, Burr, Delaney, Docwra, Duncan, Frank, Graham and Riby
Against
Councillors J Andrews and Clark

Council

Page 52

18 February 2021

PART B:

RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL

REPORT TO:

POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE

DATE:

4 FEBRUARY 2021

REPORT OF THE:

CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER (s151)
ANTON HODGE

TITLE OF REPORT:

RYEDALE’S FINANCIAL STRATEGY 2021-25

WARDS AFFECTED:

ALL

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.0

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1

The report sets out the budget for 2021/22, a proposed Council Tax level, the
Financial Strategy, details of balances and reserves and the Pay Policy for 2021/22.
This report has been amended following discussions and recommendations
agreed at the meeting of the Committee on 4 February 2021.

2.0

RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1

That Council is recommended to agree the updated Financial Strategy and in
particular:
(i)

To note the Section 25 assurance statement provided by the Chief Finance
Officer (s151) regarding the robustness of the estimates and the adequacy of
the reserves and the risk assessment detailed in Section 10 of the Strategy

(ii)

To approve a revenue budget of Revenue Budget for 2021/22 of £9,600k, after
use of Reserves which includes
a. (Savings/additional income totalling £377k (Financial Strategy Appendix
3)
b. Growth Pressures totalling £971k (Financial Strategy Appendix 4)
c. One-off contingency to support COVID costs amounting to £787k, funded
from reserves
d. One-off maintenance costs of £55k funded from reserves

(iii)

To approve a council tax charge of £200.73 for a Band D property (note that
total Council Tax, Including the County Council, Fire and Police is covered within
the separate Council Tax setting report to Full Council). This would mean a
further call on reserves of £109k to balance the budget.

(iv)

to approve the special expenses amounting to £54,090

(v)

to approve the revised Capital Programme (Appendix 6)

Page 53
POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEEOFFICIAL
Page 1

4 FEBRUARY 2021

(vi)

to note the financial projection for 2020/21 – 2024/25

(vii)

to note that there may be a need to revisit the budget mid-year, in the light of
changing circumstances such as potential continuing costs relating to COVD or
other unquantifiable pressures, and that any future proposals will be brought
forward on a case-by-case basis.

3.0

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

3.1

To agree a balanced revenue budget for submission to Council for the financial year
2021/22 and prepare the Council to deliver the same in future years.

4.0

SIGNIFICANT RISKS

4.1

Section 10 of the Financial Strategy outlines the significant risks in the Council’s
finances and mitigating controls.

5.0

POLICY CONTEXT CONSULTATION

5.1

The Financial Strategy is a key strategy document that affects all service delivery. It
links to the Corporate Plan and all other strategic plans as well as providing the means
for attaining the Council’s objectives and priorities.

5.2

The Policy and Resources Committee is the Committee designated to make
recommendations to the Council relating to the budget and levels of Council Tax.
Consequently, recommendations from this Committee will inform the Council and
subsequently the Council Tax resolution.

5.3

Budget consultation with the public has taken place. A questionnaire was made
available for residents to complete online via the Council website. There were 27
responses and a summary of the results of the consultation is attached as ANNEX B
of this report.

5.4

Member consultation has taken place through the Member Briefings. Financial
information leading up to the recommendations in this report has been shared with
Members at these meetings and Members have indicated the need to ensure
adequate contingency for COVID and other pressures. Further discussion will be held
with members where additional funding is sought.

REPORT
6.0

BACKGROUND AND INTRODUCTION

6.1

The Financial Strategy sets out the Council’s financial position in the medium term in
detail, including issues around the Local Government Finance Settlement and
efficiencies as well as the principles and procedures adopted by the Council to
manage its finances to a high standard.

6.2

Council has previously received reports about the significant financial implications
arising from the COVID-19 pandemic in 2020/21 and future years. The budget will
overspend on 2020/21 as a result of this and the financial implications will continue
into future years.

6.3

The Financial Strategy also contains the Commercial Strategy which was agreed last
year as a key driver to deal with future financial pressures and a need to plug a likely
funding gap in the years to come or to fund investment in services, and to look at how
the Council can become self-sufficient other than where specific grants are allocated
by central government.

Page 54
POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEEOFFICIAL
Page 2

4 FEBRUARY 2021

6.4

Progress on this has unfortunately been impacted by the effects on the Council of
COVID-19. The Financial Strategy and 2020/21 approved budget include a number
of income targets over the next few years and these are among a number of changes
from last year in the proposed budget.
Budget and Council Tax for 2021/21

6.5

Budgets have been drafted in line with the Budget Strategy. The following budget
assumptions have been made in preparing the budget:




General Inflation up to 4%.
Pay Award – An average 2.65% pa pay award has been used (with higher
increase for those on lower grades)
Fees and charges have been increased in line with the budget strategy, by up
to 4%, however there are some specific service areas to highlight the position
for next years proposed pricing:
o There has been no increase to the garden waste licence (£38 per
licence – a price freeze since 2017/18)
o Pest Control – as set out in the Strategy

6.6

The referendum limit for 2021/22 has been proposed at the higher of 2% or £5 as part
of the Provisional Local Government Finance Settlement. In Ryedale’s case £5 is the
higher figure. Any freeze on Council Tax will reduce funding – and increase the gap
– by £109k and this will be a permanent feature to the budget base.

6.7

The Government’s Core Spending assessment assumes that Local Authorities will
apply an inflationary increase to Council Tax throughout the life of the current
Parliament.

6.8

Grant Settlement and specific grants
The Provisional Local Government Finance Settlement was announced on the 17
December 2020. The figures in this report use those as per the provisional settlement.
Retained Business Rates

6.9

Business Rates Income is estimated at £1.813m, with Rural Services Delivery Grant
of £572k expected to be paid as a grant. As planned in previous years, funding set
aside to assist the reduction in Business Rates is being used - £600k in 2020/21 and
2021/22, with the remaining £434k in the year after.
Council Tax Income

6.10

6.11

6.12

6.13

Council Tax income is estimated at £4.335m, plus £75k from the Council Tax Support
Grant.
Growth Items
The position is detailed in Section 7 and Appendix 3 of the Financial Strategy.
Savings/Additional Income
Budget reviews show that budgets can be reduced by £377k in 2021/22 with no
impact on service delivery. Details of these, including impact on future years, can be
found in Appendix 4 of the Strategy.
New Homes Bonus
Figures for 2021/22 show a decrease in New Homes Bonus (NHB) from £835k in
2020/21 to £619k. The budget assumes that all of this grant will be used to support
additional spend in the budget on areas such as economic development and housing.

Page 55
POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEEOFFICIAL
Page 3

4 FEBRUARY 2021

6.14

Summary Revenue Budget Position
Taking all of the above into account the summary position is as follows:
2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25

Base Budget starting point
Pressures Identified - appendix 3
Savings Identified - appendix 4
One-off base budget adjustments
Net budget before contribution to/from reserves
Planned contributions to / (from Reserves)
Contributions to fund future projects
Pension Fund Reserve
Drawdown from reserves to fund revenue projects

NET Revenue Budget

Funding
Business Rates
Rural Services Delivery Grant
Council Tax
New Homes Bonus
Other Grants
Funding Available

Budget (Surplus) / Deficit
Transfer to / (from) BRER to support budget
Transfer to / (from) Reserves to fund COVID costs
Transfer to / (from) Reserves to support budget
Remaining budget (surplus) / Deficit

7,909

8,503

8,434

8,614

971
-377
842

304
-372

213
-34

213
0

9,345

8,434

8,614

8,827

30

30

30

30

225

373

0

0

0

-120

0

0

9,600

8,717

8,644

8,857

-1,813
-572
-4,410
-619
-457
-7,871

-1,606
-572
-4,487
-157
-127
-6,950

-1,641
-584
-4,644
0
-127
-6,996

-1,819
-595
-4,846
0
0
-7,260

1,730

1,768

1,648

1,597

-600
-787
-342

-434
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0

1,334

1,648

1,597

Medium Term Revenue Forecast (MTRF) projections to 2023/24
6.15

Members will note the financial projections to 2024/25 (Table 1 above and Appendix
5 in Annex A). Although the 2021/22 budget shows a break-even after use of
reserves, there will be further savings requirements in future years, dependent on
funding and other pressures.

Page 56
POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEEOFFICIAL
Page 4

4 FEBRUARY 2021

Capital Programme
6.16

The Financial Strategy provides a detailed breakdown of the Council’s Capital
Programme (appendix 6) over the period 2020-25 totalling £12.6m. External funding
of £4.6m is included, leaving a balance of £5.9m to be financed by the Council’s funds
and reserves, after the use of finance leases.

6.17

The Capital Programme no longer includes any further funds set aside for the Public
Services Hub. These funds remain in the Capital Programme but are not earmarked
for this purpose and this position could be reviewed subject to the outcome of, for
example, Local Government Review.

6.18

Special Expenses
Having resolved the issue of ownership of the street lights it is no longer possible to
transfer the management of street lighting as agreed in the budget strategy and
therefore the Council will continue to undertake the management of street lighting in
the areas of the former Malton and Norton Urban District Councils and Pickering Rural
District Council. The special expenses are a specific charge to the residents of the
Parishes concerned and are estimated as follows:Town/Parish
Malton
Norton
Pickering Rural
TOTAL SPECIAL EXPENSES

6.19

6.20

6.21

£
11,480
19,220
23,390
54,090

National Non-Domestic Rates (NNDR)- to check
For 2021/22 the NNDR multipliers are: a small business non-domestic rate multiplier
of 49.9p and a non-domestic rate multiplier of 51.2p.
Funds & Reserves
As part of the budget setting process, it is necessary to give Members an indication
of the levels of reserves and balances and comment thereon. Appendix 2 in the
Financial Strategy sets out the projected major Funds and Reserve balances.
The Council’s revenue budget for 2021/22 assumes a significant draw on reserves
(£6m, subject to approval of various proposals) to support the revenue budget and
capital programme. The Strategy also notes that further funding may be required to
be drawn down from reserves should the financial impact of COVID go on beyond
September 2021.

6.22

Local Government Review
The budget is prepared on the basis of continuity of the Council at this stage.

7.0

Local Government Act 2003 – Section 25 Report

7.1

Section 25 of the Local Government Act 2003 requires the Chief Finance Officer
(Section 151 Officer) to report to the Authority when it is making the statutory
calculations required to determine its Council tax or precept. The Authority is required
to take the report into account when making the calculations. The report must deal
with the robustness of the estimates included in the budget and the adequacy of the
reserves for which the budget provides.

7.2

What is required is the professional advice of the Chief Finance Officer on these two
questions. Both are connected with matters of risk and uncertainty. They are
interdependent and need to be considered together. In particular, decisions on the

Page 57
POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEEOFFICIAL
Page 5

4 FEBRUARY 2021

appropriate level of reserves should be guided by advice based on an assessment of
all the circumstances considered likely to affect the Authority.
7.3

In each Local Authority the Chief Finance Officer alone must prepare the Section 25
report.

7.4

Section 25 requires the report to be made to the Authority when the decisions on the
calculations are formally being made (i.e. Council). However, those decisions are the
conclusion of a process involving consideration of the draft budget by various parts of
the organisation. During this process appropriate information and advice has been
given at the earlier stages on what would be required to enable a positive opinion to
be given in the formal report.

7.5

Central Government guidance states that “it should be possible to identify the sections
of a composite report that are made under section 25, so that the Authority is able to
discharge its duty to take account of the statutory report under section 25 (2).”
Therefore this report is set out below.
Section 25 Report (Report of the Chief Finance Officer (s151)

In setting the Revenue budget for 2021/22 I consider that the proposed budget is as
realistic and robust as possible given the current challenging circumstances and that
it takes into account all anticipated expenditure and income as currently known. After
a highly unusual year, the report highlights that further costs could emerge due to the
COVID pandemic and an indicative figure is highlighted should, for example, the costs
currently anticipated for 6 months last throughout the financial year or should
additional support be made by the council to staff and the wider community. Any such
costs will have to come from reserves and will require further member approval.
The overall level of reserves is considered in detail within the Financial Strategy. I
consider that the overall level of reserves is adequate for the 201/22 budget and for
the early stages of the MTFS beyond. However this position will need to be constantly
reviewed, especially if there are further requests to use reserves during next year and
also noting the current expected gaps for the years after. Should corrective action not
happen before then, and should funding expectations happen as expected, then
Reserves and Balances could be exhausted by 2025.
Council tax increases ought not normally be set below the level of inflation and the
proposed budget assumes a Council Tax freeze, following an approved amendment
from the Policy and Resources Committee. Although the cost of this (£109k) is
relatively small in the overall budget it does mean that this decision will produce a
permanent pressure of this amount in all future years, effectively reducing the
Council’s revenue raising potential permanently. By freezing the council tax in the
coming year, the financial pressures that the council will face over the medium term
will be increased, particularly regarding the lack of long-term visibility of future funding.
However I accept that the decision on council tax is a matter of political judgement,
having due regard to the professional advice of officers, and in particular to the advice
of the s151 officer as regards the robustness of the whole budget and on reserves
and balances.
It is noted that should local government reorganisation proceed then that is likely that
the Council will want to reconsider the financial strategy and this may even
necessitate a further Intermediate Budget later in 2021 for the Council to consider.
8.0

IMPLICATIONS

8.1

The following implications have been identified:

Page 58
POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEEOFFICIAL
Page 6

4 FEBRUARY 2021

a)

Financial
Significant financial implications on the Council are detailed in the report and the
Financial Strategy.

b)

Legal
There are no additional legal issues on the Council from the recommendations.

c)

Other
The proposals within the Financial Strategy do impact on the staffing resources
of the Authority. Appropriate procedures and plans are in place to manage these
issues including a process to bring forward further resource requests as
appropriate on a case-by-case basis.
As set out in section 1.7 of Annex A 1.7, any implications (such as Equalities,
Staffing, Planning, Health & Safety, Environmental, Climate Change, Crime &
Disorder) will be considered as part of any proposals and will be reported to
Members before recommendations are made and decisions taken.

Anton Hodge
Chief Finance Officer (s151)
Author:
Telephone No:
E-Mail Address:

Anton Hodge
01653 600666 ext: 43385
anton.hodge@ryedale.gov.uk

Background Papers:
Report to Full Council 10 September 2020
Report to Policy and Resources 12 November 2020
Report to Full Council 3 December 2020

Page 59
POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEEOFFICIAL
Page 7

4 FEBRUARY 2021

This page is intentionally left blank

RDC FINANCIAL STRATEGY ANNEX 1

RYEDALE DISTRICT COUNCIL FINANCIAL STRATEGY 2021-25

FINANCIAL STRATEGY
2021-25

Page 61
POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE Page 1
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

4 FEBRUARY 2021

RDC FINANCIAL STRATEGY ANNEX 1

FINANCIAL STRATEGY

CONTENTS
Main Report

1.

Introduction

2.

Objectives of the Financial Strategy

3.

Financial Assumptions

4.

Commercial Strategy

5.

Council Tax

6.

Reserves and Balances

7.

Budget Outlook 2021/22 – 2024/25

8.

Revenue Summary

9.

Capital Programme

10.

Impact/Risk Assessment

11.

Pay Policy

12.

Conclusion

Appendices:
1:
2:
3:
4:
5:
6:
7:
8:

Pay Policy 2021/22
Reserves
Pressures
Savings
Summary
Capital
General Fund Summary – for council report
Details of Net Expenditure – for council report

Page 62
POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE Page 2
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

4 FEBRUARY 2021

RDC FINANCIAL STRATEGY ANNEX 1

1. Introduction
1.1

The Council’s Financial Strategy provides the financial framework to deliver
the Council Plan.

1.2

It aims to provide financial sustainability, resilience and capacity for the
Council in pursuing its objectives and secure the resources necessary to
deliver the Corporate Plan, whilst managing the funding cuts we are facing.

1.3

The Financial Strategy sets out the overall approach in which detailed
proposals and actions will be developed and considered when agreeing the
annual budgets over a four-year period. It also notes that work will be
undertaken in time for 2021/22 to ensure the Council can set a balanced
budget which reflects its priorities, but that a more detailed and fundamental
review will take place in time for 2022/23.

1.4

This approach reflects the limited funding settlement from central government
– as announced in December 2020. It makes no assumptions at this stage
about local government review.

1.5

The Strategy covers four years, from 2021 to 2025.

1.6

Members will be kept informed of work undertaken, including detailed
briefings. This will assist the development of the budget over the period of the
Strategy and especially the work required for the more fundamental review.

1.7

Any implications (such as Equalities, Staffing, Planning, Health & Safety,
Environmental, Climate Change, Crime & Disorder) will be considered as part
of this work and will be reported to Members before recommendations are
made and decisions taken.

1.8

As this strategy is being written, the impacts on public sector finances of the
UK’s exit from the European Union are still not clear. This is also the case with
the impact of any changes arising from devolution and local government
review.

1.9

Against this backdrop of uncertainty the key drivers for the financial strategy
remain unchanged as the pressure on Local Government finance continues.

1.10

The Strategy has an emphasis on financial self-sufficiency - aiming to secure
the resources necessary to deliver the Corporate Plan, whilst managing the
funding cuts we are facing – ultimately over the long term achieving a selfsustaining financial model which sees the Council free from reliance on central
government funding by raising income locally through Council Tax and
Business Rates as well as through charging appropriately for services,
maximising investments and commercial activity.

Page 63
POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE Page 3
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

4 FEBRUARY 2021

RDC FINANCIAL STRATEGY ANNEX 1

2. Objectives of the Financial Strategy
2.1

The Financial Strategy contains the following objectives:
1.

Budgets are Prudent and Sustainable in the Long Term. The Council will aim
to maintain a balanced budget by ensuring that in-year expenditure is matched
by income from Council Tax, Business Rates, fees and charges and grants
from government and other bodies. Funding from reserves will be used to
cover one-off investments or temporary initiatives subject to a detailed
business case being approved by Members.

2.

Financial plans recognise corporate Priorities and Objectives.

3.

Significant risks are identified, and mitigation factors identified.

4.

The Capital Programme is planned over a 4 year period with no further
borrowing planned at this stage other than Finance lease arrangements. This
will be kept under review to ensure optimum Financing arrangements are put
in place as capital plans progress.

5.

Constraints on capital and revenue resources, including the uncertainties
around future government funding, are recognised and taken into account.

6.

Council Tax increases will be kept within the Government’s expected upper
level of increase, and the broad anticipated increase for future years will be
set out within the Financial Plans, recognising that these increases may be
subject to change.

7.

Prudent levels of general balances, reserves and contingencies are
maintained in the context of an assessment of the risks facing the Council;

8.

Value for Money and achievement of improved efficiency and service delivery
underpin the Financial Strategy.

9.

The Financial Strategy supports the achievement of Excellence in Financial
Management and use of resources.

10.

The Council will seek to maximise income through a Commercial Strategy.

Page 64
POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE Page 4
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

4 FEBRUARY 2021

RDC FINANCIAL STRATEGY ANNEX 1

3. Financial Assumptions
Economic Assumptions
Interest Rates
3.1

There were two emergency cuts in Bank Rate from 0.75% to 0.25% and then
to 0.10% as a result of the coronavirus outbreak in March 2020. In the latest
forecasts received from Link (the Council’s treasury management advisors)
rates are expected to remain at 0.1% through to 2023. However these
assumptions are based upon significant uncertainties around a Brexit
outcome and the ongoing impact from COVID-19 and will be closely watched.

3.2

The approved strategy already included a cap on investment income of £200k
to protect the general fund from over reliance on treasury returns during
uncertain times resulting from Brexit. However, the increased turmoil in the
financial markets due to COVID-19 and resulting rates forecasts suggest that
returns on cash balances will remain below this level for the foreseeable future
and will be included as an on-going budget pressure.
Investment
Income
Average rate %
Interest £000’s

3.3

2020/21

2021/22

0.56%
140

0.25%
50

2022/23

2023/24

0.25%
75

0.25%
100

Rates will be kept under review and forecasts updated as necessary.

Pay and Price Inflation
3.4

Provision for the public sector pay award for 2021/22 onwards 2% will be
assumed.

3.5

As at August 2020 CPI inflation was running at 0.5%. However, it remains to
be seen how the UK’s exit from the European Union and the ongoing impact
of COVID will reflect on the outlook for the economy and inflation. The
Monetary Policy Committee sets policies to meet the 2% CPI target and
expects rates to rise over the next two years although the effects of COVID
and Brexit mean on-going uncertainty. The MTFS assumptions on inflation
therefore range from 1.5% to 3.5%, although inflation will only be provided on
contractual budgets, staff pay and income.
Settlement Funding

3.6

This element of funding has seen the most significant changes in recent years
following the localisation of Business Rates and Council Tax Support.

3.7

In October, HM Treasury confirmed that it will conduct a one-year Spending
Review in November. The current assumptions in this paper include details
from the provisional settlement announced in December, which is broadly
similar to that of the current year, along with some specific measures around
supporting Covid-19 income and cost pressures. This of course could still
change with the final settlement announcement, and assumptions will be
amended in such circumstances.

Page 65
POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE Page 5
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

4 FEBRUARY 2021

RDC FINANCIAL STRATEGY ANNEX 1

Business Rates Retention
3.8

The Council was part of a successful bid for 2019-20, which included councils
in West Yorkshire as well as our colleagues in the North Yorkshire pool and
the City of York. This will not continue into 2021/22, in agreement with the
other local authorities in the pool. In these times of uncertainty, the risks in this
approach outweigh the small potential benefits.
New Homes Bonus

3.9

New Homes Bonus (NHB) is an incentive scheme which rewards housing
growth. It provides funding based on the number of new properties brought
into use with an added element for affordable housing. The calculation
provides that 80% of the funding is paid direct to District Councils with the
County Council receiving the remaining 20%. The scheme is funded partly by
the Government and also by top-slicing the Local Government funding
settlement. Ryedale achieved £1.676m p.a. when the scheme reached
maturity for 2016/17 (year 6 of the scheme).

3.10

However, the Government’s evaluation of NHB and consultation early in 2016
resulted in it being it being scaled back to a 4 year scheme with a 0.4% growth
threshold – for 2020/21 £835k was received.

3.11

New Homes Bonus funding is only currently secured to 2019-20 and it was
anticipated that this scheme would be replaced in its entirety from 2020/21
with the Government considering alternative ways to incentivise housing
growth. However, NHB did continue in 2020/21 and our previous Financial
Strategy currently assumed that this would phase out over the next two years
with £475k estimated for 2021/22 and £275k for 2022/23. Figures expected
for future years are now £619k in 2021/22 and £157k the following year

3.12

The use of this funding in recent years is shown in the table below. The revised
Financial Strategy assumes that all of the grant will now be used to support
additional spend in the budget on areas such as economic development and
housing. This was highlighted in previous versions of the Strategy.

Year

2014/2015 (received)
2015/2016 (received)
2016/2017 (received)
2017/18 (received)
2018/19 (received)
2019-20 (received)
2020/21 (due)
2021/22 (estimate)
2022/23 (estimate)

1

Allocated to NHB Reserve

NHB £000

1,127
1,387
1,676
1,420
964
861
835
619
157

Revenue
Support
£000
175
559
327
32
0
0
121
619
157

Capital
Support
£000
0
288
188
188
188
188
0
0
0

Balance
£0001
952
540
604
1,200
776
673
714
0
0

Page 66

POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE Page 6
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

4 FEBRUARY 2021

RDC FINANCIAL STRATEGY ANNEX 1

Special and Specific Grants
3.13

As part of the Settlement, the government has introduced some additional
grants for 2021/22. These are set out below and included in the overall figures
in section 7.


Lower Tier Services Grant (£70k). This is our share of a new unringfenced funding of £111m to English councils with responsibility for
services such as homelessness, planning, recycling and refuse
collection and leisure services. The grant contains a one-off minimum
funding floor, so that no council – either upper or lower tier – will have
less funding available in 2021-22 than this year.



Local Council Tax Support Grant (£75k)



Local Tax Income Guarantee (£127k next year). This is to help
compensate councils for lost council tax and business rates income
and helps to offset the losses over three years.



COVID-19 Support Grant (£260k)



Section 31 Multiplier Cap Compensation (£84k)

3.14

The expected negative RSG (£120k) has not deducted and the draft
settlement has also confirmed the continuation of Rural Services Delivery
Grant.

3.15

The impact of the settlement, can therefore be summarised as below (all
figures are £000s):

Change to original Grant Assumptions

Settlement Funding - Revenue Support Grant
Lower Tier Services Grant
Local Council Tax Support Grant
RSDG
NHB

120
70
75
572
144
981

Additional COVID Funding

Covid-19 Support Grant
Tax Income Guarantee Scheme

260
127
387

Pensions
3.16

The Council’s employers’ contribution rate for the North Yorkshire Pension
Fund is set every 3 years based upon actuarial assumptions and investment
expectations. Like many other Councils Ryedale’s pension fund now has an

Page 67
POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE Page 7
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

4 FEBRUARY 2021

RDC FINANCIAL STRATEGY ANNEX 1
estimated surplus of £8.7m at 31 March 2019 when the last valuation was
undertaken. The employers’ rate is designed to cover future service costs and
a contribution towards the historic deficit, which aims to balance the fund over
the long term. Changes to the scheme benefits have also been introduced in
order to reduce the costs of future pension payments.
3.17

The triennial valuation took place last year and has set employer contribution
rates for the next three years. These show a reduced expectation to the tune
of £81k, £144k and £148k over the period 2020-23. As agreed last year, the
Strategy assumes that this headroom will be held in reserve to assist any
negative of the next valuation in future years

Debt Charges
3.18

Management of the Council’s debt is governed by the Treasury Management
Strategy and Prudential Indicators which aim to ensure the Council’s capital
expenditure plans are prudent, affordable and sustainable, with decisions on
borrowing taken in light of spending plans and available funding, cash flow
needs and interest rates (current and future forecasts).

3.19

Borrowing enables the Council to spread the cost of capital expenditure over
time. Generally speaking it gives rise to 2 charges against the revenue budget:
Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) and interest payable on debt.

3.20

MRP is an amount set aside to repay debt in accordance with the approved
policy within the Treasury Management Strategy. The current policy is to
charge MRP for assets included within the debt liability over the useful life of
the asset or finance lease term. The current annual charge to General Fund
balances is £35k. At this stage, it is anticipated that MRP changes will be
reviewed as the Housing Programme progresses, in line with any internal
borrowing used to fund scheme costs.

3.21

The Council has resolved to fund the current capital programme through the
use of grant funding and reserve balances, (with the exception of Finance
Leases), thus removing the need to borrow. However, should this position
change, the current environment of low returns on cash investments means
that it is more favourable to borrow internally (i.e. use available cash
earmarked for future spend) than take out new external borrowing. This will
be kept under review as part of monitoring the Council’s Treasury activities.

Page 68
POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE Page 8
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

4 FEBRUARY 2021

RDC FINANCIAL STRATEGY ANNEX 1

4. Commercial Strategy
4.1

A key driver for the Council’s Commercial Strategy is future financial pressures
and a need to plug a likely funding gap in the years to come or to fund
investment in services, and to look at how the Council can become selfsufficient other than where specific grants are allocated by central
government.

4.2

The Strategy considers where certain discretionary services can be funded by
those who use them rather than the general taxpayer.

4.3

Alongside this is a requirement to ensure that the Council provides the best
value for money to the people of Ryedale.

4.4

Commercial opportunities can have a positive impact on the Council and the
area by:
-

Developing the portfolio of services provided by the Council and making it
a more attractive place to work

-

Generating additional income which, in addition to plugging any financial
gap, can be used to invest in services

-

Working more closely with business and ensuring the Council is a key
player in ensuring that we maximise the economic potential of our area
and achieve our strategic outcomes across our communities

4.5

Although income generation is very important, our Commercial Strategy will
also look at how we can ensure that every spending decision is taken with a
view to ensuring the best value for money for taxpayers. We will also ensure
that we become infuse our procurement and commissioning decisions with an
“intelligent client” ethos.

4.6

All of these require us to look at culture across the Council and ensure that
staff and members feel confident and knowledgeable enough to deliver the
strategy.

4.7

In summary therefore this Strategy notes that we will
-

Look at all non-statutory services and investigate potential for full cost
recovery or increasing user contribution to their cost
Shape potential markets for delivering traded services and look at how
generated surplus can be used
Review our procurement strategy to ensure that a commercial approach
is taken
Ensure that all purchasing decisions are guided by a value for money
approach

4.8

To do this successfully we need to ensure that we have the proper support
functions in place in designing and delivering the services (e.g. financial and
legal advice and marketing support) and that any costs of this are fully
recovered in what we charge for the services.

4.9

Ensuring we have the right culture across the organisation is also important.
We will takes steps to provide staff and members with the relevant skills and
expertise in this regard to embed a more commercial mindset across the
Council.

Page 69
POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE Page 9
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

4 FEBRUARY 2021

RDC FINANCIAL STRATEGY ANNEX 1
4.10

An important part of becoming more commercial involves managing risk and
attitudes towards this from officers and members. Our approach will
encourage an appetite for calculated risk-taking and being willing to learn
lessons from approaches which do not always lead to the success hoped for.
This will of course be balanced by a risk management process which ensures
we safeguard the council at all times.

4.11

The Financial Strategy included a number of income targets over the next few
years and these have been revised due to the impact of the pandemic.

5. Council Tax

5.1

The Council Tax Base in 2020/21 is 22,062 and the Strategy previously
estimated a 1% rise forecast thereafter. Every 0.5% increase above this level
would add approximately 110 Band D equivalents to our Tax Base which
equates to around £21.5k p.a. at the current Band D charge. However the
impact of the pandemic has resulted in a decrease in the base for 2021/22 to
21,801. Although we have resumed a 1% increase for future years, this has
caused a financial impact of future years

5.2

In 2021/22 central Government will allow district councils to increase their
Band D charge by 2% or £5 whichever is the highest, without triggering a
referendum. Our assumptions are that this will be 2% or £5 per annum in future
years.

5.3

On February 4 2021, the Policy and Resources Committee approved a
recommendation to freeze Council Tax in 2021/22. This position has been
built into the budget for 2021/22 with a resumption of £5 increase in future
years.

5.4

The impact of not increasing Council Tax has added a further £109k to the
gap to be funded from reserves – and this will now continue for each year after
that.

Page 70
POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE Page 10
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

4 FEBRUARY 2021

RDC FINANCIAL STRATEGY ANNEX 1

6. Reserves and Balances

6.1

The Local Government Act 2003 places a specific duty on the Chief Finance
Officer (s151), to make a report to the authority when it is considering its
budget and the level of the Council Tax. This report must deal with the
robustness of the estimates and the adequacy of reserves allowed for in the
budget proposals. The Council must have regard to this report in making their
decisions.

6.2

The Council also has a fiduciary duty to local taxpayers and the Chief Finance
Officer must be satisfied that the decisions taken on the level of balances and
reserves represent the proper stewardship of funds.

6.3

In assessing the adequacy of the contingencies, balances and reserves, the
Chief Finance Officer takes account of the key financial assumptions
underpinning the budget, together with an assessment of the Council’s
financial management arrangements. This assessment will include a review
of past performance and external influences on the financial plan, and full
consideration of the risks and uncertainties associated with the plan, their
likelihood and potential impact.

6.4

The Council’s policy is to maintain its contingencies, balances and reserves
at levels that are prudent but not excessive. With the outlook for the years
after 2020/21 and beyond currently uncertain, and the scale and risk of
achieving cost reduction being high, any reserves identified as being surplus
should be prioritised to invest to save schemes and, if required, to smooth the
curve of cost reduction in the light of timescales needed to drive costs out.

6.5

It has been assumed in the past that General Balances are not used to
support the revenue budget but may be used for temporary or on-off costs –
although such costs will be clearly managed and agreed through the use of
the Strategic Reserve. In 2021/22, subject to approval, specific amounts will
be set aside for the following:





one-off COVID costs (£787k, as set out below)
potential costs of Brexit (£50k)
capital funding (section 9 below)
support for the revenue budget

6.6

General Balances are funding of last resort. Taking account of the size of the
Council’s revenue budget and risks being managed, a minimum working
balance of £1m would seem appropriate.

6.7

At 1 April 2020 reserve balances were £15.8m revenue and £456k capital
receipts.

6.8

A current list of reserves and balances is shown in the table below. The
Council’s revenue reserves increased from £12.8m in March 2018 to £14.9m
in March 2019 and then to £15.8m in March 2020. These are expected to fall
to £13.8m by the end of the current financial year, partially as a result of
funding the 2020/21 overspend resulting from COVID costs. This reduction is
expected to continue in future years, as set out in Appendix 2 of the Strategy.

Page 71
POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE Page 11
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

4 FEBRUARY 2021

RDC FINANCIAL STRATEGY ANNEX 1
6.9

At its meeting on 10 December 2020 (adjourned from 3 December), Council
asked officers prepare a report on a £500k investment into a credit union.
Work has begun on this and discussions are taking place with existing unions
to look at the possibilities of this and a full report, including business case
showing impact on revenue budget, will be brought back to members as soon
as this is done and before any final decisions are taken to proceed. In the
meantime however, this Strategy notes the potential use of £500k of reserves
next year to fund this.

6.10

Over the next financial year, including funding to cover the expected budget
shortfall and additional COVID costs, as well as use of £500k as above for a
credit union, and assuming approval of significant allocation of capital funds
(outlined in section 9 below), revenue reserves would then reduce to
approximately £8.3m, or £7.8m if approval to fund the Credit Union is given:

£000s

31.03.20

General Reserve
Capital Fund
Collection Fund Equalisation Reserve
Election Reserve
New Homes Bonus Reserve
Pensions Reserve (new)
Strategic Reserve

Capital Reserves:
Capital Receipts
Total Capital Reserves
Total Reserves

6.11

31.03.21
In-year

NHB

3,981
5,547
996
-23
2,760
0
2,527

0
-1,688
39
30
0
81
-26

0
0
0
0
714
0
0

15,788

-1,564

714

456
456

0

16,244

-1,564

COVID

31.03.22
In-year

COVID

0
-4,456
-600
30
0
225
-447

-787

-1,084

3,981
3,859
1,035
7
3,474
81
1,417

3,194
-597
435
37
3,474
306
970

-1,084

13,854

-5,248

-787

7,818

0

0

456
456

0

0

456
456

714

-1,084

14,310

-5,248

-787

8,274

Further details on reserves are set out in below in section 8.

Page 72
POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE Page 12
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

4 FEBRUARY 2021

RDC FINANCIAL STRATEGY ANNEX 1

7. Budget Outlook 2021/22 – 2024/25
7.1

The 2019/20 budget was the first in a number of years where a large
underspend or contingency was not set as part of the overall revenue budget
and this continued in 2020/21. This means that the Council has gone from a
£2.1m underspend in 2017/18 and £1.4m underspend in 2018/19, to a small
surplus of £31k in 2019/20. This is an ongoing process and work continues
across the Council to ensure that budgets are allocated at appropriate levels.

7.2

However, the costs on the Council of COVID have had a significant and
detrimental effect on the budget.

7.3

The Q3 position to be reported to members in £0.834m after COVID costs and
income are taken into account.

7.4

Central government has also made available a scheme to “compensate
councils for irrecoverable and unavoidable losses from sales, fees and
charges income generated in the delivery of services, in the financial year
2020/21”. This means that where the Council has budgeted for something as
income (sales, fees and charges), and has suffered losses to that income,
then compensation will be payable. Authorities will have to absorb the initial
5% of losses (the 5% deductible), with central government compensating 75%
of losses above this threshold. Any recovered income would therefore
contribute to the gap above.

7.5

Work continues to identify as best as we can the ongoing impact of Covid and
other significant policy changes including EU transition and potential local
government reform on the revenue budget in future years. This includes:
a)
b)
c)
d)

7.6

Business Rates income reduction
Council Tax income reduction
Other lost income
Additional staffing costs to enable the delivery of new services and
functions legislated by Government, increased workload as a result of a
growth in service demand for existing services (e.g. benefits) and /or
requirements around Covid-secure compliance, which includes social
distancing. At the same time we will take account of any cost increases
and reductions that are arising through revised working arrangements.

In general, it is assumed that on average costs will increase in line with
inflation.
Employee Costs

7.7

The single largest cost to the Council is its employees. In 2020/21 the
Council’s payroll budget is around £7.5m. The budget also includes provision
to cover costs for the second year of the implementation of the new pay
structure.

7.8

Salary budgets are set at mid-point of scale with no vacancy factor.

7.9

The budget includes costs to other organisations – such as NYCC – which
replace direct staffing costs. Estimated costs in 2021/22 are shown below. It
should be noted that in most cases these are not additional costs, however

Page 73
POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE Page 13
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

4 FEBRUARY 2021

RDC FINANCIAL STRATEGY ANNEX 1
additional funding is included for finance, Health & Safety and Human
Resources.

Service

Organisation

Finance Resource
Legal Resource
HR Resource
Employment Support
Resourcing Solutions
Health & Wellbeing
Collection Fund
Cleaning Services
Procurement
Safeguarding
Housing
Health & Safety

Budget
£000s

NYCC
NYCC
NYCC
NYCC
NYCC
NYCC
NYCC
NYCC
NYCC
SBC
The York, North Yorkshire &
East Riding Strategic
Housing Partnership
NYCC

206
117
104
39
31
16
5
54
77
4
12
47

Budget Gap
7.10

The Financial Strategy agreed by Council in February 2020 noted that while
the 2020/21 budget balanced, there remained future funding gaps as below:
2020/21:
2021/22:
2022/23:
2023/24:

7.11

£0
£488k
£465k
£1,040k

The following paragraphs set out the changes required to the budget from that
position.

Continuity Budget Adjustments
7.12

These are adjustments required to ensure that staffing and budgets already
agreed match requirements and to ensure that managers are able to monitor
their budgets properly. This includes inflation, as highlighted above, other
grading issues related to the new pay structure, structure changes and other
budget corrections where necessary. These are shown below (all figures are
£000s) and are in addition to the £197k identified last year:

Inflation and increments
Other Budget adjustments (including pay policy)
HR and organisational development
Streetscene Mechanic

153
194
73
28

Page 74
POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE Page 14
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

4 FEBRUARY 2021

RDC FINANCIAL STRATEGY ANNEX 1
Additional Waste & Recycling Officer 0.4 FTE
Waste Transfer Station

13
76
537

Investment in Capacity
7.13

In addition to increased costs arising from the ongoing impact of the pandemic
which are set out below, the budget also includes proposals to increase
capacity.

7.14

Additional Health and Safety costs to meet legislative requirements at the
depot (£10k) are required. Following the implementation of the Council’s new
health and safety policy and increased monitoring of compliance, there is a
need to invest in additional measures at the depot, one of our highest risk
functions.

7.15

Transformation of Waste and Recycling Services. This area of the Council
overspent its budgeted provision in 2020/21, resulting in a full-scale review of
current operations and the actions and investment required to ensure that it
operates to its optimum. This funding will enable identified actions to be
progressed, enabling use of resources to be maximised in the future.

7.16

Car Park Action Plan (£20k) - If the Council decides to endorse a new
approach to car parking provision, this budget is required. Without it, it will not
be possible to progress implementation of the key measures that will aide
economic recovery of town centres post-Covid and support the Council to
achieve an increased income stream in the longer term.

7.17

The Head of Paid Service commissioned senior managers to work with their
teams to identify areas where it is considered that further investment is
required given the current pressures on capacity due to increased service
demands and the need to deliver against the Council Plan as well as COVIDrelated responsibilities. Those identified in relation to business as
usual/Council Plan delivery capacity included supporting performance
management, data intelligence and potential for further work as a result of
LGR. Initial estimates suggest this would be a further £200k but at this stage,
such costs have not been allocated in the budget. Any further allocations will
be subject to business cases coming forward at a future date to members.

7.18

A summary of the proposals in the budget is shown below

Additional Health and Safety costs
Transformation of Streetscene
Planning
Enforcement
External Audit Fees
Insurance Premiums
Car Park Action Plan

10
114
64
6
5
19
20
237

Page 75
POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE Page 15
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

4 FEBRUARY 2021

RDC FINANCIAL STRATEGY ANNEX 1

Savings
7.19

A number of savings have been identified and built into the budget. These are
set out below. In some cases, these are reductions which can be applied
without any further action as they reflect an updated spend pattern or have
been planned for some time. In other cases, efficiencies have been linked to
income generation through better marketing and increasing take-up targets.
Efficiencies identified 2020/21 Budget Round
Housing Benefit Subsidy – Admin
Licensing Income
Travellers Site – Malton
Railway Tavern Accommodation
Ryedale House Income
Streetscene Vehicle Leases
Total Savings

-346
-2
-6
-1
-3
-9
-9
-377

Fees, Charges and Income Generation
7.20

Fees and charges have generally been increased in line with inflation, up to
4%, however there are some specific service areas that are exceptions to this:





Pest Control: it is anticipated that charges will be increased at a higher
level to ensure the service is not subsidised
Green Waste, which will remain frozen at the 2017/18 level of £38 per
licence
Catering at Ryedale House. Additional targets were included in last
year’s budget for the service to break even and these remain in the
proposals

One-off Maintenance Costs
7.21

The budget also includes provision for one-off maintenance costs (£55k, to be
funded from reserves) for the following:



Milton Rooms flat roof works : £25k
Churchyard wall in Slingsby: £30k

Potential Additional Costs arising from COVID
7.22

As stated above, the impact of COVID is causing immense pressures on the
budget.

Page 76
POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE Page 16
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

4 FEBRUARY 2021

RDC FINANCIAL STRATEGY ANNEX 1
7.23

The budget includes a proposal to set aside £787k from reserves as a one-off
amount to cover these costs between April and October 2021 should they
arise, but also to note that a review of this will be required before the mid-point
of the financial year and that further funds may be necessary should the
financial impact of the epidemic continue beyond October 2021.

7.24

The list below sets out expected areas of spend and also estimates should
some of these pressures last into the next financial year. The headings below
do not constitute a “target” for spending but are in many cases a contingency
to cover these costs. In some cases, e.g. Customer Service advisors,
contingency is set aside, subject to review and final decision. for continuation
of support for 6 months as service demands have increased as a result of
COVID and job losses in the community, This in turn has had an impact of
more demand in the Council. However these contingencies will be reviewed
during the year and may need to be increased. This list currently shows what
we are aware of and of course may change further in future months.

7.25

This 6 month contingency is therefore the case for most of the headings below.
Should all of these resources be required for the full financial year, a request
to draw down at least a further £300k may be required.

7.26

It is of course possible that should the impact of the pandemic last well into
2021/22, that central government will provide more funding. The council will
also be able to claim against some costs for which the county council is funded
and discussions are ongoing in respect of these. However at this stage, any
income above the £260k notified by the government has not been included.
Should this increase, the call on reserves will reduce. For comparison
purposes, the amount of funding provided by central government in the current
financial year is approximately £1m (at time of writing).

7.27

The Chief Executive and senior management team has also requested
funding to support staff and the community following the impact on the mental
health and wellbeing of these groups. The funding would be used for additional
support measures in response to the findings of the staff survey and other
measures identified by Community connects, including significant concern
about people who need help to cope with the impact the past year has had on
them. This includes the severe impact on young people as well as supporting
families in distress as highlighted in discussions with members and also
potential sustainability issues for voluntary and community groups. Once
further proposals on these are developed, additional funds would be
requested from members to support this in the new financial year. Initial
estimates suggest this could be at least another £250k, but this is not included
in the budget proposed at this stage.

7.28

Further contingency is also required to implement and co-ordinate
arrangements such as the severe increase in bureaucratic burdens on the
council with respect to government returns and also putting in place new
support schemes, and this is included in the budget.

7.29

The budget also includes a 50% increase in grants for the voluntary and
community sector (by £25k).

Page 77
POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE Page 17
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

4 FEBRUARY 2021

RDC FINANCIAL STRATEGY ANNEX 1
All figures below are £000s

Stand-by payments
Reduction in investment income
Additional Vehicle Hire (Streetscene)
Loss of car park income
loss of catering income
Additional finance resources
Loss of Ryecare Income
Procurement savings not achieved
Streetscene (reduction of income, offset by reduction in diesel, etc)
Customer Services Staff
COVID Grant Revenue Officers
COVID Marshall
Online meetings
Covid-secure workplace adjustments including PPE
Support for Vol and Community sector including additional community
grant allocation
COVID implementation and coordination arrangements

7.30

25
150
23
155
10
50
8
50
73
90
25
12
25
45
25
22
787

Changes to funding have also caused some budget pressures as below
(£316k – all COVID related)



£144k – reduced council tax
£172k – reduced business rates

7.31

Finally, as reported above at 3.15 , there have been some new grants (total of
£981k) and COVID support (387k) which will help to offset these pressures.

7.32

In summary, the final budget position as set out in section 8 shows a
movement from an expected £488k gap to one of £287k, plus a further oneoff funding from reserves to cover COVID £787k (7.29) and £55k for one-off
maintenance costs (7.21).

Original Gap

488

Plus COVID-related loss of funding
less COVID funding
Budget adjustments new
Capacity and Transformation
less other funding
Impact of Council Tax freeze
New savings
Revised Gap

316
-387
537
237
-981
109
-31

7.30
3.15
7.12
7.18
3.15
5.3
7.19

287

Page 78
POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE Page 18
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

4 FEBRUARY 2021

RDC FINANCIAL STRATEGY ANNEX 1

8. Revenue Summary
8.1

Appendix 5 sets out the proposed revised budget forecast.

8.2

This shows that in 2021/22, the budget will balance with use of reserves, but
– based on the assumptions in this paper – there are still shortfalls in future
years which will have to found with further savings.

8.3

It should be highlighted that if all of the proposals in this paper are accepted,
including the use of reserves for revenue and capital, and if no further action
is taken, then there remain budget gaps in future years which will push
reserves towards the minimum recommended level of £1m by March 2025.

8.4

The use of reserves in this paper includes:




Contribution to revenue budget: £287k
One-off COVID contingency (£787k)
Capital Programmes (£4.5m in 2021/22 plus a further £1.2m in
2022/23)

8.5

The statement on reserves also notes the potential impact of funding a credit
union.

8.6

The 2021/22 budget assumes a Council Tax freeze.

9. Capital Programme
9.1

The Capital Programme is set out in Appendix 6 and includes the following
proposals, some of which are subject to separate reports being presented to
Policy and Resources Committee on 4 February 2021. For the purposes of
this strategy, it is assumed that these reports will be approved and that funding
will be required in the capital programme.

9.2

The following additions have therefore been made:






9.3

Car Park Action Plan: £50k per annum for three years, subject to
approval
Industrial Units: up to £2.3m, subject to approval
Milton Rooms: £193k Grant towards building works, subject to
approval
Ryedale House: £55k - Covid-safe Adjustments, subject to approvals
for capital works
Malton and Norton Infrastructure: £350k agreed by Council December
2020

A proposal to extend the programme delivery of affordable housing was
approved by Council in December. The Capital Programme includes revised

Page 79
POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE Page 19
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

4 FEBRUARY 2021

RDC FINANCIAL STRATEGY ANNEX 1
costs for this – showing overall costs expected of £4.4m, with funding of
£2.8m. This leave a balance to be found from council resources of £1.6m.
9.4

Given the prospect of Local Government Review and the operational
challenges associated with the on-going response to Covid-19, the prospect
of investment the Public Services Hub has become less likely and therefore
the funding previously set aside for this is no longer included for this purpose.

9.5

All new schemes are reviewed against the Council priorities and a detailed
assessment of deliverability is undertaken prior to consideration by Council.
This methodology is applied to all proposals, regardless of the source of
funding, prior to any decision being made to accept external capital support
such as grant funding, so that the Council can ensure that they form part of an
overall capital investment strategy.

9.6

The Council is committed to seeking out innovative partnership and funding
opportunities in order to deliver the capital strategy and achieve best value.

9.7

The Council will continue to work closely with funding partners. Future projects
will continue to be developed through partnership working more likely with the
Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP). The Council also recognises the
importance of increased community engagement and participation as
fundamental to the quality of public services and the health of community life.
The Council will therefore seek to develop major projects with the full
involvement of local communities and ensure appropriate consultation prior to
scheme approval.

9.8

Resources to fund capital spending are provided from central government
grants, with other external grants and contributions sought. Council funding in
the form of capital receipts, use of reserves, borrowing and from revenue
sources make up the balance of resources. However, grants provided by
central government and resources from other external agencies are often
specific to an individual scheme and cannot be used for any other purpose by
the Council. The Council has limited scope to generate significant capital
receipts other than through the sale of major underutilised assets.

9.9

Under the Prudential Regime, which has operated since April 2004, the
Council has the responsibility to demonstrate that its capital investment
programme is affordable, prudent and sustainable. The Prudential Code
requires that this is done by calculating specific indicators for capital
expenditure and financing and by setting borrowing limits.

9.10

The revenue implications of funding the capital programme will be built into
the medium-term financial forecasts.

10.

Impact/Risk Assessment

10.1

This section recognises the challenges and risks that have implications for the
Council’s financial position in the medium term. This assessment of risk is an
essential element of the budget process; it is used to inform decisions about
the appropriate levels of contingencies and reserves that may be required and
to indicate priorities for financial monitoring.

Page 80
POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE Page 20
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

4 FEBRUARY 2021

RDC FINANCIAL STRATEGY ANNEX 1
10.2

Managing Risk is an important part of the Financial Strategy. In addition to the
Corporate Risk Register each service maintains its own risk register. The
Corporate Risk Register will be reported to the Overview and Scrutiny
Committee during the forthcoming year.

10.3

A specific risk arising from COVID has been added and is both in respect of:



additional costs incurred by the Council
lack of concentration on other strategic financial issues as a result of
dealing with the pandemic

10.4

Brexit remains a risk as it still unclear what medium-term impact there will be
on the Council in a post EU environment. There are, however, risks that
suppliers of services with significant exposure to workers from the EU and / or
currency fluctuations will seek to recover additional costs from customers
including the Council. This has been accounted for in the Strategy

10.5

The key risks identified for 2021/22 and in the medium term are listed below,
together with comments on how they will be managed. These compliment the
Council’s Corporate Risk Register

Page 81
POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE Page 21
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

4 FEBRUARY 2021

RDC FINANCIAL STRATEGY ANNEX 1

Issue/Risk

Consequences if allowed
to happen
Additional cost to budget

Likelihood

Impact

Mitigation

Very Likely

Major

Additional finance staff
Monthly monitoring of COVID
costs and continuous lobbying of
central government.
Transparency of costs reported
to members.
Funding from reserves used to
offset the additional cost.

Fluctuations in inflation,
Government grants, business
rate receipts and changes in
Government legislation

Council unable to set a
balanced budget without
significant cuts to services
and service quality, adverse
external inspection,
excessive call on Council
reserves

Very Likely

Major

Budgets are over – or under –
spent – where not as a result
of COVID

Unplanned use of reserves
which may impact on future
year Council Tax, adverse
external inspection

Not Likely

Major

Keep under review through the
financial strategy. Consider fully
any changes in legislation.
Ensure adequate reserves are
maintained to mitigate the risk.
Ensure authorities interests are
represented through the
LGA/other groups.
Memberships of business rate
pool to retain increased
business rates.
Ensure Longer Term plans for
significant variations are in
place.
Robust budget setting,
challenging budget provision.
Regular monitoring with
corrective actions. Develop a
culture of financial awareness.
Effective project planning and
management. Ensure sufficient
contingency sums. Review of
any material overspends.

Financial Impact of COVID
and inability to manage
finances, including lack of
work on key strategic issues
while we deal with the
pandemic

Page 82

POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE Page 22

4 FEBRUARY 2021

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Mitigated
Likelihood
Very
Likely

Mitigated
Impact
MajorMedium

Likely

Medium

Not Likely

Minor

RDC FINANCIAL STRATEGY ANNEX 1
Savings are not achieved

If compensating savings not
identified unplanned use of
reserves, potential for cuts
to services or service levels

Likely

Major

Regular budget monitoring to
identify issues at an early stage.
Detailed scrutiny and review of
all savings proposals prior to
approval.

Not Likely

Minor

Changes in demand/usage
levels affecting income from
fees and charges

Unplanned use of reserves
with potential to impact on
future Council Tax levels or
requiring cuts to services or
service levels
Council fails to achieve
Corporate plan objectives.
Adverse external
inspection.

Very Likely

Major

Likely

Medium

Not Likely

Major

Not Likely

Minor

The capital programme is not
affordable

Council may need to
remove existing planned
schemes from the
programme or use reserves
earmarked for other
purposes.
Adverse external
inspection.

Likely

Major

Ensure regular monitoring
Review trends
Take appropriate action
Ensure base income budgets
are realistic.
Ensure corporate involvement in
the process. Early consideration
of budget pressures and
legislation changes. Regular
reporting to members.
Up to date Service Delivery
plans need to be developed and
put in place linked to corporate
plan.
Schemes are monitored and
reported on a regular basis.
Financing profile based on
realistic assumptions. Ensure
only fully evaluated schemes are
included within the programme
with sufficient contingency sums.

Not Likely

Medium

Poor budget planning with
decisions being made without

Council fails to meet
community needs, adverse

Likely

Major

Not Likely

Minor

Budget does not reflect
corporate priorities

Page 83

POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE Page 23

Develop a long-term financial
strategy. Set out a clear budget

4 FEBRUARY 2021

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

RDC FINANCIAL STRATEGY ANNEX 1

Page 84

proper
consideration/consultation

impact on Corporate and
Community Plan. Adverse
external inspection

Council Tax Support scheme
–above expected demand or
collection rates not achieved

Collection fund into deficit
which may require
savings/cuts in future years.
Impact on other major
preceptors

Likely

Major

Decision on Pension fund
contribution rates create future
significant cost pressure

Additional savings/cuts to
services required in future
years

Likely

Major

POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE Page 24

timetable. Regular updates to
Members. Effective ongoing
consultation processes. Ensure
financial capacity in the council
Proper assessment of likely take
up based on historic trends,
comparison with other
authorities, in year monitoring of
spend and collection. Regular
reporting to members and
s(151). Annual approval of the
scheme.
Market interest rates and
investment returns are expected
to improve.
Monitor interim valuations and
make provision in financial
forecasts.

4 FEBRUARY 2021

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Not Likely

Major

Likely

Medium

RDC FINANCIAL STRATEGY ANNEX 1

11.

Pay Policy

11.1

The Localism Act 2011 requires that the authority produce a policy statement
that covers a number of matters concerning the pay of the authority’s staff,
principally Chief Officers. The Pay Policy for 2021/22 is incorporated within
this Financial Strategy at Appendix A.

12.

Conclusion

12.1

This Financial Strategy sets out a range of proposals regarding the future
management of resources and delivery of priorities.

12.2

The Strategy is underpinned by ten key Objectives, which are set out within
section 2.

12.3

The process of developing the Financial Strategy is ongoing. Although there is
a considerable amount of work to be done, and further improvements to be
made, the Council has put in place the framework for ensuring a strong financial
base that delivers priorities. This strong financial base has been previously
commented upon within External Audit reports.

12.4

As far as possible, the plan anticipates future needs and recognises the
financial uncertainties, risks and challenges faced by the Council. The Council
has in place rigorous financial monitoring and aims to ensure it holds balances
and reserves that are considered adequate without being excessive.

12.5

Consequently, Ryedale has in place a sound Financial Strategy and a robust
financial plan that is designed to support the delivery of the targets in the
Corporate Plan and meet the Council’s Objectives.

POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE Page 25

Page 85
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

4 FEBRUARY 2021

RDC FINANCIAL STRATEGY ANNEX 1

APPENDIX 1

Pay Policy Statement 2020-2021
Document Control Sheet
Reference Number
Version Number
Document Author
Lead SMB Member
Ratifying Committee
Date Ratified
Date Policy Effective From
Next Review Date

HRPPS2021
01
Senior HR Business Partner
Head of HR
Policy & Resources, Council
March 2021
March 2021
March 2022

POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE Page 26

Page 86
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

4 FEBRUARY 2021

1.

Introduction and Purpose

Under section 112 of the Local Government Act 1972, the Council has the “power to appoint
officers on such reasonable terms and conditions as authority thinks fit”. This Pay Policy
Statement (the ‘statement’) sets out the Council’s approach to pay policy in accordance with
the requirements of Section 38 of the Localism Act 2011 and should be read in conjunction
with the Ryedale District Council Pay Policy. The purpose of the statement is to provide
transparency with regard to the Council’s approach to setting the pay of its employees by
identifying:




the methods by which salaries of all employees are determined
the detail and level of remuneration of its most senior staff i.e. ‘chief officers’, as
defined by the relevant legislation
the Committees responsible for ensuring the provisions set out in this statement are
applied consistently throughout the council and recommending any amendments to
the full council.

This policy statement has been approved by the Council and is effective from 1 April 2020.
It will be subject to review annually and in accordance with new or proposed legislation to
ensure that it remains relevant and effective.
2.

Accountability and Decision Making

In accordance with the constitution of the Council, Full Council is responsible for the
confirmation of the appointment of Head of Paid Service, a committee or sub-committee of
the Council will appoint Chief Officers and appointment of officers below Chief Officers is the
responsibility of the Head of Paid Service.
The Policy and Resources Committee is responsible for ratifying/making recommendations
to Council on all Council policies, this includes recruitment, pay, terms and conditions and
severance arrangements in relation to employees of the Council.
3.

Other Employment-Related Arrangements

The Council’s policy and procedures with regard to recruitment of chief officers is set out
within the Officer Employment Procedure Rules as set out in Section 8 of the Constitution.
4.

Approval of Salary Packages in Excess of £100k.

The Council will ensure that, prior to an offer being made, any salary package for any post
that is in excess of £100k will be considered by Full Council. The salary package will be
defined as base salary, fees, routinely payable allowances and benefits in kind that are due
under the contract.
5.
Definition of Chief Officers
For the purposes of the Localism Act 2011 and this statement, the term “chief officers” is
defined by Section 2 of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989. A ‘non-statutory chief
officer’ is defined as:



a person for whom the head of the authority's paid service is directly responsible
a person who, as respects all or most of the duties of their post, is required to report
directly or is directly accountable to the head of the authority's paid service; and

HRPPS2021v01

Page 87
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Page 27 of 29





any person who, as respects all or most of the duties of their post, is required to
report directly or is directly accountable to the local authority themselves or any
committee or sub-committee of the authority; but excludes any person whose duties
are solely secretarial or clerical or are otherwise in the nature of support services.
A ‘deputy chief officer’ is defined as a person who, as respects all or most of the
duties of their post, is required to report directly or is directly accountable to one or
more of the statutory or non-statutory chief officers. This definition is subject to the
same exclusion concerning administrative and support staff.

The following roles are identified as Chief Officers (statutory and non-statutory) and Deputy
Chief Officers (collectively referred to as Chief Officers) for the purpose of this policy:



6.

Head of the Paid Service (Chief Executive Officer)
Deputy Chief Executive Officer

Remuneration of Chief Officers and other Senior Officers

The Chief Executive is paid a spot salary as is the Deputy Chief Executive (vacant):
Chief Executive Officer
Deputy Chief Executive Officer

Spot salary
Spot salary

£109,943
Vacant

The Programme Director is paid a spot salary. Other Senior Officers are paid on the NJC
pay scale at Grades 11- 12 (locally agreed):
Role
Head of Communications, Technology and Business
Transformation
Head of Customer and Community Services

Grade
12

Head of Planning & Regulatory Services
Head of Waste & Environmental Services
Head of Corporate Governance (Monitoring Officer)

12
12
11

Programme Director for Economic Development,
Business & Partnerships

Spot
salary

12

Salary Band
£53,597 - £61,413
Honoraria (£10,512)
£53,597 - £61,413
Honoraria (£10,512)
£53,597 - £61,413
£53,597 - £61,413
£51,198 - £53,597
Additional fees paid for
Deputy Returning
Officer activities
£71,925

The following roles are fulfilled through a shared service agreement with North Yorkshire
County Council (NYCC) on the NYCC grading structure, paid through NYCC payroll:
 Chief Finance Officer (S151)
 Head of HR
Chief Officers do not receive any performance-related pay or bonuses.

HRPPS2021v01

Page 88
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Page 28 of 29

Additional Payments
Monitoring Officer: The Head of Corporate Governance has been designated as the
Council’s Monitoring Officer. No additional remuneration is payable for that designation.
Returning Officer: The Chief Executive has been appointed as the Council’s Returning
Officer. The role is a separate responsibility and is remunerated separately after each
election in accordance with the appropriate election fees.
Deputy Returning Officer: The Head of Corporate Governance has been appointed as the
Council’s Deputy Returning Officer. The role is a separate responsibility and is remunerated
separately after each election in accordance with the appropriate election fees.
Additional Payments: Chief Officers and other Senior Managers do not receive overtime,
on-call or stand-by payments, and do not receive additional payment for attendance at
evening meetings.
Honoraria: The Chief Executive, at their discretion, may make additional responsibility
payments as required. Two Senior Officers are in receipt of honorarium payments in 202021 for acting up as stated above. This is due to the vacancy of the Deputy Chief Executive.
7.

Lowest-Paid Employees, Minimum Wage and National Living Wage

Lowest-paid employees are employed on full time (37 hours) equivalent salaries in
accordance with the minimum spinal column point currently in use with the Council’s grading
structure. As at 1 April 2020, this is £18,562 (£9.62 per hour). This is £1.42 more than the
statutory minimum wage and £0.90 more than the National Minimum Wage
The statutory Minimum Wage for employees over 21 is £8.20 per hour; the statutory National
Living Wage (NLW) for employees aged 25 is £8.72 per hour from 1 April 2020.
8.

Pay Multiple

As described above the Council uses an established process of defining roles, determining
job size and salary levels. This process determines the relationship between the rate of pay
for the lowest paid and senior manager post, including chief officers, described as the pay
multiple.




The average median salary in the Council is £24,012.
The current pay multiple between the lowest paid (full time equivalent) employee and
the Chief Executive as 1:5.92 and;
The multiple between the median (average) full time equivalent earnings and the
Chief Executive is 1:4.58

This is currently within the limits recommended by The Hutton Review of Fair Pay in the
Public Sector (2010) and will be monitored and recorded annually.

HRPPS2021v01

Page 89
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Page 29 of 29

This page is intentionally left blank

APPENDIX 2 - RESERVES AND BALANCES
£000s

General Reserve
Capital Fund
Collection Fund Equalisation Reserve
Election Reserve
New Homes Bonus Reserve
Pensions Reserve (new)
Strategic Reserve

Capital Reserves:
Capital Receipts
Total Capital Reserves
Total Reserves

31.03.20

31.03.21
In-year

NHB

3,981
5,547
996
-23
2,760
0
2,527
15,788

0
-1,688
39
30
0
81
-26
-1,564

0
0
0
0
714
0
0
714

456
456

0

16,244

-1,564

31.03.22

COVID

In-year

COVID

0
-4,456
-600
30
0
225
-447
-5,248

-787

-1,084
-1,084

3,981
3,859
1,035
7
3,474
81
1,417
13,854

-787

3,194
-597
435
37
3,474
306
970
7,818

0

0

456
456

0

0

714

-1,084

14,310

-5,248

-787

Page 91

Notes:
Revenue support (to offset any deficit) after 2020-21 not yet included

#

OFFICIAL

31.03.23
In-year

0
-1,166
-434
-90
0
273

31.03.24
In-year

-1,417

3,194
-1,763
1
-53
3,474
579
970
6,401

456
456

0

8,274

-1,417

0
-125
0
30
0
0

31.03.25
In-year

-95

3,194
-1,888
1
-23
3,474
579
970
6,306

456
456

0

6,857

-95

1
-110
0
30
0
0
-78

3,195
-1,998
1
7
3,474
579
970
6,228

456
456

0

456
456

6,762

-78

6,684

APPENDIX 3: PRESSURES
Budget Pressures 2019/20 to 2022/24
2020-21
Estimate

2021-22
Estimate

2022-23
Estimate

2023-24
Estimate

2024-25
Estimate

£000's

£000's

£000's

£000's

£000's

Comments

Pressures identified 2020/21 Budget Round
General Inflation
Pay Inflation

43
160

48
165

48
165

48
165

48
165

Additional Capacity

687

0

0

0

0

Other Budget Pressures

292

-16

0

0

0

1,182

197

213

213

213

0

153
194
73
28
13
76
537

Total Pressures 2020/21 Budget Round

Adjustments for 2021/22 and future years
Budget Adjustments
Inflation and increments
Other Budget adjustments
HR and Organisational Development
Streetscene Mechanic
Additional Waste & Recycling Officer 0.4 FTE
Waste Transfer Station

0
-14

0

0

10
0
114
64
6
5
19
20
237

0
125
-20
0
0
0
0
0
105

0

0

25
150
23
155
10
50
8
50
73
90
25
12
25
45
25
22
787

-25
-150
-23
-155
-10
-50
-8
-50
-73
-90
-25
-12
-25
-45
-25
-22
-787

0

0

25
30
55

-25
-30
-55

0

1,182

1,813

-539

213

Other Transformation and Cost Increases
Additional Health and Safety costs
Reduction in investment income
Transformation of Streetscene
Planning
Enforcement
External Audit Fees
Insurance Premiums
Car Park Action Plan

COVID-related Pressures
Stand-by payments
Reduction in investment income
Additional Vehicle Hire (Streetscene)
loss of car park income
loss of catering income
additional finance resources
Ryecare Income
Procurement savings not achieved
Streetscene (reduction of income, offset by reduction in diesel, etc)
Customer Services Staff
COVID Grant Revenue Officers
COVID Marshall
Online meetings
Covid-secure workplace adjustments including PPE
Support for Vol and Community sector including additional grant allocation
COVID implementation and coordination arrangements (extension of contract)

One-off Maintenance Costs
Milton Rooms flat roof works
Churchyard wall in Slingsby - Approx. £30k

Total Budget Pressures

-14

OFFICIAL

#

Page 92

0

213

APPENDIX 4: SAVINGS
Budget Savings 2019/20 to 2023/24
2020-21
Projection
£000's
Investment Income
Public Conveniences Rate relief

Emergency Relief Work
Council Tax Collection - Court Fees
Indoor Sports & Recreation
Draingage Board Levies

2021-22
Projection
£000's

2022-23
Projection
£000's

2023-24
Projection
£000's

-2
-20

-23
-13
-145
-4

-13

-13

One off Contribution for post, less contract upflift
Reduction in court fees payable, plus increased forecast income
Leisure contract costs front loaded, annual fee reduces in years 7-11
Forecast inflation lower than expected
Reduction in previously estimated pressures arising from WTS, and recycling
rates and prices
-13 Forecast increase in take-up. No price increase

-12
-15

-15

New in-cab technology means no need to continue to print tags for each bin.
-15 Additional income £25k, offset by new car reader transaction charges)

-30

Page 93

Recycling - Kerbside Collection
Recyling - Green Waste

-18
-13

Recyling - Green Waste
Car Park Income
Ryedale House Telephone Rental and calls
Treasury Management Consultant Contract
Review approach to allocation of grants

-15
-3
-2
-30

Pension Fund Trienniel Valuation

-81

-144

-148

Agency Staff
Furniture
Procurement Savings

-4
-23
0

-100

10
-200

Income Generation and reduction of subsidy
Pest Control
Catering
Postage
Printing
Local Land Charges
Bulky Waste
Street-cleansing
Community House
Facilities Management (Conference Facilities)
Efficiencies identified 2020/21 Budget Round

-6
-6
-7
-6
-7
-1
-1
-3
-1
-434

Housing Benefit Subsidy - Admin
Licensing Income
Travellers Site - Malton
Railway Tavern Accommodation
Ryedale House Income
Streetscene Vehicle Leases

Total Savings

Comments

Current underspend and proposals not coming forward to Members
0

Funded from reserve for two years, pending decisions on PSH

-6
-6
-7
-6
-7

-6

-6

-346

-372

-34

-2
-6
-1
-3
-9
-9

-434

-377

Premises Application Renewal/Conversion Fees
Part Year net income (before MRP)
NYP - Office space rental and catering

-372

-34

#

OFFICIAL

APPENDIX 5 - REVISED REVENUE SUMMARY FORECAST

2020/21

2021/22

2022/23

2023/24

2024/25

7,415
1,182
-434
-254

7,909
971
-377
842

8,503
304
-372
0

8,434
213
-34
0

8,614
213
0
0

7,909

9,345

8,434

8,614

8,827

Planned Contributions to Reserves
Contributions from revenue account
Capital Fund
BR Collection Fund Equalisation Reserve
District Election
Strategic Reserve
Pensions Reserve
Transfer additional Council Tax to Strategic Reserve

30
0
81
108

30
0
225
0

30
0
373
0

30
0
0
0

30
0
0
0

Allocation of New Homes Bonus
To NHB reserve
Capital Fund

714
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

-600

-600
-787

-434

0

0

-55
-287

-120
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

8,242

7,871

8,283

8,644

8,857

-4,429
-33
-400
-241
-32

-4,376
42
-200
0
-32
142

-4,530
43
0
0
0
142

-4,686
43
0
0
0
142

-4,846
0
0
0
0
0

-1,652

-1,663
-85
0
0
0
0
-127
-572
-157
0

-1,696
-87
0
0
0
0
-127
-584
0
0

-1,730
-89
0
0
0
0

-572
-835
-49

-1,639
-84
0
-70
-75
-260
-127
-572
-619
0

-8,242

-7,871

-6,950

-6,996

-7,260

0

0

1,334

1,648

1,597

Base Budget - starting point
Pressures identified
Savings
One off revenue budgets from reserves

Page 94

Planned Use of Reserves
BR Collection Fund Equalisation Reserve
One-off COVID Contingency
District Election
Strategic Reserve
Support to Revenue Budget

Funded By:
REVENUE FINANCING
Local Income
Council Tax
Council Tax Collection Fund (Surplus) / Deficit
Business rates retained growth
Business rates pool dividend
Business rates renewable energy
Business Rates Collection Fund (Surplus) / Deficit)
Gov't Grants
Settlement Funding - Business Rates
S31 Grant - Multiplier Cap compensation
Revenue Support Grant
Lower Tier Services Grant
Local Council Tax Support Grant
Covid -19 Support Grant
Tax Income Guarantee Scheme
Rural Services Delivery Grant
New Homes Bonus
Other grants

TOTAL EXTERNAL RESOURCES - Option 2
Budget (Surplus) / Deficit

0
0
0
0

-595
0
0

#

OFFICIAL

APPENDIX 6 - CAPITAL PROGRAMME

RYEDALE DISTRICT COUNCIL - PROPOSED CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2020/21 TO 2024/25
Category / Scheme

Vehicle Replacement Programme
Trade Waste Equipment
Replacement of Garage Inspection pit
Property Condition Survey: Investment/Operational Assets
Property Condition Survey: Leisure Facilities
Property Condition Survey: Milton Rooms
Property Condition Survey: Depot
Property Condition Survey: Public Conveniences
Property Condition Survey: Car Parks
Property Condition Survey: Street Lights
Property Condition Survey: St. Leonard's Well
Property Condition Survey: Unallocated

2020/21

2021/22

2022/23

2023/24

2024/25

Total

External
2020-2025

Estimate
£'000

Revised
£'000

Original
Estimate
£'000

Estimate
£'000

Estimate
£'000

Estimate
£'000

Cost
£'000

Funding
£'000

195
33
50
32
98
222
87
225
30
60
30
-8

195
33
50
32
98
222
87
0
30
187
80
-8

1,593
0
0

736

45

40

110

110

110

2,609
33
50
32
98
222
87
0
30
187
80
432

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

2,609
33
50
32
98
222
87
0
30
187
80
432

2,609
2,642
2,692
2,724
2,822
3,044
3,131
3,131
3,161
3,348
3,428
3,860

50

50

150
2,290
193
55
350
0

0
0

0

150
2,290
193
55
350
0

4,010
6,300
6,493
6,548
6,898
6,898

Programme review & feasibility work being undertaken

110

Net RDC

Net

Comments

Cost Culmulative
£'000
£'000
Replacement for Streetscene waste collection and ancillary vehicles
Replacement of trade waste bulk bins / roll out of glass recycling
Essential upgrade to accomoodate new style of vehicle

2,235

0

50
2,290
193
55
350
0

IT Infrastucture Strategy

257

257

260

517

0

517

7,415

£200k added in 2020-21 and 2021-22. Essential upgrade of IT Infrastructure

Page 95

Car Park Action Plan
Industrial Units - New Development
Milton Rooms - Grant towards building works
Ryedale House - Covid-safe Adjustments
Malton and Norton Infrastructure
Ryedale Hub

2020/21

100
737
0
75
50

100
737
257
75
50

0

100
737
4,441
150
100

0
403
2,832
0
0

100
334
1,609
150
100

7,515
7,849
9,458
9,608
9,708

Contribution to RSL land acquisitions

Private Sector Energy Efficiency Grants
Private Sector Renewal - Disabled Facilities Grants
Community Housing Fund
Mortgage Rescue Scheme
Flooding Contigency

40
496
289
21

40
496
289
21

40
496
0
0
100

80
2,480
289
21
100

0
2,480
289
0
0

80
0
0
21
100

9,788
9,788
9,788
9,809
9,909

Provide insulation improvements

5,354

3,328

7,062

15,913

6,004

9,909

Aff
Aff
Aff
Aff
Aff

Hsg Init - Exception Sites Land Purchase
Hsg Init - Railway Tavern
Hsg Init - Extended Programme Delivery
Hsg Init - Property Improvement Loans
Hsg Init - Landlord Improvement Loans/Grants

TOTAL OF PROPOSED CAPITAL PROGRAMME

1,400
75
50

2,784

496

4,176

496

701

496

646

0

Delivery of 8 Housing Units
34 Units, to deliver a total of 42
Recoverable Loans to ensure properties are to the decent home standard
Recoverable Loans or Grants to Landlords

Improve access to and within properties for people
Development of Community lead housing within the District
Scheme in partnership with Registered Social Landlord

CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2019/20 TO 2023/24 - SUMMARY OF FUNDING

External Grants and Contributions
Department Communities & Local Government (DCLG)
Homes England Grant
Developers Contributions
Total External Grants and Contributions
Borrowing - Finance Leases
Borrowing - Temp Internal Borrowing
Reserves
TOTAL FUNDING OF CAPITAL PROGRAMME

2020/21

2020/21

2021/22

2022/23

2023/24

2024/25

Total

Estimate
£'000

Revised
£'000

Estimate
£'000

Estimate
£'000

Estimate
£'000

Estimate
£'000

£'000

785
388
15
1,188

785
388
272
1,445

496
476
320
1,292

496
958
820
2,274

496
0
0
496

496
0
0
496

2769
1823
1412
6,004

Disabled Facilities Grant and Community Housing Fund Grant

195

195
1,688

736
0
1,166

45
35
160

40
0
110

2,169
195
7,740

Purchase and Lease back under Finance lease arrangements

3,971

1,153
160
4,616

5,354

3,328

7,062

4,176

701

646

15,913

Grant funding towards affordable housing provision
Use of S106 Affordable Housing Commuted Sums

Purchase and Lease back under operating lease arrangments, capital financing is therefore only temporary

#

OFFICIAL

TOTAL

APPENDIX 7 - GENERAL FUND SUMMARY
2019/20
Actual
£

2020/21
Original
Estimate
£

2020/21
Revised
Estimate
£

Service

1,089,467
1,308,508
20,453
-1,189,727
1,228,701

912,720
1,588,480
-19,544
1,416,804
3,898,460

CENTRAL SERVICES
1,162,720 Central Services to the Public
1,588,480 Corporate & Democratic Core
424,416 Non Distributed Costs
917,844 Other Operating Income & Expenditure
4,093,460 Total

972,685

729,830

3,145,306

2,697,830

2,702,830 ENVIRONMENTAL & REGULATORY SERVICES

3,274,082

1,264,505

1,178,750

1,228,750 PLANNING SERVICES

1,610,430

-484,500

-520,560

907,712

1,293,595

1,293,595 HOUSING SERVICES

7,034,409

9,277,905

9,527,905

854,370

-2,491,675

7,888,779

6,786,230

729,830 CULTURAL & RELATED SERVICES

-520,560 HIGHWAYS & TRANSPORT SERVICES

2021/22
Original
Estimate
£

1,292,340
1,979,270
-3,877
2,124,051
5,391,784
769,960

-341,290
1,373,196
12,078,162

-2,741,675 CONTRIBUTIONS TO/(FROM) EARMARKED RESERVES
6,786,230 TOTAL NET EXPENDITURE

Page 96
OFFICIAL

#

-5,930,561
6,147,601

APPENDIX 8 - DETAIL OF NET EXPENDITURE
2019/20
Actual
£

2020/21
Original
Estimate
£

2020/21
Revised
Estimate
£

Division / Subdivision of Service

2021/22
Original
Estimate
£

CENTRAL SERVICES TO THE PUBLIC
92,049

132,130

132,130 General Grants, Bequests & Donations

127,770

80,780

50,240

300,240 Emergency Planning

315,940

235,017
-1,511
333,551
13,345
580,402

159,100
280,200
-32,430
406,870

Local Tax Collection
159,100 Local Council Tax Support Scheme
- Council Tax Benefits
280,200 Council Tax Collection
-32,430 Non-Domestic Rates Collection
406,870 Sub Total

165,020
274,760
54,930
494,710

198,273
92,767
291,040

104,240
178,940
283,180

Elections
104,240 Conducting Elections
178,940 Registration of Electors
283,180 Sub Total

150,360
222,560
372,920

45,196

40,300

1,089,467

912,720

40,300 Local Land Charges
1,162,720 Total Central Services to the Public

-19,000
1,292,340

CORPORATE & DEMOCRATIC CORE
639,115

838,920

838,920 Corporate Management

669,393

749,560

749,560 Democratic Representation & Management

1,308,508

1,588,480

1,588,480 Total Corporate & Democratic Core

1,126,190
853,080
1,979,270

NON DISTRIBUTED COSTS
Non Distributed Costs
Costs of Unused Shares of Assets

20,453

-19,544

424,416

20,453

-19,544

424,416 Total Non Distributed Costs

-3,877
-3,877

OTHER OPERATING INCOME & EXPENDITURE

-

65,436

70,070

70,070 External Interest Payable

-261,739
1,834
-259,905

-205,000
-270
-205,270

59,000

30,500

392,000

450,000

-3,683,000

-

- Pensions Actuarial Gains & Losses

-

-892,203

-

- Surplus or Deficit on Revaluation of PP&E Assets

-

80,475
22,377
58,098

450,384
450,384

Other Corporate Costs & Operating Expenditure
-48,576 General Financial Provisions
- Capital Receipts Unattached to Non Current Assets
-48,576 Sub Total

-419,707
-419,707

Interest & Investment Income
-205,000 Interest & Investment Income
-270 Investment Property
-205,270 Sub Total
30,500 Impairment Losses on Financial Instruments
450,000 Pensions Interest Cost & Expected Return on Assets

Page 97
#

OFFICIAL

65,200

-55,000
-1,600
-56,600
30,500
390,000

-926,994

-1,456,000

3,997,841

2,077,120

-1,189,727

1,416,804

-1,456,000 Non Ringfenced Government Grants
2,077,120 Adjs between Accounting & Funding under Regulations
917,844 Total Other Operating Income & Expenditure

-1,723,072
3,837,730
2,124,051

DETAIL OF NET EXPENDITURE (CONTINUED)
2019/20
Actual
£

2020/21
Original
Estimate
£

2020/21
Revised
Estimate
£

Division / Subdivision of Service

2021/22
Original
Estimate
£

CULTURAL & RELATED SERVICES

27,470
44,436
71,906

40,240
53,680
93,920

Culture & Heritage
40,240 Museums & Galleries
53,680 Arts Development & Support
93,920 Sub Total

185,029

94,070

94,070

90,421
495,225
24,469
14,690
624,805

47,210
389,780
7,820
6,050
450,860

85,999
4,946
90,945

90,980
90,980

972,685

729,830

Open Spaces
Community Parks & Open Spaces

Recreation & Sport
47,210 Community Centres & Public Halls
389,780 Indoor Sports & Recreation Facilities
7,820 Outdoor Sports & Recreation Facilities
6,050 Sports Development & Community Recreation
450,860 Sub Total
Tourism
90,980 Tourism Policy, Marketing & Development
- Visitors Centres
90,980 Sub Total
729,830 Total Cultural & Related Services

50,110
60,040
110,150

98,430

74,170
370,300
8,210
6,060
458,740

102,640
102,640
769,960

ENVIRONMENTAL & REGULATORY SERVICES
Cemetery, Cremation & Mortuary Services
Closed Churchyards

1,160

20,280

20,280

70,119

56,740

56,740 Community Safety (Crime Reduction)

-357

-

33,499
97,570
131,069

22,990
99,520
122,510

Flood Defence & Land Drainage
22,990 Defences Against Flooding
99,520 Land Drainage & Related Work
122,510 Sub Total

818,527

675,170

680,170

Recycling
Recycling Collection

804,580

8,154
132,696
88,736
150,490
44,829
10,134
85,847

-1,690
89,460
69,630
130,360
29,870
6,760
81,020

-1,690
89,460
69,630
130,360
29,870
6,760
81,020

Regulatory Services
Alcohol & Entertainment Licensing
Animal & Public Health
Environmental Protection
Food Safety
Health & Safety
Infectious Disease Control
Pest Control

-8,410
116,480
186,956
118,510
37,120
7,250
167,369

- Community Safety (Safety Services)

Page 98
#

OFFICIAL

50,480
40,010
-

27,210
100,520
127,730

297,839
16,091
42,744
46,133
923,693

200,480
23,750
87,820
44,900
762,360

200,480 Public Conveniences
23,750 Taxi Licensing
87,820 Water Safety
44,900 Noise & Nuisance
762,360 Sub Total

486,100

473,480

473,480 Street Cleansing

35,773

-45,530

-45,530

Trade Waste
Trade Waste Collection

679,222

632,820

632,820

Waste Collection
Household Waste Collection

3,145,306

2,697,830

2,702,830 Total Environmental & Regulatory Services

248,647
44,100
81,440
43,630
1,043,092
491,330

-6,630

723,490
3,274,082

DETAIL OF NET EXPENDITURE (CONTINUED)
2019/20
Actual
£

2020/21
Original
Estimate
£

2020/21
Revised
Estimate
£

Division / Subdivision of Service

2021/22
Original
Estimate
£

PLANNING SERVICES
Building Control
67,130 Building Regulations
5,100 Other Building Control Work
72,230 Sub Total

-12,129
-4,997
-17,126

67,130
5,100
72,230

11,934
6,078
50,480
68,492

17,560
68,000
60,450
146,010

81,284

18,640

226,694
132,575
178,252
537,521

156,990
-27,090
131,020
260,920

Development Control
156,990 Advice
-27,090 Dealing with Applications
131,020 Enforcement
260,920 Sub Total

165,960
84,710
149,270
399,940

-26,373
175,076
148,703

-10,840
238,840
228,000

Economic Development
-10,840 Market Undertakings
288,840 Promotion & Marketing of the Area
278,000 Sub Total

2,430
304,740
307,170

111,559

54,220

6,632
75,595
251,845
334,072

5,670
202,510
190,550
398,730

1,264,505

1,178,750

Business Support
17,560 Grants/Loans & Guarantees
68,000 Premises Development
60,450 Support to Business & Enterprise
146,010 Sub Total
18,640 Community Development

54,220

5,670
202,510
190,550
398,730

Environmental Initiatives
Environmental Initiatives General
Planning Policy
Conservation & Listed Buildings Policy
Local Development Framework
Local Plans General
Sub Total

1,228,750 Total Planning Services
HIGHWAYS & TRANSPORT SERVICES

Page 99
#

OFFICIAL

68,000
31,990
99,990

19,500
85,490
76,510
181,500
103,630

78,070

6,770
205,840
227,520
440,130
1,610,430

-536,260

-562,810

-562,810

51,760

42,250

42,250

-484,500

-520,560

Parking Services
Off-Street Parking
Public Transport
Support to Operators

-520,560 Total Highways & Transport Services

-387,770

46,480
-341,290

DETAIL OF NET EXPENDITURE (CONTINUED)
2019/20
Actual
£

2020/21
Original
Estimate
£

2020/21
Revised
Estimate
£

Division / Subdivision of Service

2021/22
Original
Estimate
£

HOUSING SERVICES
88,122

58,320

58,320 Enabling

70,920

10,273
120,835
16,887
147,995

208,180
107,270
5,130
320,580

Homelessness
208,180 Homelessness Administration
107,270 Hostels (Non-RHA Support)
5,130 Leased Private Managed Accommodation
320,580 Sub Total

214,601
160,830
18,410
393,841

74,460

106,080

106,080 Housing Advice

114,850

398,027

306,950

306,950 Housing Benefits Administration

149,480

6,255
102,975
109,230

16,000
32,000
48,000

-112,697

169,515

37,028
37,028

57,250
57,250

Other Council Property
57,250 Travellers Sites
- Non-HRA Council Property
57,250 Sub Total

12,237

68,170

68,170 Other Welfare Services

153,310

158,730

907,712

1,293,595

854,370

-2,491,675

7,888,779

6,786,230

Housing Benefits Payments
16,000 Non-HRA Rent Rebates
32,000 Rent Allowances
48,000 Sub Total
169,515 Housing Strategy

158,730

Private Sector Housing Renewal
Administration of PSHR Grants

1,293,595 Total Housing Services
-2,741,675 CONTRIBUTIONS TO/(FROM) EARMARKED RESERVES
6,786,230 NET EXPENDITURE

Page 100
#

OFFICIAL

16,000
32,000
48,000
210,015

66,670
-2,580
64,090
145,410

176,590
1,373,196
-5,930,561
6,147,601

Budget Consultation
Results and Analysis
Page 101
© 2021

Summary

Summary of Public Budget Consultation
Page 102

Summary: The number of responses this year was significantly lower than the previous year.
The survey was promoted through press coverage in the Gazette and Herald, repeated social
media and internally.
The impact of COVID will have had a bearing on our services, how people view them and
potentially the rate of response.
Responses are generally more positive than last year, although this is not matched by responses
to Question 10 (how satisfied or dissatisfied are you with the way Ryedale District Council runs
the services we provide?)
2

© 2021

Comparison with Last Year
27 responses, compared with 86 last year.

Page 103



Overall positive view of RDC’s value for money has increased from 41% to 43%.



Improved perception of most services except:
o Planning (positive reduced from 26% to 13%, negative increased from 30% to 60%)
o Tourism (positive reduced from 32% to 22%,but negative also decreased from 40% to 22%)
o Environmental Health (positive reduced from 51% to 50%, but negative also decreased from 23% to 17%)



Significant improved perception in
o Community Safety (positive increased from 29% to 60%)



However, overall perception of the way the Council runs services shows reduced positive score from 44% to 34%, while negative
score has increased from 32% to 41%.

Actions Required
 Consideration by Members alongside budget proposals
 Officers to review results when services are planning and implementing improvements alongside other consultation and feedback
information including compliments and complaints
(Positive refers to strongly agree, agree or satisfied. Negative refers to disagree, strongly disagree or dissatisfied.
3Those

who have not used the service are discounted.)

© 2021

The current Council Tax for a Band D dwelling relating to the services provided by Ryedale District Council is £200.73 per year - or £3.86 per
week. To what extent do you agree or disagree that Ryedale District Council provides value for money?
(N = 27)

Strongly agree

7%

Agree

37%

Page 104

Neither agree or disagree

19%

Disagree

30%

Strongly disagree

7%

0%

4

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

© 2021

Please provide any information to support your response to Q1:

Response No

Answer text

2

The average (according to MHCLG) is £185. No reason for Ryedale to be so far above that.

7

I think the council does some things well, but not everything.

Page 105
5

© 2021

Please provide any information to support your response to Q1: (Continued)

Page 106
6

Response No

Answer text

9

Personally we are a council Band F. I feel we are grossly overcharged for where we live. Yes our
dwelling may be of a bigger size but in no way do we use more services.
In fact, it has been a big problem over the past couple of years having our refuse or recycling collected
and has often resulted in a phone call back to the council asking for it to be collected.
Whilst we are all for supporting and paying our way when it comes to Police and Fire services I feel
dwellings like ours are penalised.
We also live in an area where fly tipping is a big issue. I reported a case where the fly tipper left their
address, the council did nothing. I tidied the mess into my recycling and green bin in the end.

© 2021

Please provide any information to support your response to Q1: (Continued)

Response No

Answer text

11

Stop giving money to the arts and more to small businesses.
Also people in bungalows should not be paying as much rates as family’s in multi tier homes.

Page 107
7

© 2021

Please provide any information to support your response to Q1: (Continued)

Response No

Answer text

Page 108

Insufficient information provided in the introduction to this survey. Eg What is the RDC's strategy going
forward, what cost savings / efficiency gains have been made, what savings and economies of scale can
be made in the future? What are the demographic/societal trends that the RDC have to plan for in the
coming years.

12

The introduction makes no mention of the very low rates of inflation in the UK at the moment and the
low rates of salary increases that most of the population face, yet Councils and Public bodies continue
to raise taxes at the top end or above inflation.
The introduction informs me where the Council tax is going but there is nothing to make me feel that
professional management skills and techniques are been utilised.

8

© 2021

Please provide any information to support your response to Q1: (Continued)

Page 109
9

Response No

Answer text

13

The council continue to take take take and don't deliver what is needed. The state of the roads is quite
frankly disgusting and the council accept no liability when, not if, vehicles are damaged. Recycling
facilities are also terrible, other councils provide proper recycling bins and we get a few rejects from
the toy box factory.

15

Planning Department is not fit for purpose. Poor response times, non existent enforcement protocols.

16

I have no comparison to say if this is VFM vs other district councils.

© 2021

Please provide any information to support your response to Q1: (Continued)

Page 110
10

Response No

Answer text

17

Based on just one band it is impossible to answer the question

19

The council are very good with some things and in some areas of the district but other areas seem to
get forgotten

20

It is such a surprisingly small amount for all the services the council provides

22

Our council tax rates are quite high and we don't feel that we get much for it, other than our bins
emptied.

© 2021

Please provide any information to support your response to Q1: (Continued)

Response No

Answer text

24

Allows holiday parks to operate as residential against licence agreements. Fails to collect council tax
from these residents and apparently supports parks that fail to close as ordered to do so despite it
being impossible to make anyone homeless on a holiday park as it’s not their main residence

Page 111
11

© 2021

Please provide any information to support your response to Q1: (Continued)

Page 112
12

Response No

Answer text

26

People living alone,elderly cannot afford such a high price, especially when money should be spent on
gritting the road and paths in Elm Green where there are elderly, disabled and vunerable people, I
myself cannot go out if it is icy as I break bones and I am sure the NHS are far too busy to deal with
falls, broken bones all due to not gritting this area. We see the gritting lorry go along the road at the
bottom of the Green so surely they could turn up to the Green. Wouldnt take much grit either but
could save falls, and people being confined indoors not even going to the shops . Disgusting

© 2021

What is your perception of Ryedale District Council and how well it does its job?
(N = 27)

1 - Very poor

26%

2 - Poor

15%

Page 113

3 - Neutral

26%

4 - Good

30%

5 - Excellent

4%

0%

13

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

© 2021

What is your opinion of the following council services over the last 12 months?

Response

Page 114

Household waste collection (green bin)
Garden waste (brown bin)
Kerbside recycling
Litter collection
Graffiti removal
Fly tipping

14

Satisfied

Dissatisfi
ed

No
opinion

Not used
in last 12
months

78%

19%

0%

4%

21

5

0

1

48%

11%

4%

37%

13

3

1

10

74%

15%

4%

11%

20

4

1

3

52%

26%

22%

4%

14

7

6

1

30%

0%

48%

22%

8

0

13

6

26%

30%

30%

19%

7

8

8

5

Uniqu
e
Respo
nses

Total
Respo
nses

27

27

27

27

27

28

27

28

27

27

27

28
© 2021

What is your opinion of the following council services over the last 12 months? (Continued)

Response

Page 115

Planning (planning applications and planning
policy)
Support for village halls
Play equipment maintenance
Arts and Culture
Economic Development (support to businesses
and tourists)

15

Satisfied

Dissatisfi
ed

No
opinion

Not used
in last 12
months

7%

33%

15%

44%

2

9

4

12

19%

7%

48%

26%

5

2

13

7

37%

4%

41%

19%

10

1

11

5

19%

7%

56%

19%

5

2

15

5

33%

22%

30%

19%

9

6

8

5

Uniqu
e
Respo
nses

Total
Respo
nses

27

27

27

27

27

27

27

27

27

28

© 2021

What is your opinion of the following council services over the last 12 months? (Continued)

Response

Page 116

Environmental health (including licensing, food
hygiene inspections, nuisance complaints, animal
welfare, private water supplies, pest control)
Benefits (housing benefits, council tax support)
Housing service (housing options advice,
homelessness, affordable housing)

Car parks

16

Satisfied

Dissatisfi
ed

No
opinion

Not used
in last 12
months

33%

11%

22%

37%

9

3

6

10

19%

19%

11%

52%

5

5

3

14

26%

0%

22%

52%

7

0

6

14

59%

15%

11%

15%

16

4

3

4

Uniqu
e
Respo
nses

Total
Respo
nses

27

28

27

27

27

27

27

27

© 2021

What is your opinion of the following council services over the last 12 months? (Continued)

Response

Page 117

Leisure facilities (swimming pools, leisure centres)
Community safety (including anti-social
behaviour, domestic abuse, alcohol awareness)
Public toilets
Artistic and cultural promotion (support to artistic
and cultural organisations)
Tourism (support to the tourism industry)

Satisfied

Dissatisfi
ed

No
opinion

Not used
in last 12
months

30%

30%

11%

30%

8

8

3

8

44%

7%

22%

26%

12

2

6

7

56%

11%

15%

19%

15

3

4

5

15%

11%

26%

48%

4

3

7

13

15%

15%

37%

33%

4

4

10

9

Uniqu
e
Respo
nses

Total
Respo
nses

27

27

27

27

27

27

27

27

27

27

Weighted Score: 0
17

© 2021

Please provide any information to support your response to Q4:

Page 118
18

Response No

Answer text

3

Think better street lighting in many areas would benefit health in winter and make it safer for people
to walk dogs etc and reduce anti social behaviour. Also might make more people pick up dog poo
when dark always more. Free parking for 2 hours even for locals would help local businesses. Reduced
parking for key workers great idea. People used to have to do community work as part of punishment
they could pick up litter and tidy verges etc

© 2021

Please provide any information to support your response to Q4: (Continued)

Page 119
19

Response No

Answer text

5

Leisure facilities are terrible! So under outdated and falling to pieces. A review and one central leisure
facility required in this new era of leisure

6

Our leisure centres are terrible! Spend some money on them

7

I think this year's system for who qualifies for council tax support, meant certain people lost out to
entitlement, that would of got support in the old system.

9

Fly tipping and litter an issue in my area. Have found myself cleaning the area after reports to the
council.

11

Stop wasting money an the arts and Milton rooms

© 2021

Please provide any information to support your response to Q4: (Continued)

Page 120
20

Response No

Answer text

12

I have no information about the performance of many of the activities of the Council

17

I strongly believe that the public toilet facilities should have a charge made for their use. The facilities
are always well maintained and this would bring in some income.

20

I am not entirely sure what the council actually provides under some of these questions

22

We no longer use the leisure services as the pool was so cold, the car park charges are expensive, the
recycling facilities are poor.

© 2021

Please provide any information to support your response to Q4: (Continued)

Page 121
21

Response No

Answer text

24

Council’s failure to follow its own rules on holiday parks and allowing places like spring willows to
operate as a part residential without the correct license, failing to collect council tax and failing to
force closure when they have stayed open throughout all lockdowns despite all holiday home owners
providing council tax bills for their main residence that does not exist meaning other holiday owners
face increased water and rates bills and the owners don’t care

© 2021

Do you agree that the Council should introduce or increase charges for discretionary services (e.g. garden waste, commercial waste, car
parking and pest control) to ensure the costs of these are recovered?
(N = 27)

Yes

26%

Page 122

No

59%

Unsure

15%

0%

22

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

© 2021

Please provide any information to support your response to Q6:

Page 123
23

Response No

Answer text

1

The costs need to be realistic , but not so high that people dump waste or fail to control pests.

2

at appropriate levels and against competitive offers to residents

3

Think everyone should have garden waste bins as part of council tax payment. Would be cheaper to
put on council tax payment and easier to collect. Would encourage more recycling of waste

© 2021

Please provide any information to support your response to Q6: (Continued)

Page 124
24

Response No

Answer text

7

No they should not charge for this, fly tipping is the worse it's ever been, surely it would be better to
charge extra for a collection on a rota basis, to collect items of size from villages etc, as they do for
bins, this would encourage people to use the service, surely that would work out cheaper rather than
collecting fly tipping,

9

Pest control increased significantly recently however, the other areas could be increased.

© 2021

Please provide any information to support your response to Q6: (Continued)

Page 125
25

Response No

Answer text

10

Charging too much for these services may result in additional costs if people start dumping material
etc. Pest control is a public good and helps to prevent disease by controlling rats etc.

11

Cambridge and West Yorkshire pay less rates than North Yorkshire

© 2021

Please provide any information to support your response to Q6: (Continued)

Page 126
26

Response No

Answer text

12

Garden Waste removal already high enough
Commercial Waste charges to be lower to avoid fly tipping. Fly tipping penalties to be increased
Car Parking charges about right
Pest Control - Initially minimal charges and with education for recipients. Charges to be increased for
repeat activity and action required as a result of community complaints.

© 2021

Please provide any information to support your response to Q6: (Continued)

Response No

Answer text
Garden waste should be free, car parking should be free. Pest control isn't free as far as I am aware,
why would this ever be free?

13

Page 127
27

You need to realise that charging more for commercial waste is just an indirect taxation of the working
man.
16

Likely to have unintended consequences so paper gain but real loss to the region

19

I think everything is expensive enough

© 2021

Please provide any information to support your response to Q6: (Continued)

Page 128
28

Response No

Answer text

20

I believe there should be charges for services that are fair and competitive and do not know if ensuring
full cost recovery would still achieve this however this would seem a sensible objective

22

The car parking is already expensive compared to the likes of Northallerton.

24

Should fine holiday parks for breach of license sack councillors who are turning a blind eye and charge
residents council tax

27

the costs are appropriate now

© 2021

Do you agree that the proposed limit is reasonable?
(N = 27)

Yes

63%

Page 129

No

33%

Unsure

4%

0%

29

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

© 2021

Do you have any comments about council tax levels in Ryedale?

Page 130
30

Response No

Answer text

2

Higher than the MCHLG average - why is this?

3

Some seem high compared to property values.

7

No they seem fair.

9

I feel they are very high compared to other areas of the country.

11

I live in a bungalow and I am paying more in council tax than my neighbour who live in 4 & 5 bedroom
houses. This cannnot be right

© 2021

Do you have any comments about council tax levels in Ryedale? (Continued)

Page 131

Response No

Answer text

12

My perception is that the council tax is far too high. This perception is based on my experiences with
what I see going on with council activity. Mainly I consider that it is over staffed and there is too little
or no emphasis on providing value for money. I also see that there is no shortage of money for capital
equipment such as having many refuse trucks and other vehicles.
Have wages gone up? NO

13
Why must you use this unjust tax to punish the working people.
16

31

No comparisons with other district councils

© 2021

Do you have any comments about council tax levels in Ryedale? (Continued)

Page 132
32

Response No

Answer text

19

I begrudge paying for council tax when my Town gets forgotten about

22

They're already high and the current economic environment means that households are struggling.

23

Should be frozen or cut during these difficult times.

© 2021

Do you have any comments about council tax levels in Ryedale? (Continued)

Page 133
33

Response No

Answer text

24

Do your job inspect holiday parks correctly and raise twice that amount without penalising residents
who always face increases especially after the last year it would be nice for people not to see a rise
considering they have been subsidising holiday park residents for years

26

Too high, especially for elderly living alone

© 2021

Overall, how satisfied or dissatisfied are you with the way Ryedale District Council runs the services we provide?
(N = 27)

1 - Very dissatisfied

19%

2 - Dissatisfied

22%

Page 134

3 - Neutral

26%

4 - Satisfied

19%

5 - Very satisfied

15%

0%

34

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

© 2021

Please provide any information to support your answer to Q10:

Page 135
35

Response No

Answer text

2

It is a tough gig

7

I am satisfied, but there is always room for lmprovement.

11

Bin collections ok but our road is dreadfull

12

I think my previous answers answer this question.

13

The recycling collection is a joke, provide proper bins.

© 2021

Please provide any information to support your answer to Q10: (Continued)

Page 136
36

Response No

Answer text

19

Our Town gets forgotten

22

We can't recycle what we want to at the kerbside. Instead, we have to go to the tip which isn't run by
Ryedale District Council.

26

Texample--bin men dont even put assisted bins back from where they get them from causing elderly
and infirm, some not able to walk properly without pain and in icy conditions

© 2021

Overall, how satisfied or dissatisfied are you with your local area as a place to live?
(N = 27)

1 - Very dissatisfied

0%

2 - Dissatisfied

0%

Page 137

3 - Neutral

26%

4 - Satisfied

11%

5 - Very satisfied

63%

0%

37

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

© 2021

Please provide any information to support your answer to Q12:

Page 138
38

Response No

Answer text

2

but the setting is more to do with that than the council!

7

Apart from odd litter, our area is good.

9

I love where I live. I love Ryedale but I think the expenditure needs looking at carefully to keep families
like us in the area. I don't want to leave but may be forced to with increasing council tax.

12

Its rather a sleepy backwater, which has the advantage of being a relatively safe environment, however
it is spoilt by the number of people who think its acceptable to take dogs into the town centre,
especially at busy times.

© 2021

Please provide any information to support your answer to Q12: (Continued)

Page 139
39

Response No

Answer text

13

I'm actually happy, but this has nothing to do with you lot, it's the people that make this place great.

19

Too many houses being built with no infradtructure to support them

26

The place is fine it's the comments on other issues relating to Elm Green

© 2021

Have you any further comments on the Ryedale District Council Budget and Council Tax levels for 2021/22?

Page 140
40

Response No

Answer text

7

No.

8

The council has no clear strategy to help people. Who knows what the council are really trying to
achieve, but it’s not helping the health and well-being of the residents. Leisure is so dated and facilities
are poor, outdoor spaces are bland and boring; there is nothing to retain or attract people. Spend
some money on the holistic health and well-being of people! Look at Scarborough council and see just
how much money they spend on leisure!

© 2021

Have you any further comments on the Ryedale District Council Budget and Council Tax levels for 2021/22? (Continued)

Page 141
41

Response No

Answer text

12

Please provide better information about how the council is actually performing with date and cost
figures so that a more accurate assessment of performance can be made.

13

Fix the roads.

23

Freeze or cut needed.

25

Council tax support should be inline with other councils in England.

© 2021

What can the Council do to help you more – especially as we cope with and recover from the effects of Coronavirus?

Page 142
42

Response No

Answer text

1

Continue to encourage compliance to keep Ryedale safe and maintain its reputation as a pleasant
place to live.

© 2021

What can the Council do to help you more – especially as we cope with and recover from the effects of Coronavirus?
(Continued)

Page 143
43

Response No

Answer text

3

Make more cycle paths or dual purpose paths for walking too in certain places where it is safer to cycle
on footpath instead of main road. Places to secure Bikes covered near town to make easier for people
to bike to work or school. Discount for pool and gym use to encourage more people to have better
health. Children need to learn to swim because they can do it all their lives.
Encourage local people to sign up to a Buddy service to help a local neighbour/person to shop, hospital
appointment, chat walk etc perhaps they could have some sort of local discount. Not just for older
people I am sure there are young mums etc that are new to the area too or hobbies groups. Would
match like-minded people to groups. Not necessarily on a weekly basis but when required or available
to volunteer.

© 2021

What can the Council do to help you more – especially as we cope with and recover from the effects of Coronavirus?
(Continued)

Page 144
44

Response No

Answer text

5

Support health and well-being and mental health through sport and leisure

7

I think be as helpful with imfomation, so every household know there entitlement.

9

Freeze council tax for 2021/22. So many people have lost their jobs and are struggling financially, is a
price increase really necessary right now?

11

Stop all councillors from pay rises and suggest our local councillors do more for local people .
Stop giving money to the arts. We can live without arts and cinema s but we cannot live without food.

© 2021

What can the Council do to help you more – especially as we cope with and recover from the effects of Coronavirus?
(Continued)

Page 145
45

Response No

Answer text

12

I am fortunate that I don't need anymore help.
I did see vacancies at the Council for Covid wardens recently. I am keen to understand what impact the
new employees have had.

13

Fix the roads.

Councillors be more collaborative with each other and avoid point scoring.
16

I was appalled at the infighting & lack of accurate fact based comments at the last RDC meeting - this
behaviour significantly undermined my opinion of the council.
Conversely I have been impressed with officers - response to covid, business, climate & waste mgmt.

© 2021

What can the Council do to help you more – especially as we cope with and recover from the effects of Coronavirus?
(Continued)

Page 146
46

Response No

Answer text

19

Stop building houses in our Town. Provide services like gritting of footpaths in Town

22

Be effective and deliver the key services well.

23

Freeze or cut council tax

24

Ensure everyone is paying their way and make the camps pay the correct amount for residential
pitches

26

Clear the road and paths when snow and ice appear, reduce council tax for single occupants

© 2021

Which of the following towns do you live in or closest to?
(N = 26)

Helmsley

8%

Kirkbymoorside

12%

Page 147

Malton

50%

Norton

19%

Pickering

19%

0%

47

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

© 2021

Are you responding as a...?
(N = 27)

Resident

96%

Page 148

Business

4%

Voluntary organisation

4%

Stakeholder group

0%

Prefer not to say

4%

0%

48

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

© 2021

Agenda Item 11

REPORT TO:

FULL COUNCIL

DATE:

18 FEBRUARY 2021

SUBJECT:

PART ‘B’ REFERRALS FROM POLICY AND RESOURCES
COMMITTEE ON 4 FEBRUARY 2021

35

Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Annual Investment Strategy
2021/22

Considered – report of the Chief Finance Officer (s.151)
Recommendation
That Council is recommended to approve:
(i)

Members receive this report;

(ii)

The Operational Borrowing Limit for 2021/22 is set at £7m;

(iii)

The Authorised Borrowing Limit for 2021/22 is set at £12.5m;

(iv)

Councillors delegate authority to the Chief Finance Officer to effect movement within
the agreed authorised boundary limits for long-term borrowing for 2021/22 onwards.

(v)

Councillors delegate authority to the Chief Finance Officer to effect movement within
the agreed operational boundary limits for long-term borrowing for 2021/22 onwards.

(vi)

The treasury management strategy statement 2021/22 be approved.

(vii)

The minimum revenue provision policy statement for 2021/22 be approved.

(viii)

The treasury management investment strategy for 2021/22 be approved.

(ix)

The prudential indicators for 2021/22 which reflect the capital expenditure plans
which are affordable, prudent and sustainable be approved.

(x)

The Capital Strategy for 2021/22 be approved.

Voting record
Unanimous

Council

Page 149

18 February 2021

This page is intentionally left blank

PART B:

RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL

REPORT TO:

POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEEE

DATE:

4 FEBRUARY 2021

REPORT OF THE:

CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER (s151)
ANTON HODGE

TITLE OF REPORT:

TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT AND
ANNUAL INVESTMENT STRATEGY 2021/22

WARDS AFFECTED:

ALL

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
1.0

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1

To consider the Treasury Management, Annual Investment and Capital Strategies, the
Minimum Revenue Provision Policy and Prudential Indicators for 2021/22, as required
by the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government and CIPFA (as
updated 2017)..

2.0

RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1

That Council is recommended to approve:
(i)
Members receive this report;
(ii)

The Operational Borrowing Limit for 2021/22 is set at £7m;

(iii)

The Authorised Borrowing Limit for 2021/22 is set at £12.5m;

(iv)

Councillors delegate authority to the Chief Finance Officer to effect movement
within the agreed authorised boundary limits for long-term borrowing for
2021/22 onwards.

(v)

Councillors delegate authority to the Chief Finance Officer to effect movement
within the agreed operational boundary limits for long-term borrowing for
2021/22 onwards.

(vi)

The treasury management strategy statement 2021/22 be approved.

(vii)

The minimum revenue provision policy statement for 2021/22 be approved.

(viii)

The treasury management investment strategy for 2021/22 be approved.

COUNCIL

Page 151
OFFICIAL

18 FEBRUARY 2021

(ix)

The prudential indicators for 2021/22 which reflect the capital expenditure plans
which are affordable, prudent and sustainable be approved.

(x)

The Capital Strategy for 2021/22 be approved

3.0

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

3.1

To ensure the Council’s Treasury Management Strategy and association policies are
prudent and affordable.

4.0

SIGNIFICANT RISKS

4.1

There are significant risks when investing public funds especially with unknown
institutions. However, by the adoption of the CIPFA Code and a prudent investment
policy, these are minimised. The employment of Treasury Advisors also helps reduce
the risk.

5.0

POLICY CONTEXT AND CONSULTATION

5.1

The Council has adopted the CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management in
Local Authorities and this report complies with the requirements under this code and
the relevant requirements of the Local Government Act 2003.

5.2

The Council use the services of Link Asset Services to provide treasury management
information and advice.

REPORT
6.0

REPORT DETAILS

6.1

TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT 2021/22

6.1.1 The Council is required to operate a balanced budget, which broadly means that cash
raised during the year will meet cash expenditure. Part of the treasury management
operation is to ensure that this cash flow is adequately planned, with cash being
available when it is needed. Surplus monies are invested in low risk counterparties or
instruments commensurate with the Council’s low risk appetite, providing adequate
liquidity initially before considering investment return.
6.1.2 The second main function of the treasury management service is the funding of the
Council’s capital plans. These capital plans provide a guide to the borrowing need of
the Council, essentially the longer term cash flow planning to ensure that the Council
can meet its capital spending obligations. This management of longer term cash may
involve arranging long or short term loans, or using longer term cash flow surpluses.
On occasion any debt previously drawn may be restructured to meet Council risk or
cost objectives.
6.1.3 The contribution the treasury management function makes to the authority is critical,
as the balance of debt and investment operations ensure liquidity or the ability to meet
spending commitments as they fall due, either on day-to-day revenue or for larger
capital projects. The treasury operations will see a balance of the interest costs of debt
and the investment income arising from cash deposits affecting the available budget.
COUNCIL

Page 152
OFFICIAL

18 FEBRUARY 2021

Since cash balances generally result from reserves and balances, it is paramount to
ensure adequate security of the sums invested, as a loss of principal will in effect result
in a loss to the General Fund Balance.

6.1.4 CIPFA defines treasury management as:
”The management of the local authority’s investments and cash flows, its banking,
money market and capital market transactions; the effective control of the risks
associated with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance consistent
with those risks.”
Reporting Requirements
6.1.5 Revised reporting was required from the 2020/21 reporting cycle due to revisions of
the MHCLG Investment Guidance, the MHCLG Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP)
Guidance, the CIPFA Prudential Code and the CIPFA Treasury Management Code.
The primary reporting changes include the introduction of a capital strategy, to
provide a longer-term focus to the capital plans, and greater reporting requirements
surrounding any commercial activity undertaken under the Localism Act 2011.
6.1.6

Capital Strategy
The CIPFA revised 2017 Prudential and Treasury Management Codes requires all
local authorities to prepare a capital strategy report, which will provide the following:
 a high-level long term overview of how capital expenditure, capital financing
and treasury management activity contribute to the provision of services
 an overview of how the associated risk is managed
 the implications for future financial sustainability
The aim of this capital strategy is to ensure that all elected members on the full
council fully understand the overall long-term policy objectives and resulting capital
strategy requirements, governance procedures and risk appetite.

6.1.7

Treasury Management Reporting
The Council is required to receive and approve, as a minimum, three main reports each
year, which incorporate a variety of policies, estimates and actuals. These reports are
required to be adequately scrutinised by committee before being recommended to the
Council. This role is undertaken by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee.
Prudential and Treasury Indicators and Treasury Strategy (this report) – The first
and most important report covers:
 The capital plans (including prudential indicators);
 A Minimum Revenue Provision Policy (how residual capital expenditure is charged
to revenue over time);
 The Treasury Management Strategy (how the investments and borrowings are to
be organised) including treasury indicators; and
 An investment strategy (the parameters on how investments are to be managed).

COUNCIL

Page 153
OFFICIAL

18 FEBRUARY 2021

A Mid Year Treasury Management Report. This will update members with the
progress of the capital position, amending prudential indicators as necessary, and
whether the treasury strategy or whether any policies require revision.
An Annual Treasury Report. This provides details of a selection of actual prudential
treasury indicators and actual treasury operations compared to the estimates within
the strategy.
Treasury Management Strategy for 2021/22
6.1.8 The strategy for 2021/22 covers two main areas
Capital Issues
 The capital plans and prudential indicators
 The MRP strategy
Treasury Management Issues
 The current treasury position;
 Treasury indicators which will limit the treasury risk and activities of the Council;
 Prospects for interest rates;
 The borrowing strategy;
 Policy on borrowing in advance of need;
 The investment strategy; and
 Creditworthiness policy.
These elements cover the requirements of the Local Government Act 2003, the CIPFA
Prudential Code, the CLG MRP Guidance, the CIPFA Treasury Management Code
and the CLG Investment Guidance.
6.1.9 Training
The CIPFA Code requires the Chief Finance Officer to ensure that members with
responsibility for treasury management, particularly those with responsibility for
scrutiny, receive adequate training in treasury management. Training has been
provided to members by Link Asset Services and further training will be arranged as
required.
6.1.10 Treasury Management Consultants
The Council uses Link Asset Services, Treasury Solutions as it external treasury
management advisors.
The Council recognises that responsibility for treasury management decisions remains
with the organisation at all times and will ensure that undue reliance is not placed upon
the services of our external service providers. All decisions will be undertaken with
regards to all available information, including, but not solely, our treasury advisers.
It also recognises that there is value in employing external providers of treasury
management services in order to acquire access to specialist skills and resources. The
Council will ensure that the terms of their appointment and the methods by which their
value will be assessed are properly agreed and documented, and subjected to regular
review.

COUNCIL

Page 154
OFFICIAL

18 FEBRUARY 2021

6.1.11 Treasury Management Function & Sweeping Arrangements
Included within the service level agreement which is currently being finalised with
North Yorkshire County Council (NYCC) for the provision on s151 Officer and Finance
services, there is provision for treasury management support.
Reporting and monitoring processes are already in place, along with day to day support
for treasury activities. It has previously been reported that discussions were underway
between the Authorities’ respective banks exploring the technical feasibility for Ryedale
District Council to join NYCC’s investment pool, and that prior to implementing such
arrangements Ryedale District Council would be asked to formally adopt the
Investment Strategy of NYCC.
Following on-going discussions, a solution for automated balances sweeping between
banks has not been identified at present, although opportunities will continue to be
investigated. It is therefore not proposed within the 2021/22 Investment strategy to
adopt that of NYCC.
6.2

THE CAPITAL PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS 2021/22 – 2023/24
Introduction

6.2.1 The ‘Prudential Code’ provides Council’s with a regime of self-regulation for borrowing
money for capital purposes. A local authority can borrow as much as it wishes as long
as it can afford the repayments. The Code outlines four key objectives relating to the
capital investment plans and treasury management procedures of local authorities. To
demonstrate that these objectives are being fulfilled the Prudential Code sets out the
indicators that must be used, and the factors that must be taken into account.
6.2.2 The Code prescribes how the issue of affordability is measured using a set of
prudential indicators. The four key objectives of the Code are to ensure that capital
investment plans of local authorities are affordable, prudent and sustainable, and to
ensure that treasury management decisions are taken in accordance with good
professional practice. The indicators are mandatory but the figures used in the
calculations are a matter for each local authority.
6.2.3 The prudential indicators required by the Code are designed to support and record
local decision-making. They are not designed to be comparative performance
indicators and the use of them in this way would be likely to be misleading and counterproductive.
6.2.4 The Council’s capital expenditure plans are the key driver of treasury management
activity. The output of the capital expenditure plans are reflected in prudential
indicators, which are designed to assist members’ overview and confirm capital
expenditure plans.
Capital Expenditure.
6.2.5 This prudential indicator is a summary of the Council’s capital expenditure plans, both
those agreed previously, and those forming part of this budget cycle. These are
currently based draft estimates and final budget proposals will be updated prior to
Council approval.

COUNCIL

Page 155
OFFICIAL

18 FEBRUARY 2021

Table 1: Capital Expenditure

Capital Expenditure
General Fund
Commercial Activites /
Non Financial
Investments
Total

2019/20

2020/21

2021/22

2022/23

2023/24

Actual

Estimate

Estimate

Estimate

Estimate

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

1,163

3,328

7,062

4,176

701

0

0

0

0

0

1,163

3,328

7,062

4,176

701

The above financing need excludes other long term liabilities, such as PFI and leasing
arrangements which already include borrowing instruments.
Table 2: Financing of Capital Expenditure
6.2.6

The table below summarises the above capital expenditure plans and how these plans
are being financed by capital or revenue resources. Any shortfall of resources results
in a funding need (borrowing):
2019/20
Capital Expenditure

2020/21

2021/22

2022/23

2023/24

Est.

Est.

Est.

Est.

Est.

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

General Fund

1,163

3,328

7,062

4,176

701

Total

1,163

3,328

7,062

4,176

701

-552

-1,688

-4,616

-1,166

-160

-21

0

0

0

0

-590

-272

-320

-820

0

Borrowing - Leases

0

-1,173

-972

-1,454

-496

Net Financing Need

0

195

1,153

736

45

Financed By:
Revenue & Reserves
Capital Receipts
Grants

The Council’s Borrowing Need (the Capital Financing Requirement)
6.2.7 The second prudential indicator is the Council’s Capital Financing Requirement (CFR).
The CFR is simply the total historic outstanding capital expenditure which has not yet
been paid for from either revenue or capital resources. It is essentially a measure of
the Council’s underlying borrowing need. Any capital expenditure above, which has
not immediately been paid for, will increase the CFR.
6.2.8

The CFR does not increase indefinitely, as the minimum revenue provision (MRP) is
a statutory annual revenue charge which broadly reduces the borrowing need in line
with each assets life. The Council is asked to approve the CFR projections below:

COUNCIL

Page 156
OFFICIAL

18 FEBRUARY 2021

Table 3: Capital Financing Requirement

CFR General Fund
CFR GF Leases
CFR Commercial / Nonfinancial investments
Total CFR
Movement in CFR

2019/20
Est.
£000
1,589
113

2020/21
Est.
£000
1,553
220

2021/22
Est.
£000
1,518
1,146

2022/23
Est.
£000
1,483
1,656

2023/24
Estimate
£'000

0

0

0

0

0

1,702
-162

1,774
72

2,664
890

3,139
475

2,888
-250

0

195

1,153

736

45

-162

-123

-263

-261

-295

-162

72

890

475

-250

1,447
1,441

Movement in CFR represented by:Net Financing need for the
year
Less MRP & Other
Financing movements
Movement in CFR

6.2.9 The CFR includes any other long term liabilities (e.g. finance leases) brought onto the
balance sheet. Whilst this increases the CFR, and therefore the Council’s borrowing
requirement, these types of scheme include a borrowing facility and so the Council is
not required to separately borrow for these schemes. These are also shown in Table
3.
Affordability Prudential Indicators
6.2.10 The previous sections cover the overall capital and control of borrowing prudential
indicators, but within this framework prudential indicators are required to assess the
affordability of the capital investment plans. These provide an indication of the impact
of the capital investment plans on the Council’s overall finances. The Council is asked
to approve the following indicator:
6.2.11 The indicator of actual and estimates of the ratio of financing costs to net revenue
stream identifies the trend in the cost of capital (borrowing and other long term
obligation costs net of investment income) against the net revenue stream. These are
shown in Table 4. The estimates of financing costs include current commitments and
the proposals in this report.
Table 4: Ratio of Financing Costs to Net Revenue Stream

General Fund

COUNCIL

2019/20

2020/21

2021/22

2022/23

2023/24

Actual

Est.

Est.

Est.

Est.

%

%

%

%

%

-0.42

0.45

Page 157
OFFICIAL

3.40

4.22

4.69

18 FEBRUARY 2021

6.3

MINIMUM REVENUE PROVISION POLICY STATEMENT 2021/22
Introduction

6.3.1 The Council is required to pay off an element of the accumulated General Fund capital
spend each year (the CFR) through a revenue charge (the minimum revenue provision
– MRP), although it is also allowed to undertake additional voluntary payments if
required (voluntary revenue provision – VRP).
MHCLG Regulations have been issued which require the full Council to approve an
MRP Policy Statement in advance of each year. A variety of options are provided to
councils so long as there is a prudent provision. The Council is recommended to
approve the following MRP Statement.
Minimum Revenue Provision Policy
6.3.2 The Council’s MRP policy is based on the Governments Statutory Guidance and
following a review no further changes are considered necessary and the policy for
2021/22 is therefore as follows:
(a) For all Capital expenditure incurred before 1 April 2008 which formed the
General Fund Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) that is capital expenditure
funded through borrowing will be charged at 4% of the outstanding balance each
year.
(b) From 1 April 2018 for all unsupported borrowing (including PFI and finance
leases) the MRP policy will be either:




Asset life method – MRP will be based on the estimated life of the assets, in
accordance with the regulations (this option must be applied for any
expenditure capitalised under a Capitalisation Direction) (option 3);
Depreciation method – MRP will follow standard depreciation accounting
procedures (option 4);

These options provide for a reduction in the borrowing need over approximately the
asset’s life
Total MRP for 2021/22 is estimated at £0.262m, (£0.035m internal borrowing, and
£0.227m for leases).
6.3.3 MRP Overpayments - A change introduced by the revised MHCLG MRP Guidance
was the allowance that any charges made over the statutory minimum revenue
provision (MRP), voluntary revenue provision or overpayments (VRP), can, if needed,
be reclaimed in later years if deemed necessary or prudent. In order for these sums
to be reclaimed for use in the budget, this policy must disclose the cumulative
overpayment made each year. At present there are no plans to make voluntary
revenue provisions (VRP).
6.4

BORROWING STRATEGY 2021/22

6.4.1 The capital expenditure plans provide details of the service activity of the Council. The
treasury management function ensures that the Council’s cash is organised in
accordance with the relevant professional codes, so that sufficient cash is available to
meet the service activity. This will involve both the organisation of the cash flow and,
COUNCIL

Page 158
OFFICIAL

18 FEBRUARY 2021

where capital plans require, the organisation of appropriate borrowing facilities. The
strategy covers the relevant treasury / prudential indicators, the current and projected
debt positions and the annual investment strategy.
6.4.2 The Council’s treasury portfolio position at 31 December 2020, is shown in Table 1.
Table 1: Current Treasury Portfolio at 31/12/20

Fixed rate funding

PWLB
Market

Principal
£m
1.5
0.0

Variable rate funding

PWLB
Market

0.0
0.0

Leases

0.1

Other long term liabilities
Total Debt
Total Investments

£m

Ave. Rate
%

0.0

0

1.6

4.19

31.0

0.49

6.4.3 Forward projections are summarised in Table 2. The table shows the actual external
borrowing (the treasury management operations), against the capital borrowing need
(the Capital Financing Requirement - CFR), highlighting any over or under borrowing.
Table 2: Forecasted Portfolio Position

External Borrowing
Borrowing at 1 April
Expected Change in Borrowing
Leases
Actual Borrowing at 31 March
CFR - the borrowing need
Under / (over) borrowing
Investments
Total Investments
Investment Change
Net Borrowing

2020/21
F'cast
£000

2021/22
F'cast
£000

2022/23
F'cast
£000

2023/24
F'cast
£000

1,434
-39
220
1,615
1,774
159

1,395
-39
1,146
2,501
2,664
163

1,355
-39
1,656
2,972
3,139
167

1,316
-39
1,441
2,717
2,888
171

18,867
-2,730
-17,252

12,011
-6,856
-9,510

10,080
-1,931
-7,108

10,196
116
-7,478

Treasury Limits for 2021/22 to 2023/24
6.4.5 Ryedale District Council has, at any point in time, a number of cash flows both positive
and negative, and manages its treasury position in terms of its borrowings and
investments in accordance with its approved treasury management strategy and
practices. In day-to-day cash management, no distinction can be made between
revenue and capital cash. External borrowing arises as a consequence of all the
financial transactions of the authority and not simply those arising from capital
spending
COUNCIL

Page 159
OFFICIAL

18 FEBRUARY 2021

6.4.6 CIPFA’s Prudential code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities’ includes the following
key indicator of prudence;
“In order to ensure that over the medium term net borrowing will only be for a capital
purpose, the local authority should ensure that net external borrowing does not, except
in the short term, exceed the total of capital financing requirement in the preceding
year plus the estimates of any additional capital financing requirement for the current
and the next two financial years.”
6.4.7 The Chief Finance Officer reports that the authority had no difficulty meeting this
requirement in 2019/20, nor are any difficulties envisaged for the current (2020/21) or
future years (2022/23 – 2023/24). This view takes into account current commitments,
existing plans and the proposals in the budget.
6.4.8 The Council must have regard to the Prudential Code when setting the Authorised
Limit, which essentially requires it to ensure that total capital investment remains within
sustainable limits and, in particular, that the impact upon its future council tax levels is
‘acceptable’. It reflects the level of external borrowing which, while not desired, could
be afforded in the short term, but is not sustainable in the longer term.
6.4.9 Whilst termed an “Affordable Borrowing Limit”, it incorporates the capital plans to be
considered for inclusion in corporate financing by both external borrowing and other
forms of liability, such as credit arrangements.
6.4.10 The Authorised Limit for external borrowing is a key prudential indicator and represents
a control on the maximum level of borrowing. It is a limit beyond which external
borrowing is prohibited, and this limit needs to be set or revised by the full Council on
a rolling basis, for the forthcoming financial year and two successive financial years.
This information is shown in table 3.
Table 3: Authorised Borrowing Limit
Authorised Limit

Debt
Other long term liabilities
Total

2020/21
Estimate
£’000
10,000
1,000
11,000

2021/22
Estimate
£’000
10,000
2,500
12,500

2022/23
Estimate
£’000
10,000
2,500
12,500

2023/24
Estimate
£’000
10,000
2,500
12,500

6.4.11 The Operational Boundary is the limit beyond which external borrowing is not normally
expected to exceed and within which officers will manage the Council’s external debt
position. In most cases, this would be a similar figure to the CFR, but may be lower or
higher depending on the levels of actual borrowing. This information is shown in table
4.
Table 4: Operational Borrowing Limit
Operational Boundary

Debt
Other long term liabilities
Total

COUNCIL

2020/21
Estimate
£’000
5,000
600
5,600

Page 160
OFFICIAL

2021/22
Estimate
£’000
5,000
2,000
7,000

2022/23
Estimate
£’000
5,000
2,000
7,000

2023/24
Estimate
£’000
5,000
2,000
7,000

18 FEBRUARY 2021

6.4.12 In respect of its external debt, table 3 details the proposed authorised limits for the
Council’s total external debt gross of investments for the next three financial years
which councillors are recommended to approve. These limits separately identify
borrowing from other long-term liabilities such as finance leases. It is also
recommended that members continue to delegate authority to the Chief Finance
Officer, within the total limit for any individual year, to effect movement between the
separately agreed limits for borrowing and other long term liabilities. Any such changes
made will be reported to Overview & Scrutiny Committee at its next meeting following
the change.
6.4.13 The Chief Finance Officer reports that these authorised limits are consistent with the
authority’s current commitments, existing plans and the proposals in the budget for
capital expenditure and financing, and with its approved treasury management policy
statement and practices. The Chief Finance Officer confirms that they are based on
the estimate of the most likely, prudent but not worst-case scenario, with sufficient
headroom over and above this to allow for operational management, for example
unusual cash movements. Risk analysis and risk management strategies have been
taken into account; as have plans for capital expenditure, estimates of the capital
financing requirement and estimates of cash flow requirements for all purposes.
Prospects for Interest Rates
6.4.13 The Council has appointed Link Asset Services as its treasury advisor and part of their
service is to assist the Council to formulate a view on interest rates. Annex 1 draws
together a number of current city forecasts for short term (bank rate) and longer fixed
interest rates. Table 5 gives the Link central view.
Table 5: Link View interest rate forecast – January 2021

Link Group Interest Rate View

9.11.20

These Link forecasts have been amended for the reduction in PWLB margins by 1.0% from 26.11.20

BANK RATE

Dec-20

Mar-21

Jun-21

Sep-21

Dec-21

Mar-22

Jun-22

Sep-22

Dec-22

Mar-23

Jun-23 Sep-23 Dec-23 Mar-24

0.10

0.10

0.10

0.10

0.10

0.10

0.10

0.10

0.10

0.10

0.10

0.10

0.10

0.10

3 month ave earnings

0.10

0.10

0.10

0.10

0.10

0.10

0.10

0.10

0.10

0.10

0.10

0.10

0.10

0.10

6 month ave earnings

0.10

0.10

0.10

0.10

0.10

0.10

0.10

0.10

0.10

0.10

0.10

0.10

0.10

0.10

12 month ave earnings

0.20

0.20

0.20

0.20

0.20

0.20

0.20

0.20

0.20

0.20

0.20

0.20

0.20

0.20

5 yr PWLB

0.80

0.80

0.80

0.80

0.80

0.90

0.90

0.90

0.90

0.90

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

10 yr PWLB

1.10

1.10

1.10

1.10

1.10

1.20

1.20

1.20

1.20

1.20

1.30

1.30

1.30

1.30

25 yr PWLB

1.50

1.50

1.60

1.60

1.60

1.60

1.70

1.70

1.70

1.70

1.80

1.80

1.80

1.80

50 yr PWLB

1.30

1.30

1.40

1.40

1.40

1.40

1.50

1.50

1.50

1.50

1.60

1.60

1.60

1.60

Borrowing Requirement
6.4.14 The Council is currently forecasting a marginally under-borrowed position in 2020/21. This
means that the Council’s capital borrowing is lower than the underlying need to borrow. As
a result of the capital expenditure plans set out in 6.2.2, Table 1 the Council is expected to
be maintain an under-borrowed position from 2021/22 onwards as shown in Table 6 below.
This is a prudent strategy as investment returns are low and counterparty risk is relatively
high – this approach will be carefully monitored during 2021/22.
COUNCIL

Page 161
OFFICIAL

18 FEBRUARY 2021

Table 5: Borrowing Position

Under / (Over) Borrowing
External Debt
GF Ext Borrowing
Capital Financing Requirement
Under / (Over) Borrowing

2020/21
£000

2021/22
£000

2022/23
£000

2023/24
£000

1,395

1,355

1,316

1,276

1,553
159

1,518
163

1,483
167

1,447
171

* The table above excludes leases from the under / over borrowed position, unlike table 2
– Forecasted Portfolio Position.
6.4.15 Against this background and the risks within the economic forecast, caution will be
adopted with the 2021/22 treasury operations. The Chief Finance Officer will monitor
interest rates in financial markets and adopt a pragmatic approach to changing
circumstances.
6.4.16 The current capital programme funding forecasts for 2021/22 to 2023/24 shows there
is currently no borrowing requirement. However, borrowing needs will be reviewed as
the capital programmes are confirmed. Any decisions will be reported to Overview &
Scrutiny committee at the next available opportunity.
Treasury Management Limits on Activity
6.4.17 There are three debt related treasury activity limits. The purpose of these are to restrain
the activity of the treasury function within certain limits, thereby managing risk and
reducing the impact of any adverse movement in interest rates. However, if these are
set to be too restrictive they will impair the opportunities to reduce costs / improve
performance. The indicators are:
 Upper limits on variable interest rate exposure. This identifies a maximum limit for
variable interest rates;
 Upper limits on fixed interest rate exposure. This is similar to the previous indicator
and covers a maximum limit on fixed interest rates;
 Maturity structure of borrowing. These gross limits are set to reduce the Council’s
exposure to large fixed rate sums falling due for refinancing, and are required for
upper and lower limits.
The Council is asked to approve the following treasury indicators and limits:
%
Interest Rates Exposure
Borrowing:
Limits on fixed interest rates
Limits on variable interest rates
Investments:
Limits on fixed interest rates
Limits on variable interest rates
Maturity Structure New Borrowing 2020/21
Under 12 months
12 Months and within 2 Years
2 Years and within 5 Years

COUNCIL

Page 162
OFFICIAL

2020/21
£’000
Upper

2021/22
£’000
Upper

2022/23
£’000
Upper

100%
5%

100%
5%

100%
5%

100%
50%

100%
50%

100%
50%

Lower
0%
0%
0%

Upper
20%
20%
50%

18 FEBRUARY 2021

5 Years and within 10 Years
10 Years and within 15 Years
15 Years and over

0%
0%
90%

50%
50%
20%

Policy on Borrowing in Advance of Need
6.4.18 The Council will not borrow more than or in advance of its needs purely in order to
profit from the investment of the extra sums borrowed. Any decision to borrow in
advance will be within forward approved Capital Financing Requirement estimates,
and will be considered carefully to ensure that value for money can be demonstrated
and that the Council can ensure the security of such funds.

6.5

ANNUAL INVESTMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT 2021/22
Investment Policy – management of risk

6.5.1 The MHCLG and CIPFA have extended the meaning of ‘investments’ to include both
financial and non-financial investments. This report deals solely with financial
investments, (as managed by the treasury management team). Non-financial
investments, essentially the purchase of income yielding assets, are covered in the
Capital Strategy
6.5.2 NYCC Pooling Arrangements

6.5.2

The Council’s investment policy has regard to the following:  MHCLG’s Guidance on Local Government Investments (“the Guidance”);
 CIPFA Treasury Management in Public Services Code of Practice and Cross
Sectoral Guidance Notes 2017 (“the Code”); and
 CIPFA Treasury Management Guidance Notes 2018.
The Council’s investment priorities will be security first, portfolio liquidity second and
then yield, (return).

6.5.3

The above guidance from the MHCLG and CIPFA place a high priority on the
management of risk. The Council has adopted a prudent approach to managing risk
and defines its risk appetite by the following means: a) minimum acceptable credit criteria are applied in order to generate a list of
highly creditworthy counterparties. This also enables diversification and thus
avoidance of concentration risk. The key ratings used to monitor
counterparties are the short term and long-term ratings;
b) other information: ratings will not be the sole determinant of the quality of an
institution; it is important to continually assess and monitor the financial sector
on both a micro and macro basis and in relation to the economic and political
environments in which institutions operate. The assessment will also take
account of information that reflects the opinion of the markets. To achieve this
consideration, the Council will engage with its advisors to maintain a monitor
on market pricing such as “credit default swaps” and overlay that information
on top of the credit ratings;

COUNCIL

Page 163
OFFICIAL

18 FEBRUARY 2021

c) other information sources used will include the financial press, share price
and other such information pertaining to the financial sector in order to
establish the most robust scrutiny process on the suitability of potential
investment counterparties;
d) the Council has defined the list of types of investment instruments that the
treasury management team are authorised to use: Specified investments are those with a high level of credit quality
and subject to a maturity limit of one year.
 Non-specified investments are those with less high credit quality,
may be for periods in excess of one year, and/or are more complex
instruments which require greater consideration by members and
officers before being authorised for use. Once an investment is
classed as non-specified, it remains non-specified all the way through
to maturity i.e. an 18 month deposit would still be non-specified even if
it has only 11 months left until maturity.
e) Non-specified investments limit. The Council has determined that it will
limit the maximum total exposure to non-specified investments as being 20%
of the total investment portfolio, (£4m);
f)

Lending limits, (amounts and maturity), for each counterparty will be set;

g) the Council will set a limit for the amount of its investments which are
invested for longer than 365 days;
h) investments will only be placed with counterparties from countries with a
specified minimum sovereign rating;
i)

the Council has engaged external consultants, to provide expert advice on
how to optimise an appropriate balance of security, liquidity and yield, given
the risk appetite of the Council in the context of the expected level of cash
balances and need for liquidity throughout the year;

j)

all investments will be denominated in sterling; and

k) as a result of the change in accounting standards for 2020/21 under IFRS 9,
the Council will consider the implications of investment instruments which
could result in an adverse movement in the value of the amount invested and
resultant charges at the end of the year to the General Fund. (In November
2018, the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government,
[MHCLG], concluded a consultation for a temporary override to allow English
local authorities time to adjust their portfolio of all pooled investments by
announcing a statutory override to delay implementation of IFRS 9 for five
years ending 31.3.23)
6.5.4 However, the Council will also pursue value for money in treasury management and
will monitor the yield from investment income against appropriate benchmarks for
investment performance. Regular monitoring of investment performance will be carried
out during the year.
Changes in risk management policy from last year
COUNCIL

Page 164
OFFICIAL

18 FEBRUARY 2021

6.5.5 The above criteria are unchanged from last year.
Credit Worthiness Policy – Security of Capital and use of credit ratings
6.5.6 This Council applies the creditworthiness service provided by Link Asset Services
(Sector). This service employs a sophisticated modelling approach utilising credit
ratings from all three main credit rating agencies - Fitch, Moodys and Standard and
Poors. The credit ratings of counterparties are supplemented with the following
overlays:
 Credit watches and credit outlooks from credit rating agencies;
 CDS spreads to give early warning of likely changes in credit ratings;
 Sovereign ratings to select counterparties from only the most creditworthy countries.
(a)

This modelling approach combines credit ratings, credit watches, and credit
outlooks in a weighted scoring system which is then combined with an overlay
of CDS spreads for which the end product is a series of colour code bands,
which indicate the relative creditworthiness of counterparties. These colour
codes are also used by the Council to determine the duration for investments.
The Council will therefore use the counterparties within the following durational
bands:

Colour
Yellow
Purple
Orange
Blue
Red
Green
No Colour

Maximum Investment Duration
5 Years
2 Years
1 Year
1 Year (UK nationalised / semi nationalised banks only)
6 Months
100 Days
No investments to be made

6.5.7 The Link Asset Services creditworthiness service uses a wider array of information
than just primary ratings and by using a risk weighted scoring system, does not give
undue preponderance to just one agency ratings. Furthermore, by using a risk
weighted scoring system, it does not give undue preponderance to just one agency’s
ratings.
6.5.8 Typically the minimum credit ratings criteria the Council use will be a short term rating
(Fitch or equivalents) of Short Term rating F1, Long Term rating A-. There may be
occasions when the counterparty ratings from one rating agency are marginally lower
than these ratings but may still be used. In these, instances consideration will be given
to the whole range of ratings available, or other topical market information, to support
their use.
6.5.9 All credit ratings will be monitored daily. The Council is alerted to changes to ratings of
all three agencies through its use of the Link Asset Services creditworthiness service.
 If a downgrade results in the counterparty / investment scheme no longer meeting
the Council’s minimum criteria, its further use as a new investment will be with drawn
immediately;
 In addition to the use of credit ratings the Council will be advised of information in
COUNCIL

Page 165
OFFICIAL

18 FEBRUARY 2021

movements in Credit Default Swap against the iTraxx benchmark and other market
data on a weekly basis. Extreme market movements may result in downgrade of an
institution or removal from the lending list.
6.5.10 Sole reliance will not be placed on the use of this external service. In addition this
Council will also use market data and market information, information on government
support for banks and the credit ratings of that government support.
UK Banks – Ring-fencing
6.5.11 The largest UK banks, (those with more than £25bn of retail / Small and Medium-sized
Enterprise (SME) deposits), are required, by UK law, to separate core retail banking
services from their investment and international banking activities by 1st January 2019.
This is known as “ring-fencing”. Whilst smaller banks with less than £25bn in deposits
are exempt, they can choose to opt up. Several banks are very close to the threshold
already and so may come into scope in the future regardless.
6.5.12 Ring-fencing is a regulatory initiative created in response to the global financial crisis.
It mandates the separation of retail and SME deposits from investment banking, in
order to improve the resilience and resolvability of banks by changing their structure.
In general, simpler activities offered from within a ring-fenced bank, (RFB), will be
focused on lower risk, day-to-day core transactions, whilst more complex and “riskier”
activities are required to be housed in a separate entity, a non-ring-fenced bank,
(NRFB). This is intended to ensure that an entity’s core activities are not adversely
affected by the acts or omissions of other members of its group.
6.5.13 While the structure of the banks included within this process may have changed, the
fundamentals of credit assessment have not. The County Council will continue to
assess the new-formed entities in the same way that it does others and those with
sufficiently high ratings, (and any other metrics considered), will be considered for
investment purposes.
Country Limits
6.5.14 Due care will be taken to consider the exposure of the Council’s total investment
portfolio to non-specified investments, countries, groups and sectors
a) Non-specified investment limit. The Council has determined that it will limit
the maximum total exposure to non-specified investments as being 20% of the
total investment portfolio.
b) Country limit. The Council has determined that it will only use approved
counterparties from the UK and from countries with a minimum sovereign credit
rating of AA- from Fitch. The list of countries that qualify using these credit criteria
as at the date of this report are shown in Annex C. This list will be added to, or
deducted from, by officers should ratings change in accordance with this policy.
Investment Strategy
6.5.15 In-house funds. Investments will be made with reference to the core balance and cash
flow requirements and the outlook for short-term interest rates (i.e. rates for
investments up to 12 months). Greater returns are usually obtainable by investing for
longer periods. While most cash balances are required in order to manage daily cash
flow requirements, where cash sums can be identified that could be invested for longer
periods, the value to be obtained from longer term investments will be carefully
COUNCIL

Page 166
OFFICIAL

18 FEBRUARY 2021

assessed:

if it is thought that Bank Rate is likely to rise significantly within the time
horizon being considered, then consideration will be given to keeping most
investments as being short term or variable;



conversely, if it is thought that Bank Rate is likely to fall within that time
period, consideration will be given to locking in higher rates currently
obtainable, for longer periods.

Investment returns expectations.
6.5.16 Bank Rate is unlikely to rise from 0.10% for a considerable period. It is very difficult to
say when it may start rising so it may be best to assume that investment earnings from
money market-related instruments will be sub 0.50% for the foreseeable future. Bank
Rate forecasts for financial year ends are:




Q1 2022 0.25%
Q1 2023 0.25%
Q1 2024 0.40%

6.5.17 For its cash flow generated balances, the Council will seek to utilise its notice
accounts, money market funds and short dated deposits (overnight to three months)
in order to benefit from the compounding of interest.
Ethical Investment Opportunities
6.5.18 Investment guidance, both statutory and from CIPFA, makes clear that all investing
must adopt SLY principals – security, liquidity and yield: ethical issues must play a
subordinate role to those principals. Link Asset Services is looking at ways in which
Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) metrics may be incorporated into credit
rating agency assessments, and a small but growing number of financial institutions
and fund managers are starting to promote ESG products. However, with a lack of
consistency and coverage, Link Asset services continue to review options in this area
and will update clients as progress is made, which will be brought forward in future
Treasury reporting updates when available.
6.5.19 Within the Council’s current lending criteria, an ethical money market fund is available
to the Council for investment, (details are attached at Annex H) and will continue to be
considered, should favourable return rates become available.
End of Year Investment Report
6.5.20 At the end of the financial year the Council will report on its investment activity as
part of the Annual Treasury Report.
Scheme of Delegation
6.5.21 Please see Annex E.
Role of the section 151 officer

COUNCIL

Page 167
OFFICIAL

18 FEBRUARY 2021

6.5.22 Please see Annex E.

6.6

CAPITAL STRATEGY
The Prudential Code 2017 introduced a new requirement for local authorities to
produce and annual capital strategy. Please refer to Annexes F and G.

7.0

IMPLICATIONS

7.1

The following implications have been identified:
a) Financial
The results of the investment strategy affect the funding of the Capital Programme.
b)

Legal
There are no legal implications regarding this report.

c)

Other (Equalities, Staffing, Planning, Health & Safety, Environmental, Crime &
Disorder, Climate Change)
There are no legal implications regarding this report.

Anton Hodge
Chief Finance Officer (s151)
Author:
Telephone No:
E-Mail Address:

Anton Hodge, Chief Finance Officer (s151)
01653 600666 ext: 392
anton.hodge@ryedale.gov.uk

Background Papers:
None
Background Papers are available for inspection at: None

COUNCIL

Page 168
OFFICIAL

18 FEBRUARY 2021

TREASURY MANAGEMENT STATEMENT AND INVESTMENT STRATEGY REPORT- RISK
MATRIX – ANNEX A
Issue/Risk

Consequences if allowed
to happen

Page 169

Likelihood

Impact

Mitigation

Mitigated
Likelihood

Mitigated
Impact

Although the economic
climate is improving,
counterparty risk is still a big
issue. As a result the Council
have adopted a stringent
credit rating methodology.
The number of investment
options is kept to a minimum.
Investments are normally
restricted to short term fixed
rate deposits or instant
access accounts.
This Strategy specifies the
type of instrument the
authority is prepared to invest
in and maximum term for
those investments

1

D

2

B

1

B

Credit risk - associated with
investing with financial institutions
that do not meet the credit rating
criteria.

Could mean loss of
principal sum and interest
accrued.

2

D

Market risk - Selection of wrong
type of investment for higher
return.

The poor performance of
the chosen investment.

2

B

Liquidity risk - Use of fixed term
deposits and / or instruments /
investments with low marketability
may mean a lack of liquidity

Unable to take advantage
of better investment
options. Funds are
unavailable to cover capital
spend.

1

B

Score
1
2
3
4
5

Likelihood
Very Low
Not Likely
Likely
Very Likely
Almost Certain

Score
A
B
C
D
E

Impact
Low
Minor
Medium
Major
Disaster

OFFICIAL

This page is intentionally left blank

ANNEX B
SPECIFIED AND NON-SPECIFIED INVESTMENTS
SPECIFIED INVESTMENTS:

Investment
Term Deposits with the UK Government or with UK Local Authorities
(as per Local Government Act 2003) with maturities up to 1 year
Term Deposits with credit rated deposit takers (Banks and Building
Societies), including callable deposits with maturities less than 1 year

Page 171

Certificate of Deposits issued by credit rated deposit takers (Banks
and Building Societies) up to 1 year

Forward deals with credit rated Banks and Building Societies less
than 1 year (i.e. negotiated deal plus period of deposit)
Money Market Funds i.e. collective investment scheme as defined in
SI2004 No 534
(These funds have no maturity date)
Gilts (with maturities of up to 1 year)

Bonds issued by a financial institution that is guaranteed by the UK
Government (as defined in SI 2004 No 534) with maturities under 12
months
(Custodial arrangements required prior to purchase)

COUNCIL

Security / Minimum Credit Rating
High security as backed by UK
Government

Circumstances of Use
In-house
In-house

Organisations assessed as having
“high credit quality”within the UK or
from Countries with a minimum
Sovereign rating of AA- for the
country in which the organisation is
domiciled
Funds must be AAA rated

Fund Manager or In-house “buy and hold”
after consultation with Treasury
Management Advisor
In-house
In-house
Limited to £3m

Government Backed

Fund Manager or In-house buy and hold
after consultation with Treasury
Management Advisor

Government Backed

After consultation with Treasury
Management Advisor

18 FEBRUARY 2021
OFFICIAL

NON-SPECIFIED INVESTMENTS
Investment

Circumstances of
Use

Max % of total
investments

Term Deposit with credit rated deposit takers
(Banks & Building Societies), UK Government and
other Local Authorities with maturities greater than 1
year

Organisations assessed as
having “high credit quality” under
the Credit Worthiness Policy

In-house

100% of agreed
maximum
proportion of
Core Cash funds
(£4m)

£1m

5 years

Certificate of Deposit with credit rated deposit
takers (Banks & Building Societies) with maturities
greater than 1 year
Custodial arrangements prior to purchase

Organisations assessed as
having “high credit quality” under
the Credit Worthiness Policy

Fund Manager
or
In-house “buy & hold”
after consultation with
Treasury Management
Advisor

100% of agreed
maximum
proportion of
Core Cash funds
(£4m)

£1m

5 years

Callable Deposits with credit rated deposit takers
(Banks & Building Societies) with maturities greater
than 1 year

Organisations assessed as
having “high credit quality” under
the Credit Worthiness Policy

In-house

50% of agreed
maximum
proportion of
Core Cash funds
(£2m)

£1m

5 years

Term Deposits with Housing Associations with
maturities greater than 1 year

Organisations assessed as
having “high credit quality” under
the Credit Worthiness Policy

In-house

25% of agreed
maximum
proportion of
Core Cash funds
(£1m)

£1m

5 years

Forward Deposits with a credit rated Bank or
Building Society > 1 year (i.e. negotiated deal period
plus period of deposit)

Organisations assessed as
having “high credit quality” under
the Credit Worthiness Policy

In-house

25% of agreed
maximum
proportion of

£1m

5 years

Page 172

Security / Minimum Credit
Rating

COUNCIL

18 FEBRUARY 2021
OFFICIAL

Maximum
Max.
investment maturity
with any one period
counterparty

Investment

Security / Minimum Credit
Rating

Circumstances of
Use

Max % of total
investments

Maximum
Max.
investment maturity
with any one period
counterparty

Core Cash funds
(£1m)
AA or Government backed

Fund Manager
or
In-house “buy & hold”
after consultation with
Treasury Management
Advisor

25% of agreed
maximum
proportion of
Core Cash funds
(£1m)

n/a

5 years

Bonds issued by Multilateral development banks
(as defined in SI2004 No534) with maturities in
excess of 1 year
Custodial arrangements required prior to purchase

AA or Government backed

Fund Manager
or
In-house “buy & hold”
after consultation with
Treasury Management
Advisor

25% of agreed
maximum
proportion of
Core Cash funds
(£1m)

£1m

5 years

UK Government Gilts with maturities in excess
of 1 year
Custodial arrangements required prior to purchase

Government backed

Fund Manager

25% of agreed
maximum
proportion of
Core Cash funds
(£1m)

n/a

5 years

Collateralised Deposit

UK Sovereign Rating

In-house

25% of agreed
maximum
proportion of
Core Cash funds
(£1m)

n/a

5 years

Page 173

Bonds issued by a financial institution
that is guaranteed by the UK Government
(as defined in SI2004 No534) with maturities in
excess of 1 year
Custodial arrangements required prior to purchase

This Authority will seek further advice on the appropriateness and associated risks with investments in these categories.
COUNCIL

18 FEBRUARY 2021
OFFICIAL

ANNEX C
APPROVED COUNTRIES FOR INVESTMENTS
This list is based on those countries which have sovereign ratings of AA- or higher, (we
show the lowest rating from Fitch, Moody’s and S&P) and also, (except - at the time of
writing - for Hong Kong, Norway and Luxembourg), have banks operating in sterling
markets

Sovereign
Rating
AAA

AA+
AA

AA-

COUNCIL

Country
Australia
Canada
Denmark
Germany
Luxemburg
Netherlands
Norway
Singapore
Sweden
Switzerland
Finland
USA
Abu Dhabi (UAE)
France
Hong Kong
UK
Belgium
Qatar

Page 174
OFFICIAL

18 FEBRUARY 2021

ANNEX D
APPROVED LENDING LIST 2021/22
Maximum sum invested at any time (The overall total exposure figure covers both Specified and
Non-Specified investments)

Country

UK "Nationalised" banks / UK banks with UK Central
Government involvement
Royal Bank of Scotland PLC (RFB)

GBR

National
Westminster
PLC
UK "Clearing
Banks",Bank
other
UK(RFB)
based banks and
Building Societies
Santander UK PLC (includes Cater Allen)

GBR

Barclays Bank PLC (NRFB)

GBR

Barclays Bank UK PLC (RFB)

GBR

Bank of Scotland PLC (RFB)

GBR

Lloyds Bank PLC (RFB)

GBR

Specified
Investments
(up to 1 year)
Total
Exposure
£m

Time
Limit *

Total
Exposure
£m

Time
Limit *

4.0

365 days

-

-

3.0

6 months

-

-

4.0

6 months

-

-

-

-

-

-

GBR

Lloyds Bank Corporate Markets PLC (NRFB)

GBR

HSBC Bank PLC (NRFB)

GBR

HSBC UK Bank PLC (RFB
Goldman Sachs International Bank

GBR
GBR

Sumitomo Mitsui

Non-Specified
Investments
(> 1 year £4m limit)

3.0

365 days
6 months

1.5

365 days

3.0

6 months

GBR

1.5

6 months

Standard Chartered Bank

GBR

3.0

6 months

Handlesbanken

GBR
GBR

2.0
2.0

6 months

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Nationwide Building Society

365 days

Leeds Building Society
High Quality Foreign Banks
National Australia Bank

GBR

1.0

3 months

AUS

1.5

365 days

Commonwealth Bank of Australia

AUS

1.5

365 days

Toronto-Dominion Bank

CAN

1.5

365 days

Credit Industriel et Commercial
Landesbank Hessen-Thueringen Girozentrale
(Helaba)

FRA
GER

1.5
1.5

6 months
365 days

DBS (Singapore)
Local Authorities

SING

1.5

365 days

County / Unitary / Metropolitan / District Councils

2.0

365 days

1.0

5 years

Police / Fire Authorities

1.0

365 days

1.0

5 years

National Park Authorities
Other Deposit Takers

1.0

365 days

1.0

5 years

Money Market Funds

1.0

365 days

1.0

5 years

UK Debt Management Account

5.0

365 days

1.0

5 years

COUNCIL

Page 175
OFFICIAL

18 FEBRUARY 2021

ANNEX E

TREASURY MANAGEMENT SCHEME OF DELEGATION
1.

Full Council
 receiving and reviewing reports on treasury management policies, practices and
activities;
 approval of annual strategy.

2.

Policy and Resources Committee
 approval of/amendments to the organisation’s adopted clauses, treasury
management policy statement and treasury management practices;
 budget consideration and approval;
 approval of the division of responsibilities;
 approving the selection of external service providers and agreeing terms of
appointment.

3.

Overview and Scrutiny Committee
 reviewing the treasury management policy and
recommendations to the responsible body.

COUNCIL

Page 176
OFFICIAL

procedures and making

18 FEBRUARY 2021

ANNEX E

THE TREASURY MANAGEMENT ROLE OF THE SECTION 151 OFFICER
Background

1.

The Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities (the Prudential Code)
plays a key role in capital finance in local authorities. Local authorities determine their
own programmes for investment that are central to the delivery of quality public
services. The Prudential Code was developed by CIPFA as a professional code of
practice to support local authorities in taking their decisions. Local authorities are
required by regulation to have regard to the Prudential Code when carrying out their
duties under Part 1 of the Local Government Act 2003.

2.

In financing capital expenditure, local authorities are governed by legislative
frameworks, including the requirement to have regard to CIPFA’s Treasury
Management in the Public Services: Code of Practice and Cross-Sectoral Guidance
Notes.

3.

In order to demonstrate that capital expenditure and investment decisions are taken in
line with service objectives and properly take account of stewardship, value for money,
prudence, sustainability and affordability, the Prudential Code requires authorities to
have in place a Capital Strategy that sets out the long term context in which capital
expenditure and investment decisions are made, and gives due consideration to both
risk and reward and impact on the achievement of priority outcomes.

4.

The Prudential Code requires the Chief Financial Officer to report explicitly on the
affordability and risk associated with the Capital Strategy. The Capital Strategy

provides an overview of the governance process for approval and monitoring
of capital expenditure. In addition, the Capital Strategy and Prudential
Indicators also demonstrates that the capital expenditure, investment and
financing plans of the Authority are robust, affordable and sustainable.”
The S151 (responsible) officer
The following are specific responsibilities of the Section 151 Officer:


recommending clauses, treasury management policies and practices for approval,
reviewing the same regularly, and monitoring compliance;



submitting regular treasury management policy reports to Members;



submitting budgets and budget variations to Members;



receiving and reviewing management information reports;



reviewing the performance of the treasury management function;



ensuring the adequacy of treasury management resources and skills, and the effective
division of responsibilities within the treasury management function;

COUNCIL

Page 177
OFFICIAL

18 FEBRUARY 2021



ensuring the adequacy of internal audit, and liaising with external audit;



recommending the appointment of external service providers:



preparation of a capital strategy to include capital expenditure, capital financing, nonfinancial investments and treasury management;



ensuring that the capital strategy is prudent, sustainable, affordable and prudent in the
long term and provides value for money;



ensuring that due diligence has been carried out on all treasury and non-financial
investments and is in accordance with the risk appetite of the authority;



ensure that the authority has appropriate legal powers to undertake expenditure on nonfinancial assets and their financing;



ensuring the proportionality of all investments so that the authority does not undertake a
level of investing which exposes the authority to an excessive level of risk compared to
its financial resources;



ensuring that an adequate governance process is in place for the approval, monitoring
and ongoing risk management of all non-financial investments and long term liabilities



provision to members of a schedule of all non-treasury investments including material
investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures, loans and financial guarantees



ensuring that members are adequately informed and understand the risk exposures
taken on by an authority



ensuring that the authority has adequate expertise, either in house or externally provided



creation of Treasury Management Practices which specifically deal with how non
treasury investments will be carried out and managed

5. “The Capital Strategy provides an overview of the governance process for approval and
monitoring of capital expenditure. In addition, the Capital Strategy and Prudential
Indicators also demonstrate that the capital expenditure, investment and financing plans
of the Authority are robust, affordable and sustainable.”

COUNCIL

Page 178
OFFICIAL

18 FEBRUARY 2021

ANNEX G

CAPITAL STRATEGY 2021/22

1.0

BACKGROUND

1.1

The purpose of the Capital Strategy is to demonstrate that the Council takes capital expenditure and
investment decisions in line with Corporate and service objectives and properly takes account of
stewardship, value for money, prudence, sustainability and affordability. It sets out the long term
context in which capital expenditure and investment decisions are made and gives due consideration
to both risk and reward and impact on the achievement of priority outcomes.

1.2

The Capital Strategy comprises a number of distinct, but inter-related, elements as follows:
(a)

Capital expenditure (Section 2)

This section includes an overview of the governance process for approval and monitoring of capital
expenditure, including the Council’s policies on capitalisation, and an overview of its capital
expenditure and financing plans.
(b)

Capital financing and borrowing (Section 3)

This section provides a projection of the Council’s capital financing requirement, how this will be
funded and repaid. It therefore sets out the Council’s borrowing strategy and explains how it will
discharge its duty to make prudent revenue provision for the repayment of debt.
(d)

Alternative investments (Section 4)

This section provides an overview of those of the Council’s current and proposed alternative
investment activities that count as capital expenditure, including processes, due diligence and
defining the Council’s risk appetite in respect of these, including proportionality in respect of overall
resources.
(e)

Chief Financial Officer’s statement (Section 5)

This section contains the Chief Financial Officer’s views on the deliverability, affordability and risk
associated with the capital strategy

Page 179
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

ANNEX G
2.0

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE
Capitalisation Policy

2.1

Expenditure is classified as capital expenditure when it results in the acquisition or construction of an
asset (e.g. land, buildings, roads and bridges, vehicles, plant and equipment etc.) that:


Will be held for use in the delivery of services, for rental to others, investment or for
administrative purposes; and



Are of continuing benefit to the Council for a period extending beyond one financial year.

Subsequent expenditure on existing assets is also classified as capital expenditure if these two
criteria are met.
2.2

2.3

There may be instances where expenditure does not meet this definition but would be treated as
capital expenditure, including:


Where the Council has no direct future control or benefit from the resulting assets, but
would treat the expenditure as capital if it did control or benefit from the resulting assets;
and



Where statutory regulations require the Council to capitalise expenditure that would not
otherwise have expenditure implications according to accounting rules

The Council operates de-minimis limits for capital expenditure. This means that items below these
limits are charged to revenue rather than capital. The limits are currently as follows:


General Limit:

£10,000

Governance
2.4

Policy & Resources Committee shall, during each financial year and after consultation with the
relevant Overview and Scrutiny Committee(s), approve a capital expenditure programme for the
next following and subsequent 2 financial years. Such programmes shall be in a form and in
accordance with deadlines approved by the Chief Finance Officer and in accordance with the
Council’s Financial Strategy. Capital expenditure plans shall be prepared in conjunction with the
Chief Finance Officer for submission to The Policy & Resources Committee and then Council for
approval.

2.5

The Council’s Financial and Contract Procedure Rules provide a framework for the appropriate
authorisations for individual schemes to proceed and facilitate the overall management of the Capital
Plan within defined resource parameters.

Capital Expenditure and Funding Plans
2.6

Capital expenditure plans are set out within the Treasury Management Strategy (6.2.2).

2.7

When expenditure is classified as capital expenditure for capital financing purposes, this means
that the Council is able to finance that expenditure from any of the following sources:

Page 180
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

ANNEX G
(a)

Capital grants and contributions - amounts awarded to the Council in return for past or
future compliance with certain stipulations.

(b)

Capital receipts – amounts generated from the sale of assets and from the repayment of
capital loans, grants or other financial assistance.

(c)

Revenue contributions – amounts set aside from the revenue budget in the
Reserve for Future Capital Funding.

(d)

Borrowing - amounts that the Council does not need to fund immediately from cash
resources, but instead charges to the revenue budget over a number of years into the future.

2.8

The implications of financing capital expenditure from ‘borrowing’ are explained in section 3 below.

3.0

CAPITAL FINANCING REQUIREMENT AND BORROWING
Context

3.1

The Council is required to comply with the CIPFA Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local
Authorities (referred to as the ‘Prudential Code’) when assessing the affordability, prudence and
sustainability of its capital investment plans.

3.2

Fundamental to the prudential framework is a requirement to set a series of prudential indicators.
These indicators are intended to collectively build a picture that demonstrates the impact over time
of the Council’s capital expenditure plans upon the revenue budget and upon borrowing and
investment levels, and explain the overall controls that will ensure that the activity remains
affordable, prudent and sustainable.

3.3

A summary of the actual prudential indicators for 2020/21, and the estimates for
2021/23 through to 2023/24 are provided in the Treasury Management Strategy document..

Capital Financing Requirement
3.4

When capital expenditure is funded from borrowing, this does not result in expenditure being funded
immediately from cash resources, but is instead charged to the revenue budget over a number of
years. It does this in accordance with its policy for the repayment of debt, which is set out in the
Minimum Revenue Policy Statement, within the Treasury Strategy (6.3).

3.5

The forward projections of the CFR reflect:

3.6



Capital Expenditure plans that are expected to be funded from finance leases, which
includes Streetscene vehicle replacements and Ryecare system renewal



Revenue budget provision being made for the repayment of debt, which results in a
reduction to the CFR).

The actual CFR for 2020/21 and forward projections for the current and forthcoming years are as
follows:

Page 181
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

ANNEX G

CFR General Fund

2019/20
Act.
£000
1,589

2020/21
Est.
£000
1,553

2021/22
Est.
£000
1,518

2022/23
Est.
£000
1,483

2023/24
Est.
£000
1,447

113

220

1,146

1,656

1,441

0

0

0

0

0

1,702

1,774

2,664

3,139

2,888

-162

72

890

475

-250

0

195

1,153

736

45

-162

-123

-263

-261

-295

-162

72

890

475

-250

CFR GF Leases
CFR Commercial / Nonfinancial investments
Total CFR
Movement in CFR
Movement in CFR represented by:Net Financing need for the
year
Less MRP & Other
Financing movements
Movement in CFR

3.7

The forecast decrease in the CFR shows that there are borrowing requirements to fund capital
expenditure to be financed through Finance Leases, and therefore the increase in 20/21 and 21/22
reflects the timing on the capital spend, then gradual reduction from 22/23 reflects the annual
minimum revenue provisions towards the repayment of debt.

External borrowing limits
3.9

The Council is only permitted to borrow externally (including via credit arrangements) up to
the level implied by its Capital Financing Requirement (CFR). To ensure that external
borrowing does not exceed the CFR, other than in the short term, limits are established for
external debt, as follows:


Authorised limit – this defines the maximum amount of external debt permitted by the
Council, and represents the statutory limit determined under section 3 (1) of the Local
Government Act 2003.



Operational boundary – this is an estimate of the probable level of the Council’s
external debt, and provides the means by which external debt is managed to ensure
that the ‘authorised limit’ is not breached.

3.10 The proposed limits, which are set out in the Treasury Strategy, make separate provision for
external borrowing and other long-term liabilities, and are based upon an estimate of the most
likely but not worst case scenarios. They allow sufficient headroom for fluctuations in the level
of cash balances and in the level of the CFR.
3.11 Alternative investment activities included in the plan are to be classed as capital expenditure.
An Alternative Investments Strategy has not yet been developed and, in the event that major
initiatives are proposed, it may be necessary to review the current borrowing limits.
3.12 The agreed Operational Boundary and Authorised Limits for external debt are as follows:

Page 182
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

ANNEX G

Authorised Limit

Debt
Other long term
liabilities
Total

Operational Boundary

Debt
Other long term liabilities
Total

2020/21
Estimate
£’000
10,000

2021/22
Estimate
£’000
10,000

2022/23
Estimate
£’000
10,000

2023/24
Estimate
£’000
10,000

1,000
11,000

2,500
12,500

2,500
12,500

2,500
12,500

2020/21
Estimate
£’000
5,000
600
5,600

2021/22
Estimate
£’000
5,000
2,000
7,000

2022/23
Estimate
£’000
5,000
2,000
7,000

2023/24
Estimate
£’000
5,000
2,000
7,000

Borrowing strategy
3.13 The Councils Borrowing Strategy is set out in the Treasury Strategy document (6.4).
3.14 The Council’s capital borrowing is slightly lower than the underlying need to borrow, and the Council
is expected to be in an under-borrowed position from 2020/21 onwards. This has been a prudent
strategy as investment returns are low and counterparty risk is relatively high – this approach will be
carefully monitored during 2021/22
3.15 The use of internal borrowing has been an effective strategy in recent years as:


Rising cash balances as a result of MRP set aside mean available cash for the medium
to longer term;



It has enabled the Council to avoid significant external borrowing costs; and



It has mitigated significantly the risks associated with investing cash in what has often
been a volatile and challenging market.

3.16 Further long term external borrowing may be undertaken, in excess of the current forecasts, in the
event that it is not possible or desirable to sustain the anticipated internal borrowing position.
3.17 The external borrowing requirement will be kept under review and long term external loans will be
secured within the parameters established by the authorised limit and operational boundary for
external debt, as set out above.
3.18 Opportunities to generate savings by refinancing or prematurely repaying existing long term debt
will also be kept under review. Potential savings will be considered in the light of the current treasury
position and the costs associated with such actions.
Minimum Revenue Provision

Page 183
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

ANNEX G

3.19 The Council sets cash resources aside from the Revenue Budget each year to repay the borrowing.
This practice is referred to as the minimum revenue provision (MRP) for the repayment of debt.
3.20 The Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) provides a measure of the amount of capital expenditure
which has been financed from borrowing that the Council yet to fund from cash resources.
3.21 Statutory guidance requires MRP to be provided annually on a prudent basis. In accordance with
the requirement to make a prudent ‘revenue provision for the repayment of debt’, the Council
ensures that debt is repaid over a period that is commensurate with the period over which the capital
expenditure provides benefit. This is achieved by applying the methodology set out within the
Policy. The revenue budget provision for MRP charges in 2021/22 has been compiled on a basis
consistent with this policy
4.0. Alternative Investments
Introduction
4.1

The prolonged low interest rate environment has resulted in reduced returns on treasury
management investments. Moreover, the introduction of the general power of competence has
given local authorities far more flexibility in the types of activity they can engage in. These changes
in the economic and regulatory landscape, combined with significant financial challenges, have led
many authorities to consider different and more innovative types of investment.

4.2

CIPFA recently issued an update to its Treasury Management in the Public Services: Code of
Practice and Cross Sectoral Guidance Notes (the Treasury Management Code). One of the main
changes introduced by the new Code is to require authorities to incorporate all of the financial and
non-financial assets held for financial return in authorities’ annual capital strategies.

4.3

Separately, the Department for Communities and Local Government consulted on changes to its
statutory Guidance on Local Authority Investments. As a result, updated Statutory investment
guidance and MRP guidance was issued in 2018. The guidance reinforced the need for commercial
investment activity to be financially sustainable, proportionate to overall resources and the Council
should have access to the appropriate level of expertise to make informed decisions.

4.4

In addition, Her Majesty’s Treasury introduced revised lending terms for borrowing from the PWLB
on 25 November 2020. Under the revised lending terms, the government has now ended access
to the PWLB for Local Authorities that wish to buy commercial assets primarily for yield, as
assessed by the statutory section 151 officer. Local Authorities remain free to buy commercial
assets primarily for yield, but are not be able to take out new loans from the PWLB in year where
they have any plans to buy commercial assets at any point over the following 3 year period (any
loans taken out under the old system are not be affected by this change). As a result, of the revised
lending terms the government has now cut PWLB lending rates.

4.6

The 2021 Capital Expenditure Programme does not include any plans to purchase commercial
assets primarily for yield.

4.5

This section of the Capital Strategy will need to be updated if the Council’s own agenda for
commercial investments evolves.

4.6

It is worth highlighting that all commercial investment activities are subject to approval in
accordance with the Council’s governance framework for decision making.

Alternative Investment Objectives

Page 184
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

ANNEX G
4.7

The primary objectives of the commercial investment activities:


Security – to protect the capital sums invested from loss; and



Liquidity – ensuring the funds invested are available for expenditure when needed.

4.8

The generation of yield is distinct from these prudential objectives. However, once proper levels of
security and liquidity are determined, it is then reasonable to consider what yield can be obtained
consistent with these priorities.

4.9

Non-core activities and investments would primarily be undertaken by the Council in order to
generate income to support the delivery of a balanced budget. Such investments would only be
entered following a full assessment of the risks and having secured expert external advice (i.e.
where it is relevant to do so)

4.10 To ensure that alternative investment plans are financially sustainable, the Council would need to
carefully consider the internal funds available for investment and proportionate risk.
Investment Properties
4.11 Land and buildings may be aquired for investment purposes rather than for the supply of goods or
services or for administrative purposes. Such assets will be classified as Investment Properties.
The council already holds a number of properties in this class, and may wish to consider increasing
its property portfolio.
4.12 Investment properties are measured at their fair value annually (which will ensure the valuation
reflects the market conditions at the end of each reporting period). The fair value measurement will
enable the Council to assess whether the underlying assets provide security for capital investment.
Where the fair value of the underlying assets is no longer sufficient to provide security against loss,
mitigating actions will be considered, to ensure that appropriate action is taken to protect the capital
sum invested.
Loans to Third Parties
4.13 Loans to third parties could be considered, as part of a wider strategy for local economic growth for
example. However they may not all be seen as prudent if adopting a narrow definition of prioritising
security and liquidity.
4.14 Such loans should only be considered when all of the following criteria are satisfied:


The loan is given towards expenditure which would, if incurred by the Council, be capital
expenditure;



The purpose for which the loan is given is consistent with the Council’s corporate /
strategic objectives and priorities;



Due diligence is carried out that confirms the Council’s legal powers to make the loan,
and that assesses the risk of loss over the loan term;



A formal loan agreement is put in place which stipulates the loan period repayment terms
and loan rate (which will be set at a level that seeks to mitigate any perceived risks of a

Page 185
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

ANNEX G
loss being charged to the General Fund, and takes appropriate account of state aid
rules) and any other terms that will protect the Council from loss;


Prior to any loan being granted, the Council’s own cashflow requirements are reviewed
to ensure that appropriate levels of liquidity will be maintained.

Other Alternative Investment Opportunities
4.15 There are a number of other potential opportunities the Council may want to consider, such as
investment in property funds and other institutions such as Credit Unions. As stated above, this
would need to be considered in the wider context of the Council’s corporate priorities and
appropriate due diligence and approvals sought. Such an investment should be considered as a
capital expenditure decision, and therefore would form part of the Capital Programme Budget
should an ‘investment’ be supported.

5.0

SECTION 151 OFFICER STATEMENT

Background
5.1

The Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities (the Prudential Code) plays a key role
in capital finance in local authorities. Local authorities determine their own programmes for
investment that are central to the delivery of quality public services. The Prudential Code was
developed by CIPFA as a professional code of practice to support local authorities in taking their
decisions. Local authorities are required by regulation to have regard to the Prudential Code when
carrying out their duties under Part 1 of the Local Government Act 2003.

5.2

In financing capital expenditure, local authorities are governed by legislative frameworks, including
the requirement to have regard to CIPFA’s Treasury Management in the Public Services: Code of
Practice and Cross-Sectoral Guidance Notes.

5.3

In order to demonstrate that capital expenditure and investment decisions are taken in line with
service objectives and properly take account of stewardship, value for money, prudence,
sustainability and affordability, the Prudential Code requires authorities to have in place a Capital
Strategy that sets out the long term context in which capital expenditure and investment decisions
are made, and gives due consideration to both risk and reward and impact on the achievement of
priority outcomes.

5.4

The Prudential Code requires the Chief Financial Officer to report explicitly on the affordability and
risk associated with the Capital Strategy. The following are specific responsibilities of the Section
151 Officer:


recommending clauses, treasury management policy/practices for approval, reviewing
regularly, and monitoring compliance;



submitting quarterly treasury management reports;



submitting quarterly capital budget update reports;



reviewing the performance of the treasury management function;

Page 186
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

ANNEX G

5.5



ensuring the adequacy of treasury management resources and skills, and the effective
division of responsibilities within the treasury management function;



ensuring the adequacy of internal audit, and liaising with external audit;



recommending the appointment of external service providers.



preparation of a capital strategy to include capital expenditure, capital financing, nonfinancial investments and treasury management



ensuring that the capital strategy is prudent, sustainable, affordable and prudent in the
long term and provides value for money



ensuring that due diligence has been carried out on all treasury and non-financial
investments and is in accordance with the risk appetite of the authority



ensure that the authority has appropriate legal powers to undertake expenditure on nonfinancial assets and their financing



ensuring the proportionality of all investments so that the authority does not undertake
a level of investing which exposes the authority to an excessive level of risk compared
to its financial resources



ensuring that an adequate governance process is in place for the approval, monitoring
and ongoing risk management of all non-financial investments and long term liabilities



provision to members of a schedule of all non-treasury investments including material
investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures, loans and financial guarantees



ensuring that members are adequately informed and understand the risk exposures
taken on by an authority



ensuring that the authority has adequate expertise, either in house or externally provided



creation of Treasury Management Practices which specifically deal with how non
treasury investments will be carried out and managed

The Capital Strategy provides an overview of the governance process for approval and
monitoring of capital expenditure. These processes are well established and are highly
effective in ensuring delivery of the Authority’s capital investment plans. In addition, the Capital
Strategy and Prudential Indicators also demonstrates that the capital expenditure, investment
and financing plans of the Authority are robust, affordable and sustainable.

Page 187
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 12

REPORT TO:

COUNCIL

DATE:

18 FEBRUARY 2021

REPORT OF THE:

HEAD OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
SIMON COPLEY

TITLE OF REPORT:

APPOINTMENT OF AN INDEPENDENT REMUNERATION
PANEL MEMBER

WARDS AFFECTED:

ALL

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
1.0

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1

To recommend to Council the appointment of an Independent Remuneration Panel
Member, following the resignation of a previous member.

2.0

RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1

It is recommended that Council approves:
(i)

that Peter Barker be appointed to serve on the Independent Remuneration Panel
established by Council on 10 October 2019;

(ii)

that the Term of Office for the appointed member be until 5 September 2024, in
line with the current serving Panel Members.

3.0

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

3.1

The Council is required to appoint a new member to the Independent Remuneration
Panel, following the resignation of a previous member.

4.0

SIGNIFICANT RISKS

4.1

There are no significant risks associated with the appointment of a new member to the
Independent Remuneration Panel. A risk of legal challenge may arise should a
replacement member not be appointed, as the Panel would not be legally compliant.

5.0

POLICY CONTEXT AND CONSULTATION

5.1

The appointment of a new member to the Independent Remuneration Panel is not
directly related to the corporate policies or priorities of the Council. However it is
considered that since Parliament requires local authorities to have a Members’
Allowance Scheme it is important that the scheme is updated and reviewed when
required. Re-appointing a third member to the Panel will enable this work to continue

COUNCIL

18 FEBRUARY 2021

Page 189

and ensure that the current Panel remains legally compliant.
REPORT
6.0

REPORT DETAILS

6.1

Regulation 20 of The Local Authorities (Members’ Allowances) (England) Regulations
2003 (as amended) requires the Council to establish an Independent Remuneration
Panel to make recommendations to Council about allowances payable to Members of
Ryedale District Council.

6.2

The Panel shall consist of at least three members. The Panel shall not include any
member who is also a member of an authority in respect of which it makes
recommendations or is a member of a committee or sub-committee of such an
authority.

6.3

An Independent Remuneration Panel was established in accordance with the
Regulations by Council on 10 October 2019. Following the recent resignation of a
Panel Member appointed at that time, there is currently one vacancy on the Panel.

6.4

A recruitment and selection process has taken place. Following assessment at
interview, the above applicant is recommended for appointment.

6.5

Since the establishment of the current Panel, matters for consideration have included
a review of the indexation of Member allowances.

6.6

A report was submitted by the Panel to Council on 20 February 2020, regarding the
use of an index for the annual adjustment of allowances. Council approved the
continuance of the index to staff pay for the annual adjustment of Member Allowances
until January 2023.

7.0

IMPLICATIONS

7.1

The following implications have been identified:
a) Financial
There are no material financial implications of appointing a new member to the
Independent Remuneration Panel.
b)

Legal
The Local Authorities (Members’ Allowances) (England) Regulations 2003 (as
amended) require that an Independent Remuneration Panel shall consist of at
least three members.

c)

Other (Equalities, Staffing, Planning, Health & Safety, Environmental and Climate
Change, Crime & Disorder)
None.

Simon Copley
Head of Corporate Governance
Author:
Telephone No:
E-Mail Address:

Ellen Walker, Senior Corporate Governance Officer
01653 600666 ext: 43455
ellen.walker@ryedale.gov.uk

COUNCIL

18 FEBRUARY 2021

Page 190

Background Papers:
None

COUNCIL

18 FEBRUARY 2021

Page 191

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 13a

REPORT TO:

FULL COUNCIL

DATE:

18 FEBRUARY 2021

SUBJECT:

PART ‘B’ REFERRALS FROM POLICY AND RESOURCES
COMMITTEE ON 4 FEBRUARY 2021

31

HR Policy Revision – Leave and Flexible Working Policies

Considered – report of the Head of Human Resources
Recommendation
That the revised policies are agreed for implementation.
Voting record
Unanimous

Council

Page 193

18 February 2021

This page is intentionally left blank

PART B:

RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL

REPORT TO:

POLICY AND RESOURCES

DATE:

4 FEBRUARY 2021

REPORT OF THE:

HEAD OF HUMAN RESOURCES
ANDREW ELLIS

TITLE OF REPORT:

HR POLICY REVISION – LEAVE AND FLEXIBLE WORKING
POLICIES

WARDS AFFECTED:

ALL

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
1.0

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1

To approve revised human resources policies

2.0

RECOMMENDATION

2.1

It is recommended to Council that
(a) The revised policies are agreed for implementation.

3.0

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION

3.1

Many of the current HR policies are outdated and not fit for purpose. The revision of
these policies link into the aims and objectives of the People and Culture Plan.

3.2

Policies and procedures are living documents that should grow and adapt with an
organisation. Policy review and revision is a crucial part of an effective policy and
procedure management plan.

4.0

SIGNIFICANT RISKS

4.1

There are no significant risks identified with the revised policies. Outdated policies
however, can leave an organisation at risk. Old policies may fail to comply with new
laws and regulations and may not address new systems or technology, which can
result in inconsistent practices.

5.0

POLICY CONTEXT AND CONSULTATION

5.1

Full trade union consultation has taken place and the revised policies have been
approved by Strategic Management Board. Final ratification by Elected Members will

POLICY AND RESOURCES

Page 195

4 FEBRUARY 2021

complete the consultation process prior to implementation.
REPORT
6.0

REPORT DETAILS

6.1

HR policies are a written description of rights and responsibilities of employers and
employees. If a policy is well developed and clearly written, it helps communication
with employees, clarifies expectations and makes sure that everyone is treated in a
consistent and fair way. These are all important factors for creating a desirable culture
for the organisation, and they minimise exposure to legal risk.

6.2

Leave Policy
The revised leave policy brings together information, guidance and entitlements from
numerous other documents on the various types of leave employees are able to
access. It covers the authorities’ legal obligations to provide time off in various
circumstances, plus any additional entitlements commonly paid in public sector
organisations, for example, compassionate leave, jury service, medical appointments,
bereavement leave and annual leave and provides information for managers and staff
concerning a plethora of various situations.
It should be noted that Maternity, Paternity, Adoption, Shared Parental Leave and
Parental Leave will be covered in a separate policy, under the heading Family Leave,
which is also under review and will follow for SMB’s perusal shortly.

6.3

Flexible Working Policy
The ‘right to request’ flexible working is a statutory entitlement for any employee with
26 weeks continuous service, however this policy has been written with this as a day
one right. The policy details various flexible working options such as flexitime, jobshare, compressed hours, term time working and how to manage a request, both from
an employee’s and manager’s perspective, including the right to appeal a decision.

7.0

IMPLICATIONS

7.1

The following implications have been identified:
(a)

Financial
There are no additional financial implications on the Council from the policy
revision.

(b)

Legal
None

(c)

Other (Equalities, Staffing, Planning, Health & Safety, Environmental, Crime &
Disorder)
None, other than as stated above

Name of Head of Service
Job Title
Author:
Telephone No:

Andrew Ellis
Head of HR

Emma Lawer, Senior HR Business Partner
07773 638430

POLICY AND RESOURCES

Page 196

4 FEBRUARY 2021

E-Mail Address:

emma.lawer@ryedale.gov.uk

Background Papers:
Appendix A: Leave Policy
Appendix B: Leave Policy Comparison Table
Appendix C: Flexible Working Policy
Appendix D: Flexible Working Policy Comparison Table

POLICY AND RESOURCES

Page 197

4 FEBRUARY 2021

This page is intentionally left blank

Leave Policy and Procedure

Document Control Sheet
Reference Number
Version Number
Document Author
Lead SMB Member
Ratifying Committee
Date Ratified
Date Policy Effective From
Next Review Date

HRLVE
01
Senior HR Business Partner
Head of HR
Policy & Resources Committee, Council

3 years from implementation

Unless this copy has been taken directly from Ryedale District Council’s intranet,
there is no assurance that this is the most up to date version.
This policy supersedes all previous issues.

Page 1 of 10

HRLVE01

Page 199

Table of Contents
Section
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11

12

13

14
15
16
17

Title
Purpose and Scope
Annual Leave
Outstanding Annual Leave
Carry Over and Untaken Leave
Annual Leave and Long Term Sickness Absence
Continuous Service
Continuous Service – Other Organisations
Bank Holiday Entitlement
Flexitime Leave
Time Off In Lieu (TOIL)
Credited Medical Appointments
Routine GP, Dental and Optician Appointments
Fertility Treatment
Gender Reassignment
Antenatal Appointments
Other Paid Leave
Compassionate Leave
Public Service
Jury Service
Attending Court as a Witness
Election Duties
Service in Non-regular Forces or Army Reserve
Study and Exam Leave
Interview Leave
Unpaid Leave
Dependents Leave
Emergency/Special Leave
Religious Festivals, Holidays and Cultural Needs
Buying and Selling Leave
Strike/Industrial Action
Adverse Weather Conditions
Family Related Leave

Page

Page 2 of 10

HRLVE01

Page 200

1.

Purpose and Scope

1.1.

This policy applies to all employees of Ryedale District Council on NJC terms and
conditions, however excludes those on Chief Officer terms and conditions.

2.

Annual Leave

2.1

The annual leave year runs from 1 April to 31 March. Your annual leave is calculated
on your length of continuous service in local government, as determined below.
Leave Entitlement/Period of Continued Service
0-5 Years

5+ Years

25 Days

30 Days

2.2

Statutory holiday entitlement is 28 days including public/bank holidays. This equates
to 5.6 weeks for someone working five days a week. Ryedale District Council offer an
additional 5 days leave entitlement from the point at which employment commences.
If you work part time, your annual leave and bank holiday entitlement, will be
calculated on a pro-rata basis.

2.3

Entitlement accrues from the first day of employment and takes account of relevant
continuous local government service, as per the NJC Green Book.

2.4

Annual leave is bookable via MyView. Leave is not approved until confirmation of
authorisation has been received from your line manager, and as such employees are
advised not to book vacations where there will be a financial commitment until the
approval process has been confirmed.

3.

Outstanding Annual Leave

3.1

Where an employee leaves the employment of the council, staff will be expected to
take all of their apportioned annual leave entitlement during their notice period, up to
their date of leaving, to be agreed with their line manager. Payment for untaken leave
would not normally be permitted and will only be sanctioned with agreement from
SMB under exceptional circumstances.

3.2

Where an employee has taken in excess of their annual leave entitlement at their
date of leaving then this will be recovered from their final salary payment. It is the line
manager’s responsibility to notify ESS of this in the leavers form.

3.3

For full time employees the calculation will be based on 1 / 5th of a week’s pay for
each day. For part time employees then the calculation will be based on the number
of hours outstanding.

4.

Carry over and untaken Annual Leave

4.1

It is the responsibility of the employee to request leave and obtain approval from their
line manager as far in advance as possible. Managers will try to accommodate
Page 3 of 10

HRLVE01

Page 201

individual’s needs and commitments outside of work wherever possible. However,
leave may not be approved where it cannot be accommodated for business reasons.
4.2

It is the responsibility of all line managers to regularly review and monitor the
utilisation of annual leave for each member of their team throughout the year, to
ensure the requirement to carry over leave into the next year is avoided or, where
this is not practicable, kept to a minimum.

4.3

In exceptional circumstances, if an employee is unable to take all of their leave in the
current leave they can, with the agreement of their line manager and Head of Service
authorisation, carry over a maximum of five day’s annual leave (pro rata for part time
employees) to the next leave year. Annual leave cannot be rolled up, year on year,
and it is a requirement that any additional leave is taken before 31st May within the
current leave year in order to manage annual leave effectively.

4.4

In exceptional circumstances, where the demands of the service do not allow for
carry-over of annual leave or when, due to an employee leaving the council or where
an employee’s contract has been terminated, it is not possible for them to take the
leave to which they are entitled, it is possible for the line manager to seek approval
for payment in lieu of untaken annual leave. Approval can only be authorised by a
Head of Service after discussion with HR.

4.5

Payment in lieu of untaken annual leave is restricted to a maximum of 5 days leave,
pro rata for part time employees. In this instance all employees must have taken the
statutory minimum holidays (20 days) plus 8 bank holidays.

4.6

Any requests approved under 4.3, 4.4 and 4.5 will be reported to SMB as part of
standard reporting.

5.

Annual Leave and Long Term Sickness Absence

5.1

Annual leave accrues at the normal rate during periods of absence from work relating
to sickness absence. For further details, please consult the Absence Management
Policy.

6.

Continuous Service

6.1

Entitlements to annual leave, maternity pay, sick pay entitlements and redundancy
pay are calculated on continuous service (service that is unbroken). This includes
continuous previous service with any public authority to which the Redundancy
Payments (Continuity of Employment in Local Government, etc.) (Modifications)
Order 1999 applies. Continuous service is broken when:
 The employee has previously received a redundancy payment from one of the
organisations listed in the Order;
 There was a break between jobs of over seven days (running from Sunday to
Saturday) which was not as a result of redundancy;
 That due to redundancy, the employee had a break of over four weeks between
jobs with organisations listed in the Order (even if they were not eligible for a
redundancy payment). Please consult HR for further advice.
Page 4 of 10

HRLVE01

Page 202

6.2

For employees who complete 5 years’ service their annual leave enhancement will
increase on a pro-rata basis from the date of the service anniversary.

7.

Continuous Service - Other Organisations

7.1

Where an employee has joined Ryedale District Council from one of the named
discretionary organisations to those public bodies covered under the Redundancy
Payments (Continuity of Employment in Local Government etc.) (Modification) Order
1999 and amendments, and their service is unbroken there is a discretionary
provision to have this service recognised as continuous for the purposes of leave
entitlements where the service is relevant to the role within the council and / or it
would be in the best interests of the service for recruitment and retention purposes.
Such recognition would be entirely at the discretion of Ryedale District Council as
agreed by SMB.

8.

Bank Holiday Entitlement

8.1

All employees are entitled to public holidays as paid leave and for part-time
employees this is a pro-rata calculation:
New Year's Day - 1 January (or first normal working day thereafter)
Good Friday - Friday immediately before Easter Sunday
Easter Monday - Monday immediately after Easter Sunday
May Day - first Monday in May
Spring or Whitsuntide - last Monday in May
Late Summer / August - last Monday in August
Christmas Day - 25 December (or first normal working day thereafter)
Boxing Day - 26 December (or first normal working day thereafter).

8.2

Public holiday entitlement reflects the public holidays that are scheduled within each
‘leave’ year, whilst this is typically eight days per year, depending on where Easter
falls it could be more or less and will be pro-rata for those on part-time contracts.

9.

Flexitime Leave

9.1

Grades 1 – 10 are entitled to work Flexitime, subject to the roles undertake in the
organisation and business need.

9.2

Flexi leave is subject to prior authorisation and should be recorded on the timesheet.

9.2

One full day or two half days flexible leave may be taken in any one calendar month.
Line Managers must take care not to approve flexible leave which may result in debit
hours in excess of the permitted level of 7 hours 24 at the end of any accounting
period.

9.3

Please refer to the Flexible Working Policy for further information.

10.

Time off in Lieu (TOIL)

10.1

Time off in Lieu (TOIL) is defined as time taken off to compensate for planned time
worked in addition to contracted hours. This should only be worked with prior
agreement by the Head of Service. There is no provision for overtime to be paid
Page 5 of 10

HRLVE01

Page 203

under TOIL. Any TOIL time taken back should be agreed in advance with the Line
Manager and must be taken within three months of the hours worked. Maximum
hours worked should be in conjunction with the Working Time Directive which states
that employees should not work more than a 48 hours working week unless an ‘opt
out’ form has been signed and returned to be placed on the employee’s personal file.
11.

Credited Medical Appointments
Where possible non routine medical appointments, should be made outside of normal
working hours, or at the beginning or end of the working day. Where this is not
possible, time off with pay will be given for attendance of such appointments for the
actual time spent away from work (excluding travel time) up to a maximum of the
standard day or part day.
Staff should provide evidence of the appointment upon request.
Routine GP, Dental and Optician Appointments

11.1

Wherever possible the above appointments should be made outside of normal
working hours, or at the beginning or end of the working day. Where this is not
possible, alternative methods of leave should be taken.
Antenatal Appointments

11.2

Entitlement: All pregnant employees are entitled to paid time off to attend antenatal
appointments. Time off for antenatal care should be paid at the employee’s normal
rate of pay. Antenatal care may include relaxation and parent craft classes, as well as
medical examinations related to the pregnancy. The entitlement to paid time off for
antenatal appointments applies regardless of the employee’s length of service. This
paid entitlement is also extended to fathers and partners to attend up to two antenatal
appointments. The employer can ask for appointment cards/evidence except for the
very first appointment.
Fertility Treatment

11.3

Entitlement: Credited medical leave for hospital appointments up to a maximum
of ten visits per annum, pro-rata for part-time staff.

11.4

Wherever possible, employees should attend fertility clinics/hospital for treatment
during their own time and attend work before and after their visit to the fertility clinic.
Most fertility clinics work extended hours to provide treatment so employees should
be able to make early or late appointments to minimise disruption to their working
day.

11.5

However, if employees have to attend clinic/hospital visits during work time for
consultation and pre-surgery treatment they will receive credit of the actual time
taken from their standard working day up to a maximum of ten visits in total per
annum, pro-rata for part-time staff. An appointment card/letter must be shown to the
line manager.

Page 6 of 10

HRLVE01

Page 204

11.6

Post-surgery recuperation will be under the provisions of the occupational sickness
scheme of Ryedale District Council.
Gender Reassignment

11.7

Entitlement: Credited medical leave for hospital appointments up to a maximum of
10 visits per annum, pro-rata for part-time staff. Employee will use their own time for
other treatment.

11.8

Employees attending hospital visits for consultation and pre-surgery treatment will
receive credit of the actual time taken from their standard working day up to a
maximum of ten visits in total per annum, pro-rata for part-time staff. An appointment
card/letter must be shown to the line manager.

11.9

Post-surgery recuperation will be under the provisions of the council occupational
sickness scheme.

12.

Other Paid Leave
Compassionate Leave

12.1

Entitlement: Up to 5 days’ paid leave in any one leave year may be approved for
attending dependants at a time of serious illness, or for bereavement of a close
relative. A close relative is defined as Partner, Spouse, Parent, Grandparent, Child,
Grandchild and Sibling. In the case of part-time staff, leave is pro rata.

12.2

For all other relatives not included in the definition above other leave arrangements
will need to apply e.g. annual leave, flexi-leave or toil.

12.3

Should further days be needed, special leave (unpaid) could be
requested. Alternatively, flexi-leave, TOIL or annual leave could be used.
Public Service

12.4

Entitlement: A maximum of 12 days’ paid leave can be agreed to allow staff to serve
on a public body, or to undertake public duties, for example, a magistrate, a justice of
the peace, member of a local authority (parish or district council), statutory tribunal,
NHS trust, health authority, prison board of visitor, or school governor, service with
non-regular forces, retained fire-fighter duties and attending related training. Staff
should give as much notice as possible of requests for absence.
Jury Service

12.5

Entitlement: Time off with pay is given to employees required to do Jury Service.
Salary will be reduced up to a maximum of any loss of earnings which may be
claimed (excluding travel and subsistence payments). When an employee is called
for jury service the court service issues the employee with a pack which includes a
form for the employer to complete relating to earnings. This form may advise that it
does not need to be completed if your employer is intending to pay you in full,
however please speak to your Line Manager prior to your service as they will need to
undertake the necessary administration and advise what you need to do upon
completion of the Jury Service. The court service will make a payment to employees
Page 7 of 10

HRLVE01

Page 205

for loss of earnings. Following their Jury Service, the employee must send the details
of the payment the court has made to their Line Manager. The amount paid will be
deducted from the employee’s next salary payment.
Attending Court as a Witness
12.6

Entitlement: A maximum of two days’ paid leave will be given to anyone requested to
attend court as a witness, beyond which the employee can utilise annual leave, flexi
leave or unpaid leave. Employees must provide evidence of the request to attend
court. Authorisation will be granted subject to business continuity being unaffected.
Election Duties

12.7

Entitlement: Staff who carry out election duties for county, district, parish, or general
elections (undertaken in the region) will be paid for these duties by the district body.
However, as this is a long day Ryedale District Council will also give the employee
paid time off for their normal working day.
Service in non-regular forces or Army Reserve

12.8

Entitlement: Employees who are registered Reservists should notify their employers
of this. Ryedale District Council will pay up to 12 working days to attend annual
camps and other training events related to military matters.
Study and Exam Leave

12.9

Entitlement: Special leave will be granted for the day on which any examinations
which are part of approved courses are taken (including those after normal office
hours). In addition, revision leave of up to 5 working days may be granted leading
up to the examination date. This entitlement is per academic year.
Interview Leave

12.10 Entitlement: You may be granted leave of absence with pay of a maximum of one
day per annum for the purpose of attending an interview for Ryedale District Council
or another Local Authority.
13.

Unpaid Leave
Dependants Leave

13.1

Entitlement: Reasonable time off can be requested when an emergency arises
regarding a dependent, for example a child, parent, spouse or other householder.
The employees Line Manager should act reasonably when considering such
requests.

13.2

It is inevitable that emergencies and unforeseen situations involving dependants will
arise from time to time. Ryedale District Council would wish to allow the employee
enough time to cope with the crisis, e.g. to deal with the immediate care of a child,
and to make longer term care arrangements.

13.3

Reasons for taking time off in relation to a dependant are broadly defined as:
Page 8 of 10

HRLVE01

Page 206






Help a dependant who is ill, has been injured or assaulted, or gives birth
Arrange care for a dependant who is ill or injured
Deal with the death of a dependant
Deal with an incident involving their child during school hours

13.4

Time off under the scheme can only be taken in relation to certain needs of a
"dependant". A dependant is anyone who, in relation to the employee is: a spouse, a
child, a parent, a person who lives in the same household otherwise by reason of
being their employee, tenant, lodger or boarder, any person who reasonably relies on
the employee to make arrangements for the provision of care.

13.5

Staff need to tell their Line Manager the reason for the absence and their expected
return date as soon as is reasonably practicable. This need not be in writing.
Emergency/Special Leave

13.6

Entitlement: Unpaid leave can be granted to deal with serious home or domestic
problems or other unforeseen emergencies, at the manager’s discretion. This is a
provision for one-off emergency situations and should not be used on a regular, nonemergency basis or where other types of leave may be used i.e. annual, flexi or lieu
time. Its main purpose is to give the employee time to deal with the emergency or
make arrangements to have it dealt with. This leave should not be longer duration
than is necessary to reasonably deal with the particular issue.

13.7

This must be approved by your Line Manager and is generally expected to be used
for shorter periods of leave.
Religious Festivals, Holidays and Cultural Needs

13.8

Many religions have specific days or periods throughout the year that involve
additional religious observances for followers. The nature, duration and requirements
vary depending upon the holy day or religious festival, and can also vary depending
on the personal religious beliefs of an individual.

13.9

Employers are under no legal obligation to grant a religious-based request for time
off. However, RDC believes it is good practice to accommodate as many of these
requests as can be balanced against the needs of the business, but it is also
important to ensure that such requests are handled in a tactful and consistent
manner. Managers should be aware that whilst showing some consideration to a
religious group during holy days and festivals can be beneficial, it is also important
not to disproportionately favour that group to the disadvantage of colleagues with
different (or no) religious beliefs. Time off should therefore be negotiated with the
line manager using annual leave, flexi-leave, unpaid leave or lieu time.

14.

Buying and Selling Leave

14.1

Staff can apply to buy or sell additional annual leave and spread the cost across the
rest of the leave year. The cost to the employee will be based on their basic salary
worked out as 1/5th of a week’s pay for each day unpaid leave day taken. This will be

Page 9 of 10

HRLVE01

Page 207

taken from gross pay and therefore saving on National Insurance contributions and
tax.
14.2

Once the request has been approved by the Head of Service, the line manager will
need to contact payroll to arrange for the deductions to be taken over the remainder
of the leave year.

14.3

This can cover unpaid leave for a variety of situations including but not limited to
additional annual leave, bad weather, doctor, dentist and opticians’ appointments,
study leave, religious festivals/holidays.

14.4

Further details are available in the Collective Agreement.

15.

Strike/Industrial Action

15.1

Any industrial action is a form of breach of contract and as such is unpaid.

15.2

Annual leave - late requests for annual leave on dates when strike/industrial action
will take place will not be approved, unless managers have ensured that essential
cover is in place. For the same reason ad hoc requests to work from home on that
day will not be approved. Leave requests already approved will be honoured if
possible, but managers may need to withdraw approval to cover services if required.

15.3

Child care arrangements - schools may close due to strike/industrial action. Where
staff have school age children it is their responsibility to plan alternative child care
arrangements so that they can attend work normally if they are not taking part in the
industrial action. Any late leave requests to cover childcare if approved will be under
‘special leave’ provision and will be unpaid.

15.4

Sick leave - staff who are off sick on the day of action, are required to complete a
self-certificate note on their return. If they do not ring in or the manager is not
satisfied that it was in fact a genuine sickness absence pay will be withheld.

16.

Adverse Weather Conditions

16.1

If adverse weather conditions occur and you are unable to get to your normal
workplace or are advised by the police not to travel, then you should work at home if
possible. If you do not feel confident to travel, then try to arrange to get into work by
car sharing or using public transport.

16.2

If none of these options are available, other options should be considered; flexi leave,
unpaid leave, annual leave.

17.

Family Related Leave

17.1

Information regarding maternity, paternity, adoption, shared parental leave and
parental leave is contained within the Family Leave Policy.

Page 10 of 10

HRLVE01

Page 208

Comparison Table
Reference Number
Version Number
Document Author
Lead SMB Member
Ratifying Committee

Leave Policy
HRLVE
01
Senior HR Business Partner
Head of HR
Policy & Resources Committee, Council

Background
No previous Leave Policy existed. Information regarding leave and time off from work was
covered in various locations on the Council’s intranet. This policy brings all the information
under one heading and compliments the Collective Agreement.
Section
Annual Leave

Outstanding
Annual Leave
Carry Over and
Untaken Leave

Annual Leave and
Long Term
Sickness
Continuous
Service

Bank Holiday
Entitlement
Flexitime Leave
Time off in lieu
(TOIL)
Medical
Appointments
Other Paid Leave

Old Policy/Information
Intranet and Statement of
Particulars - Old leave
entitlement based on grade and
length of service
Intranet - Guidance on leaving
the Council and leave
Intranet - Only referenced the
carry forward of leave in excess
of 1 week, no provision to ensure
full entitlement taken and carry
forward should be an exception.

Absence management policy

New Policy
Leave entitlement updated in line
with the Collective Agreement –
based on length of service only
Guidance on booking leave
No change – fuller explanation
Guidance to encourage
managers and employees to
ensure leave entitlement taken
to minimise necessity to carry
forward leave to the next year
and support employee health
and wellbeing.
No change

Not directly referenced anywhere No change to definition (defined
in law), clearer explanation and
guidance in line with legal
definitions
Intranet and statement of
No change
particulars
Intranet – flexi system guidance
No change, references Flexible
Working Policy
Intranet – flexi system guidance
No change – clearer guidance
Clearer guidance on time off for
medical appointments
Intranet
 Compassionate Leave
 Time off for public duties –
referenced but no explanation
 Interviews with other LAs

Unpaid Leave

Intranet

Buying and Selling
Leave

No previous entitlement

Page 209

 No change to entitlement
 Full explanation of all types of
public duties and permitted
time off
 No change
Greater detail regarding types of
unpaid leave
New entitlement, as agreed
under the Collective Agreement

Strike/Industrial
Action
Adverse Weather
Conditions

No previous information found

Clearer guidance provided.

Intranet – Guidance allowed for
credit of core time only (10-12, 23.30) missed at line manager’s
discretion if genuinely unable to
get in to work or work from home

Family Related
Leave

Referenced and referred to
individual policies for Maternity,
Paternity and Parental Leave

There is no automatic legal right
for a worker to be paid for
working time they have missed
because of travel disruption or
bad weather. Previous guidance
meant there was a risk of
inconsistent application.
Updated guidance is clearer.
Referenced in new policy - Being
covered by a separate policy
covering all family related leave.

Page 210

Flexible Working Policy
Document Control Sheet
Reference Number
Version Number
Document Author
Lead SMB Member
Ratifying Committee
Date Ratified
Date Policy Effective From
Next Review Date

HRFWP
01
Senior HR Business Partner
Head of HR
Policy & Resources

3 years from implementation

Unless this copy has been taken directly from Ryedale District Council’s intranet,
there is no assurance that this is the most up to date version.
This policy supersedes all previous issues.

HRFWP01

Page 211

Page 1 of 10

Table of Contents
Section
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
App A
App B

HRFWP01

Title
Introduction
What is Flexible Working
Types of Flexible Working
The Needs of the Organisation
Eligibility
Submission of Flexible Working Requests
Meetings Regarding Flexible Working
Responding to a Flexible Working Request
Right to Appeal
Trialling New Working Arrangements
Varying and Employee’s Contract
Complaints
Manager Responsibilities
Flexible Working Request Application
Flexitime Scheme

Page 212

Page

Page 2 of 10

1.

Introduction

1.1

Ryedale District Council are committed to the development of flexible working
practices that ensure our workforce is effectively deployed to support improvements to
service delivery, and the development of a flexible, high performing and agile
workforce. The Council recognises that a better work-life balance can improve
employee motivation, performance and productivity, and reduce stress. Therefore the
Council wants to support its employees achieve a better balance between work and
their other priorities, such as caring responsibilities, leisure activities, further learning
and other interests. The organisation is committed to agreeing any flexible working
arrangements, provided that the needs and objectives of both the organisation and the
employee can be met.

1.2

It is the organisation's policy to encourage open discussion with employees. An
employee who thinks they may benefit from flexible working is encouraged to contact
their line manager to talk about the options. This policy has been written in
conjunction with ACAS guidelines and the ACAS Code of Practice on making and
responding to flexible working requests. For more info visit www.acas.org.uk

2.

What is Flexible Working

2.1

Flexible working is any type of working arrangement that gives some degree of
flexibility on how long, where and when an employee works.

3.

Definitions and types of Flexible Working

3.1

Flexitime (grades 1-10 inclusive) allows an employee to choose, within certain
parameters, how to schedule their working time. An employee is contracted to work for
a set number of hours per week, however, within reason can work in excess of this or
slightly short of this within a given timeframe. Their hours of attendance will be
recorded and added up at the end of each accounting period. An employee can carry
over an excess of up to 14:48 hours or a deficit of up to 7:24 hours from one
accounting period to another. A deficit of hours should be made up in the following
accounting period. Excess hours may be used to either reduce attendance outside of
core hours or, take additional leave (flexi-leave), subject to a maximum of 1full day in
any accounting period. Additional leave should be requested and agreed with the
employee’s line manager in the same way as annual leave. Employees will not have
to apply for flexitime as this will be linked to the job role undertaken. However
not all jobs roles are suitable for flexitime

3.2

Compressed hours is where an employee works their usual full time hours in fewer
days by working longer blocks meaning that there is no reduction in their pay. For
example, a 5-day week is compressed into four days, or a 10-day fortnight into 9 days.

3.3

Home-working is when an employee regularly carries out all, or part of, their duties
from home rather than the employer’s premises. The organisation can consider a
request for home-working being an occasional agreed day, a mix of home and office
based work each week or a full time arrangement.
Job-sharing is an arrangement where a full-time post is divided into two part-time
roles. The two job holders then share the overall duties and responsibilities. Their skills
and the hours each employee wishes to work must be compatible, and meet the needs
of the organisation. Pay and benefits are shared in proportion to the hours each works.
Job sharing can be considered where the creation of a single part-time post is difficult,

3.4

HRFWP01

Page 213

Page 3 of 10

or where two individuals wish to work part-time. The suitability of posts for job-sharing
will be stated in any internal or external advertisements. –
3.5

Term-time working is where an employee reduces their hours and pay whilst taking
time off during school holidays. Any weeks above their annual leave entitlement will be
unpaid. Salary is paid in 12 equal monthly instalments.

4.

The needs of the organisation

4.1

The organisation is committed to providing a range of appropriate working patterns.
However employees and management need to be realistic and to recognise that not all
flexible working options will be appropriate for all roles.

4.2

Where a flexible working arrangement is proposed, the individual and the organisation
will need to take into account a number of criteria including (but not limited to) the
following:










the costs associated with the proposed arrangement
the effect of the proposed arrangement on other staff
the need for, and effect on, supervision
the existing structure of the department
the availability of staff resources
details of the tasks specific to the role
the workload of the role
whether it is a request for a reasonable adjustment related to a disability
health and safety issues

5.

Eligibility

5.1

Any employee with at least 26 weeks of employment service has a statutory right to
request flexible working. However the Council has taken the view that employees in all
areas, and at any level, are entitled to submit a request for flexible working regardless
of their length of service (non-statutory request).

5.2

Flexitime will automatically apply to all full time and part time employees, below grade
11, except those whose work is such that it would be impracticable to perform unless
there is adherence to fixed hours. Employees will be excluded from the scheme if it is
impracticable to arrange duties to allow flexibility. Further information on flexitime and
recording hours worked is at Appendix B (incorrect – this is the application form)

6.

Submitting a flexible working request

6.1

All employees are entitled to submit one flexible working request in a 12 month period
(an employee is entitled to additional requests if they relate to a statutory entitlement,
for example the Equality Act 2010 right to request reasonable adjustments).

6.2

All requests must be made in writing by completing a Flexible Working Request
application form (Appendix A) which is available on the intranet and submitting this to
the line manager. Any request made must include:
 the date of the application
 the changes that the employee is seeking to their terms and conditions
 the date from when the employee would like the proposed change to come into
effect

HRFWP01

Page 214

Page 4 of 10

 what effect the employee thinks the requested change would have on the
organisation
 how, in their view, any such effect could be dealt with
 whether this is a statutory or non-statutory request
 whether a previous application for flexible working has been made
 the dates of any previous applications
6.3

If the employee is making the request in relation to the Equality Act, e.g. as a
reasonable adjustment relating to a disability, this should be made clear in the
application.

6.4

Employees may be asked to re-submit an application if it does not contain all of the
required information.

7.

Meetings regarding flexible working

7.1

Upon receiving a written request for flexible working the manager will seek to arrange
a meeting with the employee, within 28 days of receiving the request (this time limit
may be extended with the agreement of both parties), to:
 discuss the request
 find out more about the proposed working arrangements
 how it could be of benefit to both the employee and organisation

7.2

7.3

The employee will be given advance notice of the time, date and place of the meeting.
If the initial date is problematic then one further date will be proposed. If a face to face
meeting is difficult to arrange then, if agreed by the employee and line manager, the
meeting may be held over the phone or via Microsoft Teams.
At the meeting the employee may, if they wish, be accompanied by a workplace
colleague or a trade union representative. Managers may be accompanied by a HR
representative

7.4

If the employee fails to attend a meeting and then fails to attend a rearranged meeting
without good reason, their application will be deemed to have been withdrawn.

7.5

Where a request can, without further discussion, be approved as stated in the
employee's written application, a meeting to discuss the request may not be
necessary. In this instance the employee will be informed of the organisation’s
agreement to the request by a confirmation letter as outlined in the section
‘Responding to a flexible working request’ within 28 days of the organisation receiving
the request. This time limit may be extended with the agreement of both parties.

8.

Responding to a flexible working request

8.1

The line manager will consider the proposed flexible working arrangements, looking at
the potential benefits and adverse effects to the employee and to the organisation in
implementing the proposed changes. HR advice should be sought where managers
are unsure of whether the request can be accommodated.

8.2

Each request will be considered on a case-by-case basis. Agreeing to one request will
not set a precedent or create the right for another employee to be granted a similar
change to their working pattern.

HRFWP01

Page 215

Page 5 of 10

8.3

The employee will be informed in writing by their manager of the organisation’s
decision as soon as is reasonably practicable, but no later than 14 days after the
meeting.

8.4

The request may be granted in full, in part or refused. The organisation may propose a
modified version of the request, the request may be granted on a temporary basis, or
the employee may be asked to try the flexible working arrangement for a trial period. If
the request is agreed then the employee will be sent a confirmation letter which will
include details of the new arrangements. The employee should contact their line
manager within 14 days if they wish to discuss the new arrangements further, or have
any concerns.

9.

Right to appeal decision

9.1

The employee has the right to appeal the decision if their request is refused or is only
agreed in part.

9.2

The employee may lodge an appeal within 14 days of being notified of a decision on
their application. This should be done in writing to the relevant Head of Service and
clearly state the grounds on which they are appealing. The appeal will be heard within
14 days. The employee will then be informed of the outcome to their appeal within 14
days of the appeal meeting. These time limits may be extended with the agreement of
both parties.

10. Trialling new working arrangements

11.

10.1

Where there is some uncertainty about whether the flexible working arrangement
is practicable for an employee and/or the organisation a trial period may be
agreed. If a trial period is arranged the organisation will allow up to 12 weeks for
an employee and their manager to implement and become used to the new
working practices before taking any decisions on the viability of a new
arrangement. Feedback on the trial working arrangements should be discussed
at regular intervals to try to overcome and issues or teething problems.

10.2

Where a trial period has been arranged the organisation will provide the
employee with a document that details their new working pattern and makes clear
that it is only a temporary variation to the terms of the employee's contract. The
employee will be informed in writing of the start and end dates of the trial period
(although the organisation may reduce or lengthen the trial period where
necessary with the agreement of the employee). The organisation will reserve the
right, at the end of the agreed trial period, to require the employee to revert to
their previous working arrangement. The employee may also request a return to
their previous working arrangement, during the trial and no later than the end of
the agreed trial period.

Varying an employee’s contract

11.1 Where flexible working practices are agreed as a permanent change, a variation will
need to be made to the employee’s contract of employment. A new contract of
employment will be sent to the employee within 28 days of the change to the
employee’s working pattern being agreed. It is the line manager’s responsibility to
notify Employment Support Services (ESS) of any contractual changes using the
appropriate forms.

HRFWP01

Page 216

Page 6 of 10

If the employee has any questions or concerns about the new contract of employment
they should contact their line manager to discuss the matter further.
11.2 Where a trial period has been arranged the organisation will provide the employee with
a document that details their new working pattern and makes clear that it is only a
temporary variation to the terms of the employee's contract. The employee will be
informed in writing of the start and end dates of the trial period (although the
organisation may reduce or lengthen the trial period where necessary with the
agreement of the employee). The organisation will reserve the right, at the end of the
agreed trial period, to require the employee to revert to their previous working
arrangement. The employee may also request to revert to their previous working
arrangement
11.3 Managers may choose to agree to the flexible working request on an initial 12 month
basis and after this will be reviewed. If agreed following review then this working
arrangement becomes contractual.
12.

Complaints and further information

12.1 The organisation is strongly opposed to any form of victimisation of individuals who
work, or request to work under flexible working arrangements.
12.2 If an employee feels that they have been treated unfairly or are dissatisfied with any
stage of the flexible process, they should raise their concerns informally with their line
manager in the first instance in line with the Resolving Issues at Work Policy or speak
to a member of HR.
13.

Managers Responsibilities

13.1 Managers should ensure that at all times the maintenance of service to the public is
foremost in priority in the application of this scheme. The paramount importance of
such a scheme is that there should be no detriment to the level of service provided to
the public.
13.2 The Line Manager is responsible for monitoring the working arrangements of their
employees. At the end of each calendar month the Line Manager should access their
employees’ timesheets to ensure working hours are acceptable and not too excessive.

13.3 Managers are responsibility for notifying any necessary individuals/departments of a
change to working arrangements (e.g ESS for contractual changes, work colleagues of
changes to working patterns where is may affect communication or service delivery).

HRFWP01

Page 217

Page 7 of 10

Appendix A
Application for Flexible Working
Name

Contact No

Job Title

Dept

Line
Manager

Date

Please complete the following and submit to your line manager:
Please give details of the changes you are seeking to your working arrangements:

What date would like these to come into effect?
What effect, if any, do you think this change will have on your workload, responsibilities
and the wider team/organisation?

How, in your view, could this effect be dealt with?

Is this a statutory or non-statory request?

Statutory:

NonStatutory:

Is the request in relation to the Equality Act for
example as a reasonable adjustment relating
to disability?

Yes:

No

If the answer to the above s yes, please provide details

Have you made any previous requests for
flexible working
If yes, please provide dates of previous
requests

HRFWP01

Yes

Page 218

No

Page 8 of 10

Flexitime Scheme
Record Keeping
The FlexiSheet (timesheet) is available on the intranet and should be used by all employees
on the scheme. The timesheet is set up as an Excel spreadsheet, worksheets are provided
for each calendar month and times should be entered on a daily basis. The timesheet will
calculate based on each individuals working pattern which should be entered onto the sheet.
FlexiSheets should be stored in a shared location allowing access to both manager and
employee.
Any employee who records their time falsely may be subject to disciplinary action and
removed from the scheme.
The working day
Flexible arrival period
Flexible departure period

Up to 10:00 hrs
From 15:00hrs

The scheme is not intended to give extra leave, or for working irregular hours on a
permanent basis and as such all employees will normally follow a pattern of attendance,
which has previously been indicated and agreed with their line manager, to ensure efficient
delivery of the service.
Each employee will be responsible for ensuring that they work at least their contracted hours
in each calendar month, subject to the approved carry-overs.
All full time employees and those part time employees whose working day is greater than 6
hours must record a 30 minute break each day.
Carry over balance
Hours worked in excess of the required attendance time in any one accounting period may
be carried forward to the next period, subject to a maximum of 14 hours 48 minutes. Any
credit balance in excess of this will be lost.
No payment will be made for hours accumulated in excess of the carried forward limit.
In exceptional circumstances, where it is in the interest of maintaining a satisfactory level of
service, the Head of Service may give prior authorisation for an officer voluntarily to work
hours which are likely to result in accumulation of credit hours beyond the permitted carried
forward limit. In these circumstances the Head of Service may authorise the excess credit
hours beyond the permitted maximum to be carried forward to the following period or to be
recorded as TOIL.
A short fall of hours may be carried forward to the next period but must not exceed 7 hours
24 minutes. The deficit must be made up in the following accounting period. Annual leave
should not be used to decrease debit hours.
Recording absence
The following absences should be recorded on the FlexiSheet in line with the relevant
policies if appropriate:

HRFWP01

Page 219

Page 9 of 10

Element
Annual Leave

Associated Policy
Leave Policy

Flexible Leave

Leave Policy

Time Off in Lieu (TOIL)

Leave Policy

Sickness Absence

Absence Policy

External meetings and
training

Leave Policy

Credited Medical
Appointments

Leave Policy

Incidental Breaks

Comment
Time taken as annual leave to be entered
into the ‘Annual Leave’ column of the
FlexiSheet.
1 full day or 2 half days per month. Flexi
leave is subject to prior authorisation and
should be booked through MyView.
Any TOIL time taken back should be
agreed in advance with the Line Manager
and must be taken within three months of
the hours worked.
Credit given on the basis of the standard
working day
Actual hours spent, including travel time
above that usually incurred from home to
place of work
Full details of credited medical
appointments can be found in the Leave
Policy
Smoking/vaping, prayer breaks and any
other incidental breaks should be recorded
as a debit.

Part-time employees and Additional Hours
If a part time employee is required to work extra hours this should be recorded as on the
FlexiSheet and managed through the flexitime process. In exceptional circumstances the
Line Manager may authorise payment for additional hours.
Overtime
Employees on the Flexitime Scheme will not normally receive payment for overtime,
additional hours will be recorded on the FlexiSheet and managed through the flexitime
scheme, taken as flexi leave or, with the line manager’s approval, be recorded as TOIL
hours.
In exceptional circumstances, managers may authorise the payment of overtime in line with
the Collective Agreement.
Leaving the Council
Employees leaving the service of the Council must ensure that no debit balances remain at
the end of their period of notice or the final salary payment may be adjusted accordingly.

HRFWP01

Page 220

Page 10 of 10

Comparison Table
Reference Number
Version Number
Document Author
Lead SMB Member
Ratifying Committee

Flexible Working Policy
HRFWP
01
Senior HR Business Partner
Head of HR
Policy & Resources Committee

Background
Flexible working was previously covered by two policies: Flexible Working Guidance and
Flexible Working Request Procedure. This policy brings all the information under one
heading.
Section
What is Flexible
Working
Types of Flexible
Working
The Needs of the
Organisation

Eligibility

Submission of
Flexible Working
Requests

Old Policy/Information
Inaccurate definition to cover all
flexible working variants.
Weak definitions
Criteria when considering a
flexible working request on the
flexible working request form but
not within body of policy
Available for all employees, with
at least 26 weeks service, to
request
The employee must make their
request in writing, 1 request in
any 12 month period

Meetings
Regarding Flexible
Working

The manager will arrange to
meet with the employee within
four weeks of receipt request.
Employees may be
accompanied at this meeting.

Responding to a
Flexible Working
Request

The manager will then write back
within two weeks of the meeting
either:
Accepting request
Confirming any compromise
offered
Rejecting request
Employees will have two weeks
in which to lodge an appeal, in
writing, against a refusal.

Right to Appeal

Trialling New
Working
Arrangements
Varying and
Employee’s
Contract

HRFWP Comparison

Page 221

New Policy
More comprehensive definition.
Full definitions and types of
flexible working provided
Criteria now in body of policy.
No change to criteria, defined in
law.
No change

No fundamental change Language updated, clearer
guidance given in line with ACAS
Code of Practice
No fundamental change Language updated, clearer
guidance/more detail given in
line with ACAS Code of Practice

No fundamental change Language updated, clearer
guidance/more detail given in
line with ACAS Code of Practice

No fundamental change Language updated, clearer
guidance/more detail given in
line with ACAS Code of Practice
New section giving clear
guidelines on the use of trial
periods
New section giving clear
guidelines on contractual
changes

Complaints
Manager
Responsibilities
Flexible Working
Request
Application
Flexitime Scheme

HRFWP Comparison

Old flexible working application
form but use of this was optional
when making an application.
Previously Flexible Working
Procedure

Page 222

New section – reference RIAW
Policy
New section giving clear
guidance for managers
Revised flexible working
application form to ensure all
relevant information captured for
efficient handling of requests
No changes to carry over
balances or core hours. Clearer
guidelines on recording hours.

Agenda Item 13b

REPORT TO:

FULL COUNCIL

DATE:

18 FEBRUARY 2021

SUBJECT:

PART ‘B’ REFERRALS FROM POLICY AND RESOURCES
COMMITTEE ON 4 FEBRUARY 2021

32

Milton Rooms Progress Report. And Grant Request

Considered – report of the Programme Director for Economic Development, Business and
Partnerships
Councillor Burr proposed and Councillor Riby seconded the following amendment:
Replace the recommendation to Full Council at (iii) with ‘RDC will ring fence half a million
pounds out of reserves to turn the Milton rooms in to a multi-functional, multi-usage arts /
dance destination in Ryedale for all Ryedale residents’ enjoyment. A detailed report be
drawn up with Officer support and presented to Council as soon as possible.’
Resolved
Upon being put to the vote, the amendment was lost.
Voting record
5 For
5 Against
Chair’s casting vote - Against
Decision of the Policy and Resources Committee
That:
(i)

Progress against the Milton Rooms Working Party interim report set out in sections
6.3 – 6.6 of the report is noted.

(ii)

The Business Plan of the Milton Rooms Committee covering the period 2020-2023 is
noted.
Recommendation to Full Council

Policy & Resources Committee recommends to council that it gives approval for capital
funding of up to £193k to fund works outlined in section 6.11 of the report, subject to receipt
of detailed plans, with delegated authority given to the Programme Director to release the
funds on a phased basis, in consultation with the Chairman of Policy & Resources
Committee.

Council

Page 223

18 February 2021

Voting record
8 For
2 Abstentions

Council

Page 224

18 February 2021

PART B:

RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL

REPORT TO:

POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE

DATE:

4 FEBRUARY 2021

REPORT OF THE:

PROGRAMME DIRECTOR FOR ECONOMIC
DEVELOPMENT, BUSINESS AND PARTNERSHIPS
PHILLIP SPURR

TITLE OF REPORT:

MILTON ROOMS PROGRESS REPORT, AND GRANT
REQUEST

WARDS AFFECTED:

ALL

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
1.0

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1

To present the Milton Rooms Working Party interim report summary.

1.2

To present the Business Plan of the Milton Rooms Committee covering the period
2020-2023.

1.3

To request a decision on a capital grant proposal from the Milton Rooms to support
building improvements as part of strategic developments.

2.0

RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1

It is recommended that:

3.0

(i)

Progress against the Milton Rooms Working Party interim report set out in
sections 6.3 – 6.6 is noted at P+R committee.

(ii)

The Business Plan of the Milton Rooms Committee covering the period 20202023 is noted at P+R committee.

(ii)

P+R recommends to council that it gives approval for capital funding of up to
£193k to fund works outlined in section 6.11, subject to receipt of detailed
plans, with delegated authority given to the programme director to release the
funds on a phased basis, in consultation with the chairman of P+R Committee.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE

Page 225

4 FEBRUARY 2021

3.1

3.2

The Milton Rooms Working Party Final Report (March 2020) recommended that an
interim report be produced which provides an update on progress made towards the
concluding recommendations. The recommendations were originally approved by P&R
on 19th March 2020.
The Milton Rooms Working Party Final Report (March 2020) stated that the Milton
Rooms Committee would like their forthcoming Business Plan to be presented to RDC
This Business Plan has since been developed further by the new board of trustees and
addresses key strategic areas for improvement. It is responsive to the
recommendations made in the Milton Rooms Working Party Report.

3.2

The grant request by the Milton Rooms Committee is to cover key capital projects at
the venue which are designed to improve the facilities, enhance public access and
support the developments outlined in the business plan. The works outlined would
provide a sound investment in the building infrastructure.

4.0

SIGNIFICANT RISKS

4.1

The Milton Rooms trustees regard the works outlined in the grant bid as a key aspect
of their development and recovery post-Covid. They seek funding from RDC as
landlord to support these building developments which they anticipate will be
instrumental as part of their financial recovery. Without agreement of financial support
there is concern that they will not be able to progress with the development plans for
the site and attract the audiences necessary to become financially viable. Officers
believe this investment would provide improved facilities throughout the building
providing a sound basis for business development and use in the long term.

4.2

There is a risk that any continued and long term impact of the Covid-19 pandemic and
consequent restrictions on venues operating normally, could mean that the Milton
Rooms Charity struggle to sustain the venue. A robust business plan and operating
model will mitigate these risks for the Milton Rooms Committee.

5.0

POLICY CONTEXT AND CONSULTATION

5.1

From November 2019, the Milton Rooms Working Party met once a month over a
period of five months, to explore and discuss the current operations and management
of the venue. A number of interested parties were invited to share their feedback on
the venue, its operations and suggestions for improvement. The trustees of the Milton
Rooms also attended.

5.2

The Working Party sessions concluded in March 2020 with a final report on the
outcomes of the meetings. The report contained a series of recommendations for the
Milton Rooms which were developed from the discussions and feedback obtained from
the sessions into an action plan. A request was made by the Milton Rooms trustees for
RDC to have sight of the new Milton Rooms Business Plan. It was also agreed that a
report summarising relevant updates as per the recommendations be submitted to
outline progress.

5.4

In respect of the grant request, the Working Party report also contained reference to
building improvements and stipulated that these are achieved with support from and
partnership with RDC, but which would be be considered on a case by case basis.

POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE

Page 226

4 FEBRUARY 2021

5.5

The Council Plan 2020-2024 highlights the ambition to support Ryedale’s Creative
Industries and expand the cultural offer. Investment in the building improvements
outlined would support that aim and widen opportunities for business and audience
development, as well as helping to build a financially sustainable community venue.

5.6

The Milton Rooms trustees and Venue Manager have also contributed feedback to the
consultants working on the North Yorkshire Cultural Strategy and will be developing
their programming using feedback from Ryedale’s own cultural consultation which
supports the Ryedale Cultural Action Plan.

REPORT
6.0

6.1

REPORT DETAILS
Milton Rooms Working Party Recommendations:
The Milton Rooms Working Party was set up in October 2019 (first meeting in
November 2019) to assess the current governance and operation of the venue and to
work with the Milton Rooms trustees to make recommendations for a sustainable and
financially viable way forward. The Working Party meetings were attended by a range
of invited guests from a range of backgrounds who had some experience of using or
managing the venue and who shared their views on how the site could be developed.

6.2

A report was produced once the Working Party sessions had completed which detailed
the evidence gathered and contained a series of recommendations. The following key
recommendation categories were covered:
 ‘Operations and Management’,
 ‘Maintenance’,
 ‘Malton Museum’, and
 ‘Support from RDC’.

6.3

Since then progress has been made and developments are continuing. These include:
 Recruitment of a number of new trustees to the board with a range of expertise.
 Fire safety review
 A new two year licence negotiated with Malton Museum to occupy the
subscription rooms
 Discussion to develop project with Malton Museum and others for Arts Council
funding bid.
 Revision of volunteer policies and procedures and recruitment of new
volunteers.
 Discussions to expand and diversify the programming with some scheduled
new acts
 Meeting held with arts development agency to consider partnerships and
funding opportunities.

The Milton Rooms are being supported by RDC’s Arts and Events Officer who is
working with the Trustees and Venue Manager to help identify opportunities, develop
arts programming and networking for partnership opportunities. This has included to
date
 introductions to music promoters for possible performances in 2021,
 a collaborative opportunity being developed with Orchestra’s North and North
Yorkshire Music Action Zone for an early years music programme in summer 2021,
 introductions to the arts development agency Arcade to explore options for a
POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE
4 FEBRUARY 2021
6.4

Page 227

collaborative bid to the Arts Council incorporating Malton Museum.
6.5

Feedback on the events that have taken place in periods when Covid-secure
performances were allowed to go ahead has been very good and encouraging. Positive
feedback has been received from the public on the events themselves as well as
positive feedback on the new operations from the performers and acts themselves.

6.6

The following key developments at the Milton Rooms throughout 2020 should also be
noted, which demonstrate their willingness to develop the site collaboratively and
strategically:
 a strategic approach to programming developed through community and
professional consultation
 volunteer and staff development through implementation of new policies and
procedures
 a new business plan addressing key areas of strategic development
 development of community networks across the district and programming for
local groups
 a renewed effort to work collaboratively both locally and regionally

Milton Rooms Business Plan:
The Working Party recommendations included the development of a Milton Rooms
Business Plan by the Committee. A first draft was outlined in the summer 2020 but
since the recruitment of new trustees this has been reviewed and updated by them. It
was agreed this would be shared with RDC for information.

6.7

6.8

The Business Plan takes in to account the recommendations in the Working Party
Report and details proposed developments for the next 2-3 years. This includes,
developments and improvements to the governance and management of the site, a
revised membership programme, improved volunteer recruitment and management, a
diversified arts programme and the development of a range of business opportunities.

6.9

The Milton Rooms Committee plan to make use of data and feedback from the Ryedale
culture consultation survey (completed October/November 2020) which should help
support strategic programming.

6.10

The Business Plan has been developed to strategically consider all aspects of the
venue and its potential but is realistic in its ambitions. The development of key policies
and actions relating to the volunteer team, the responsiveness to the recommendations
made by the Working Party and the open willingness to work with partners and explore
opportunities demonstrates a strong strategic direction for the site.

6.11




Grant Request:
The Milton Rooms Committee’s Business Plan identifies areas for capital
improvements which would improve the facilities and provide greater opportunity for
audience engagement and community use. This supports the plans the venue has for
developing new income streams and providing multifunctional community spaces for
event use such as wedding receptions. The areas identified for improvements are:
Toilet refurbishment throughout, new disabled toilet and baby changing facility,
wheelchair accessible lift from foyer to basement (Total cost £93,723.69)
New Sink to Bar area to provide new hand wash basin (Total £1,247.52 )

POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE

Page 228

4 FEBRUARY 2021









New Kitchen facilities to Assembly Rooms (Total £9,270.86 )
Refurbishment of Main Hall including plasterwork, painting, floor resurfacing and
improvements to stage steps (Total £18,080)
Black out curtains/blinds for building (Total £14,800.00)
Refurbishment of main Kitchen off the bar area (£10,000)
Wheelchair ramp from foyer to main hall (£535)
New Professional lighting rig and lanterns (£20,000)
New heating system/heaters for main hall (£25,000)
Total identified costs: £192,657.07

6.12

Details of the identified works have been sought and itemised in the attached grant
request.

6.13

Feedback from the public has consistently referenced the poor state of the toilets, that
they are shabby and smelly and that many are put off from using the venue due to this.
Members of the public have also referenced the main hall, that is unwelcoming and in
need of redecoration.

6.14

Other developments in the grant request are all aimed at improving the visitor
experience, improving the venues ability to better engage audiences, widening the
potential for community use and improving general public access. The developments
will support the Milton Rooms’ drive to be a sustainable community venue, and
respond to the venue’s business and community development plans and the
recommendations made in the Working Party Report.

Potential Council Investment:
6.15 RDC had previously ring-fenced £340,000 as match funding towards a Milton Rooms
grant bid to the National Lottery Heritage Fund in 2017. This bid was unsuccessful and
the money has since been moved back into the council’s reserves. It is confirmed that
while not ring-fenced for the Milton Rooms any more it is still available to request for
other projects. The Milton Rooms would like to request part of these funds (£193,000)
from the council’s reserves to support these identified improvements.
6.16

In terms of any requests for work from RDC outside of obligatory maintenance work,
the Working Party Report states ‘Requests from the Milton Rooms Committee for RDC
to fund maintenance or improvement capital works outside of the terms of the sublease
should be determined by RDC members on a case by case basis, on the same terms
as other venues in the district, and only upon receipt of full plans and rationale from
the operator.’ (p.26). This request is presented as one such case.

6.17

This investment support if offered will have multiple benefits for the whole district as
well as the Milton Rooms itself:
 It could help attract further external funding from external funders to help support
the arts development and community work.
 Investment in the facilities will support the Milton Rooms’ income generation plans
through diversifying activity, audience development and community use.
 In addition to developing their arts programming, the Milton Rooms wants to
develop the site to provide spacious and accessible community spaces for a wide
range of use by organisations and community groups across Ryedale. This
investment will support these aims.
 The improvements would also create opportunities to develop partnerships with
local businesses in Ryedale and support the site to develop its commercial offer.

POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE

Page 229

4 FEBRUARY 2021

6.18

Investing in the works outlined, would therefore support the arts development
opportunities for Malton and the district and provide multifunctional spaces and a fully
accessible building available for the whole Ryedale.

6.19

A decision is requested on whether the P&R committee will approve the request for
funds to go to full council.

7.0

IMPLICATIONS

7.1

The following implications have been identified:
a) Financial:
£193,000, to cover the cost of the works identified in the grant request. This
amount has been set out in the proposed Capital Programme in the revised
Financial Strategy, subject to Council approval.
b)

Legal
The grant being requested is for works outside of the maintenance remit of the
sub-lease between the Milton Rooms and RDC. If all or part of the financial request
is granted, the legal team can draw up a grant agreement with approved terms
and conditions. If requested any grant conditions could be presented to committee
for sign off before the award was made.

c)

Other (Equalities, Staffing, Planning, Health & Safety, Environmental, Crime &
Disorder)
All necessary health and safety protocols to be followed if the works outlined in
the grant request are to go ahead. These can be outlined in the terms and
conditions of any grant awarded.

Name of Head of Service Phillip Spurr
Job Title Programme Director for Economic Development, Business and Partnerships
Author:
Telephone No:
E-Mail Address:

Esther Graham, Arts and Events Officer
Tel: 07770372332
esther.graham@ryedale.gv.uk

Background Papers:
Milton Rooms Draft Business Plan and Grant Request
Background Papers are available for inspection at:
Location or web address

POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE

Page 230

4 FEBRUARY 2021

Milton Rooms Business Plan
2020-2023
Executive Summary
This Business Plan has been developed to provide a strategic framework for the Milton Rooms proposed
development over the next 1-3 years. It incorporates plans to develop and improve the governance, arts
and community programming and capital improvements to the building. The Milton Rooms charity is
committed to providing a quality arts and community hub for Ryedale.
Covid-19:
It should be noted that the COVID -19 pandemic has and will continue to impact the Milton Rooms and its
operations during the duration period this plan represents. Trustees are monitoring the situation
constantly and are working to ensure a manageable and sustainable programme which is flexible to
changing public health circumstances. This does mean however that some of the proposed activity and
targets are a guide only, as changes may have to be introduced to meet changing restrictions and
associated national or local guidance.

Contents:
1. The Milton Rooms Vision
2. Governance and Organisation
3. Partnerships
4. Facilities
5. Programme
6. Beyond Covid-19 – Capital grant request

Page 231

1. The Milton Rooms Vision:
We recognise the importance of the Milton Rooms as a community and arts facility which is also a great
asset to the prosperity of local restaurants, public houses and hotels. We intend to remain at the cultural
heart of life in Malton and Norton and the surrounding villages.
Our revised vision focuses on a modernisation programme which is urgently required to improve the
facilities that can be offered to the area of Ryedale as a hub for performing and visual arts with the
ambition and potential to attract performers and audiences to enjoy high quality events; also to provide
facilities for local organisations for meetings, conferences, workshops etc.
Future possibilities are also being considered where we could extend our opening hours to offer
refreshments to those shopping in the town.

2. Governance and Organisation:
During mid-2020 the Milton Rooms has undergone a significant managerial restructure of the trustees and
its chair which has led to a refocusing of the organisation’s vision.
During 2020, Covid-19 has had a limiting effect on the Venue Manager’s capabilities to move the Milton
Rooms forward in terms of revenue streaming but the post has proved invaluable when considering the
restraints and legislation required for when the venue can again operate at full capacity.
The trustees acknowledge the recommendations made in the Milton Rooms Working Party Report and
have incorporated these into the business plan. During these unprecedented Covid-19 times it is becoming
more evident that the Arts and cultural venues are more important than ever for the well-being of our
community.
2020-2023
Governance area
Board of Trustees

Volunteer development and
support

Milton Rooms Membership
Programme
Malton Museum

Objectives
 Increase trustee board numbers with new trustees
bringing specific expertise in areas such as finance,
inclusive arts, marketing, social media and website
 Recruit more volunteers and develop the volunteer
community
 Develop volunteer polices
 Establish regular volunteer/trustee meetings at the
venue
 Continued recognition and support for the existing and
new volunteers who have worked so hard to support
the Milton Rooms
 Revise the Milton Rooms membership programme and
develop a ‘friends’ group’
 Mutually agree on the outstanding tenancy issue for
the Subscription Rooms
 Collaborate on programming museum activity and
events in other spaces in the Milton Rooms.
 Explore options for a joint funding bid for collaborative
heritage project

Page 232



RDC

Continue to liaise with Ryedale District Council (RDC)
and work together to develop opportunities and
programming for the site.

3. Partnerships
The Milton Rooms have a renewed commitment to develop working partnerships with other cultural and arts
providers in Ryedale and beyond as well as working with local businesses and community groups. Our objective is to
make the Milton Rooms inclusive and accessible to all.
Partnerships opportunities are already being explored with organisations in Ryedale and beyond; including increased
collaborative work with Malton Museum.

2020-2023
Area
Arts and Culture

Schools

Community Groups

Objectives
 Explore opportunities and collaborations with organisations
in Ryedale and beyond including Helmsley Art Centre,
Pocklington Arts Centre, Pickering Memorial Hall, The
Wesley Centre, York Theatre Royal and SJT Scarborough and
charitable organisations including “Musical Memories” and
Malton Museum.
 Join the Small Venues Network; a partnership of mostly
Yorkshire-based arts venues which share news and support
joint programming.
 Collaborate with local schools who offer media and
performing arts on their curriculum enabling students to
practice and gain accreditation for units studied in the
classroom giving them vocational experience.
 Increase the number of community groups using the site.
 Provide space for and develop revenue from business events
and conferencing

4. Main Facilities:
The trustees intend to develop the opportunities for use of the different spaces with the building; including
greater promotion of the rooms available for hire.
Room
Main Hall

Capacity
Max 300
(theatre style)

Features
Hall with stage

Page 233

Assembly Rooms
Subscription Rooms
Bar

60/70 under
Covid-19 secure
guidelines
80. 30 under
Covid-19
N/A
Closed to public –
Table service only
at this time in
Main Hall –
(Cabaret Style)

Multipurpose hall space
The subscriptions rooms are currently
occupied by Malton Museum.
Small bar with seating and adjacent kitchen.
Also used for micro performances.

The Assembly Rooms have recently been revamped and the trustees aim to capitalise on this addition to
the available room hire over this business plan period. As well as being suitable for workshops, lectures
and performances, this space could include events such as weddings, christenings, birthdays and wakes.

5. Programming
The trustees and the Venues Manager are keen to develop a vibrant arts programme for the Milton
Rooms, maximising the full potential of what the venue has to offer and providing a rich and vibrant
programme for the public to enjoy.
Some successful community programming has taken place already and meetings and discussions are
underway with performers, stage acts and various arts development professionals.
Successful events took place in September 2020 including a one-man theatrical show and a sell- out Blues
music night. All took place within the Covid-19 safe guidelines.
2020-2023 plans include:
 Continue to provide the traditional and successful acts that have worked in the past.
 Develop a programme of at least 3 x new types of acts/events each year:
 Develop the marketing of the programming with proactive and consistent publicity
 Initiate and consistently evaluate programming; collate the feedback to inform future programmes
and ensure the Milton Rooms can be responsive to visitor comments, suggestions and complaints.

6. Beyond Covid-19 - 2023:
The new board of trustees is eager to promote the Milton Rooms as a vibrant Arts Centre within the
Ryedale locality. To achieve this aim we believe it is essential to have a strategic plan to work with other
likeminded organisations ensuring quality cultural provision is obtained across the region.
The charity is committed to exploring new and creative ways to generate income especially under the
current Covid-19 restrictions.
All of this however hinges on the Milton Rooms becoming an attractive, clean, inclusive and accessible
building to all which is fit for purpose in the 21st century. If this is to be achieved, we believe we can
strengthen and enhance our revenue funding. Please refer to our financial three-year plan which we have
made on the conservative side due to possible on-going difficulties with Covid-19. However, with a far
more enthusiastic board of trustees we believe there is much scope to have far more diverse events and

Page 234

performances in the venue which will bring a much healthier revenue stream that will make it financially
sustainable.
The new board of trustees takes its responsibilities seriously and has begun an audit of policies and risk
assessments to ensure strong governance of the Milton Rooms. We have taken on board the
recommendations from the “Working Party Report” and believe this is reflected in our opening statement
of intent. We can achieve our vision if RDC support our plan and the capital bid we are requesting which
would enable the District Council to leave a legacy for future generations to enjoy.

Capital Improvement Grant Request
Plan:
There is no doubt the overall perception of the Ryedale community is that the Milton Rooms is jaded and
has outmoded toilet facilities which are often quoted by the local population as the main reasons for not
booking or even entering the building. The Milton Rooms should be seen as an investment opportunity by
RDC for the future making the building fit for purpose. If this perception is not changed it becomes difficult
to maintain and expand a strong revenue stream which should include:
Dry hire for private or public events; Milton Rooms own funded public events; events which include bar
sales; weddings; black tie events; sporting events; funeral wakes; rural arts events; theatre
performances both local and professional; charity events; dances/discos; musical events; meeting rooms
for external organisations; exercise classes; rehearsal rooms; dance classes; food market; table top sales
and so on.

Request for a Capital Improvement Grant:
It is the belief of the newly formed board of trustees that the Milton Rooms requires a capital grant to
refurbish and modernise the facilities to bring the building into the 21 st century thus making it a desirable
venue to hire and fit for public use. After due deliberation the trustees are asking for the following to be
considered:

Milton Rooms Business Plan 2020-2023. Revised Costings. 7/10/2020

1. Toilets / Lift –
All new modern toilet facilities to be installed throughout the building to ensure inclusivity and accessibility
to all.
Basement –
Completely new Male and Female toilet facilities to include the construction of one unisex disabled toilet
with baby changing facilities in the area outside the Female toilet (known as the Powder Room).
Gents …….25892.77
Ladies…… 27763.00

Page 235

Foyer to Basement –
A fire resistant wheelchair lift from the foyer to the basement to allow disabled access to the unisex disabled
toilet. This would require the removal of the existing accessible toilet positioned in the foyer to allow space
for the lift shaft. The present position allows for little dignity to its users.
Lift ….(subject to survey) 18969.74
Unisex Toilet. 7489.34
Strip out disabled toilet in foyer 256.01
Bar Toilets –
5863.49
New unisex toilet facilities.
‘Green Room’ – 7489.34
A new unisex disabled toilet and baby changing facilities.
2. Bar –

1247.52

New sink to bar area.
Currently there is no separate wash hand basin and therefore does not comply with current regulations.
3. Assembly Rooms –

9270.86

New kitchen facilities to room off Assembly Rooms.
4. Main Hall –
Decorating - plus plaster work which needs attention.
A lot of comments from the public indicate that the Main Hall not only needs decorating but
also feels gloomy and unwelcoming. As the trustees feel that it should be used much more
as a multipurpose space it should be decorated in more neutral welcoming colours that
enhance the architecture and style of the building. 9885.00
Floor Cleaning – clean, resurface and varnish. 7195.00
New steps from floor to stage – each side of stage. 1000.00. ESTIMATE ONLY
5. Blackout Blinds /Curtains –
Balcony (blinds to windows)
Entrance (blinds to 6 windows)
Assembly Rooms (blinds to 5 windows)
Main Hall (dress curtains and blinds to 10 windows). 14800.00
6. Kitchen (Bar Area) – 10000.00. ESTIMATE ONLY
Total kitchen refurbishment.
Barista coffee machine
New fridge etc.
7. Foyer – 535.00
Wheelchair ramp with rails on both sides to assist disabled to gain easy access to main hall

Page 236

ensuring safety, inclusivity and accessibility.
8. Frontage Clean frontage – RDC – Trustees believe the Milton Rooms should along with the Old Town
Hall and St Michael’s Church stand out as one of the main flagship buildings of the Market
Place in Malton.
9. Lighting Rig – 20000.00.

ESTIMATE ONLY

New lighting rig – to bring up to professional standards
New lanterns
Equip existing Recording Room with sound and lighting.
10. Heating – 25000.00. ESTIMATE ONLY
New heating system/ heaters for Main Hall.
TOTAL 192657.07

The Milton Rooms contribution to the cultural and social activities of the local community remains of major
significance. The community is keen to support moves to rejuvenate the building and retain it as an active
and viable local resource. For such a small community it is amazing how many local people who have
performed on the Milton Rooms stage as amateurs have gone on to the professional world of Performing
Arts either as:
Actors; musical theatre actors; dancers; ballet principals; singers; performing arts teachers, theatre and
events technicians; stage managers; events managers; production manager; directors. Eg


















Paul Vesey – RADA trained - Stage Manager of the Yorkshire Play House/York Theatre Royal and
Production Manager – now freelance events manager
Laurie Scarth – Musical Theatre actor in the West End
Lauren Hood– Musical Theatre actor in the West End
Pippa Raine – Musical Theatre Performer West End
Scott Garnham – Musical Theatre actor in the West End and Director of the internationally
acclaimed Barricade Boys
Dominic Wetherill– Musical Theatre actor in the West End
Rosie Wetherill – Musical Theatre performer
Martha Gosnal – freelance dance
Jolly Gosnall – Director
Mia West – Graduated this year as a Musical Theatre performer
Sophie Robertson – Performing Arts Teacher
Eleanor Aldous – Performing Arts Teacher
Ian Audsley – Stage Manager West End
Sam Raines – Royal Ballet- Principal Ballet Mistress
Hayden Clements – Freelance Events Technician
Scores of dancers and singers who earn their living professionally
Kerry Ennis – Dancer at the Lido de Paris – Company Manager and Dance Captain
of dance groups touring worldwide.
Page 237



Ali Kirkham – Entertainments Manager worldwide

The list goes on…………… Ryedale maybe small but its influence in the sphere of performing arts is genuinely
international.
This organisation requires and deserves your support. As leaseholders and representatives of the local
community you, as RDC, have an obligation to the upkeep of the Milton Rooms for further generations by
being an active stakeholder and landlord in a community asset. This could be RDC’s opportunity to leave a
lasting legacy.
It is not only an investment for now but for the future generations who will undoubtedly benefit from
the opportunities such a joint venture as ours can offer.

Testimonials
I have such happy memories dancing on stage at the Milton Rooms. Dancing with all my friends and
performing to an audience. They were very special times being surrounded by passionate and hard
working people on stage and off.
Samantha Raine, Senior Ballet Mistress of the Royal Ballet Company
Craft & Chat has now started again. Friendships have been formed and those who live alone appreciate
the opportunity to meet up once more. Community groups are so important in this worrying time.
Margaret Lukey, Craft & Chat Co-ordinator
The Milton Rooms holds so many happy childhood memories of performing on stage! It gave me my first
taste of theatre, I played my first leading role there and I think I was the first person to ever FLY there! (RYT
production of Peter Pan) It was really special for me to come back to Malton and host my first concert in a
venue where it all began. The Milton Rooms gave me the thrill of an audience as a child and I was lucky
enough to turn my dreams into a career.
Lauren Hood, West End & International Performer
We have had to cancel many events during lockdown including our Pop Up Shop and Dog Show at the
Milton Rooms. The team very kindly however, let us use the portico at the front of the building to hold a
Saturday stall to raise some money. Hopefully we can do this again soon! Local businesses, venues and
charities need to think local, work together and keep everybody safe.
Dianne Illingworth, Ryedale Dog Rescue
May I take this opportunity to thank the Milton Rooms for all their help during COVID-19 to allow us to
return to Kirkham Henry safely. When we were given the go ahead to return to the studios, providing that
we followed all guidelines to be classed as COVID secure, Lisa at the Milton Rooms came to the rescue by
allowing us to hire the Assembly Rooms and a few weeks later the Main Hall. Due to classes having to have
the two metre social distance spaces we have had to split classes up and we did not have the studio space
and times to accommodate all children. Starting with a two week timetable we were able to
accommodate the majority of pupils even though not all classes they attended pre COVID. This has
pleased the parents of the children involved due their well being and we have been congratulated by
many. This couldn’t have been achieved on aPage
Saturday
without our second campus ‘The Milton Rooms’.
238

Thanks again for helping us out! As a Community Interest Company our aim is to keep fees as low as
possible so as not to exclude anyone from attending, and as we had to fundraise for our recovery, the
Milton Rooms have allowed re-opening with their generosity to help the community which is what we, as a
CIC aim to do ourselves.
Angela Kirkham, Principal
The Swinton & District Band would like to thank the Milton Rooms for enabling us to get back to a little bit
of normality. Due to COVID, back in March we had to suspend our rehearsals and for several months have
not been allowed to meet. Following guidance from the Government, the Department of DCMS and Brass
Band England, and also following strict guidelines and risk assessments it has become possible for us to get
back together again to rehearse.
However in our own band room this was not possible due to the need to be socially distanced. We needed
to find a space that would be large enough for up to 30 musicians to be sat 2 metres apart. We contacted
a number of local venues and the Milton Rooms came back to us with a very generous offer with regards to
hire charges. This provides us with a really safe place to rehearse and it also enabled us to audition for a
new Musical Director who we have now been able to appoint. Being able to get back together, even
though we are unable to socialise at these practices, is really good for the mental health of our members
and it has also helped to ensure the future of our organisation. We feel very fortunate to have a resource
like the Milton Rooms in our town.
Tracy Popham, Swinton Brass Band
The Milton Rooms has been ‘home’ to Ryedale Youth Theatre for our annual shows since our fist show in
1991. To see our shows brought to life on the stage at the Milton Rooms is exciting every year and the RYT
cast of approximately 70 young people always look forward to performing there. We are very lucky to
have this venue in Malton bringing so many different forms of entertainment to the town and its
surrounding community.
Teri Aldous, Ryedale Youth Theatre Trustee
I will forever owe a huge debt to the Milton Rooms and the people who work so tirelessly to ensure this
wonderful community building is still a key part of Malton and the surrounding area. It was my first
experience of ‘theatre’ being lucky enough to perform with a diverse group of ages, cultures and life
experiences. I enjoyed dancing with friends at their many discos and found gifts attending art and craft
fairs. I feel lucky to have grown up where a community building, such as the Milton Rooms, played such a
vital and important role in mine, and many other people’s lives. Long may it continue.
Scott Garnham, Award winning singer, actor and theatrical producer. Creator of The Barricade Boys

Page 239

This page is intentionally left blank

The Milton Rooms
Income & Expenditure Account

ACTUAL
APRIL-AUG
£

Page 241

Income
Ticket Sales
Room Hire - certain
Room Hire - hoped for
Assembly Rooms hire - RDC meetings
Assembly Rooms hire - other
Craft & Chat
Bar Sales
Vintage Dance
Coronavirus, Retail, Hospitality & Leisure Grant
Norton Town Council
Malton Town Council
GoFundMe web appeal
The National Lottery Community Fund
Other income
Donations
Rental from Malton Museum
Income from Licensees (Museum 30% utilities)
Fundraising income
Total Income
Direct Expenses
Bar Purchases
Production Costs
Stage repairs & wiring
Vintage Dance
Marketing
Professional fees (proof reading bid)
Credit Card Charges (on-site)
Total Direct Expenses
Overheads
Water Rates - Milton Rooms
Water Rates - Subscription Rooms
Gas and electric - Milton Rooms
Gas and electric - Subscription Rooms
Office costs
Telephone & internet
Legal & Professional
Insurance
Cleaning/Caretaking
Repairs, inspections and renewals
Waste Removal
Bank charges
General Expenses
Licences & subscriptions
Health & safety - hand sanitisation etc
Accounting services
Independent Examination
Venue Manager Fees
Total Overheads
Total Expenditure
Surplus/Deficit(-) in period

69
114

Unrestricted General Funds
TOTAL

FORECAST
SEPT
£

OCT
£

NOV
£

DEC
£

280

430

425

235

450
60
48
250

450

450

450

64
250

64
250

48
250

JAN
£

180

64
250

FEB
£

180

64
250

MAR
£

225

80
250

20,000
1,200
1,250
2,396
5,850
150
309
25,179

945

1,088

1,503

7,039

983

494

494

1,500

125
0

125
0

125
0

125
0

125
0

125
0

125
0

2,010
108
100
616
2,834

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

75
300

75
300

75
300

75
300

75
300

75
300

75
300

224
0
1,454
680
60
786
13
1,552
1,258
768

150
342
350
350
20

150

150

150

150

150

150

500
450
20

600
550
20
475

650
550
20

650
550
20

2020/21
£
69
2,069
0
1,800
60
432
1,750
0
20,000
1,200
1,250
2,396
5,850
0
150
0
1,254
0
38,280
875
0
2,010
0
808
100
1,141
4,934

1,170
3,931
4,231

400
150
50
25
35
26
30
250
550
1,170
3,969
4,269

1,274
342
5,454
4,180
200
1,736
26
3,077
4,158
1,818
350
209
259
568
1,180
2,939
550
14,040
42,360
47,294

-3,737

-2,769

-9,014
12,054

650
550
20
475

54
19
386
904
1,089

305
400
150
50
15
25
26
96
450

305
400
150
50
20
30
26
30
250

305
450
150
50
20
35
26
30
250

305
450
150
50
25
40
26
30
200

305
400
150
50
25
40
26
30
250

400
150
50
25
35
26
30
200

5,850
15,097
17,931

1,170
3,899
4,199

1,170
3,551
3,851

1,170
4,281
4,581

1,170
3,816
4,116

1,170
3,816
4,116

7,248

-3,111

-2,348

2,458

-3,133

-3,622

600
500
20
0
13

Balances b/f*

12,054

19,302

16,191

13,843

16,301

13,168

9,546

5,809

Balances c/f

19,302

16,191

13,843

16,301

13,168

9,546

5,809

3,040

Notes to Forecast

Kirkham Henry & White Star Band
Food market? Pantomime? RYT?
check number meetings
Yoga ?
average £16 p/session receipts
Blues Club bar
coming back?

BUDGET
2021/22
£

BUDGET
2022/23
£

Notes to Budget

32,000 based on 2019/20 accounts

32,000

18,000
2,700
6,000
576
16,000
6,000

18,000
2,700
6,000
576
16,000
6,000

based on 2019/20 accounts
assumption 6 meetings pa?
target £500 per month
based on 2019/20 accounts
based on 2019/20 accounts
based on 2019/20 accounts if returns?

1,000 hoped for contribution
1,000 hoped for contribution

1,000
1,000

3,000 estimate - rent contribution
1,590 assuming 30% contribution

3,000
1,590

anymore?
to fund 5 months VM fees
Food market contbn to electricity
Receipt 12/8/20 ref Goodwill?
assume invoice 6 monthly in arrears

assume 50% gross profit on bar
assume 90% of ticket sales

87,866

87,866

8,000 assume 50% gross profit on bar
28,800 assume 90% of ticket sales

8,000
28,800

any more ?
coming back?
reduced

3,000 approx 50% gross profit assume returns?
3,600 estimate £300 p/mnth?

3,000
3,600

any more ?
Lisa reducing?

DD plan agreed

900
44,300
1,800 DD £150 p/mnth

? Terminal charge?
assume increase over winter
assume increase over winter
Lisa looking to reduce this
company house fee
DD over 10 months
est. only as variable with events
?
assuming resumes as per last year

Music Licence due April/May 2021
sanitisers purchased July

1,800

?

7,900
5,300
250
2,000
13
3,077
9,000
2,400
600
400
500
524
400
3,000
550

now covered to financial y/e

3,040 Forecast unrestricted reserves*

900
44,300

based on 2019/20 accounts
based on 2019/20 accounts

assume same as current
based on 2019/20 accounts
allow £200 p/mnth
based on 2019/20 accounts
based on 2019/20 accounts
based on 2019/20 accounts
expect reduced Music Licence
est £250 p/mnth

7,900
5,300
250
2,000
13
3,077
9,000
2,400
600
400
500
1,670
400
3,000
550

omit until funding secured £14kpa

37,714
82,014

38,860
83,160

5,852

4,706

3,040
8,892 Forecast unrestricted reserves*

8,892
13,598

* excluding the designated £3k held as wind down provision in the event of closure
T Bramley Copy of MR. incomeexpenses 202023

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 13c

REPORT TO:

FULL COUNCIL

DATE:

18 FEBRUARY 2021

SUBJECT:

PART ‘B’ REFERRALS FROM POLICY AND RESOURCES
COMMITTEE ON 4 FEBRUARY 2021

33

Car Parking Strategy

Councillor Burr left the meeting during consideration of this item and did not participate in the
debate or vote.
Considered – report of the Programme Director of Economic Development, Business and
Partnerships
Recommendation
It is recommended to Full Council that
(i)

The Car Parking Strategy 2021-2026 is endorsed.

(ii)

Delegated authority is given to the Programme Director for Economic Development,
Business and Partnerships to progress specific implementation activities in line with
the Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy, following the completion of individual
assessments and subsequent agreement of the Section 151 Officer and Head of HR
that they represent a return on investment and can be progressed within available
staffing resources.

(iii)

That consultation with the Chair of Policy & Resources Committee in line with
required financial procedures occurs prior to the Programme Director progressing
specific implementation activities once they are established as representing a return
on investment and able to be progressed within available staffing resources.

Voting record
Unanimous

Council

Page 243

18 February 2021

This page is intentionally left blank

PART B:

RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL

REPORT TO:

POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE

DATE:

04 FEBRUARY 2021

REPORT OF THE:

PROGRAMME DIRECTOR OF ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT,
BUSINESS AND PARTNERSHIPS
PHILLIP SPURR

TITLE OF REPORT:

CAR PARKING STRATEGY

WARDS AFFECTED:

ALL

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
1.0

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1

To recommend to Full Council approval of the attached Car Parking Strategy 20212026.

2.0

RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1

It is recommended to Full Council that:
(i)

The Car Parking Strategy 2021-2026 is endorsed.

(ii)

Delegated authority is given to the Programme Director for Economic
Development, Business and Partnerships to progress specific implementation
activities in line with the Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy, following
the completion of individual assessments and subsequent agreement of the
Section 151 Officer and Head of HR that they represent a return on investment
and can be progressed within available staffing resources.

(iii)

That consultation with the Chair of Policy & Resources Committee in line with
required financial procedures occurs prior to the Programme Director
progressing specific implementation activities once they are established as
representing a return on investment and able to be progressed within available
staffing resources.

3.0

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1

The previous Car Parking Strategy for Ryedale was operational between 2006 and
2011. Since that time several changes and challenges have emerged including
changes to parking enforcement, new development and growth within all five market

POLICY AND RESOURCES

04 FEBRUARY 2020

Page 245

towns and an increase in visitor numbers, all of which collectively mean there is a need
to utilise our car parking offer to improve the vitality and functionality of our towns. An
approved recommendation within a Policy and Resources Committee paper in March
2018 committed to undertaking the development of a new strategy in partnership with
North Yorkshire County Council. WSP Consultants were subsequently appointed to
assist with the development of a strategy.
3.2

Upon completion of a car parking review by WSP which included engagement with a
range of key stakeholders including town councils, tourism attractions and interest
groups, a cross-party Car Parking Working Party was formed to review the report and
the recommendations it contained. Extensive discussions with this group of Elected
Members took place from late 2019 and through 2020 to inform the development of
the proposals contained within the strategy.

3.3

The Car Parking Strategy is extensive and contains a number of key themes. Activities
to deliver these themes will improve the quality of the car parks, and make our towns
more attractive to both residents and visitors. Investing in our car parks will support
local businesses and the visitor economy.

3.4

Investing in car parks has the potential to increase revenue generated by the council
in the medium term. Whilst it recognised that car parking income is likely to fall in
2021/22 as a result of the continuing Covid pandemic it is anticipated that delivery of
the strategy will generate a significant increase in income in subsequent years. The
detail of this is to be developed by the Programme Director in conjunction with the
Section 151 Officer to ascertain the business case for specific investments and returns
prior to the implementation of specific initiatives to deliver the Strategy.

3.5

Additional resources are likely to be required to deliver these themes, once the
business case for each activity has proved that value for money will be achieved in
addition to delivery against the strategic priorities contained within the Council Plan.

3.6

The Strategy will be implemented on a phased basis over a five year period.

4.0

SIGNIFICANT RISKS

4.1

A number of potential partners and stakeholders will need to be engaged to
successfully deliver the actions identified in the proposed strategy. All stakeholders
should be assured that all activity will be undertaken in a collaborative manner, with
activity coordinated and managed though the Economic Development service.

4.2

There are a number of strategic actions which will require financial investment and / or
legal support to enact. Appropriate external and specialist support will be sought where
necessary, and any additional resources required will be secured with the appropriate
approval prior to work being initiated. Such costs will be taken into account when
assessing likely return on investment prior to the inception of individual activities.

4.3

The Programme Director and Section 151 Officer will ensure that a business case
approach is used to determine return on investment and value for money. Each
business case will also take into account the staffing resources of the Council that is
required to progress implementation, ensuring that day to day service is not
inadvertently affected e.g. in Customer Services and Streetscene teams.

5.0

POLICY CONTEXT AND CONSULTATION

POLICY AND RESOURCES

04 FEBRUARY 2020

Page 246

5.1

Implementation of the Strategy will support the aims and objectives of the Council Plan
2020-2024, in particular the priorities of ‘a place like no other – to live, work, visit and
invest’ and ‘sustainability into the future’, in addition to the Economic Recovery Plan,
the Tourism Destination Delivery Plan, and the Climate Change Action Plan.

5.2

A copy of the draft Car Parking Strategy 2021-2026 was provided to all members of
the Car Parking Working Party for comment prior to this report being presented to
Committee.

REPORT
6.0

REPORT DETAILS

6.1

Consultants WSP were commissioned in 2018 to undertake an extensive review of all
aspects of car parking across all car parks in Ryedale.

6.2

Upon completion of the report by WSP, a cross-party Car Parking Working Party was
formed to review the report and the recommendations it contained. Extensive
discussions took place from late 2019 and through 2020 to inform the actions and
policy direction of a new Car Parking Strategy for Ryedale for the next five years.

6.3

The Car Parking Strategy 2021-2026 is a reflection of these discussions.

6.4

The Car Parking Strategy considers parking issues across Ryedale as well as those
related to specific locations, with the intention of ensuring consistency in our approach
but addressing localised issues, and ensuing the best possible facilities are available
for all.

6.5

Using the WSP report and its recommendations, Working Party discussions
highlighted a number of key themes to be incorporated in the strategy including tariffs,
permits, accessibility, EV charging, alternative uses of the car parks and enforcement.
Delivery will be undertaken in line with the identified themes.

6.6

Delivery of the Strategy will ensure that the quality of our car parks is enhanced to
improve future revenue generation and to provide facilities which support a vibrant local
economy and town centre retail offer. Delivery of the strategy will provide the
infrastructure for transition to greater use of electric vehicles and encourage other,
more sustainable, forms of transport, ensure the best value for RDC from its assets,
and meet the parking needs of residents, businesses and visitors. If the strategy is not
delivered it is likely that these benefits will not be realised.

7.0

IMPLICATIONS

7.1

The following implications have been identified:
a)

Financial
Specific activities will be progressed for implementation where they are in line with
the Council’s agreed Medium term Financial Strategy, assessed as representing
value for money and can be delivered within available corporate staffing resources
by the Programme Director, and agreed as such by the Section 151 Officer and
Head of HR. Consultation with the Chair of Policy & Resources Committee in line
with required financial procedures will occur prior to the Programme Director
progressing specific implementation activities once an activity is established as

POLICY AND RESOURCES

04 FEBRUARY 2020

Page 247

representing a return on investment and able to be progressed within available
staffing resources.

Actions will be undertaken utilising existing car parking budgets where possible,
but in situations where further financial resources are required, these will be
sought on case by case basis and will use the appropriate financial procedures.
In February 2020, Council considered its budget which included expected
increases in car parking income of £15,000 in 2020/21, increasing to £30,000 and
then £45,000 in the two following years. However, the pandemic means that this
£15,000 target has not been met and indeed extra costs of over £400,000 are
expected due to loss of income in the current year. The revised Financial Strategy
proposes removing the £15,000 target for 2021/22 and also adding in a further
pressure of £140,000 to offset expected losses.
Given the economic challenges the current pandemic is presenting, the forecast
increases in income for future years are unlikely to be achieved but will be
monitored on an ongoing basis and reported through the annual budget and
financial review processes, with increases in income resulting from the delivery of
the strategy anticipated as we move out of the Covid pandemic.
b)

Legal
Legal support is likely to be required to achieve a small number of actions,
including where Traffic Regulation Orders are required and this will be taken into
account as business cases are developed.

c)

Other (Equalities, Staffing, Planning, Health & Safety, Environmental, Crime &
Disorder)
Officer resource from across the Council will be required to support many of the
proposed activities required to deliver the strategy and associated action plan.
These will all be agreed and planned into work programmes in advance and will
only occur when a full business case has evidenced that a return on investment
will be achieved and core service delivery across different staffing groups is not
adversely affected.
Climate change and the need to reduce carbon emissions has been a
consideration. This is highlighted in the need to support electric vehicle charging
and the promotion of walking and cycling for by visitors and residents.

Phillip Spurr
Programme Director of Economic Development, Business and Partnerships
Author:
Telephone No:
E-Mail Address:

Amy Thomas, Principal Economic Development Officer
01653 600666 ext: 43316
amy.thomas@ryedale.gov.uk

Background Papers:
Car Parking Strategy
Background Papers are available for inspection at:
None
POLICY AND RESOURCES

04 FEBRUARY 2020

Page 248

Ryedale District Council Car Parking Strategy
2021 – 2026
Parking provision is an integral part of many aspects of Ryedale District Councils (RDC) activity and workstreams, and
as such is a key contributing factor in Ryedale’s economic development plans and programmes of business and
community support.
This Car Parking Strategy will allow us to manage all aspects of parking provision including pricing, permits, locations,
length of stay and wider car park management. We wish to utilise this strategy to help us:
 Support a vibrant local economy and town centre retail;
 Support a modal shift towards more sustainable means of transport;
 Provide the infrastructure and facilities required for the transition to electric vehicles;
 Ensure best value for RDC from its assets; and
 Meet the parking needs of residents, businesses, commuters and visitors.
The Council wishes to develop an approach to car parking and the various issues across the district to ensure
consistency of approach where possible, but also to address localised issues and opportunities so the best possible
facilities are available for residents and visitors. The strategy primarily relates to off-street parking provision in RDC
car parks however on-street parking and parking provision operated by external providers has been considered.
A study was undertaken by WSP during 2018/19 to provide a comprehensive picture of car parking across the district
and provide a series of recommendations from their findings. A cross-party Car Parking Working Party was created
to assess the findings and develop / refine the recommendations. An Action Plan will be developed for
implementation over the next five years.
Alignment and complementarity with other RDC strategic plans and action plans including the Council Plan,
Economic Recovery Plan and the Climate Change Action Plan, is essential and has been integral in the development
of the Car Parking Strategy 2021-2026.

Page 249

Section 1 - Guiding Principles
Whilst there are issues which require a consistency of approach across the whole district, there is acknowledgement
of the unique challenges and opportunities within each of the market towns and the different needs each has.
As a predominantly rural area where approximately 57% of the population live outside of the five market towns, it
must be recognised that the provision of effective alternative means of transport is limited and the use of cars will
remain the sole mode of transport to many. This is also applicable to visitors to the area – many of the villages,
attractions and landscapes can only be accessed via private vehicle.
An action plan will be developed which identifies specific tasks that are required both across the district and in
particular locations. It is envisaged that this will form the basis of a work programme will be implemented between
2021 and 2026.
In developing this strategy a number of key principles were used to develop the key themes and actions to be
undertaken; these are outlined below:
 Consistency of approach wherever possible;
 Ease of use and clarity of information; and
 The provision of good quality, appropriate facilities that meet the needs and demands of users and local
businesses.

Page 250

Section 2 - Our Market Towns
As the strategy focuses on off-street parking provision in our market towns, the following provides a snapshot of the
current situation and issues within each location to provide some context and background information for the
specific actions to be set out in the Action Plan.
Malton
As Ryedale’s principal market town, there is a need to balance priorities for residents, visitors, businesses and their
workers. Visits to Malton are primarily for shopping and this purpose does not seem to vary between car parks.
With the large range of parking options including on-street, RDC off-street parking, and private or independent
operators, the need for a parking strategy within the town which aligns all these interests is felt to be of great
benefit.
Clear directional signage to car parks to relive pressure on some sites and better utilise other assets, along with
improved use of technology to provide real time information and alternative payment options are examples of the
specific actions this location would benefit from.
Car Parks:
 Wentworth Street Car Park – Long Stay – 381 spaces
 Water Lane Car Park – Short Stay and Long Stay – 109 spaces
Norton upon Derwent
St Nicholas Street car park is RDC’s only car park in Norton and the only free of charge car park in RDC’s portfolio.
This facility is well used by residents and leisure centre users and it provides a valued off-street parking location in an
area where on-street parking and traffic flows can cause congestion.
Car Parks:
 St Nicholas Street Car Park – Free – 100 spaces
Helmsley
Helmsley is a popular market town particular with visitors to the area. Discussions with representative from the
local community did not highlight particular concerns regarding capacity within the town, however there was a
collective desire to improve the Market Place car park for those wishing to park and for local businesses.
Data suggests that for the Market Place car park, there is a high turnover of vehicles due to prominent location and
short stay nature, and that the car park regularly reaches and exceeds 85% capacity indicting it is a very well used car
park. The Cleveland Way car park offering longer stays including overnight, often acts as an overflow car park for the
town as most visits are estimated to be between 1 and 3 hours.
Car Parks:
 Market Place Car Park – Short Stay – 83 spaces
 Cleveland Way Car Park – Long Stay – 156 spaces
Kirkbymoorside
Evidence has shown that most visitors to Kirkbymoorside want to park on the street and close to the businesses and
shops, with stays predominantly up to 30 minutes in length. On-street parking is a mixture of restricted short stay
spaces which seem to work well and meet this need, alongside unrestricted sections where there is an element of
conflict between availability of parking in on-street locations between residents and workers / those seeking a longer
stay. As a result, Town Farm Car Park is often underutilised.
Car Park:
 Town Farm Car Park – Long Stay – 52 Spaces

Page 251

Pickering
In general Pickering car parks are felt to meet user needs in terms of capacity and the range of parking options
available with demand exceeding availability on only a few days per year, most notably during the Wartime
Weekend. In addition to the RDC car parks there are a number of locations managed by independent operators or
are parcels of RDC land which are unrestricted as they do not have a Traffic Regulation Order.
The most notable areas of concern and congestion in Pickering are the locations with on-street parking in residential
areas. These locations are often oversubscribed and congested, and are often felt not to adequately meet resident,
visitor or business needs.
Car Parks:




Ropery Car Park – Short Stay – 84 spaces
Eastgate Car Park – Long Stay – 124 spaces
Vivis Lane Car Park – Long Stay - 58 spaces

Page 252

Section 3 – Key Themes
The following section outlines in detail the agreed RDC approach to be implemented across the district in respect of
a range of policy areas.
Theme 1 - Tariffs / Pricing Structure - Tariffs to be set based on location of car park and proximity to each town
and its attractions
An increase in the length of stay available in short stay car parks is encouraged but pricing beyond two hours should
have a higher value, thus encouraging long stay parking in the car parks further from town centres.
The tariff system should be adapted to create seasonal variation and allow for tariffs to be altered and used as a
management tool during busy events, but that this arrangement should not be overly complicated.
Due to the flexibility in tariffs desired, main signage in the car parks should continue to provide general information,
with pricing information provided on the physical machine.
Theme 2 – Payment Methods – Increase cashless options
Cash and payment by card for period of two hours or more are currently the two accepted methods of payment in
RDC car parks.
Increasingly society is moving towards the greater use of technology and cashless payment options in order to
complete financial transactions. To keep pace with the change and offer car park users the range of payment
options expected, online, pay-by-phone and pay-on-exit options should be implemented in appropriate locations.
Theme 3 – Accessibility - Access to all car parks all year round
Being able to access all car parks 24 hours a day, 7 days a week is vital if the evening economy is to be developed and
supported in our market towns.
The challenges associated with achieving this in some locations is acknowledged, but innovative and appropriate
solutions should be sought in order to maximise the potential of the car parks, support the local economy and
ensure car parks are safe and secure.
Clear directional signage, availability of spaces and type of car parking available needs to be clearly communicated to
users on all approach routes into the towns so car park users identify and use the car park most suited to their
needs.
Theme 4 – Charging Hours - Consistency of operating
Tariffs currently apply from 9.00am until 6.30pm daily in all charged for car parks except Malton where parking is
free on a Sunday. Moving forwards, it is strongly felt that an approach to charging hours which are consistent
across all RDC car parks and which is broadly in line with our neighbouring local authorities should be adopted.

Page 253

Theme 5 – Parking Permit Schemes - A simplified but effective permit system to benefit residents, businesses and
visitors
Permits are currently available for both short and long stay car parks, as well as 7 day visitor permits. Overall,
permits are well received and considered to be a valuable and important offer for residents and businesses; in
addition they generate significant income for RDC annually.
Permits should be retained, however a review is recommended as the existing arrangement is complicated to
administer and requires third parties to sell permits on behalf of RDC. Any review should ensure that pricing, online
sales, corporate permit arrangements, virtual permits and linking permits to specific car parks are all considered.
Marketing and advertising of permits is considered to be crucial. Permits should be widely advertised and available
to purchase in a simple, easy to access way.
Theme 6 - Free Car Parking - Supporting residents and businesses with free car parking across Ryedale
It is strongly felt that there should be an element of free car parking available in all market towns all year round.
This will bring Helmsley, Pickering and Kirkbymoorside in line with Malton and Norton where free car parking is
already available on the Market Place and in St Nicholas Street car park, thus encouraging visits, increasing footfall
and supporting the local economy.
Any extended period of free car parking, for example in the month of December to support retailers and hospitality
businesses during the run up to Christmas, would be in addition to the year round offer but should be limited in
frequency and subject to the agreement of the appropriate Council Committee before becoming operational. Whilst
extended periods of free car parking are agreed to be valuable to local businesses and residents, there are significant
financial and administrative issues as a result of such action, and this needs to be fully planned and accounted for in
advance.
Theme 7 - EV Charging Points - Investing in low carbon initiatives to support our transition to greener travel
EV charging points are currently available in Water Lane Car Park, Malton and St Nicholas Street, Norton. Charging
for up to 1 hour is permitted with 1 hours free parking in these bays. Vehicles should vacate the bay after an hour
has elapsed.
Additional charging points across the district car parks are to be encouraged, to grow the network and support a
transition to cleaner, greener travel.
Theme 8 – Alternative Transport Solutions - Encouraging a reduction in carbon emissions in Ryedale
A shift towards alternative modes of transport is encouraged, however it is strongly acknowledged that given the
rural nature of the district and the distances and terrain required to be covered in order to travel, this might not
always be possible.
The availability of cycle storage in car parks should be increased and given the significant growth in the e-bike
market and this should be taken into consideration when offering cycle storage solutions.
Walking routes and linkages with the bus and rail public transport offer would be of benefit to residents and visitors.
Theme 9 – Enforcement - Fair and consistent enforcement of regulations
Enforcement duties are currently undertaken by Scarborough Borough Council through a Service Level Agreement
due to expire in May 2021 and ensures that parking occurs in a manner which is safe and legal in both on-street and
off-street locations.
Good practice indicates that as with all external contracts, this should be regularly reviewed the ensure services are
appropriate to meet needs and demands and so it contributes to the delivery of the Councils strategic objectives.

Page 254

Theme 10 - Environment and Maintenance - A clean and attractive environment
As the point at which most visitors have their first interaction with a town, our car parks should be pleasant, clean
and welcoming environment. Adequate signage and information on how to access facilities and attractions should
be available within well maintained environs.
Several car parks are also home to mini recycling centres. Ryedale District Council is committed to promoting and
making available extensive facilities so recycling is accessible by both residents and visitors. These sites should well
maintained, be in appropriate locations and provide adequate facilities.
Theme 11 – Car Park Layout - Providing high quality parking locations
The layout of each car park should be such that it maximises the space available.
Any additional facilities situated within the space both temporary and permanent should be considered holistically
ensuring they are situated in the most appropriate area and not result in detrimental impact to the appearance and
functionality of the car park.
Theme 12 - Use of Car Parks for and by Events – Voluntary / Community, Public and Private - Utilising our car parks
and land used for parking for other uses
RDC car parks have the ability to be used beyond that of simply parking. Fun fairs, interest group events, outdoor
markets, school drop off / collection, longer term leases and agreements with neighbouring businesses and to
support vaccination programmes are just a few examples of the uses our car parks can provide to support the
economy and wellbeing of our communities.
External groups requesting whole or partial use of an RDC car park must complete an Event Application Form before
any event organised by an external organisation, business, group etc is held on RDC land. This is to be assessed by all
relevant directorates within the Council to understand economic impact, health and safety and community impact.
To provide consent a robust charging policy with clearly defined decision making needs to be determined and made
publically available in order to provide clarity for users.
Where RDC is directly involved with the delivery of an activity and it is of public good, delegated authority sits with
Officers in consultation with chair of Policy and Resources committee to determine this use. Notification will be
given to, and views sought from, local ward Members.

Page 255

Implementing the Strategy
Having discussed the potential actions and recommendations identified by the WSP report, the above policy
principles were agreed by the Car Parking Working Party. An Action Plan will be developed and will outline in more
detail the specific actions that are now required to be undertaken over the next five years. Each action will be
assigned a time frame for completion - Short (within 1 year), Medium (within 1 to 3 years) or Long (within 3 to 5
years).
A review of achievements against the Action Plan will take place on a regular basis through the service planning
process, with an annual update on progress being provided to Members. Any investment which may be required for
the completion of actions outside of day-to-day operational activities and existing budgets will be sought as per the
Councils financial requirements.

Page 256

Agenda Item 13d

REPORT TO:

FULL COUNCIL

DATE:

18 FEBRUARY 2021

SUBJECT:

PART ‘B’ REFERRALS FROM POLICY AND RESOURCES
COMMITTEE ON 4 FEBRUARY 2021

34

Revenue and Capital Budget Monitoring – Q3 2020/21

Considered – report of the Chief Finance Officer (s.151)
Recommendation
It is recommended that Council:
i)

Notes the contents of the report

Voting record
Unanimous

Council

Page 257

18 February 2021

This page is intentionally left blank

PART B:

RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL

REPORT TO:

POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE

DATE:

4 FEBRUARY 2021

REPORT OF THE:

CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER (s151)
ANTON HODGE

TITLE OF REPORT:

REVENUE AND CAPITAL BUDGET MONITORING – Q3
2020/21

WARDS AFFECTED:

ALL

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
1.0

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1

The revenue budget for 2020-21 was approved by Council on 20 February 2020. This
report and associated appendices present the financial performance against the
budget as at 31 December 2021.

2.0

RECOMMENDATION

2.1

It is recommended that Council:
i)

Notes the contents of the report.

3.0

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1

To ensure that budget exceptions are brought to the attention of the Council in order
to approve remedial action where necessary and to inform the financial implications
and impact on future years.

4.0

POLICY CONTEXT AND CONSULTATION

4.1

The financial position and performance against budget is fundamental to delivery of
the Council’s Plan, achieving value for money and ensuring financial stability.

POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE

Page 259
OFFICIAL

4 FEBRUARY 2021

5.0

REPORT DETAILS
General Fund (Appendix A) – Revenue Estimates

5.1

The forecast year-end position estimates a deficit of £0.834m. Further details are set
out below. Planned savings and efficiencies of £434k for the year, identified as part
of the 2020/21 budget setting process were built into the base budgets and are
reflected in the numbers below and appendix A. Most of the savings were identified
following the review of budgets to ensure that they more realistically reflected current
estimates, although £38k of efficiencies were identified as a target to reduce costs /
maximise income.
Covid-19 impact on Revenue Budget

5.2

Forecasts have been prepared using the latest information gathered for the financial
impacts monitoring returns to MHCLG and the position reported here uses the
estimates for the full financial year as at the end of December.

5.3

Gross costs that will be incurred by the Council during 20/21 resulting from the
Coronavirus pandemic are estimated to be £1.96m as shown below. This amount is a
significant reduction in the Q2 estimate of £2.7m, largely due to a change in how
council tax and business rates losses are to be counted in this and future years, as
directed by central government.

5.4

The Council is still incurring such losses, but these will not have the same level of
impact in the current financial year due to this change in counting. Instead costs are
to be spread over future years, with some additional government grant to support
these. The Q2 figure assumed these costs to be £0.9m and these have now been
removed.

5.5

It is stressed that these are estimated costs for the full year and therefore will almost
certainly change as the impact of a second full national lockdown takes effect. The
list shows that actual costs incurred to date were £879k.

£000s

Estimated
Full Year

Costs
to date

160
147
131
105
60
69
291
28
80
25
20

14
41
97
75
21
0
86
20
79
13
21

Housing - including
Homelessness
Leisure
Environmental Services
Finance and Corporate Costs
Lost investment income
Capital costs
Other staffing
PPE
Support to Businesses
Savings not achieved
Community work/shielding
POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE

Page 260
OFFICIAL

4 FEBRUARY 2021

Reopening High Streets safely
Council Tax Court Costs
Democratic Meetings
Other costs
Council Tax income lost
NNDR income lost
Car Park income
Planning Application Fees
Rental income
Pest Control income
Waste Collection income
Market income
Lifeline income
Other income

5.6

49
43
20
23
0
0
451
58
30
3
115
22
14
15
1,959

0
0
0
5
0
0
291
40
0
0
51
12
12
1
879

The £1.959m is the estimated annual gross cost for costs to be funded this
year. The government has provided some funding to assist with this. To date
this has been confirmed as the following £1,047k:

MHCLG grant 1
MHCLG grant 2
MHCLG grant 3
MHCLG grant 4
Sales Fees and Charges Compensation
MHCLG New Burdens grant funding
Reopening High Streets Safely

5.7

5.8

28,859
551,775
82,872
100,000
153,675
80,066
49,266
1,046,513

In addition, the Council has provided £250k from reserves, plus £20k of its
normal grants budget to support these costs. Taking these into account, there
is a potential remaining COVID funding gap of £642k as below:

Estimated Gross costs for full year

1,959k

less
Government funding
Grants budget
Reserves
Funding Gap

1,047k
20k
250k
642k

This overall Q3 estimate of a £834k overspend is therefore very much driven
by the costs of COVID and the impact on the rest of the council.

POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE

Page 261
OFFICIAL

4 FEBRUARY 2021

5.9

As the year progresses, our assumptions will be refined as the on-going
impacts become clearer. There is potential for additional compensation from
Central Government specifically for lost income.

5.10

In September, the Council agreed that an amount from reserves will be
required to offset the net additional costs arising from COVID and this has
been built into the financial strategy.

5.11

This remains the case and a review of the Council’s reserves and
requirement to earmark funds for Covid-19 will be carried out as part of the
2021-22 budget preparation.

5.12

Further details of the COVID costs estimated in this financial year are set out
below:



















Housing - including Homelessness, this covers the costs of providing
temporary accommodation
Leisure: this includes a supplier relief payment to current provider
Environmental Services: this includes additional staffing costs to
ensure Covid-safe working arrangements (£63k to date, £83k
estimated), additional cleaning costs for public toilets (£4k estimate),
PPE (7k estimate, £7k to date), vehicle hire (37k estimate, £27k to
date)
Finance and Corporate Costs: includes bank charges of £4k due to
additional costs for quick payment to businesses, Initial and ongoing
IT costs to enable remote working (£51k to date, £75k estimate) and
delay of savings expected in-year (£25k)
Lost investment income
Capital costs: estimate is based on potential increased costs if work is
delayed. No costs incurred to date.
Other staffing: costs estimated for full year were as follows: Customer
Services £167k, Senior Revenue officer £4k. Additional initial costs
£29k. A further potential £120k for full year has been estimated, but
has not been agreed
PPE
Support to Businesses £40k for membership of Federation of Small
Businesses and £40k COVID grants to local organisations
Savings not achieved: this includes planned savings in services such
as Pest Control, Catering and Land Charges which have been
delayed.
Community work/shielding: Cost relating to item such as vulnerable
customer packs, residents leaflets, business packs, posters and signs.
Reopening High Streets safely: this is the amount of grant funded
although not yet committed
Council Tax Court Costs: No enforcement in year.
Democratic Meetings: additional costs to enable meetings to take
place without public attendance, including live-streaming

POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE

Page 262
OFFICIAL

4 FEBRUARY 2021













5.13

Other costs: £17k estimate for non-collection of Housing Benefits
overpayments due to increased risk of bad debt - based on 20%
increase in irrecoverable debt per 3 months; £4k software for new
Council Tax Hardship Scheme; £2k costs to ensure the safe reopening of Ryedale Markets
Council Tax income lost
NNDR income lost
Car Park income
Planning Application Fees
Rental income
Pest Control income
Waste Collection income
Market income
Lifeline income
Other income

The table below sets out the summary Q3 position, with details of forecast
variances included in Appendix A.
General Fund Account – Q2 2020/21

Net Revenue Budget
Settlement Funding RSG/NDR
Amount to be met from Council Tax
Council Tax
Collection Fund Deficit
Net Revenue Budget (Surplus) / Deficit

5.14

Budget
£000’s
8,813
(4,351)
4,462
(4,429)
(33)
0

Forecast
£000’s
10,564
(5,268)
5,295
(4,429)
(33)
834

Variance
£000’s
1,751
(917)
834
0
0
834

The main variances are:
Expenditure

-

All Employee-related costs (excluding consultants). Additional costs
relating measures that have been put in place around Covid-19 activities are
estimated at £268k for the year based on latest estimates, and the base
establishment, including agency is forecast to overspend across various
services. The overall overspend is partially offset by income showing in the
government grants line. The final agreed pay award will add costs of
approximately £7.5k above budget, but these are likely to be offset by savings
on travel and other costs that have occurred as part of lockdown.

-

Supplies and Services – The forecast deficit against supplies and services
is predominantly in relation to Covid-19.

POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE

Page 263
OFFICIAL

4 FEBRUARY 2021

-

Vehicles and Transport – Additional expenses due to Covid-19 measures
are forecast at £35k. Vehicle lease cost are expected to underspend by £60k
after funding additional hire and repairs due to old lease extensions.

-

Premises related – A forecast overspend of £3k is expected against public
conveniences due to Covid-19 requirements, along with additional funding of
£102k to support leisure services. In addition, extra costs of £47k relating to
the old Waste Transfer station depot are expected due to delays in vacating
the old premises and this has been built into the Financial Strategy.

Income
-

Fees and Charges – A shortfall of £647k is estimated again, relating to
Covid-19, most significantly being from Car Parking, along with Markets,
Commercial rents and Planning

-

Housing Benefits – Due to temporary hold on recovery, it is expected there
will be an increase in irrecoverable Housing Benefit overpayments, £17k

-

Investment Income – A shortfall in investment income of £60k is forecast as
a result in a significant fall in the base rate following Covid-19 measures put in
place by Central Government.

-

Waste Collection & Recycling – £102k shortfall due to the combined impact
of lost income, primarily in relation to commercial waste collections. This is
partially offset by increases in green waste and recycling tonnages resulting
from changes in activity during Covid lock-down and expected recovery.

Capital Programme

5.14

The current approved programme of £3,327m is forecast to underspend by around
£0.157m as at the end of Q3 in relation to timing of IT infrastructure work. Elsewhere
in the plan there are some higher than anticipated costs in Property condition works,
mitigated by savings against programmed costs, which have been fed into the revised
budget estimates. As the remainder of the programme progresses, this position will
be kept under review.

5.15

The latest capital budget includes carry-forwards of £1.3m from 19/20 programme
slippage and supplementary estimate for Railway Tavern £731K

Capital Programme – 2020/21
Asset Management

Budget
Forecast Variance
£000’s
£000’s
£000’s
1,262
1,105
(157)

POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE

Page 264
OFFICIAL

4 FEBRUARY 2021

Housing

2,065

2,065

0

Total Programme

3,327

3,170

(157)

5.16

The impact of Covid-19 has created some delays in progressing in year schemes as
other priorities have come in to play.

5.17

Current forecast spend for the programme is £0.157m in relation to IT infrastructure.
The final quarter year spend will very much depend on pressures around managing
Covid measures and now potentially flooding, although it is anticipated delayed
projects will be carried forward into 2021/22

5.18

Further details can be found at Appendix B.

6.0

IMPLICATIONS

6.1

The following implications have been identified:
a)

Financial
Included in the body of the report

b)

Legal
There are no legal implications identified as part of this report

c)

Other
None to report, although in any report to Committee and Council, it will be noted
that any proposals which may impact on Equalities, Staffing, Planning, Health &
Safety, Climate Change, Environmental, Crime & Disorder will be assessed as
part of the budget process.

Anton Hodge
Chief Finance Officer (s151)
Author:
Telephone No:
E-Mail Address:

Michelle Oates
01609 534196
michelle.oates@ryedale.gov.uk

Background Papers:
None
Background Papers are available for inspection at:
N/A

POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE

Page 265
OFFICIAL

4 FEBRUARY 2021

POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE

Page 266
OFFICIAL

4 FEBRUARY 2021

Management Accounts 2020/21
Results as at Quarter 3 - 2020/21
Prior Year

Latest
Approved

Actual

Budget

Full Year

Year to Date
Actual

Budget

Variances
Forecast
Year to Date
Variance

Forecast

COMMENTS

INCOME
(2,774)

(2,905)

(1,574)

(2,088)

(2,258)

514

647

Loss of income as a result of Covid measures, most significantly Car Parking, Markets, Commercial Rents
and Planning

Government Grants

(205)

(124)

(290)

(93)

(204)

(197)

(80)

Additional Grant funding received towards cost of administering Grant schemes, Enforecement. Any
associated costs are mostly offset in salaries

Grants & Contributions Inc

(296)

(162)

(42)

(95)

(162)

52

0

(8,068)

(8,122)

(80)

(180)

(8,105)

100

17

Potential increase in irrecoverable Housing benefit overpayments as a result of Covid measures

60

Loss in income due to significant fall in base rate following Covid - this will take time to filter into current
investment rates

Fees & Charges

Housing Benefits
Investment Income

(263)

Waste Collection & Recycling Inc

(205)

(91)

(164)

(145)

73

(1,905)

(1,422)

(1,738)

(1,803)

316

102

103

(67)

(37)

(2,684)

(67)

2,646

0

(13,367)

(13,491)

(3,537)

(7,041)

(12,744)

3,504

746

Combined impact of lost income, primarily in relation to commercial waste collections, which is partially
offset by increases in green waste and recyling - resulting from changes in activity during Covid lock-down
and expected recovery

(1,863)
Recharges
TOTAL SERVICE INCOME

Page 267

Salaries & Employee Costs

7,747

8,637

6,469

6,374

9,037

95

399

Forecast overspends in salaries arising from additional costs due to Covid measures across services
(£247 k). The njc pay award resulted in an increase of 2.75%, which is 0.10% over the estimate,
increasing costs by circa. £7.4k. The remainder is a combination of under/overspend across services
resulting from structure changes and job evaluation reviews and in some cases temporary staffing to cover
sickness.

Supplies & Services

2,150

2,584

1,850

1,842

3,064

8

480

Impact across various cost headings in relation to Covid acitvities and measures.

565

741

496

478

715

18

(26)

£34k relates to additional streetscene hire in relation to Covid measures. Streetscene lease costs are
expected to underpend by £100k, which is offset by £40k for additional hire and repair costs for the
vehicles over-due replacement.

1,210

999

743

781

1,150

(38)

151

Additional costs relating to extension of lease for former Waste Transfer Station - until 31st Jan 21

Drainage Board Levies

98

100

99

100

100

(0)

0

Grants & Contributions

228

435

192

307

435

(115)

0

7,970

8,005

5,862

6,005

8,005

(143)

0

103

(12)

0

(44)

(12)

44

0

54

58

58

58

58

(0)

0

(628)

240

3

(372)

240

375

0

19,496

21,787

15,772

15,529

22,792

243

1,005

13

(33)

0

0

(33)

0

0

Council Tax

(4,271)

(4,429)

1,093

0

(4,429)

1,093

NNDR

(3,036)

(2,912)

(2,006)

0

(2,912)

(2,006)

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

General Government Grant

(940)

(1,439)

(1,177)

(1,092)

(2,356)

(85)

(917)

Transfers to / from Reserves

2,105

516

0

0

516

0

(6,129)

(8,296)

(2,090)

(1,092)

(9,213)

(998)

(917)

0

(0)

10,145

7,395

834

2,750

834

Vehicles & Transport
Premises

Housing Benefit Payments
Additional Capacity & Provisions
Interest Payable
Capital A/c
TOTAL SERVICE EXPENDITURE
FINANCING & RESERVES
Collection Fund Surplus

0

TOTAL FINANCING & RESERVES
GF (SURPLUS) / DEFICIT

0

Collection fund losses to be spread over 3 years from 21/22

Covid Funding - tranche 1-4, plus Sales Fees and Charges allocation 1.

0

`
OFFICIAL

#

APPENDIX A

RSG

Collection fund losses to be spread over 3 years from 21/22

This page is intentionally left blank

Capital Monitoring 2020/21 - Results as at Quarter 3

Category / Scheme

Desciption

Original

Carry
Forward

Supp
Estimate

£'000

£'000

£'000

2020/21
Revised
Budget

2021/22

2022/23

2023/24

Est.

Est.

Est.

Total
Approved
Budget

YTD Exp

Forecast

Forecast
Variance

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

195

195

0

40

40

40

315

33

33

0

0

0

0

33

32

32

0

0

0

0

32

98

98

0

0

0

0

98 Council approved £92k 19 March 2020

222

0

0

0

0

87

87

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

30

30

0

0

0

0

30

187

0

60

60

60

367

£'000

Update Comments

ASSET MANAGEMENT
Vehicle Replacement Programme

Trade Waste Equipment

Replacement for recycling, street
cleansing and grass cutting services
Replacement of trade waste bulk bins /
roll out of glass recycling / additional
recycling boxes

Property Condition Survey

Investment / Operational Assets

Property Condition Survey

Leisure Facilities

Property Condition Survey

Milton Rooms

40

0
32

33

0

98

222
96

Property Condition Survey

155

6

126

Former Waste Transfer Site
Public Conveniences

Property Condition Survey

Car Parks

Property Condition Survey

Street Lights

0
0

Page 269

Property Condition Survey

St Leonards Wall

Property Condition Survey

Unallocated
Programme review & feasibility work
being undertaken

IT Infrastucture Strategy

Essential upgrade to accomoodate new
style of vehicle

Aff Hsg Init - Exception Sites
Land Purchase

Contribution to RSL land acquisitions

Aff Housing - Railway Tavern

Initial acquisition costs and feasibility
works - Railway Tavern

Aff Housing - Extended
Programme Delivery

87

Recoverable Loans to ensure properties
are to the decent home standard

Aff Hsg Init - Landlord
Improvement Loans/Grants
Private Sector Energy Efficiency
Grants
Private Sector Renewal Disabled Facilities Grants

Recoverable Loans or Grants to
Landlords

TOTAL CAPITAL
PROGRAMME

Provide insulation improvements
Improve access to and within properties
for people
Development of Community lead housing
within the District
Scheme in partnership with Registered
Social Landlord
TOTAL

186

0 No projects programmed for PC's

127

0
58

30
(66)

50

2,234

1

(2,235)

57

0

50

0

100

0

6

731

0

0

257

75

0

50

0

40

0

496

0

0

289

0

21

3,321

1,301

Quotes have been received for the works. Phase
1 agreed to proceed, intial overspend of £25k to
80
be vired from the PC's underspend. Phase 2 will
require futher approval before proceeding.

80

0

0

0

0

(8)

(8)

0

50

50

50

142 £60k p.a. tranferred to Street Lighting

0

0

0

0

0

0

0 Project removed from Programme

32

Budget to be committed between remainder of
20/21 and 21/22 based on IT Delivery Plan
457
approved Jan 21. Any balance from 20/21 to be
carried forward to 21/22

100

(157)

200

0

50

50

0

0

0

50

100

100

0

0

0

100

737

24

737

0

0

0

737

257

2

257

0

0

0

257

75

12

75

0

75

0

150

50

5

50

0

50

0

100

40

0

40

0

80

496

0

496

496

289

289

0

0

0

289

21

21

0

0

0

21

3,170

(157)

1,011

646

40
496

(1,295)

Project spend re-profiled to bring forward spend
into 20/21 (10/06/-PS 2)

80

257
200

Awaiting final costs to be agreed - Council report
19 March 2020

3,327

78

344

#

OFFICIAL

496

646

Approval for additional £731.4k for redevelopment
works Approved March 20

1,984

5,630 TOTAL

APPENDIX B

Aff Hsg Init - Property
Improvement Loans

Mortgage Rescue Scheme

60

Essential upgrade of IT Infrastructure

Garage Inspection pit

Community Housing Fund

(225)

187
0

Ryedale Hub

225
30

Remaining funding of £100k approved April 19
Council to purchase blue boxes

£40k transferred from Preservation Works to fund
222 Fire replacement system at Milton Rooms, and
£96k for 20/21

87
Property Condition Survey

Recommedation put forward to approve progress
on a number of vehicles

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 15a

REPORT TO:

FULL COUNCIL

DATE:

3 DECEMBER 2020

SUBJECT:

URGENT ITEM FOR REPORTING TO FULL COUNCIL FROM
POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE ON 12 NOVEMBER
2020

[Note: In accordance with the Constitution, decisions taken as a matter of urgency
must be reported to the next available meeting of the Council, together with the
reasons for urgency.]
BUDGET TO BRING FULL LGR PROPOSALS TO COMPLETION
8

Urgent business
There was one item of urgent business regarding the budget to bring full LGR
proposals to completion. The reason for the urgency was that, following a decision
made at Full Council on 5 November 2020 to submit outline proposals for local
government reform, a decision was required at this meeting before the deadline
imposed by Government.

23

Any other business which the Chairman decided is urgent.
This item was taken under item 9.
Considered – report of the Head of Communications, Technologies and Business
Transformation
Decision
(i)

A budget of £49k be set aside from reserves to funding Ryedale District
Council’s contribution to the cost of bringing a full proposal for local
government reorganisation before government by 9 December.

(ii)

Authority be given to the Chief Executive Officer to determine the appropriate
allocation of that budget in accordance with the rules of delegation.

Voting record
5 For
5 Against
Chair’s casting vote – For

Council

Page 271

3 December 2020

This page is intentionally left blank

PART A:

MATTERS DEALT WITH UNDER DELEGATED POWERS

REPORT TO:

POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE

DATE:

12 NOVEMBER 2020

REPORT OF THE:

HEAD OF COMMUNICATIONS, TECHNOLOGIES AND
BUSINESS TRANSFORMATION
LOUISE WOOD

TITLE OF REPORT:

BUDGET TO BRING FULL LGR PROPOSALS TO
COMPLETION

WARDS AFFECTED:

ALL

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
1.0

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1

On 5 November 2020, Full Council voted to submit an outline case for change, based
on an East/West model of local government reform, to government by 9 November,
with full proposals to follow by 9 December.

1.2

A contribution of circa £25k has already been paid towards the development of the
outline case for change. However it is expected that further costs will be incurred in
the process of bringing the full proposals together.

1.3

The purpose of this report is to ask for the Policy and Resources Committee to agree
a maximum budget of £49k for this purpose, and to delegate the allocation of that
budget to the Chief Executive Officer.

2.0

RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1

It is recommended to the Policy and Resources Committee that:
(i)

A budget of £49k be set aside from reserves to funding Ryedale District
Council’s contribution to the cost of bringing a full proposal for local
government reorganisation before government by 9 December.

(ii)

Authority be given to the Chief Executive Officer to determine the appropriate
allocation of that budget in accordance with the rules of delegation.

POLICY AND RESOURCES

12 NOVEMBER 2010

Page 273

3.0

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1

This recommendation has been made in order to enable the necessary work to take
place to bring a full proposal for an East/West model of local government reform
before government by 9 December. This is a consequence of Full Council’s decision
on 5 November 2020 to submit an outline proposal as a first stage of the overall
submission process.

4.0

SIGNIFICANT RISKS

4.1

If sufficient budget is not provided, Ryedale District Council will not be able to
participate fully in work to complete the full proposals. This could result either in
proposals failing to progress for government consideration (which would be against
the will of Full Council). Alternatively, it could result in Ryedale District Council being
placed at a disadvantage in the coordination group, resulting in loss of influence over
the final proposal, to the detriment of Ryedale’s communities and businesses.

5.0

POLICY CONTEXT AND CONSULTATION

5.1

Central government has invited councils in York and North Yorkshire to submit
proposals for local government reform across the geography.

5.2

On 5 November 2020, Full Council voted democratically to submit an outline proposal
for an East/West model of local government reorganisation. Full proposals must be
submitted by 9 December 2020.

REPORT
6.0

REPORT DETAILS

6.1

On 5 November, Full Council voted to submit outline proposals for local government
reform to central government by 9 November. The government expects full
proposals to be put before them by 9 December.

6.2

There is considerable work to do to bring the full proposals forward. Wherever
possible this work will be done using the personnel resources of the district and
borough councils that have voted to submit the proposals. However some areas of
the proposal require a high degree of technical or specialist input, within a short
timeframe. It is therefore anticipated that additional, external, support will be required
to bring some elements of the proposals (particularly those relating to functions
currently performed by the county council) to full completion by 9 December.

6.3

Government has indicated that proposals should demonstrate a good level of support
within the region for what is being proposed. As part of the proposal development
work, a programme of activity will be required to engage with communities and
businesses on the proposals prior to submission in December. Where possible, this
work will be delivered using the personnel resources and communications channels
of the district and borough councils involved in the proposal. However, it is
anticipated that some costs will be incurred to reach out as widely as possible on the
issue. The need to do so was raised by Elected Members at Full Council on 5
November 2020.

POLICY AND RESOURCES

12 NOVEMBER 2010

Page 274

6.4

Six district and borough councils are engaged in the process of developing the full
proposals. (These are: Craven, Harrogate, Richmondshire, Ryedale, Scarborough
and Selby). Costs incurred in the process are being shared equally across the
councils.

6.5

Scarborough Borough Council has agreed to hold a collective budget for the purpose
of bringing the local government reform proposals to completion. Administratively,
each council will pay an amount into the central budget, and this will be used to
commission any necessary support for the project. Where it is logistically more
practical to do so given the time constraints, some costs may be collectively agreed,
but incurred by an individual council which will then invoice Scarborough Borough
Council for the amount of the agreed spend. This will then be paid from the collective
budget. Any funds not spent at the end of the project will be returned to the
contributing councils. The spending of these costs will be proportionate to each
council and fully transparent.

6.6

The development of the full proposals is a fluid process, and it is not therefore
possible to predict exactly the cost of bringing them to completion. For this reason,
the Committee is requested to agree a maximum budget of £49k. However, it should
not be inferred that all of this will necessary be required or spent. It will be incumbent
on the Chief Executive Officer to ensure that any spend made from the £49k budget
is necessary and proportionate and also to ensure that in due course members
receive a report summarising how any funds were spent.

6.7

In the interests of practicality, and in recognition of the short timescales involved, it is
recommended that the Chief Executive Officer be granted the authority, in line with
the powers of delegation, to take decisions on how any monies from the £49k budget
are spent, in order to fulfil the financial obligations of Ryedale District Council in
relation to the delivery of the full proposals for government.

7.0

IMPLICATIONS

7.1

The following implications have been identified:
a) Financial
A total budget of £49k to be allocated from reserves. This to be a maximum
budget that cannot be exceeded. The actual spend will be allocated as
necessary and may be less than the maximum of £49k.
b)

Legal
There are no legal implications of this decision.

c)

Other
This recommendation is being made in the interests of Ryedale District Council
being able to participate fully in the development of proposals, in accordance
with the will of Full Council and in the interests of Ryedale.

Louise Wood
Head of Communications
Author:
Louise Wood, Head of Communications, Technologies and Business
Transformation
Telephone No:
01653 600666 ext: 43223
E-Mail Address:
louise.wood@ryedale.gov.uk
POLICY AND RESOURCES

12 NOVEMBER 2010

Page 275

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 17a

REPORT TO:

FULL COUNCIL

DATE:

18 FEBRUARY 2021

SUBJECT:

PART ‘B’ REFERRALS FROM POLICY AND RESOURCES
COMMITTEE ON 4 FEBRUARY 2021

38

Proposal for Light Industrial Starter Units

Considered – report of the Programme Director of Economic Development, Business and
Partnerships
Councillor Duncan proposed and Councillor Arnold moved the following motion:
It is recommended to Council that:
i)

Recommendation a. as set out in the report is approved, subject to:
i.
the outcomes of an investment appraisal (to be reported to Council on 18 Feb
21); and
ii.
the Developer committing to undertake development of the wider site.

ii)

Recommendation b. as set out in the report is approved

Councillor Clark proposed and Councillor J Andrews seconded the following amendment:
Before a i., a ii. b i. and b ii., insert:
A
Officers produce a detailed analysis of:i.
The carbon emissions of the project
- in construction
- in use
ii.
The carbon impact of fitting solar p.v. panels to all units.
iii.
The carbon impact of fitting ground/air source heat pumps to all units.
iv.
The carbon impact of fitting insulation to BREEAM Excellent standard and
above to all units.
v.
The impact/saving of fitting rainwater collection and storage systems to all
units.
vi.
The cost of each of the above
Fitted at construction stage
Retrofitted.
vii.
The savings in running costs for each of the above.
viii.
The rental value of each of the above.
ix.
What materials will be used for the proposed construction? Are these the most
efficient in climate change terms?
B
Calls upon the LEP to only support proposals that are either Carbon Neutral or
preferably Carbon Negative.
If not, RDC’s confidence in the LEP’s ability to deliver climate change policies could
be reduced – potentially impacting the support of the LEP by RDC in the future.

Council

Page 277

18 February 2021

Resolved
Upon being put to the vote, the amendment was lost.
Voting record
4 For
5 Against
Recommendation
It is recommended to Council that:
i)

Recommendation a. as set out in the report is approved, subject to:
i.
the outcomes of an investment appraisal (to be reported to Council on
18 February 2021); and
ii.
the Developer committing to undertake development of the wider site.

ii)

Recommendation b. as set out in the report is approved

Voting record
7 For
2 Against

Council

Page 278

18 February 2021

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 279

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 287

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 289

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 291

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 293

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 307

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 309

This page is intentionally left blank

